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KENNETH MEJIA
CONTROLLER

January 25, 2023

Honorable Karen Bass, Mayor
Honorable Members of the Council of the City of Los Angeles
Citizens and Stakeholders of the City of Los Angeles

As the new Controller for the City of Los Angeles, | am pleased to submit the Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) of the City for the year ended June 30, 2022. This is in
accordance with Section 216 of the City Charter. The ACFR contains financial statements that
have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP)
prescribed for governmental entities, and audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards by Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP, a firm of independent licensed certified public
accountants. In accordance with the requirement of Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, the independent auditor is also in the
process of completing an annual financial and compliance audit of federal funds expended by the
City in fiscal year 2022.

The independent auditor expressed an opinion that the City’s financial statements for fiscal year
2022 are fairly stated in conformity with GAAP. This is the most favorable conclusion and is
commonly known as an “unmodified” or “clean” opinion. The independent auditor’s report is
presented on pages 1 through 4.

Responsibility for the accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation,
including all disclosures, rests with the City. The management of the City is responsible for
establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed to ensure that the assets of
the City are protected from loss, theft or misuse, and to ensure that adequate financial information
is compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP. Because
the cost of internal control should not exceed the anticipated benefits, the objective is to provide
reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free from any
material misstatements. | believe that the data presented is complete and reliable in all material
respects.

The ACFR includes a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic
financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). The MD&A
is designed to complement the basic financial statements and should be read in conjunction with
the financial statements and the notes to the basic financial statements. The MD&A can be found
immediately following the report of the independent auditor.

200 N. MAIN STREET, SUITE 300, LOS ANGELES, CA 90012 ¢ (213) 978-7200 ¢« CONTROLLER.LACITY.ORG
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Honorable Karen Bass, Mayor
Honorable Members of the Los Angeles City Council
Citizens and Stakeholders of the City of Los Angeles

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded
a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City for its Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. This was the
twenty-seventh consecutive year that the City has achieved this prestigious award. In order to be
awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable and
efficiently organized ACFR, as well as satisfying GAAP and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. | believe our current report
continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement program requirements, and | am submitting
it to GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

| would like to acknowledge the professional and dedicated staff of the Financial Analysis and
Reporting Division of the Controller's Office for the preparation of this report. | would also like to
express my appreciation to other staff of the Office for their assistance and contribution, as well
as other professional contributors citywide.

Respectfully submitted,

KENNETH MEJIA
Los Angeles City Controller
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LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL

The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) is published annually by the City Controller
(Controller) on the City of Los Angeles’ (City) financial condition and results of operations at the
conclusion of the fiscal year. The ACFR is issued as part of the Controller's City Charter mandate
to monitor and report on all matters relating to the City’s fiscal health, keep the City’s official financial
records, and supervise expenditures of the City.

The Letter of Transmittal complements the ACFR as it provides context for the City’s financial

statements in presenting basic information on the profile of the government, local economy, major
initiatives, and financial management policies of the City government.

l. Profile of the Government

Valencia  “Tarmta

The City of Los Angeles is the second most populous city
in the nation with an estimated January 1, 2022 Eko
population of 3,819,538. It is home to 39% of the
population of the County of Los Angeles (County) and
11.5% of the area of the County. With an area of 470
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square miles, Los Angeles is located in the southern part
of the State of California and is the principal city of a
metropolitan region that stretches from the City of
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Ventura to the north, to the City of San Clemente to the
south, and to the City of San Bernardino to the east. [
Founded in 1781, Los Angeles was for its first century a
provincial outpost under a succession of Spanish,
Mexican, and American rule. The City was incorporated
in 1850 under the provisions of a city charter. The current
Charter was approved by the electorate in 1999 and
became operative on July 1, 2000.

The City operates under a mayor-council form of
government. As Chief Executive Officer, the Mayor
supervises the administrative process of local
government and works with the Council in matters
relating to legislation, budget and finance. As governing
body of the City, the 15-member full-time Council enacts ordinances, levies taxes, approves
contracts, authorizes public improvements, adopts zoning and other land use controls, and provides
necessary resources for the budgetary departments and offices of the City. Council action is subject
to the approval or veto of the Mayor, and Council may override a Mayoral veto by a two-thirds vote.
The City Attorney is also independently elected, as is the City Controller, who is described in the
Charter as “the auditor and general accountant of the City (who) shall exercise a general supervision
over the accounts of all offices, departments, boards and employees of the City.”
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The City has 41 departments, bureaus, commissions and offices for which operating funds are
annually budgeted by the Council. In addition, three departments consisting of Department of Water
and Power (DWP), Harbor Department, and Department of Airports are under the control of boards
appointed by the Mayor and confirmed by Council. While the City appoints a voting majority of the
governing board of the Housing Authority of Los Angeles (HACLA), it is excluded from the City’s
financial statements due to its fiscal independence, and the City cannot impose its will over its daily
operations. Two departments, Los Angeles City Employees’ Retirement System and Fire and Police
Pension System, are under the control of boards whose membership is comprised of Mayoral
appointees and representatives elected by system members. The Water and Power Employees’
Retirement Plans, established by DWP, are under the control of a board whose membership is
comprised of three ex officio members (one DWP Board member, DWP General Manager and Chief
Accounting Employee), three elected by system members and one retiree appointed by the DWP
Board. The City's reporting entity also includes the Municipal Improvement Corporation of Los
Angeles (MICLA) as a blended component unit.

Public services provided by the City include police; fire and paramedics; residential refuse collection
and disposal; wastewater collection and treatment; street maintenance, traffic management, and
other public works functions; enforcement of ordinances and statutes relating to building safety;
public libraries; recreation and parks; community development; housing and aging services;
planning; two airports; harbor; power and water services; and, the convention center.

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City’s financial planning and control. The City
maintains budgetary controls to ensure compliance with legal provisions represented in the budget
and that expenditures do not exceed appropriated amounts. Expenditures are controlled by
appropriations at the line item level within each object by department, consistent with the level set
forth in the resolution adopting the annual operating budget. The City also maintains an
encumbrance accounting system that controls spending based on the expenditure budget; which is
composed of appropriations, allotments, or a combination of both.

L-4




Annual Comprehensive Financial Report

Letter of Transmittal

Il Local Economy

The City and its surrounding metropolitan region feature incredible diversity in both population and
the economy. Tourism and hospitality, professional and business services, international trade,
entertainment production, and wholesale trade and logistics all contribute significantly to local
employment. The Port of Los Angeles handles the largest volume of containerized cargo of all U.S.
ports and ranks as number one in cargo value for U.S. waterborne foreign traffic. According to
preliminary ACI statistics, in the calendar year 2021, Los Angeles International Airport (LAX) was
the fifth busiest airport in the world in terms of total passengers and 8™ busiest airport in the world
in terms of total cargo metric tons.

The passage of the federal American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) in March 2021 significantly changed
City’s fiscal outlook after the pandemic downturn. ARPA, which provided $1.3 billion in direct
financial assistance to the City over the last two fiscal years helped fill the revenue gap and
eliminated the need to dip into the reserves to balance the books.

At the beginning of fiscal year 2022, as COVID-19 vaccine became widely available and the
economy reopened, the unemployment in the City of Los Angeles began its steady decline from 7.2
percent in October 2021 to 4.6 percent as of October 2022. With the improving economy throughout
fiscal 2022, most economic sensitive revenue rebounded. The improvement in revenue along with
the federal assistance allowed the City to close fiscal year 2022 in a strong financial position.

While most revenue sources have remained stable during the earlier months of fiscal year 2023,
the economic outlook for the remainder of the fiscal year remains uncertain. According to the
University of California (UCLA) Anderson Forecast, the employment picture in California has
evolved slightly in recent months as the three sectors of health care and social services, leisure and
hospitality, and education have shown the largest gains in jobs. And despite the statewide gains in
leisure and hospitality employment, the landscape for that sector remains difficult in the City of Los
Angeles. Without increased employment gains in the hospitality and leisure sector, full economic
recovery is expected to remain on a shallow trend. In addition, whether the economy slips into a
recession or not depends largely on whether inflation continues to stay elevated, and any additional
actions the Federal Reserve takes to bring down inflation.

While the City is currently in a strong fiscal position, significant challenges lie ahead. The almost $2
billion in one-time revenue from the federal government available during the last two years is no
longer available for future budgets. The City faces difficult decisions on how to continue the
programming of those funds made possible while simultaneously facing potential increased cost
and lower receipts arising from the impact of rising interest rates.

Higher mortgage interest rates have led to declining real estate sales volume and decreasing prices,
which would impact documentary tax receipt, a key revenue source for the City. In its Second
Financial Status Report issued on December 1, 2022, the Chief Administrative Officer reported that
declining sales have already resulted in $23 million in documentary transfer tax receipts shortfall
during the first four months of fiscal year 2023. Voters in the last election passed Measure ULA,
which increases the tax to provide revenue. More worrisome is that sales volume is expected to
continue to slide. According to the California Association of Realtors’ October 2022 forecast, sales
volume is expected to decline by 7.2 percent and prices are expected to decrease by 8.8 percent in
2023. This would likely result in increasing monthly shortfalls and lower year-end documentary
receipts. In addition, the increasing probability of a recession, the unresolved war abroad, global
supply chain issues, and energy costs contribute to downward economic pressures which could
negatively affect other economically sensitive revenue sources.
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Ml Major Initiatives

The City is constantly undertaking many significant initiatives discussed at length in the City’s annual
budget documents. The six percent increase in projected revenue from the 2023 budget assumes
that City will continue a steady and strong recovery path.

Four primary priority outcomes for the City identified in the fiscal year 2023 budget are: to promote
a livable and sustainable city, a more prosperous city, a safe city, and a well-run government.
Further, the 2023 budget addresses the public’s top priorities by increasing public safety, effectively
responding to homelessness, spurring economic growth and jobs, and restoring basic city services
that have suffered severe cutbacks in recent years. All initiatives, including the City’s largest-ever
investment to confront the homelessness crisis at $1 billion, are intended to contribute to one or
more of those outcomes.

Two of the largest current initiatives for the City include the following:

¢ In November 2016, the voters of City of Los Angeles approved Proposition HHH, authorizing
the issuance of up to $1.2 billion in general obligation bonds to finance the construction of
housing and service facilities for chronically homeless residents. At the end of December
2022, $964 million in bonds have been issued, more than $599 million has been spent, and
the entirety of the approved funding has been allocated to projects. With Proposition HHH
funding, we have completed 36 housing projects (2,239 units) while 68 projects (4,415 units)
are currently under construction, and 26 projects are in the predevelopment stage.

Despite these efforts, the number of residents experiencing homelessness in the City of Los
Angeles continues to increase. To address the urgency of the issue, the new Mayor, on
December 12, 2022, declared homelessness as a local emergency. The declaration allows
for a faster permitting process to speed up construction of affordable housing units, and
increased coordination of efforts and support services for the unhoused.

To provide an additional source of ongoing funding, in November 2022, the voters passed
Measure ULA, a 4 percent tax on the sale or transfer of properties valued at more than $5
million and a 5.5 percent tax on the sale or transfer of properties valued at more than $10
million. Once Measure ULA becomes effective, it is expected to generate between $600
million to $1 billion annually that would be dedicated to increasing the supply of affordable
housing, addressing the need for tenant protections and assistance programs, and building
organizational capacity of organizations serving low-income and disadvantaged
communities. The measure's constitutionality is currently being challenged in court.

o Airports is undertaking a multi-billion-dollar capital improvement program at LAX. The capital
program consists of the Existing Capital Program and the Next Capital Program. The
Existing Capital Program, estimated to cost approximately $11.7 billion between the fiscal
year 2023 and 2026, is projected to be completed in 2026. Projects include various terminal
projects, airfield and apron projects, access projects, and others. In addition to the Existing
Capital Program, Airports has begun focusing on identifying and prioritizing future capital
improvements at LAX that are expected to be completed through the fiscal year 2029. From
airside to landside, a transformation like no other is underway as LAX and the City of Los
Angeles prepare to welcome the world to the 2028 Olympic and Paralympic Games.
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Iv. Financial Policies

As part of the City’s efforts towards financial sustainability, the City has adopted “Financial Policies
for the City of Los Angeles” promoting good fiscal stewardship across a number of critical areas.
Following are summaries of select financial policies and a table that provide measures of the City’s
2021-22 actual compliance and 2022-23 budgetary compliance.

Policy 2021-22 2022-23
Reserve Fund Policy

July 1st Percent of General Fund Receipts 8.62% 8.08%
Budget Stabilization Fund Policy

Growth of seven major General Fund tax receipts 3.73% 9.48%

Amount of Revenue Growth above 4.1%/3.6% (millions) $ - $ 291.2

Amount of Deposit (millions) $ - $ 728
Capital and Technology Improvement Policy

1.5 Percent of General Fund Receipts 3.46% 1.65%
Financial Management Policy

One-Time Revenue (millions) $ 823.7 $ 1923

One-Time Expenditures (millions) $691.2 $ 344.0
Debt Management Policy

Non-Voter 2.96% 2.97%

Total Approved 4.65% 4.40%

Reserve Fund Policy

The Reserve Fund Policy (Policy) provides guidelines to ensure sufficient reserves are maintained
for revenue shortfalls or unanticipated expenditures in the General Fund. The Policy sets a goal for
the Reserve Fund balance of five percent of General Fund revenues, with no less than 2.75 percent
in the Emergency Reserve Account, and all additional funds allocated to the Contingency Reserve
Account. In March 2011, voters approved Charter Amendment P, a measure that establishes the
Reserve Fund’s Emergency and Contingency Reserve as Charter accounts. The year-start 2021-
22 and 2022-23 adjusted Reserve Fund cash balance was $647.0 million and $601.7 million,
respectively, which exceeded the five percent Policy.

Budget Stabilization Fund Policy

The Budget Stabilization Fund (BSF), also established by Charter Amendment P, is designed to set
aside revenues during prosperous years and provide resources to maintain service levels during
years of slow revenue growth or declining revenue. The BSF Policy sets aside an appropriation
when the combined revenue growth of seven General Fund tax revenues (property tax, utility users’
tax, business tax, sales tax, transient occupancy tax, parking users’ tax, and documentary tax) is
anticipated to exceed the growth threshold, based on the 20-year historical average of these tax
revenues. Conversely, withdrawal from the BSF may be used to offset shortfalls due to revenues
lower than the historical average growth.

L-7




Annual Comprehensive Financial Report

Letter of Transmittal

For 2022-23, the growth rate used to determine BSF contributions was recalculated to be 3.6
percent, based on the 20-year historical average of these tax revenues. Under the BSF Financial
Policy, excess projected revenue in the 2022-23 Adopted Budget would be $291.2 million, triggering
a $72.8 million required appropriation to the BSF. The BSF began the fiscal year with a cash balance
of $192.3 million. Mid-year deposits to the BSF or deposits above the required amount may be
authorized by the City Council, subject to the approval of the Mayor, at any time during the year
from various General Fund sources.

Capital and Technoloqy Improvement Policy

The City adopted a revised Capital and Technology Improvement Policy (the “Capital Policy”) in
May 2020 to help guide the City’s process for planning, identifying, evaluating, and prioritizing
funding for new capital and technology projects. Among other things, the new Capital Policy updates
an annual minimum investment target of 1.5 percent of General Fund revenue for the City’s capital
and technology improvements, starting in Fiscal Year 2021-22. In 2021-22 and 2022-23, the City
budgeted approximately $259.5 million and $122.6 million, respectively, for capital and
infrastructure projects.

One-Time Revenue Policy

The One-Time Revenue Policy requires that one-time revenues will only be used for one-time
expenditures. The 2022-23 Budget satisfy this policy by allocating $192.3 million in one-time
revenues towards $344.0 million in one-time expenditures.

Debt Management Policy

The Debt Management Policy (Debt Policy) was developed to provide guidelines for the issuance
of bonds and other forms of indebtedness to finance capital improvements, equipment acquisition
and other items. These guidelines include a ceiling level for non-voter debt service of six percent of
General Fund revenue and a total debt service cap of 15% of General Fund revenue. The 2021-22
and 2022-23 Budget ratio of non-voter debt service and total debt service as a percent of General
Fund revenue were below the Debt Policy cap.

kenneth gm

mejia

LACITY CONTROLLER
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Kenneth Mejia
Los Angeles City Conftroller

The City Charter establishes the Controller as an elected official and gives the Controller the
responsibility for serving as the auditor and chief accounting officer of the City. The Charter guarantees
the independence of the Office, and provides for better accountability to the public and a more direct
form of public control over the fiscal affairs of the City, in keeping with the established principle of
checks and balances exercised for both the executive and legislative branches of municipal
government. The Controller is required to exercise general supervision over the accounts of all offices
and departments of the City, including the independent departments of Airports, Water and Power,
and Harbor (Port of Los Angeles).

Kenneth Mejia was sworn in as City Controller on December 11, 2022. His first term ends in 2026.

The City Controller is also the Controller for the Municipal Improvement Corporation of Los Angeles
(MICLA).
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Los Angeles, California

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Los Angeles, California (City), as
of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of the other auditors, the accompanying financial
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City, as of June 30, 2022, and the respective changes in financial position and, where
applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the fiscal
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

We did not audit the financial statements of the Los Angeles World Airports (Airports), Department of
Water and Power (DWP) Water System (Water) and Power System (Power), Port of Los Angeles (Harbor),
Los Angeles Fire and Police Pension System (Pensions), Los Angeles City Employees’ Retirement System
(LACERS), and Water and Power Employees’ Retirement, Disability and Death Benefit Insurance Plans
(DWP Plans), which collectively represent the following percentages of the assets, net position/fund
balances, and revenues/additions of the following opinion units:

Net
Position/Fund Revenues/
Opinion Unit Assets Balances Additions
Business-type Activities:
Airports, Water, Power and Harbor 91% 87% 87%
Each Major Enterprise Fund:
Airports 100% 100% 100%
Water 100% 100% 100%
Power 100% 100% 100%
Harbor 100% 100% 100%
Aggregate Remaining Fund Information:
Pensions, LACERS, and DWP Plans 90% 92% -223%*

*Total Additions for Pensions, LACERS, and DWP Plans were negative due to investment losses.

Those statements were audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinions,
insofar as they relate to the amounts included for the Airports, Water, Power, Harbor, Pensions, LACERS,
and DWP Plans, are based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Macias Gini & O'Connell LLP
700 South Flower St., Suite 800 www.mgocpa.com
Los Angeles, CA 90017 -1- ' '



Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the City and to meet
our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions. The financial statements of the DWP Plans were not audited in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1.E.19. to the financial statements, effective as of July 1, 2021, the City adopted the
provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 87, Leases. Our opinions are not
modified with respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Management’s for the Financial Statements

The City’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City’s ability to continue as a
going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

e cxercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.



e obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e cvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

e conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about the City’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable
period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters
that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, the benefit pension plans schedules of employer contributions, the schedules of
changes in net pension liability and related ratios, the other postemployment benefits (OPEB) plans
schedules of employer contributions, the schedules of changes in net OPEB liability and related ratios, the
actuarial methods and assumptions used to determine employer contribution rates, the condition rating for
City bridges, and the comparison of needed-to-actual maintenance/preservation costs, as listed in the table
of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility
of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We and the other
auditors have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance
with GAAS, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund financial statements and
schedules listed as supplementary information are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not
a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures
in accordance with GAAS. In our opinion, the combining and individual fund financial statements and
schedules listed as supplementary information are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the
basic financial statements as a whole.



Other Information

The City’s management is responsible for the other information included in the annual comprehensive
financial report. The other information comprises the introductory and statistical sections but does not
include the basic financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial
statements do not cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the
basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information
exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 25, 2023,
on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose
of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

Maa'acs é’m’ ,C; O’(:ame{{ @

Los Angeles, California
January 25, 2023
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gement's Discussion and Anal Unaudited

This section of the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report of the City of Los Angeles (the City) presents a
narrative overview and discussion of the City’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. This
discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the basic financial statements and accompanying notes,
which follow this section. We hope that the information and the discussions will provide readers with a clear picture
of the City’s overall financial condition.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

o The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City exceeded the liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources at the close of fiscal year 2022 by $28.5 billion, an increase of $3.4 billion over fiscal year 2021. The
net position of $28.5 billion consisted of: $22.3 billion net investment in capital assets; $6.1 billion restricted net
position, which represents resources that are subject to certain restrictions on how they may be used; $5.4
billion unrestricted net position which may be used to meet the City’s obligations for its business-type activities;
and a $5.2 billion deficit of governmental activities.

e Of the $3.4 billion total change in net position, governmental activities represented $2.7 billion, while the
business-type activities represented $729.9 million, including a beginning net position adjustment of $14.4
million for the cumulative effects of the implementation of GASB Statement No. 87 “Leases.”

e As of June 30, 2022, the aggregate fund balances of the City’s governmental funds were $7.3 billion, a net
increase of $857.4 million from June 30, 2021. Of the aggregate fund balances, $88.4 million or 1.2% were
nonspendable, $4.1 billion or 55.8% were restricted, $1.9 billion or 25.9% were committed, $727.1 million or
9.9% were assigned to specific purposes, and $529.0 million or 7.2% were unassigned.

e At the end of the fiscal year, the General Fund showed a fund balance of $1.5 billion, of which $66.5 million
were nonspendable, $724.3 million were assigned for various purposes, $85.1 million were committed and
$621.8 million were unassigned.

e The City’s bonded debt and long-term notes payable at June 30, 2022 totaled $37.3 billion, an increase of $3.1
billion from the prior year’s balance of $34.2 billion.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual report consists of management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A), basic financial statements,
including the accompanying notes to the basic financial statements, required supplementary information, and
combining statements and schedules for the nonmajor governmental and fiduciary funds. The basic financial
statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial
statements, and 3) notes to the basic financial statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s
finances and are made up of the following two statements: the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities. Both of these statements were prepared using accounting methods similar to those used by private-
sector businesses, which are the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the City’s assets, liabilities, and deferred
outflows/inflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net
position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed during the most
recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change
occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement
for some items that will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods, such as revenues pertaining to uncollected
taxes, expenses pertaining to earned but unused compensated absences, and incurred but unpaid workers’
compensation claims.

Both of these government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally supported
by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to
recover all or a portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental
activities of the City include general government, protection of persons and property, public works, health and
sanitation (other than sewer services), transportation, cultural and recreational services, and community
development. The business-type activities of the City include airports, harbor, power, water, sewer and convention
center services.
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The government-wide financial statements reflect not only the activities of the City itself (known as the primary
government), but also include the Municipal Improvement Corporation of Los Angeles (MICLA). Although legally
separate, MICLA is included as an integral part of the primary government because the City Council approves the
MICLA Board of Directors as the governing body and its sole purpose is to provide services entirely to and
exclusively for the City.

Fund Financial Statements are designed to report information about groupings of related accounts that are used
to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like
other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate finance-related legal
compliance. The funds of the City are divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and
fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in
the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements,
governmental funds financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well
as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in
determining what financial resources are available in the near future to finance the City’s programs.

The governmental funds financial statements are made up of the following: the Balance Sheet and the Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances. Both of these statements were prepared using the
current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.

The Budgetary Basis Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance is prepared on a
modified cash basis of accounting that is different from United States Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
(GAAP). Please see Note 3B of the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements for additional information on the basis
difference.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term
financing decisions. Both the governmental funds balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between
governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City maintains many individual governmental funds organized according to their type (general, special
revenue, debt service, and capital projects funds). Information is presented separately in the governmental funds
balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances
for the General Fund and MICLA Special Revenue and Debt Service Funds, which are considered to be major
funds. Data from the remaining governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual
fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements and
schedules.

Proprietary funds are generally used to account for services for which the City charges customers — either outside
customers, or other departments/funds of the City. The proprietary funds financial statements provide the same
type of information as shown in the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. The City maintains
the following type of proprietary funds:

e Enterprise funds are used to report the functions presented as business-type activities in the government-
wide financial statements. All of the City’s enterprise funds, except the convention center, are considered
major funds.

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the City. The City’s pension
trust, other postemployment benefits trust, and custodial funds are reported under the fiduciary funds. Since the
resources of these funds are not available to support the City’s own programs, they are not reflected in the
government-wide financial statements. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for
proprietary funds. Both are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of
the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.
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Required Supplementary Information, other than Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A), is presented
concerning the City’s net pension and other postemployment benefits (OPEB) liabilities and contributions related to
the City’s pension and OPEB plans. Also included in this section is the condition assessment for City bridges.

The combining and individual fund statements and schedules provide information for nonmajor governmental
funds and fiduciary funds and are presented immediately following the required supplementary information.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Analysis of Net Position: Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position. The City's assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources by $28.5 billion at the close of fiscal year 2022.

The following table is a condensed summary of the City’s government-wide net position:

CITY OF LOS ANGELES
Condensed Statement of Net Position
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
FY 2022 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2021

Assets
Current and other assets $ 14,034,302 $ 9923925 $ 16,691,179 $ 12,603,006 $ 30,725,481 $ 22,526,931
Capital assets 8,664,485 8,524,247 48,057,868 46,256,598 56,722,353 54,780,845

Total assets 22,698,787 18,448,172 64,749,047 58,859,604 87,447,834 77,307,776
Deferred outflows of resources 2,775,175 4,173,898 1,009,963 1,637,933 3,785,138 5,811,831
Liabilities
Current and other liabilities 1,723,196 1,788,184 2,027,088 2,159,261 3,750,284 3,947,445
Long-term liabilities 10,998,191 17,199,291 36,541,234 35,169,111 47 539,425 52,368,402

Total liabilities 12,721,387 18,987,475 38,568,322 37,328,372 51,289,709 56,315,847
Deferred inflows of resources 7,219,698 783,784 4,174,451 882,856 11,394,149 1,666,640
Net position
Net investment in capital assets 6,465,677 6,288,850 15,874,736 15,744,950 22,340,413 22,033,800
Restricted 4,307,318 4,096,026 1,786,986 1,840,064 6,094,304 5,936,090
Unrestricted (5,240,118) (7,534,065) 5,354,515 4,701,295 114,397 (2,832,770)

Total net position $ 5532877 $ 2,850,811 $ 23,016,237 $ 22,286,309 $ 28,549,114 $ 25,137,120

Note: FY 2021 figures have not been restated for the effect of GASB 87.

Of the total net position, $22.3 billion or 78.3% reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, infrastructure,
buildings, facilities and equipment) less any related outstanding debt and deferred outflows and inflows of
resources used to acquire those assets. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to its citizens;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City’s investment in capital assets is
reported net of related debt and deferred outflows and inflows of resources, it should be noted that the resources to
repay this debt must be provided from other sources since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to
liquidate the debt.

An additional portion of the City’s net position, $6.1 billion or 21.3%, represents resources subject to various
restrictions on how they may be used.

The balance in unrestricted net position of $114.4 million or 0.4% is the net amount of the governmental activities

deficit of $5.2 billion, and $5.4 billion unrestricted net position that may be used to meet the City’s obligations for its
business-type activities.
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Compared to the fiscal year 2021, net investment in capital assets increased by $306.6 million or 1.4%. The
restricted net position increased by $158.2 million or 2.7% mainly due to increases in net position restricted for
public works and sanitation, transportation programs, and culture and recreation services, while the unrestricted net
position increased by $2.9 billion or 104.0%, primarily attributed to an increase from the unrestricted net position of
governmental activities in the fiscal year 2022.

The deficit balance for the governmental activities unrestricted net position of $5.2 billion was mainly due to the net
pension liability of $3.6 billion, net OPEB liability of $0.9 billion, and the extent to which the City has deferred to
future periods the financing of certain liabilities (i.e., claims and judgments, workers’ compensation, compensated
absences.) While accounting is primarily concerned with when a liability is incurred, financing focuses on when a
liability will be paid. Like many other governments, the City raises and budgets resources needed to liquidate
liabilities during the year in which the liabilities are to be liquidated rather than during the year in which the liabilities
are incurred.

Key changes in the statement of net position are as follows:

Capital Assets

Capital assets increased by $1.9 billion or 3.5%. The increase in governmental activities was $140.2 million or
1.7%, and the increase in business-type activities was $1.8 billion or 3.9%. For governmental activities, the
increase was primarily due to addition of $112.1 million of right-to-use assets associated with the implementation of
GASB Statement No. 87 "Leases" and capital improvement projects, such as municipal facilities, police and fire
facilities, recreational, cultural and community centers, various public work projects, and construction and
rehabilitation of streets and bridges, including the Sixth Street Viaduct replacement.

Business-type increases reflect additions and ongoing construction and improvements to modernize the LAX
airport, such as renovations at various terminals and construction of the Automated People Mover System (APM)
and Consolidated Rental Car Facility (ConRAC). Harbor's projects include design and construction at the San
Pedro and Wilmington waterfronts and redevelopment, State Route 47/Vincent Thomas Bridge and Front
Street/Harbor Boulevard Interchange Reconfiguration, and various infrastructure improvements at terminals. Power
made improvements in the general infrastructure of power plants in the generation, transmission, distribution, and
fuel resources, as well as Water improved its water infrastructure.

Current and Other Assets

Current and other assets increased by $8.2 billion or 36.4%. Governmental activities were $4.1 billion or 41.4%
higher, while business-type activities grew by $4.1 billion or 32.4%.

Governmental activities' current and other assets were up mainly due to a combined increase of $2.9 billion in net
pension and other postemployment benefits (OPEB) assets from favorable investment return, an increase of
$594.6 million in cash from various special revenue and debt services funds and General Fund, and increases in
receivables by $604.8 million combined from taxes, loans, and intergovernmental receivables.

Business-type activities' current unrestricted cash grew primarily due to a combined increase of $232.5 million from
Harbor, Power, and Sewer funds as a result of increases in operating and investment activities, offset by reductions
from Airports and Water funds. The increase in restricted cash in enterprise funds was mainly driven by the
Airport's $1.2 billion addition in restricted cash from the year-end investment portfolio increase due to higher
unspent bond proceeds at LAX, and a net increase of $317.7 million driven by Power's maintaining higher unspent
construction funds. The other noncurrent assets in enterprise funds grew by $2.5 billion, mainly attributed to a
combined increase of $2.0 billion in net pension and OPEB assets due to a favorable investment return, and
additional $489.0 million lease receivables from GASB Statement No. 87 "Leases" implementation.

Deferred outflows of resources declined by $2.0 billion or 34.9%, primarily due to net changes in deferred outflows
from pensions and OPEB. More detailed information on the changes in deferred outflows from pensions and OPEB
can be found in Note 5A and Note 5B of the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.
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Long-term Liabilities

The City’s long-term liabilities decreased by $4.8 billion or 9.2%. Business-type activities increased by $1.4 billion
or 3.9%, while governmental activities decreased by $6.2 billion or 36.1% from the prior year. Besides the net
pension and OPEB liabilities decrease of $2.1 billion, business-type activities rose $3.1 billion liability in bonds and
notes payable due to the issuance of long-term debt by Airports, Water and Power. Governmental activities mainly
decreased in net pension and OPEB liabilities of $6.4 billion, offset by increases in bond, notes, claims and
judgments, and lease liabilities.

Current and Other Liabilities

The City’s current and other liabilities decreased by $197.2 million or 5.0%. Business-type activities declined by
$132.2 million or 6.1%, while governmental activities decreased by $65.0 million or 3.6% from the prior year.
Business-type activities primarily decreased in accounts payable and accrued expenses of $251.2 million and were
offset by a combined increase of $119.6 million in obligations under securities lending transactions, accrued
salaries and compensated absences. Governmental activities mainly decreased in unearned revenue of $131.4
million, internal balances of $54.6 million, and offset by an increase of $118.3 million in accounts payable and
accrued expenses.

Deferred inflows of resources increased by $9.7 billion or 583.7%, primarily due to a combined increase of $9.0
billion in deferred inflows from pensions and OPEB and an increase of $569.9 million from leases.

Net Position

Compared to the prior year, the total net position was higher by $3.4 billion or 13.6%, with governmental activities
up by $2.7 billion or 94.1% from the fiscal year 2021 net position of $2.8 billion and business-type activities up by
$729.9 million or 3.3%.

Net investment in capital assets increased by $176.8 million for governmental activities and went up by $129.8
million for business-type activities. The restricted net position went up by $211.3 million for governmental activities,
and the deficit in unrestricted net position decreased by $2.3 billion. The restricted net position decreased by $53.1
million for business-type activities, while the unrestricted net position increased by $653.2 million.

The changes in restricted net position were increases of $23.4 million for debt service, $52.4 million for public
works and sanitation, $75.4 million for transportation, and $165.4 million for culture and recreation activities.
Offsetting these increases were decreases of $42.0 million for capital projects, $32.6 million for public safety, $12.2
million for community development and housing, $67.8 million for passenger/customer facility programs, and $3.8
million for other purposes.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)

Analysis of Activities: The following table presents condensed information showing how the City’s net position
changed during the most recent fiscal year. As previously stated, all changes in net position are reported as soon
as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

CITY OF LOS ANGELES
Condensed Statement of Activities
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
FY 2022 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2021
Revenues
Program Revenues
Charges for Services $ 2235290 $ 1,993,805 $ 9,009,490 $ 8,184,078 $ 11,244,780 $ 10,177,883
Operating Grants and Contributions 2,086,187 2,123,367 367,456 - 2,453,643 2,123,367
Capital Grants and Contributions 99,390 99,905 211,269 554,659 310,659 654,564
General Revenues
Property Taxes 2,628,691 2,551,138 - - 2,628,691 2,551,138
Utility Users' Taxes 634,186 604,106 -- -- 634,186 604,106
Business Taxes 1,019,226 743,877 -- -- 1,019,226 743,877
Sales Taxes 693,438 560,962 -- -- 693,438 560,962
Other Taxes 842,715 564,069 - - 842,715 564,069
Unrestricted Grants and Contributions 35,874 41,161 - - 35,874 41,161
Unrestricted Investment Earnings
(Losses) (110,102) (4,485) (281,224) 125 (391,326) (4,360)
Other Revenues 71,551 42,389 409,490 304,402 481,041 346,791
Total Revenues 10,236,446 9,320,294 9,716,481 9,043,264 19,952,927 18,363,558
Expenses
General Government 1,726,188 1,935,804 - - 1,726,188 1,935,804
Protection of Persons and Property 2,624,309 3,990,018 -- -- 2,624,309 3,990,018
Public Works 513,475 587,359 -- -- 513,475 587,359
Health and Sanitation 552,619 677,878 -- -- 552,619 677,878
Transportation 563,804 577,318 -- -- 563,804 577,318
Cultural and Recreational Services 713,767 704,490 - - 713,767 704,490
Community Development 987,179 909,542 -- -- 987,179 909,542
Interest on Long-Term Debt 98,054 99,628 -- -- 98,054 99,628
Airports -- -- 1,742,407 1,558,137 1,742,407 1,558,137
Harbor -- -- 462,493 453,024 462,493 453,024
Power -- -- 4,370,903 3,886,405 4,370,903 3,886,405
Water - - 1,487,767 1,293,737 1,487,767 1,293,737
Sewer -- -- 669,062 627,866 669,062 627,866
Convention Center - -- 43,337 36,847 43,337 36,847
Total Expenses 7,779,395 9,482,037 8,775,969 7,856,016 16,555,364 17,338,053
Excesses (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenses 2,457,051 (161,743) 940,512 1,187,248 3,397,563 1,025,505
Transfers 225,015 218,355 (225,015) (218,355) o= --
Increase in Net Position 2,682,066 56,612 715,497 968,893 3,397,563 1,025,505
Net Position - July 1, As Previously
Reported 2,850,811 2,794,199 22,286,309 21,317,416 25,137,120 24,111,615
Change in Accounting Principle, GASB 87
Implementation - - 14,431 - 14,431 -
Net Position - July 1 Restated 2,850,811 2,794,199 22,300,740 21,317,416 25,151,551 24,111,615
Net Position - June 30 $ 5532877 $ 2,850,811 $ 23,016,237 $ 22,286,309 $ 28,549,114 $ 25,137,120

Note: FY 2021 figures have not been restated for the effect of GASB 87.
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Governmental Activities

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, total revenues of governmental activities were $10.2 billion while total
expenses were $7.8 billion. Of the $7.8 billion total expenses, 40.3% was funded by taxes and other general
revenues, and the remaining 59.7% was funded by program revenues and transfers from business-type funds.
Program revenues are resources obtained from parties outside of the City and charges for services between the
governmental and business-type activities. They include: (a) amounts received from those who purchase, use or
directly benefit from a program; (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to specific programs; and (c)
investment earnings that are legally restricted for a specific program.

The following charts are graphical comparisons of governmental revenues by source for fiscal years 2022 and
2021 (Pie chart below excludes the negative net unrestricted contributions and investment losses):

FY 2022 FY 2021
Total Revenues: $10.2 Billion Total Revenues: $9.3 Billion
Operating Grants
Other Taxes, 8.2% Operating Grants Other Taxes, 6.0% and
Sales Taxes, 6.7% \ and Contributions. 20.2% Sales Taxes, 6.0% A /COHWDUUOHS. 22.8%
\ . 20.
4 Business 2

Business
Taxes, 9.9%

Taxes, 8.0%
Other

Utility Users' Revenues, 0.4%
__ Taxes, 6.2%

Other

_ Utility Users'
Revenues, 0.7%

__ Taxes, 6.5%

Property
Charges for Taxes, 27.4% Charges for

Services, 21.7% _ ~ Services, 21.4%
Capital Capital Grants Unrestricted Grants and

Grants and Contributions, 1.0% and Contributions, 1.1%  Contributions
& Investment Earnings, 0.4%

Property
Taxes, 25.4%

Revenues from charges for services of $2.2 billion, property taxes of $2.6 billion, and operating grants and
contributions of $2.1 billion were the three largest revenue sources for governmental activities. Together, these
accounted for $6.9 billion or 67.9% of total revenues.

With revenues from department and franchise activities recovered from business reopening and economic
recovery, charges for services rose by $241.5 million or 12.1% in the fiscal year 2022 compared to the fiscal year
2021. Various revenue sources contributed to this increase, including code enforcement fees, municipal recreation
programs, service fees from proprietary departments, charges for emergency services by the Fire Department,
parking, affordable housing linkage fee, and plan check activities.

Operating grants and contributions decreased by $37.2 million or 1.8%, mainly due to a decrease in the fair value
of investments for grant revenue and offset by an increase from Federal grant assistance. Capital grants and
contributions were flat.
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Property Tax revenue increased by $77.6 million or 3.0% due to growth in the taxable assessed value of properties
mirroring the growth of the real estate market. The increase of $275.3 million in Business Tax was boosted by non-
cannabis business retail activity combined with a higher balance of business tax receivable. Sales Tax revenues
increased by $132.0 million, reflecting the improvement of economic activities from the post-pandemic reopening.
Utility Users' Taxes increased by $30.1 million or 5.0%, attributed to Gas User's Tax increase due to natural gas
fuel prices hike and an increase in Electrical Users' Tax revenues.

Other taxes were up by $278.6 million or 49.4%, primarily attributed to robust increases in Transient Occupancy
Tax and Parking Occupancy Tax due to pandemic-related travel restrictions lift and business reopening.
Documentary Transfer Tax increases from home price appreciation and various Franchise income increases from
economic recovery. Combined unrestricted investment earnings and other revenues declined by $76.5 million,
mainly due to the negative change in investments' fair value offset by an increase in revenues for expense
reimbursement from other agencies, unions, and other miscellaneous revenues.

The following charts are graphical comparisons of the City’s governmental expenses by function for fiscal years
2022 and 2021:

FY 2022
Total Expenses: $7.8 Billion
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FY 2021
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Total expenses decreased by $1.7 billion or 18.0% over the fiscal year 2021, which was comprised of decreases in
the following functions: general government of $209.6 million, protection of persons and property of $1.4 billion,
public works of $73.9 million, health and sanitation of $125.3 million, transportation of $13.5 million, and interest on
long-term debt of $1.6 million; offset by increases of cultural and recreational services of $9.3 million and
community development of $77.6 million.

The major expense category that accounted for most of the decreases across functions was retirement expenses.
The declines in pension expenses for the Los Angeles Fire and Police Pension System (Pensions) and OPEB
expenses for the City Employees' Retirement System (LACERS) are due to the negative pension and OPEB
expenses derived from net appreciation in the fair value of investments based on the measurement date in the
fiscal year 2021. Pension and OPEB expenses are the net effect of all the changes to pension and OPEB
liabilities/assets and deferred outflows and inflows related to Pensions and LACERS. In future years, however,
pension and OPEB plans will flip back to a net pension and OPEB liability. This reversal is common for retirement
plans that are nearly 100 percent funded. Nonetheless, the operating expenses for contractual services, operating
equipment, and supplies went up, along with increased payments to outside agencies, partially offset the
decreased expenses.
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Business-type Activities

The $9.0 billion combined operating revenues of the City’s six business-type activities were $1.6 billion more than
the $7.4 billion combined operating expenses. Since the proprietary funds provide the same type of information at
the fund level as found in the government-wide statements, a more detailed discussion of the activities of the City’s
business-type activities is found in the financial analysis of the City’s funds.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY'S FUNDS

The City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. The
focus of this section is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows and balances of resources that are
available for spending. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s financial requirements. In particular, the
unassigned fund balances may serve as a useful measure for the City’s net resources available for spending at the
end of the fiscal year.

Governmental Funds

At June 30, 2022, the City’s governmental funds reported combined fund balances of $7.3 billion, an increase of
$857.4 million from the previous fiscal year. Of the total fund balance, $88.4 million were nonspendable associated
with inventories, prepaid items and certain advances to other funds, $4.1 billion were classified as restricted, $1.9
billion were committed and $727.1 million were assigned. The remaining balances of $529.0 million were classified
as unassigned and mainly associated with the General Fund.

Governmental funds revenue totaled $9.8 billion, while expenditures were $9.7 billion. The revenues were $120.2
million more than total expenditure.

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City and includes transactions of the Reserve Fund and
other accounts that have General Fund type activity for GAAP reporting purposes. At June 30, 2022, the General
Fund reported a total fund balance of $1.5 billion, composed of $66.5 million nonspendable primarily from
inventories of $39.2 million and advances to other funds of $26.9 million; $85.1 million committed; $724.3 million
assigned for general government purposes; and $621.8 million unassigned.
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The following table presents the summary of revenues and expenditures of the General Fund:

CITY OF LOS ANGELES
Summary of Revenues, Expenditures and Other
Financing Sources and Uses - General Fund
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Revenues and Other Financing Sources Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
% %

FY 2022 FY 2021 Change FY 2022 FY 2021 Change
Revenues Expenditures
Property Taxes $ 2,492,320 $ 2,401,848 3.8 % General Government $ 1,573,832 $ 1,478,060 6.5 %
Sales Taxes 694,218 562,217 235 Protection of Persons and Property 3,414,251 3,221,865 6.0
Utility Users’ Taxes 632,433 610,946 3.5 Public Works 201,042 147,933 359
Business Taxes 756,960 686,520  10.3 Health and Sanitation 164,808 121,325 359
Other Taxes 778,563 521,955 492 Transportation 139,871 112,490  24.3
Licenses and Permits 31,493 29,390 7.2  Cultural and Recreational Services 79,454 44,018 80.5
Intergovernmental 43,171 28,145 53.4 Community Development 108,209 134,074 (19.3)
Charges for Services 341,191 358,772 (4.9) Capital Outlay 53,975 29,164  85.1
Services to Enterprise Funds 327,326 328,481 (0.4) Debt Service - Principal 20,682 - -
Fines 116,805 100,559  16.2 Debt Service - Interest 3,752 5194 (27.8)
Special Assessments 2,691 1,731 555 Debt Service - Cost of Issuance 867 1,103 (21.4)
Investment Earnings 35,770 28,579 252 Total Expenditures 5,760,833 5,295,226 8.8
Change in Fair Value of

Investments (145,900) (34,572) (322.0) Other Financing Uses
Other 62,094 46,107 34.7 Transfers Out 1,060,079 728,412 455
Total Expenditures and Other

Total Revenues 6,169,135 5,670,678 8.8 Financing Uses $ 6,820,912 $ 6,023,638  13.2
Other Financing Sources
Transfers In 910,652 584,808  55.7
Lease Liabilities Issued 14,842 - -

Total Revenues and Other
Financing Sources $ 7,094,629 $§ 6,255,486 13.4

Excess of Revenues Over
Expenditures $ 408,302 $ 375,452 8.7

Net Change in Fund
Balance $ 273,717 $ 231,848 18.1

Revenues and Other Financing Sources

Fiscal Year 2022 was a year of recovery for the City from the COVID-19 pandemic as COVID-19 vaccines became
widely available and the economy began to reopen. With the City experiencing recovery of most revenue sources,
combined with the receipt of Federal funds, the City ended Fiscal Year 2022 with total General Fund revenues
growing $498.5 million or 8.8% percent above the previous fiscal year. Total taxes accounted for nearly $5.4 billion
or 86.8% of General Fund revenue. Overall, tax revenues grew by $571.0 million or 11.9% from the prior year
compared to a 2.2% increase in the fiscal year 2021.
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Total Property Taxes, which represent 40.4% of General Fund revenue, increased by $90.5 million or 3.8% mainly
due to growth in prior secured property tax receipts of $43.3 million, and a combined increase of $41.2 million from
VLF Replacement and current secured property tax.

While economy-sensitive revenues were reflective of the unique nature of the pandemic-driven phenomenon, the
post-pandemic recovery for these revenues is also apparent. Home price appreciation and inflation contributed to
the growth of General Fund revenues, including sales, business, and documentary transfer taxes. Sales Tax
revenues increased by $132.0 million or 23.5% due to improvement in local economic activity. The increase in
Business Tax revenues of $70.4 million or 10.3% reflected the growth in non-cannabis business activity offset by a
decrease in legal recreational cannabis retail activity.

Utility Users’ Tax revenues, which consist of electric, gas, and communications users’ taxes, posted an increase of
$21.5 million or 3.5%. The rise comprised a growth of $9.0 million in Gas User's Tax due to natural gas fuel prices
hike, an increase of $17.1 million in Electrical Users' Tax revenues, and a reduction of $4.6 million in
Communications Users' Taxes revenues due to a continuing downward trend in phone service prices and landline
usage. Other tax revenues were up by $256.6 million or 49.2%, mainly driven by the following tax revenues.
Parking Occupancy Tax increased by $39.7 million proving slower to recover after pandemic-driven closures and
restrictions. In contrast to Parking Occupancy Tax revenue, Transient Occupancy Tax, the most dramatic impact of
the pandemic, recovered more quickly and posted a $128.7 million increase. Documentary Transfer Tax revenue
was $62.3 million above last fiscal year attributed to the home price appreciation.

Licenses and permits went up by $2.1 million or 7.2%, mainly due to the recovery in filming permits fee revenue
from the pandemic decline. While revenues for services provided to Enterprise Funds were almost flat, the charges
for services were $17.6 million or 4.9% lower, attributed partially to a $13.6 million decrease in related costs and
other reimbursements from departments due to vacant positions and a $31.9 million decline in less services
provided to LAMTA,; partially offset by a $26.7 million increase from Ground Emergency Medical Transportation for
emergency services charges by the Fire department. Combined net investment earnings and other revenues were
down $88.2 million due to total decrease of $104.2 million in investment earnings and a change in the fair value of
investments ; partially offset by a $16.0 million increase from other revenues.

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Aligned with the growth rate of total General Fund revenues, the Fiscal Year 2022 total General Fund expenditures
were $5.8 billion, an increase of $465.6 million or 8.8% from the prior fiscal year. Almost all expenditures across
governmental functions went up, driven by the following spending categories.

Salaries and human resource benefits increased by $319.1 million or 9.3% compared to last year, mainly due to
payments of deferred excess sick payouts, overtime payouts, and one-time bonuses to certain labor organization
members for a portion of deferred compensation adjustments for civilian and sworn employees. Combined
retirement contributions to the LACERS and Pensions increased by $52.9 million or 7.2% compared to last year
primarily due to the higher covered payroll.

The total expenditures for contractual services, operating equipment, and supplies went up by $53.6 million or
4.4%, primarily attributed to increased fuel and utility costs for the General Services Department, increased costs
from inflationary pressures on fuel, materials, and other commodity prices for citywide departments, and more grant
subsidies to the outside organizations for community projects. Capital outlays increased by $24.8 million or 85.1%,
mainly attributed to an increase of $14.8 million in right-to-use (RTU) lease contracts and an increase of $11.6
million in Capital Improvement Expenditure Program (CIEP) expenditures due to the progression of capital projects.

Overall, General Fund revenues exceeded expenditures by $408.3 million, compared to $375.5 million in the fiscal
year 2021. Transfers in from other funds amounted to $910.7 million, while transfers out were $1.1 billion. The
ARPA Fund transfer of $659.1 million and the Power Enterprise Fund transfer of $225.0 million largely accounted
for most transfers-in. The $1.1 billion transfers out included: $234.8 million for debt service obligations, $364.6
million for parks and recreational operation and facilities, $218.0 million for libraries, $88.6 million for housing and
community programs, $49.9 million for public safety, $62.3 million for public works, sanitation, and transportation,
$21.0 million for arts and cultural facilities, and $16.4 million for other departmental operations. The above items'
net changes contributed to a year-end fund balance of $1.5 billion, increasing $273.7 million from the prior year’s
fund balance of $1.2 billion.
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The following charts are graphical comparisons between June 30, 2022 and 2021, for General Fund revenues by
source and expenditures by function:

General Fund Revenues by Source : $6.2 Billion
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022
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General Fund Revenues by Source : $5.7 Billion
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021
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General Fund Expenditures by Function : $5.8 Billion
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022
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The Municipal Improvement Corporation of Los Angeles Special Revenue and Debt Service Funds account
for the activities of the City’s public financing entity, MICLA. Acquisition of certain real property and equipment and
construction of buildings and other improvements are financed through the issuance of MICLA lease revenue
bonds and commercial paper.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the MICLA Special Revenue and Debt Service Funds reported a total
restricted fund balance of $145.4 million, composed of $18.0 million in the special revenue fund and $127.4 million
in the debt service fund.

At June 30, 2022, the MICLA Special Revenue Fund reported a restricted fund balance of $18.0 million, which
decreased by $15.8 million from the prior year. Total MICLA Special Revenue Fund revenues went down
approximately by $0.5 million, primarily due to a decline in the investment's fair value. In comparison, total
expenditures dropped by $74.7 million due to a decrease in capital acquisitions. Although the total expenditures
exceeded revenues by $95.8 million, compared to $170.1 million in the fiscal year 2021, the issuance of long-term
debt of $80.0 million from other financing sources bridged the gap.

At June 30, 2022, the MICLA Debt Service Fund reported a total restricted fund balance of $127.4 million, which
increased by $14.4 million from the prior year. Total MICLA Debt Service Fund revenues slightly went up by $19.1
thousand, while total expenditures increased by $39.5 million, mainly attributed to an increase of $39.2 million in
principal payments. Although total expenditures exceeded revenues by $403.0 million, compared to $363.8 million
in the prior year, lease payments of $222.0 million from the General Fund and certain Special Revenue Funds and
the total proceeds of $195.4 million from issuance of refunding debt bridged the gap.

As a result of the above financial changes, the combined MICLA Funds' decrease in net position for the fiscal year
2022 amounted to $1.5 million.
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The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information at the fund level as in the business-type activities
column of the government-wide financial statements.

The following table summarizes the operating results of the City’s six enterprise funds:

Business-type Activities
Change in Net Position
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Nonmajor
Convention
Airports Harbor Power Water Sewer Center Total
Operating Revenues $ 1,407,938 $ 627,842 $ 4,593,760 $ 1,606,678 $ 739,666 $ 33,606 $ 9,009,490
Operating Expenses (1,373,146)  (401,904) (3,792,772) (1,200,142)  (546,907) (43,337) (7,358,208)
Operating Income (Loss) 34,792 225,938 800,988 406,536 192,759 (9,731) 1,651,282
Net Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (243,502) (70,318)  (369,563)  (215,089) (23,584) 17 (922,039)
Capital Contributions 45,638 11,906 100,865 41,137 11,723 - 211,269
Transfers Out - - (225,015) - - - (225,015)
Change in Net Position $ (163,072)$ 167,526 $ 307,275 $ 232584 $ 180,898 $ (9,714)$ 715497
Business-type Activities
Change in Net Position
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021
(amounts expressed in thousands)
Nonmajor
Convention
Airports Harbor Power Water Sewer Center Total

Operating Revenues $ 1,072,156 $ 572,011 $ 4,268,478 $ 1,463,781 $ 788,755 $ 18,897 $ 8,184,078
Operating Expenses (1,237,759)  (427,272) (3,524,339) (1,076,855)  (526,001) (36,847) (6,829,073)
Operating Income (Loss) (165,603) 144,739 744,139 386,926 262,754  (17,950) 1,355,005
Net Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (214,858) (23,195)  (213,656)  (189,026) (81,698) 17 (722,416)
Capital Contributions 331,730 7,116 103,459 92,739 19,615 - 554,659
Transfers Out - - (218,355) - - - (218,355)
Change in Net Position $  (48,731)$ 128660 $ 415587 $ 290,639 $ 200,671 $ (17,933)$ 968,893

Note: FY 2021 figures have not been restated for the effect of GASB 87.
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Airports

The Airports Enterprise Fund (Airports) accounts for the operation of Los Angeles International Airport (LAX) and
Van Nuys Airport (VNY). Airports also owns approximately 17,750 acres of land located east of United States Air
Force (USAF) Plant 42 in the City of Palmdale, and retains the rights for future development of the Palmdale
property.

Airports operating revenues totaled $1.4 billion, a $335.8 million or 31.3% increase from fiscal year 2021. Aviation
revenue increased by $130.1 million, and non-aviation revenue increased by $207.8 million with a $205.1 million
increase in concession and an increase in other operating revenue of $2.6 million. The increase in total operating
revenue was mainly a result of the 108.9% increase in passenger traffic. Landing fees increased by $85.5 million,
or 51.9%. Building rental revenues increased by $41.6 million or 6.8%, mainly attributable to the increased costs of
$46.2 million or 8.6% due to the increased costs in improvements and refurbishments in the terminals recovered
under the Terminal Rate Agreement, offset by decreases in terminal use fees of $4.8 million or 7.5% as a result of
a reversal of the over-accrued 2021 terminal use fees. Land rental revenue increased by $3.8 million mainly due to
5-year fair market adjustments, offset by an overall decrease in leased areas. Total revenue from concessions was
higher by $205.1 million or 127.3%, mainly a result of the 108.9% increase in passenger traffic.

Airports total operating expenses were $1.4 billion, a $135.4 million or 10.9% increase over the prior fiscal year.
There was a $128.2 million or 25.9% decrease in salaries and benefits. Contractual services increased by $69.3
million primarily across the board among all contractual expenses, including an increase in Common Use Services,
Operation Strategic Plan for LAXit Parking Management, management fees, and shuttle services for landside
parking, bond advisory services and Customs and US Border Protection services. Materials and supplies increased
by $6.3 million mainly due to an increase of $2.1 million in computer software supplies, an increase of $0.8 million
in custodial supplies and services, an increase of $1.3 million in fuel and petroleum services, an increase of $1.0
million in the street cleaning supplies and services, and an increase of $1.1 million in recycling, trash, and waste
disposal services. Utilities expenses increased by $10.1 million. The increase was primarily driven by an increase
of $6.3 million in electricity, an increase of $2.5 million in gas expenses, and an increase of $2.1 million in water
charges, offset by an increase in utilities capitalization of $1.0 million. The increase in utilities was primarily a result
of the 108.9% increase in passenger traffic in fiscal year 2022. Depreciation charges increased by $170.7 million
due to the capitalization of approximately $2.1 billion in capital assets resulting in the addition of about $104.5
million in depreciation of newly capitalized assets which include $51.8 million of Terminal 2 and Terminal 3
Modernization, $19.2 million of Terminal 1.5, $7.8 million of Terminal 5 Interiors and Gate Realignment, $5.6 million
of Intermodal Transportation Facility, $5.1 million of TBITEC Baggage Optimization, $4.9 million of Airport Police
Facility, $2.8 million of Taxiway C14, and $2.7 million of MSC/Bradley West Gates.

Airports nonoperating revenue increased by $10.3 million due to a $56.1 million increase in passenger facility
charges, a $28.4 million increase in customer facility charges, a $0.4 million increase in other nonoperating
revenue, offset by a $72.6 million decrease in interest and investment income, and a $2.0 million decrease in
interest income from leases. Nonoperating expenses increased by $46.8 million due to $47.1 million increase in
interest expense, offset by a $0.3 million decrease in other nonoperating expenses.

As a result of the above financial changes, the Airports Enterprise Fund’s change in net position for the fiscal year
2022 amounted to $(163.1) million.

Harbor

The Harbor Enterprise Fund (Harbor) accounts for the operations of the Port of Los Angeles. It provides for
maritime commerce, navigation, fisheries, and water-dependent activities to benefit the State of California.

Harbor's operating revenues increased to $627.8 million, reflecting a 9.8% increase from the prior year's revenue of
$572.0 million. The increase was primarily due to the initiation of a new clean truck program, higher space
assignment rates, higher utility reimbursements from the Alternative Maritime Power (AMP) shore side electricity
connection program, resumption of cruises, as well as the expiration of the empty container discount on wharfage.
Harbor derives its operating revenues mainly from shipping services, rentals, and fees from royalties, concessions,
and other fees. Shipping services increased by $22.1 million mainly due to a $6.5 million wharfage revenue
increase from the expiration of empty container discount on wharfage and a $15.6 million increase from dockage
and demurrage, pilotage and assignment revenues.

Harbor's operating expenses, excluding depreciation, decreased by $18.4 million to $254.6 million from $273.6

million in the fiscal year 2021. Salaries and benefits expenses, including pension and OPEB expenses decreased

by $23.8 million, or 16.3% lower than prior-year due to decreases in pension and OPEB expenses offset by an
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increase of $1.1 million in salary and employee benefit expenses. Payments for City services decreased by $0.4
million due to lower utilizations of fire service and other City administrative services, partially offset by higher City
attorney, recreation and park services. Outside services increased by $2.4 million due to staffing shortage, supply
chain disruptions, price increases, higher spending in development activities related to the Port Optimizer project,
and other contractual services supporting the Harbor's operations. Other operating expenses decreased by $8.4
million due to lower provisioning for workers’ compensation liabilities, lower provisioning for litigation and claim
expenses and lower pollution remediation expense. These increases were offset by higher expenses for
administering Clean Truck program and higher insurance premiums and customers incentive payouts.

Nonoperating revenues increased by $21.7 million due to higher pass-through and noncapital grant revenues by
$17.8 million and higher other revenues from settlement recovery by $4.6 million offset by lower income from an
investment in the Intermodal Container Transfer Facility Joint Powers Authority by $0.7 million. Nonoperating
expenses increased by $79.1 million due to unfavorable variances with respect to unrealized investment loss by
$45.1 million from investment value fluctuations, higher pass-through grant expenditures by $17.7 million, higher
capital projects closed to expense by $18.8 million and higher bond administration and other miscellaneous costs
by $0.3 million. These increases were partially offset by $2.8 million decrease in interest expenses.

As a result of the above financial changes and capital contributions of $11.9 million, the Harbor Enterprise Fund’s
change in net position for fiscal year 2022 was $167.5 million.

Power and Water

The Power and Water Enterprise Funds account for the operations of the Department of Water and Power (DWP)
in supplying the City and its inhabitants with water and electric power by constructing, operating, and maintaining
facilities located throughout the City.

Power

The Power Enterprise Fund’s (Power) total operating revenues grew by $325.3 million or 7.6% from the prior fiscal
year primarily due to an increase of $315.6 million in total revenue from retail customers, an increase of $43.5
million in Sales for Resale, and a $1.2 million increase in other revenue, offset by a $35.0 million increase of
uncollectible accounts.

Power operating expenses were $268.4 million higher as compared to fiscal year 2021, driven primarily by a $99.1

million increase in fuel for generation, a $75.8 million increase in other operating expense, an increase of $8.1

million in purchased power, $53.4 million increase in depreciation and amortization expense, and $32.0 million

increase in maintenance expenses. The $8.1 million increase in purchased power costs can be primarily attributed

to higher year over year billings from SCPPA (purchase of renewable energy) and Intermountain Power Agency.

The $53.4 million increase in the depreciation and amortization expense can mainly be attributed to year over year
increases in depreciation and amortization for regulatory assets, $16.0 million; distribution plant, $2.0 million; and

general (corporate), $35.4 million. The $99.1 million increase in fuel for generation is primarily due to higher year
over year natural gas prices. The $32.0 million increase in maintenance expense for utility plant assets is mainly
due to higher year over year maintenance costs for distribution plant, $25.0 million; maintenance of steam plant,

$5.0 million; and maintenance of transmission plant, $9.0 million, partially offset by a decrease in other production
of plant, $6.0 million; and maintenance costs for hydraulic plant, $1.0 million. The $75.8 million increase in
other operating expense is mainly due to an increase of $55.0 million in A&G corporate expense, an increase of
$14.0 million in customer service expense and, a $6.8 million increase in transmission expense.

The major nonoperating activities of Power for fiscal year 2022 included the transfer of $225.0 million to the City’s
General Fund, grant revenues and corresponding grant expenses of $202.8 million, $98.4 million in other
nonoperating income, $25.5 million in federal bond subsidies, investment loss of $118.1 million, and $371.0 million
in debt expenses. The $125.4 million decrease in investment income can be primarily attributed to the change in
the fair value of the general pool investment between fiscal year 2021 and fiscal year 2022. The $14.9 million
decrease in other nonoperating income is due mainly to a decrease in revenue recognized for emissions reduction
credits. The $12.1 million increase in debt expenses is mainly due to the interest expense from variable rate bonds
and refunding.

As a result of the above financial changes, including capital contributions of $100.9 million, Power’s change in net
position for fiscal year 2022 amounted to $307.3 million.
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Water

During fiscal year 2022, operating revenues increased by $142.9 million, or 9.8%, from fiscal year 2021, primarily
due to a higher commercial and industrial billing rate per unit, billing rate per HCF and accrued unbilled revenue
that resulted from increased purchased water cost due to the drought.

Operating expenses for fiscal year 2022 were $123.3 million higher, attributed to an increase of $50.0 million, or
17% in purchased water expense due to a 53% decrease in water supplied by the aqueduct and runoff available
from snowfall, which increased the purchases for water. The increase of $11.3 million in depreciation and
amortization expense can mainly be attributed to year-over-year increases in depreciation and amortization for
regulatory assets, distribution plant, source of supply, and general plant. Maintenance and other operating
expenses were $61.6 million higher as compared to the prior year. The increase is primarily comprised of an
increase in total maintenance of $19.3 million and other operating expenses of $42.3 million. Other operating
expenses included a net increase due to source of supply, distribution, purification, and administrative and general
corporate expenses.

Nonoperating revenues (expenses), net was $26.1 million lower than in fiscal year 2021. The $26.1 million
decrease in nonoperating income can be primarily attributed to a $33.7 million decrease in investment income, a
decrease of $1.7 million in debt expenses, an increase in overall other nonoperating income of $4.9 million, and a
decrease in nonoperating expenses of $1.0 million.

As a result of the above financial changes and capital contributions of $41.1 million, the Water Enterprise Fund’s
change in net position for the fiscal year 2022 was $232.6 million.

Sewer

The Sewer Construction and Maintenance Fund (Sewer) accounts for the construction, operation, and
maintenance of the City’s wastewater collection and treatment system.

For fiscal year 2022, Sewer generated total operating revenues of $739.7 million, a decrease of $49.1 million or
6.2% from fiscal year 2021. Sewer Service Charges decreased by $42.5 million or 6.0% from fiscal year 2021,
generating $670.5 million or 90.6% of the total operating revenues due to the billable wastewater volume
decreasing by 1.1% over the same time period.

Sewer's major operating expenses include operations, maintenance, and reimbursements to the General Fund for
services rendered to the Sewer. The Sewer’s operating expenses for the fiscal year 2022 were $546.9 million, an
increase of $20.9 million or 4.0% as compared to fiscal year 2021 due to increase in reimbursements to the
General Fund, higher utilities and lower depreciation expense. Operations and maintenance comprised 67.5% and
depreciation expense was 32.5% of the total operating expenses.

Major components of nonoperating revenues include investment income, lease and rentals, revenue from recycled
water sales, non-recurring fees, and other non-operating revenues. The interest rate on the Sewer’s investment
pool reflects current economic trends and averaged 0.5% in fiscal year 2022, a decrease of 0.3% from the fiscal
year 2021. The Sewer’s investment income for fiscal year 2022 decreased by $3.9 million or 7,958.5% due to a
large decrease in fair value of cash and investments. Major components of nonoperating expenses are interest,
loss on abandonment of capital assets, litigation settlements, financial advisory, and bond expenses. The Sewer’s
interest expense for fiscal year 2022 increased by $20.3 million or 19.9% as compared to 2021 due to write-off of
deferred charges for refunded Senior and Subordinate Bonds. Total other nonoperating expenses were $15.6
million, significantly higher than the negative $11.5 million in 2021 mainly due to increase litigation settlement and
financial advisory and bond expenses.

As a result of the above financial changes, including capital contributions of $11.7 million, Sewer’s change in net
position for fiscal year 2022 was $180.9 million.
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The following charts are graphical comparisons between June 30, 2022 and 2021, for enterprise funds/business-
type activities operating revenues and operating expenses:

FY 2022 FY 2021
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GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

For purposes of the budget, the General Fund Operating Account is separate and distinct from the non-budgeted
Reserve Fund and other accounts that are classified by the City as having General Fund type activity for GAAP
reporting purposes. At fiscal year-end, the unassigned fund balance of the General Fund Operating Account is
transferred to the Reserve Fund and reported as “Reversion to Reserve Fund.”

2022 General Fund actual revenues and expenditures were lower than the final adjusted budget. The following
table summarizes the operating results on a budgetary basis of the City’s General Fund Operating Account as
described above:

CITY OF LOS ANGELES
Budgetary Operating Results - General Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Budgetary Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Basis Actual  Final Budget
Original Final Amounts Above (Below)
Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Taxes $ 5049601 % 5235219 $§ 5,283,009 $ 47,790
Licenses, Permits, Fees and Fines 1,368,410 1,330,931 1,264,536 (66,395)
Intergovernmental 94,285 63,825 45,060 (18,765)
Interest 20,603 27,600 28,500 900
Other 11,488 11,488 11,730 242
Total Revenues 6,544,387 6,669,063 6,632,835 (36,228)
Power Transfer 225,819 225,015 225,015 -
Loans from Other Funds - - 560 560
Transfers from Other Funds 1,934,640 2,354,857 2,143,324 (211,533)
Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources 8,704,846 9,248,935 9,001,734 (247,201)
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
General Government 2,539,134 2,383,687 2,018,426 (365,261)
Protection of Persons and Property 2,669,388 2,785,054 2,696,011 (89,043)
Public Works 440,255 519,613 471,838 (47,775)
Health and Sanitation 344,662 361,811 330,617 (31,194)
Transportation 204,941 213,403 175,904 (37,499)
Cultural and Recreational Services 53,294 64,105 52,902 (11,203)
Community Development 187,437 217,250 180,205 (37,045)
Pension and Retirement Contributions 2,406 2,161 2,161 -
Capital Outlay 128,088 156,070 51,335 (104,735)
Total Expenditures 6,569,605 6,703,154 5,979,399 (723,755)
Payment of Loans to Other Funds - - 25,018 25,018
Transfers to Other Funds 2,202,249 2,545,781 2,529,043 (16,738)
Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 8,771,854 9,248,935 8,533,460 (715,475)
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other Financing Sources Over (Under)

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses (67,008) - 468,274 468,274
Fund Balance, July 1 67,008 67,008 - (67,008)
Appropriation of Fund Balance and Carryforward Appropriations - (67,008) - 67,008
Encumbrances Lapsed - - 26,343 26,343
Reversion to Reserve Fund - - (494,617) (494,617)
Fund Balance, June 30 $ -$ -3 -3 -
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General Fund Revenues and Other Financing Sources

In the fiscal year 2022, total actual revenues and other financing sources were $247.2 million or 2.7%, below the
final budget primarily due to transfers from other funds finishing the year with $211.5 million lower than projected.
Total combined grant receipts, licenses, permits, fees and fines fell short of $85.2 million from the budgeted
amount, offset by higher-than-expected actual tax receipts of $47.8 million.

Property taxes were $40.0 million below the budget, primarily due to the lower-than-expected property tax growth
rate. Other taxes remain strong, including utility tax, sales tax, business tax, and transient occupancy tax,
compared to the budget estimates, mainly due to the steady recovery in the economy from business and travel
sectors caused by the recent pandemic. Business and sales taxes were higher by a total of $40.0 million compared
to the forecast, while utility and transient occupancy taxes were higher by $24.6 million and $9.4 million,
respectively. All other taxes were also higher than the budget by $13.8 million.

Reimbursements made to General Fund were lower than projected, resulting from a shortfall of $66.4 million in
Licenses, Permits, Fees and Fines. Delayed reimbursements from the Federal Emergency Management (FEMA)
Public Assistance Program for pandemic-related costs resulted in lowering grant receipts than estimated by $18.8
million.

General Fund Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

The General Fund's actual expenditures were $723.8 million or 10.8% below budget. All categories of spending
were lower than the final budget. The general government's actual expenditures were $365.3 million lower than
estimates, mainly due to the unexpended appropriations during the fiscal year, including unused and set-aside
resources in salaries, Covid-19 emergency response, homeless prevention, childcare assistance, neighborhood
service enhancement programs, construction materials, contractual services, and other various City programs.

The $715.5 million lower expenditures and other financing uses and lapsed encumbrances of $26.3 million were
offset by a combined $247.2 million lower budgeted revenues and other financing sources. As a result, a total of
$494.6 million was reverted from the General Fund to the Reserve Fund at fiscal year-end.
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LONG-TERM DEBT

At June 30, 2022 the City’s bonded indebtedness and long-term notes payable totaled $37.3 billion as follows:

CITY OF LOS ANGELES
Summary of Bonded Debt and Long-Term Notes Payable
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
FY 2022 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2021
Debt Backed by the City
General Obligation Bonds $ 751697 $ 642,248 § - $ - $ 751,697 $ 642,248
Debt Secured by Specified Revenue Sources
Lease Revenue Bonds 1,511,541 1,471,867 - - 1,511,541 1,471,867
Direct Placements 50,341 64,469 - - 50,341 64,469
Revenue Bonds and Notes Payable 374,604 509,781 34,558,909 31,451,082 34,933,513 31,960,863
Other Loan Obligations 69,213 89,122 - - 69,213 89,122
Total $ 2,757,396 $ 2,777,487 $ 34,558,909 $ 31,451,082 $ 37,316,305 $ 34,228,569

Significant new issuances during the year included the following:

The City issued General Obligation Bonds (GOB) Series 2021-A Proposition HHH for $211.9 million, for
the purpose of providing safe, clean affordable housing for the homeless and for those in danger of
becoming homeless, such as battered women and their children, veterans, senior, foster youth, and the
disabled, as authorized by over two-thirds of all of the qualified votes at the special election on November
8, 2016. The City also issued General Obligation Refunding Bonds Series 2021-B for $65.5 million to
refund GOB Series 2011-B and 2012-A.

MICLA issued Lease Revenue Bonds Series 2021-C for $154.2 million to retire certain maturities of
commercial paper notes, used to finance and refinance the acquisition of capital equipment and
acquisition and improvement of certain real properties of the City.

Airports issued a total of $1.85 billion of LAX subordinate revenue and refunding bonds. LAX subordinate
revenue bonds Series 2021D for $753.2 million, LAX subordinate refunding revenue bonds Series 2021E
for $125.8 million, LAX subordinate revenue bonds Series 2022A for $347.4 million, LAX subordinate
revenue bonds Series 2022B for $157.6 million, LAX subordinate revenue and refunding bonds Series
2022C for $307.1 million, LAX subordinate refunding bonds Series 2022D for $101.5 million, LAX
subordinate refunding bonds Series 2022E for $20.2 million and LAX subordinate revenue bonds Series
2022F for $41.0 million. In addition, $546.0 million of LAX CFC revenue bonds Series 2022A was also
issued. These bonds were issued to fund capital projects at LAX, refund a portion of outstanding
commercial paper notes, pay and reimburse a portion of the Consolidated Rental Car Facility project and
various refunding and defeasance of prior-year issuances.

Power issued $401.7 million of Power System Revenue Bonds, 2021 Series C to pay for capital
improvements and refund a portion of the outstanding Power System Revenue Bonds, 2018 Series B,
$375.0 million of Power System Revenue Bonds, 2022 Series A and $360.0 million of Power System
Revenue Bonds, 2022 Series B were issued to pay for capital improvements, and $399.4 million of Power
System Revenue Bonds, 2022 Series C were issued to refund a portion of the outstanding Power System
Revenue Bonds, 2012 Series A and all of the outstanding Power System Revenue Bonds, 2012 Series B.

Water issued $494.7 million of Water System Revenue Bonds, 2022 Series B and $326.9 million of Water
System Revenue Bonds, 2022 Series C. These bonds were used to pay for budgeted capital
improvements to the Water System, refund all of the outstanding Water System Revenue Bonds, 2012
Series A and 2012 Series B, and refund a portion of the outstanding Water System Revenue Bonds, 2012
Series C.

-26-



Annual Comprehensive Financial Report

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)

e Sewer issued Wastewater System Subordinate Revenue Bonds, Series 2022-A and 2022-B, in the
amounts of $99.0 million and $70.3 million, respectively. The proceeds of Series 2022-A and 2022-B were
used to pay a portion of the outstanding Wastewater System Commercial Paper Notes, and pay certain
costs of issuing Series 2022-A and 2022-B Subordinate Bonds. Sewer also issued Wastewater System
Subordinate Revenue Bonds, Refunding Series 2022-C in the amount of $380.6 million. The proceeds of
the Series 2022-C Bonds were used to pay all or a portion of the outstanding Wastewater System
Subordinate Revenue Bonds, Series 2010-A, Refunding Series 2012-B and C, Refunding Series 2018-C1
and C2, Wastewater System Revenue Bonds, Refunding Series 2012-A, and pay certain costs of issuing
the Series 2022-C bonds. Sewer was also approved for a Water Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act
(WIFIA) Loan in the original principal amount of up to $223.9 million from the United States Environmental
Protection Agency under WIFIA for the Advanced Water Purification Facility which includes three
component projects at Donald C. Tillman Water Reclamation Plant.

More detailed information on the City’s bonds and other long-term debt can be found in Note 41 of the Notes to the
Basic Financial Statements.

Credit Ratings

As of June 30, 2022, the ratings of the City’s debts by rating agencies were as follows:

Moody's Kroll Bond
Investors S&P Global Rating
Service Ratings Fitch Ratings Agency
Governmental Activities
General Obligation Bonds Aa2 AA AAA AA+
MICLA Lease Revenue Obligations (Real Property)’ Aa3 AA- AA- AA
MICLA Lease Revenue Obligations (Equipment) Aa3 AA- AA- AA
Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes MIG1 SP-1+ n/a n/a
Solid Waste Resources Revenue Bonds Aa2 A+ AA AA
Business-type Activities
Airports Senior Revenue Bonds Aa2 AA AA n/a
Airports Subordinate Revenue Bonds Aa3 AA- AA- n/a
Harbor Aa2 AA AA n/a
Power Aa2 AA- AA- AA
Water Aa2 AA+ AA AA+
Wastewater System Senior Revenue Bonds Aa2 AA+ AA+ AA+
Wastewater System Subordinate Revenue Bonds Aa3 AA AA AA

1Moocly‘s Investors Service rates MICLA Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2018-C (Real Property - Taxable) (Dolby Theater) at A1.

In August 2022, Fitch Ratings assigned a ‘AAA’ rating to the City’s General Obligation (GO) bonds, series 2022-A
issued on September 28, 2022. In addition, Fitch affirmed the City's Issuer Default Rating (IDR) at 'AA' and 'AAA'
rating for the City’s outstanding GO bonds, series 2017-A, 2017-B, 2021-A and 2021-B. The rating Outlook is
stable. Fitch Ratings concluded that the City's 'AA' IDR reflects its strong operating performance with solid revenue
growth largely outpacing managed expenditure growth and that the City also benefits from a moderate debt burden
and superior gap-closing capacity.
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Debt Policies

The City’s Debt Management Policies establish guidelines for the structure and management of the City Council-
controlled departments' debt. These guidelines include target and ceiling levels for certain debt ratios to be used for
financial planning purposes. The policy places certain restrictions on the types of items that can be financed,
limiting financing only to those items with a useful life of six years or more. In accordance with this policy, the ratio
of annual debt payments cannot exceed 15.0% of General Fund revenues for voter-approved and non-voter
approved debt overall, and cannot exceed 6.0% of General Fund revenues for non-voter approved debt alone. The
6.0% ceiling for non-voter approved debt may be exceeded, only if there is a guaranteed new revenue stream for
the debt payments and the additional debt will not cause the ratio to exceed 7.5%, or there is no guaranteed
revenue stream but the 6.0% ceiling shall not be exceeded for more than one year. For 2022, the ratios were 4.7%
for overall debt and 3.0% for non-voter approved debt. As of June 30, 2022, the City had $739.0 million of General
Obligation bonds, excluding bond premium outstanding.

The City’s Variable Rate Debt Policy sets forth the purposes and the criteria for using variable rate debt, and the
factors to be considered in determining the appropriate amount of the variable rate debt. It also requires
diversification of remarketing agents and counterparties. Budgeting, monitoring and reporting requirements are also
included in the policy.

As of June 30, 2022, the City is in compliance with the aforementioned policies.

Information related to the City’s legal debt margin and pledged revenue bond coverage for the City’s enterprise
funds is found in the Statistical Section — Debt Capacity.
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CAPITAL ASSETS

The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of June 30, 2022
amounted to $56.7 billion, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization. This investment in capital assets,
which accounts for 64.9% of the City’s total assets, includes land, buildings, facilities, equipment, infrastructure,
intangibles, construction in progress, nuclear fuel and a natural gas field. The following table presents the City’s
capital assets (in thousands):

CITY OF LOS ANGELES
Summary of Capital Assets Used in Operations
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
FY 2022 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2021
Not Depreciated / Amortized
Land $ 900,643 $ 900,604 $ 3,004,806 $ 3,001,333 $ 3,905,449 $ 3,901,937
Infrastructure 452,049 459,170 - - 452,049 459,170
Construction in Progress 1,278,438 1,189,903 7,471,675 8,156,313 8,750,113 9,346,216
Intangible Assets 53,158 50,989 60,144 60,144 113,302 111,133
Nuclear Fuel - - 40,291 39,316 40,291 39,316
Natural Gas Field -- -- 128,695 139,416 128,695 139,416
Subtotal 2,684,288 2,600,666 10,705,611 11,396,522 13,389,899 13,997,188
Depreciated / Amortized, Net
Buildings, Facilities and Equipment 3,580,318 3,678,888 36,992,203 34,607,246 40,572,521 38,286,134
Intangible RTU assets 112,062 -- 94,652 -- 206,714 --
Infrastructure 2,219,653 2,181,954 -- -- 2,219,653 2,181,954
Intangible Assets 68,164 62,739 265,402 252,830 333,566 315,569
Subtotal 5,980,197 5,923,581 37,352,257 34,860,076 43,332,454 40,783,657
Total $ 8,664,485 % 8,524,247 $ 48,057,868 $ 46,256,598 $ 56,722,353 $ 54,780,845

Note: FY 2021 figures have not been restated for the effect of GASB 87.

Maijor capital assets activities during the year are as follows:

Governmental Activities

Completed building construction and improvements, including transfers from construction in progress,
amounted to $91.8 million. These building projects included $76.8 million for recreational, cultural and
community centers, $10.2 million for bridge housing, and $4.8 million for transportation facilities.

Capitalized charges for various projects under construction totaled $252.0 million. These projects included
$69.5 million for recreational, cultural and community centers, $4.6 million for municipal facilities projects, $77.9
million for the Sixth Street Viaduct replacement, $71.3 million for various public work projects, $23.3 million for
transportation projects, and $5.4 million for police and fire facilities.

Total capitalized infrastructure assets amounted to $119.9 million.

Acquisition of capitalized machinery and equipment totaled $64.6 million, while those retired, salvaged,
deleted, or sold amounted to $26.5 million.

Intangible assets, including net additions to construction in progress, amounted to $21.9 million.

The City recognized net RTU assets of $112.1 million

The modified approach is used in reporting the City’s bridges infrastructure system. The City’s 2022 Infrastructure
Assessment of Bridges and Tunnels Report reported that 70.9% of the City’s structures have a grade of “B” or
better and concluded that the current overall rating of the City structures comply with the adopted City’s Condition
Level Policy. The needed costs for preservation and maintenance were $1.2 million, and $0.7 million was actually
spent. See additional information in Note 1E of the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements and the Required
Supplementary Information Section.
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Business-type Activities

Airports’ net capital assets increased by $0.5 billion, or 3.4%. Major capital assets activities at LAX included
$280.7 million for renovations at Terminals 1 to 8, $220.1 million for construction of Automated People Mover
System (APM), $225.5 million for construction of Consolidated Rental Car Facility (ConRAC), $98.7 million for
construction of runways and taxiways, $73.9 million for Baggage Optimization Project, $67.2 million interior
improvements and security upgrades at Tom Bradley International Terminal (TBIT) and Bradley West, and
$64.3 million Receiving Station Project (RS-X). Airports adopted GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, and
recognized net RTU assets of $52.3 million.

Harbor’s net capital assets decreased by $50.8 million or 1.4% as the increase in accumulated depreciation
associated with the Harbor’'s existing facilities and equipment more than offset the increase in new capital
assets associated with capital project development and construction in progress, as well as the recognition of
discontinued projects in the amount of $22.5 million. The major capital assets activities during the fiscal year
were: $30.0 million for construction at the San Pedro and Wilmington waterfronts, $15.0 million for various
transportation projects and other facility and street improvements, $8.6 million for various projects at berths
with liquid bulk oil cargo handling facilities, $6.6 million for redevelopment projects at the Everport Terminal,
$5.8 million for various homeland security projects, $5.2 million for buildings and facilities improvements and
remodel, pilot system enhancement, port pilot station wharf modification, fire alarm and security system
installation and various utility projects, $3.4 million for improvement project at LAXT cargo support facility, $2.4
million for environmental enhancement projects, $1.6 million for various projects at the Pasha Terminal
including roof replacement, electrical infrastructure improvement, and wharf restoration, $1.4 million for
redevelopment projects at various terminals including wharf rehabilitation, facility expansion, and infrastructure
improvements, $1.4 million for various miscellaneous projects for parking/storage lot construction, barge
landing ramp upgrade, building cover replacement, and dockside facility improvements, and $1.1 million for on-
deck railyard expansion project at the Fenix (Berth 300-306) terminal.

Power’s plant additions totaled $1.2 billion. Approximately $333.4 million of the $1.2 billion in additions were
construction work in progress (CWIP) expenditures and the remaining $895.5 million were direct additions to
utility plant categories. Major CWIP additions/expenditures during the year included $81.0 million for
Scattergood-Olympic 230kV underground transmission cable project, $39.0 million for Victorville to Los
Angeles Basin Power Injection Upgrade, $33.0 million for re-expansion of Barren Ridge Switching Station,
$30.0 million for Distribution Automation System upgrade, $25.0 million for design and construction of new
Receiving Station to serve LAX, $15.0 million to install new 230kV line between Haskell Switching Station and
Sylmar Switching Station, $14.0 million for implementation support cost for new Enterprise Resource Planning
(ERP) Software, $10.0 million for Receiving Station Transformer Replacement Program, and $10.0 million for
design and construction of new office facilities. $80.0 million in CWIP projects were transferred from CWIP to
plant accounts. Transfers from CWIP included $28.0 million for Valley — Rinaldi 230 kV Line 1 & 2 upgrade and
reconductoring, $11.0 million for the Budget System Replacement Project, $8.0 million for Substations
Automation System Upgrade, and $7.0 million for the Generating Station Transformer Replacement Program.
Approximately $641.0 million and $13.0 million were direct additions to distribution and transmission plant
accounts, respectively. Major direct additions included $143.0 million for replacement of deteriorated poles and
crossarms, $86.0 million for new business line customer facilities, $80.0 million for reliability replacement of 4.8
kV and 34.5 kV cables, $29.0 million for customer stations design and construction, $22.0 million to design and
replace aging distribution infrastructure, and $18.0 million for installing, reinforcing, and modifying 34.5 kV trunk
and peddler circuits.

Water added utility plant cost with a total amount of $860.0 million. Approximately $520.1 million of the $860.0
million in additions were construction work in progress (CWIP) expenditures and $336.4 million represents
direct additions by utility plant categories. Approximately $359.9 million in CWIP projects were transferred from
CWIP to plant accounts. Major CWIP additions/expenditures during the year included $203.0 million for the
Tujunga and North Hollywood centralized treatment to remove contamination, $24.0 million for the Headworks
Flow Control Station, $24.0 million for City Trunk Line South Unit 3 installation, $20.0 million for River Supply
Conduit Upper Reach Unit 7, $20.0 million for Century Trunk Line rehabilitation, $20.0 million for North
Hollywood West Wellhead Treatment Plant, $14.0 million for North Haiwee Dam #2 seismic improvements,
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$12.0 million for Coronado Trunk Line new regulator station, and $11.0 million to replace pipes at Foothill Trunk
Line. Approximately $152.2 million and $117.5 million of additions were transferred from CWIP to distribution
plant accounts and source of water supply accounts, respectively. Major projects transferred from CWIP
included $140.0 million for the LA Reservoir UV Disinfection Plant, $75.0 million for the Century Trunk Line Unit
1 rehabilitation, $48.0 million for the Tujunga Spreading Grounds Improvements, and $26.0 million for mainline
replacement at various water districts. Direct additions are mostly related to improvements in distribution
infrastructure as part of the Water System’s reliability program. Many of the Water System’s assets were
installed between 1920 and 1970, thus the reliability program evaluates water main infrastructure to determine
which assets should be replaced first to reduce leaks and the frequency of water service disruptions due to
water main breaks. Approximately $232.8 million of the additions are for improvements to the distribution
system. During fiscal year 2022, the Water System invested $198.0 million in programs to replace mains,
services, reservoirs, tanks, and meters, including continuing replacement of existing meters with lead-free
meters and fittings in accordance with the Water System’s goal to increase the reliability and safety of its
distribution system.

e Sewer's net capitalized additions and betterments to its depreciable assets, including transfers from
construction in progress, amounted to $235.9 million. Of this amount, $40.5 million was an addition from
construction in progress, $87.7 million was capitalized for collection system, $86.8 million relates to treatment
plants and equipment, $0.2 million for pumping plants, and $20.8 million was used for site improvements and to
acquire other equipment and vehicles. The ongoing capital improvement program (CIP) of the Sewer includes
Secondary Sewer Renewal Program for $2.3 million, the Hyperion Water Reclamation Plant Digester Gas
Utilization Plant Facility for $0.2 million, and the North Outfall Sewer Rehabilitation for $29.8 million. Additional
CIP large projects capitalized during fiscal year 2022 are Hyperion Secondary Clarifiers Upgrade for $28.4
million, the DAR 05 Hollywood/Wilshire Plan for $15.0 million, the Hyperion DCS Replacement for $13.0
million, the Hyperion IPS Order Control Improvements for $12.8 million, and Arlington Ave Sewer Rehabilitation
for $12.2 million.

Significant commitments that include construction contracts are discussed in Note 5C of the Notes to the Basic
Financial Statements. As of June 30, 2022, the City’s contractual commitments for various capital projects
amounted to $296.2 million for governmental activities and $484.7 million for business-type activities. The City’s
policy affecting capital assets can be found in Note 1E of the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements. Additional
information can be found in Note 4F.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AFFECTING NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET

The City’s fiscal year 2023 total budget is $11.8 billion. Of this amount, $5.6 billion (47.2%) is appropriated for
departmental expenditures. The remaining $6.2 billion (52.8%) is appropriated for non-departmental expenditures
such as human resources benefits, pension contributions, capital expenditures, and debt service. The sources of
funds included in the budget are $7.4 billion in General Fund receipts, $3.5 billion in special fund revenues, and
$858.9 million in special fund available balances. The $477.5 million estimated July 1 balance included in the
budget for the fiscal year 2023 Reserve Fund represents 6.4% of the General Fund receipts, above the City’s policy
of setting aside at least 5.0% of General Fund receipts in the Reserve Fund.

The 2023 General Fund budgeted receipts of $7.4 billion, projected a decrease of $145.2 million or (1.9%), lower
than the 2022 receipts, as shown on the next page (in millions):
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FY 2023 FY 2022 Increase (Decrease)

Budget Receipts Amount Percentage
Taxes $ 5,592.2 $ 5,283.0 $ 309.2 5.9 %
Licenses, permits, fees and fines 1,402.9 1,264.6 138.3 10.9
Intergovernmental 126.0 451 80.9 179.4
Interest 36.6 28.5 8.1 284
Other 1.5 1.7 (0.2) (1.7)
Transfers from other funds 276.8 958.3 (681.5) (71.1)
Total $ 7,446.0 $ 75912 § (145.2) (1.9)%

Note: Transfers from other funds include the Reserve Fund, Power Fund, Special Parking Revenue Fund, and American Rescue Plan
Fund.

With the recovery of most revenue sources in fiscal year 2022, combined with the receipt of federal funds, the City
ended fiscal year 2022 in a stable financial position. The 2023 Budget assumes the City will continue economic
recovery from the pandemic-related downturn and return to a stable state. Although revenues were largely stable
during the first half of fiscal year 2023, the economy for the remainder of the fiscal year remains uncertain. Factors
such as a persistent 40-year high inflation resulting in high interest rates and disruptions caused by the war abroad
threaten to slow down recovery trends and could negatively impact the City’s revenues.

In its Second Financial Status Report (FSR), issued on December 1, 2022, the City Administrative Officer (CAQO)
reported that General Fund revenue through October is $37 million above plan. Given that this was based on only
four months of receipts, this surplus is not necessarily indicative of year-end receipts. The FSR also identified
$88.9 million in expenditures above plan, though the CAO continues to believe that this is manageable. However,
the FSR identified areas of risk including shortfalls in documentary transfer tax and parking citation receipts.
Documentary transfer tax receipts and other economically sensitive revenues continue to face increasing downside
risk due to declining real estate sales volumes and overall economic contraction. Also, the delayed implementation
of the City’s new payroll system, and new agreements with employee unions would likely increase costs beyond
what was anticipated in the Budget.

In addition, potential new expenditures could arise from the urgent need to fix the major crisis facing the City. The
new City leadership was ushered into office with a promise to tackle the affordable housing and historic
homelessness crisis facing the City. To address homelessness, the new Mayor, on December 12, 2022, declared
homelessness as a local emergency, and subsequently announced a new program, Inside Safe, designed to move
the unhoused throughout the City into motel and hotel rooms. While the voters also passed Measure ULA, a new
tax to authorize affordable housing programs and resources for tenants at risk of homelessness, the
constitutionality of the Measure is currently being challenged in court. Even if the outcome of the litigation ultimately
favors the City, any delay in City's ability to start collecting this revenue would negatively impact funding for any
new programs, potentially resulting in a need to dip into the reserve if the City chooses to pursue new programs
that exceed the costs of available, ongoing revenues.

As of the date of the FSR, the balance in the Reserve Fund of $528 million or 7.1 percent of 2023 General Fund
revenue, remains above the five percent Reserve Fund policy, but factors such as the overspending identified in
the report, the impact of inflation on City operational costs, and the risk of economic downturn may require the use
of the Reserve Fund. While using the Reserve Fund to weather economic crises is appropriate, using the Reserve
Fund in the interim to pay for new, ongoing programs could provide budgetary challenges in future years if new,
ongoing revenues are not available to sustain those programs.

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, creditors, and other users with a
general overview of the City’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or
requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Office of the City Controller, 200 North Main
Street, City Hall East Room 300, Los Angeles, CA 90012, or email to controller.mejia@lacity.org.
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CITY OF LOS ANGELES

Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2022
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Cash and Pooled Investments $ 6,692,032 $ 5,086,653 $ 11,778,685
Other Investments 727 103,087 103,814
Receivables, Net 4,250,507 1,659,611 5,910,118
Inventories 52,265 304,778 357,043
Prepaid Items and Other Assets 9,272 1,048,351 1,057,623
Restricted Assets 10,572 5,297,064 5,307,636
Investment in Joint Ventures - 5,546 5,546
Properties Held for Housing Development 106,301 - 106,301
Regulatory Assets - 1,219,653 1,219,653
Net Pension Asset 2,691,538 1,668,531 4,360,069
Net OPEB Asset 221,088 297,905 518,993
Capital Assets
Not Depreciated / Amortized 2,684,288 10,705,611 13,389,899
Depreciated / Amortized, Net 5,980,197 37,352,257 43,332,454
TOTAL ASSETS 22,698,787 64,749,047 87,447,834
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Debt Refunding 38,251 100,704 138,955
Asset Retirement Obligation -- 29,219 29,219
Pensions 2,170,076 625,355 2,795,431
OPEB 566,848 254,685 821,533
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 2,775,175 1,009,963 3,785,138
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 748,334 1,227,815 1,976,149
Obligations Under Securities Lending Transactions 98,676 91,653 190,329
Accrued Interest Payable 18,391 436,095 454,486
Internal Balances 45,420 (45,420) -
Unearned Revenue 416,268 - 416,268
Deposits and Advances 250,388 245,221 495,609
Other Liabilities 145,719 71,724 217,443
Long-term Liabilities
Due Within One Year 841,723 1,217,001 2,058,724
Due In More Than One Year
Bonds and Notes Payable (Net of Amount Due Within One Year) 2,455,550 33,587,904 36,043,454
Net Pension Liability 3,649,863 713,786 4,363,649
Net OPEB Liability 906,744 - 906,744
Asset Retirement Obligation -- 224,277 224,277
Other (Net of Amount Due Within One Year) 3,144,311 798,266 3,942,577
TOTAL LIABILITIES 12,721,387 38,568,322 51,289,709
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Business Activities - 187,190 187,190
Derivative Instruments - 100,746 100,746
Debt Refunding 6,124 205,783 211,907
Leases 16,311 553,540 569,851
Pensions 5,735,467 2,319,290 8,054,757
OPEB 1,461,796 807,902 2,269,698
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 7,219,698 4,174,451 11,394,149
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 6,465,677 15,874,736 22,340,413
Restricted for:
Capital Projects 320,098 -- 320,098
Debt Service 286,112 920,182 1,206,294
Public Safety 189,299 - 189,299
Public Works and Sanitation 174,193 - 174,193
Transportation 628,762 -- 628,762
Culture and Recreation 655,764 - 655,764
Community Development and Housing 2,053,090 -- 2,053,090
Passenger/Customer Facility Charges -- 267,664 267,664
Other Purposes -- 599,140 599,140
Unrestricted (Deficit) (5,240,118) 5,354,515 114,397
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 5,632,877 $ 23,016,237 $ 28,549,114

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF LOS ANGELES

Statement of Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Program Revenues Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position
Charges for Operating Grants  Capital Grants and Governmental Business-type
Functions/Programs Expenses Services and Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
General Government $ 1,726,188 $ 139,567 $ 713,482 $ ) (873,139) $ ) (873,139)
Protection of Persons and Property 2,624,309 764,516 138,364 - (1,721,429) - (1,721,429)
Public Works 513,475 302,181 173,984 24,733 (12,577) - (12,577)
Health and Sanitation 552,619 497,516 72,314 - 17,211 - 17,211
Transportation 563,804 121,011 367,365 41,159 (34,269) -- (34,269)
Cultural and Recreational Services 713,767 195,270 - 33,291 (485,206) - (485,206)
Community Development 987,179 215,229 620,678 207 (151,065) - (151,065)
Interest on Long-Term Debt 98,054 - - - (98,054) - (98,054)
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 7,779,395 2,235,290 2,086,187 99,390 (3,358,528) - (3,358,528)
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
Airports 1,742,407 1,407,938 10,386 45,638 - (278,445) (278,445)
Harbor 462,493 627,842 20,502 11,906 - 197,757 197,757
Power 4,370,903 4,593,760 202,788 100,865 -- 526,510 526,510
Water 1,487,767 1,606,678 73,985 41,137 - 234,033 234,033
Sewer 669,062 739,666 59,795 11,723 - 142,122 142,122
Convention Center 43,337 33,606 - - - (9,731) (9,731)
TOTAL BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES 8,775,969 9,009,490 367,456 211,269 -- 812,246 812,246
TOTAL 3 16,555,364 $ 11,244,780 $ 2,453,643 $ 310,659 (3,358,528) 812,246 (2,546,282)
GENERAL REVENUES
Property Taxes 2,628,691 -- 2,628,691
Utility Users' Taxes 634,186 - 634,186
Business Taxes 1,019,226 -- 1,019,226
Sales Taxes 693,438 - 693,438
Other Taxes
Documentary Transfer 311,068 -- 311,068
Transient Occupancy 271,480 -- 271,480
Parking Occupancy 105,577 -- 105,577
Franchise Income 146,478 - 146,478
Miscellaneous 8,112 -- 8,112
Grants and Contributions Not Restricted to Specific Programs
Other 35,874 - 35,874
Unrestricted Investment Earnings (Losses) (110,102) (281,224) (391,326)
Other 71,551 409,490 481,041
TRANSFERS 225,015 (225,015) --
TOTAL GENERAL REVENUES AND TRANSFERS 6,040,594 (96,749) 5,943,845
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 2,682,066 715,497 3,397,563
NET POSITION, JULY 1 2,850,811 22,286,309 25,137,120
Change in Accounting Principle, GASB 87 Implementation -- 14,431 14,431
NET POSITION JULY 1, AS RESTATED 2,850,811 22,300,740 25,151,551
NET POSITION, JUNE 30 $ 5,632,877 $ 23,016,237 $ 28,549,114

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2022
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Municipal Improvement Corporation

Special Debt
General Revenue Service
ASSETS
Cash and Pooled Investments $ 1,992,342 § 32,731 $ 27,870
Other Investments 727 -- --
Taxes Receivable
(Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles of $33,227) 1,116,337 - -
Accounts Receivable
(Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles of $481,813) 147,123 -- --
Special Assessments Receivable 4,459 -- --
Investment Income Receivable 10,463 58 17
Intergovernmental Receivable 284,965 -- 582
Leases Receivable 1,977 -- --
Loans Receivable
(Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles of $1,313,558) 1,382 - -
Due from Other Funds 111,970 - -
Inventories 39,228 -- --
Prepaid Items and Other Assets 408 -- --
Advances to Other Funds 26,859 -- 99,142
Restricted Assets -- -- --
Properties Held for Housing Development -~ -~ -~
TOTAL ASSETS $ 3,738,240 $ 32,789 $ 127,611
LIABILITIES
Accounts, Contracts and Retainage Payable $ 286,482 $ 12,336 $ 184
Obligations Under Securities Lending Transactions 39,182 179 --
Accrued Salaries and Overtime Payable 181,678 - -
Accrued Compensated Absences Payable 5,385 -- --
Claims and Judgments Payable 42,358 -- --
Intergovernmental Payable 953 -- --
Due to Other Funds 102,491 2,165 --
Unearned Revenue 302,455 -- --
Deposits and Advances 21,739 -- --
Interest Payable -- -- --
Advances from Other Funds 56,130 - -
Other Liabilities 66,079 94 -
Liability for Excess CRA Bond Proceeds -~ -~ -~
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,104,932 14,774 184
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Property Taxes 86,191 -- --
Taxes Other than Property 699,740 -- --
Receivables from Other Government Agencies 135,673 -- --
Interest Receivable on Loans and Others 212,092 -- --
Leases 1,918 -~ -~
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 1,135,614 -- --
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable 66,495 - -
Restricted - 18,015 127,427
Committed 85,078 -- --
Assigned 724,278 - -
Unassigned 621,843 - -
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 1,497,694 18,015 127,427
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
AND FUND BALANCES $ 3,738,240 $ 32,789 $ 127,611
Continued...
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Balance Sheet - (Continued)
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2022
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Nonmajor
Governmental
Funds Total
ASSETS
Cash and Pooled Investments $ 4,639,089 $ 6,692,032
Other Investments -- 727
Taxes Receivable
(Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles of $33,227) 19,401 1,135,738
Accounts Receivable
(Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles of $481,813) 119,831 266,954
Special Assessments Receivable 11,936 16,395
Investment Income Receivable 12,332 22,870
Intergovernmental Receivable 287,450 572,997
Leases Receivable 14,957 16,934
Loans Receivable
(Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles of $1,313,558) 2,217,237 2,218,619
Due from Other Funds 83,949 195,919
Inventories 13,037 52,265
Prepaid Items and Other Assets 8,864 9,272
Advances to Other Funds 76,494 202,495
Restricted Assets 10,572 10,572
Properties Held for Housing Development 106,301 106,301
TOTAL ASSETS $ 7,621,450 $ 11,520,090
LIABILITIES
Accounts, Contracts and Retainage Payable $ 246,049 $ 545,051
Obligations Under Securities Lending Transactions 59,315 98,676
Accrued Salaries and Overtime Payable 16,620 198,298
Accrued Compensated Absences Payable -- 5,385
Claims and Judgments Payable -- 42,358
Intergovernmental Payable 4,032 4,985
Due to Other Funds 126,151 230,807
Unearned Revenue 113,813 416,268
Deposits and Advances 228,649 250,388
Interest Payable 268 268
Advances from Other Funds 156,897 213,027
Other Liabilities 36,918 103,091
Liability for Excess CRA Bond Proceeds 42,628 42,628
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,031,340 2,151,230
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Property Taxes 10,994 97,185
Taxes Other than Property -- 699,740
Receivables from Other Government Agencies 197,078 332,751
Interest Receivable on Loans and Others 680,705 892,797
Leases 14,393 16,311
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 903,170 2,038,784
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable 21,901 88,396
Restricted 3,944,443 4,089,885
Committed 1,810,604 1,895,682
Assigned 2,814 727,092
Unassigned (92,822) 529,021
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 5,686,940 7,330,076
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
AND FUND BALANCES $ 7,621,450 $ 11,520,090

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2022
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $ 7,330,076

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net Position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the

funds. 8,664,485

Deferred outflows of resources are reported in the statement of net position, but not recognized in the governmental

funds. 2,775,175

Unavailable revenues are reported as deferred inflows of resources in the governmental funds, but are recognized

as revenues when earned in governmental activities. 2,022,473

Deferred inflows of resources are reported in the statement of net position, but not recognized in the governmental

funds. (7,203,387)

Long-term liabilities, including net of net pension and OPEB asset, net pension and OPEB liability and bonds

payable, are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. (8,055,945)
Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 5,532,877

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF LOS ANGELES

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

(amounts expressed in thousands)

REVENUES
Property Taxes
Sales Taxes
Utility Users' Taxes
Business Taxes
Other Taxes
Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Services to Enterprise Funds
Fines
Special Assessments
Investment Earnings
Change in Fair Value of Investments
Program Income
Other

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

Current
General Government
Protection of Persons and Property
Public Works
Health and Sanitation
Transportation
Cultural and Recreational Services
Community Development

Capital Outlay

Debt Service
Principal
Interest
Cost of Issuance

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Issuance of Long-Term Debt
Premium on Issuance of Long-Term Debt
Issuance of Refunding Bonds
Premium on Issuance of Refunding Bonds
Payment to Refunding Bond Escrow Agent
Lease Liabilities Issued

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1

FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30
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Municipal Improvement Corporation

Special Debt

General Revenue Service
2,492,320 $ -3 -
694,218 - -
632,433 - -
756,960 -- --
778,563 -- --
31,493 -- --
43,171 - 608
341,191 -- --
327,326 -- --
116,805 -- --
2,691 - -
35,770 202 29
(145,900) (797) --
62,094 247 130
6,169,135 (348) 767
1,573,832 - 2,143
3,414,251 -- --
201,042 -- --
164,898 - -
139,871 -- --
79,454 -- --
108,209 -- --
53,975 95,499 --
20,682 -- 344,663
3,752 -- 56,411
867 -- 578
5,760,833 95,499 403,795
408,302 (95,847) (403,028)
910,652 - 221,965
(1,060,079) - -
-- 80,000 --
-- -- 154,205
-- -- 41,226
14,842 -- --
(134,585) 80,000 417,396
273,717 (15,847) 14,368
1,223,977 33,862 113,059
1,497,694 $ 18,015 $ 127,427
Continued...



CITY OF LOS ANGELES

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances - (Continued)
Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022
(amounts expressed in thousands)

REVENUES
Property Taxes
Sales Taxes
Utility Users' Taxes
Business Taxes
Other Taxes
Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Services to Enterprise Funds
Fines
Special Assessments
Investment Earnings
Change in Fair Value of Investments
Program Income
Other

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

Current
General Government
Protection of Persons and Property
Public Works
Health and Sanitation
Transportation
Cultural and Recreational Services
Community Development

Capital Outlay

Debt Service
Principal
Interest
Cost of Issuance

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Issuance of Long-Term Debt
Premium on Issuance of Long-Term Debt
Issuance of Refunding Bonds
Premium on Issuance of Refunding Bonds
Payment to Refunding Bond Escrow Agent
Lease Liabilities Issued

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1

FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Nonmajor Total
Governmental Governmental

Funds Funds
$ 139,825 § 2,632,145
-- 694,218
-- 632,433
-- 756,960
59,380 837,943
65,808 97,301
2,212,290 2,256,069
1,091,578 1,432,769
5,055 332,381
13,058 129,863
149,174 151,865
44,729 80,730
(218,588) (365,285)
30,869 30,869
53,045 115,516
3,646,223 9,815,777
60,098 1,636,073
430,695 3,844,946
278,870 479,912
372,124 537,022
372,649 512,520
602,362 681,816
882,479 990,688
270,594 420,068
135,469 500,814
28,457 88,620
1,639 3.084
3,435,436 9,695,563
210,787 120,214
946,269 2,078,886
(793,792) (1,853,871)
211,940 291,940
2,859 2,859
65,490 219,695
4,042 45,268
(69,369) (69,369)
6,927 21,769
374,366 737,177
585,153 857,391
5,101,787 6,472,685
$ 5,686,940 $ 7,330,076




CITY OF LOS ANGELES

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ 857,391

Amounts reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of

activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as

depreciation expense. Donated capital assets are reported as capital contributions in

governmental activities but are not financial resources and are not reported in governmental

funds. This is the amount by which donated capital assets and capital outlays exceeded

depreciation in the current period. 26,000

Amortization of gains (losses) on refunding of debt is reported as interest expense in
governmental activities, but is not reported for governmental funds. (13,638)

Change in unavailable revenues are reported as changes in deferred inflows of resources for
governmental funds, but were recognized as revenues for governmental activities. 387,492

Accrued interest expense on long-term debt is reported in the statement of activities, but does
not require the use of current financial resources. Amortization of bond premiums and discounts
are expensed as a component of interest expense on the statement of activities. This amount
represents the net accrued interest expense and the amortization of bond premiums and
discounts not reported in governmental funds.

Change in accrued interest expense $ 2,847
Net amortization of bond premiums and discounts (16,201)
Total net interest expense and amortization of discount/premium (13,355)

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g. bonds) provides current financial resources to the

governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal on long-term debt consumes the

current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however has any effect

on net position. 36,126

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds. (100,231)

Changes in net pension asset, net pension liability, net OPEB asset, net OPEB liability, deferred

outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions and OPEB do not

require the use of current financial resources, and therefore, are not reported in the

governmental funds. 1,502,281

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 2,682,066

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF LOS ANGELES

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

General Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Actual Variance with
Amounts Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts (Budgetary) Positive
Original Final Basis) (Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes $ 5,049,601 5235219 § 5,283,009 $ 47,790
Licenses, Permits, Fees and Fines 1,368,410 1,330,931 1,264,536 (66,395)
Intergovernmental 94,285 63,825 45,060 (18,765)
Interest 20,603 27,600 28,500 900
Other 11,488 11,488 11,730 242
TOTAL REVENUES 6,544,387 6,669,063 6,632,835 (36,228)
EXPENDITURES
Current
General Government 2,539,134 2,383,687 2,018,426 365,261
Protection of Persons and Property 2,669,388 2,785,054 2,696,011 89,043
Public Works 440,255 519,613 471,838 47,775
Health and Sanitation 344,662 361,811 330,617 31,194
Transportation 204,941 213,403 175,904 37,499
Cultural and Recreational Services 53,294 64,105 52,902 11,203
Community Development 187,437 217,250 180,205 37,045
Pension and Retirement Contributions 2,406 2,161 2,161 --
Capital Outlay 128,088 156,070 51,335 104,735
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 6,569,605 6,703,154 5,979,399 723,755
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES (25,218) (34,091) 653,436 687,527
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers from Other Funds 2,160,459 2,579,872 2,368,339 (211,533)
Payments of Loans to Other Funds - - (25,018) (25,018)
Loans from Other Funds - - 560 560
Transfers to Other Funds (2,202,249) (2,545,781) (2,529,043) 16,738
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (41,790) 34,091 (185,162) (219,253)
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING
USES (67,008) - 468,274 468,274
FUND BALANCE, JULY 1 67,008 67,008 - (67,008)
Appropriation of Fund Balance and Carryforward Appropriations -- (67,008) -- 67,008
Encumbrances Lapsed - - 26,343 26,343
Reversion to Reserve Fund - - (494,617) (494,617)
FUND BALANCE, JUNE 30 $ - -3 -9 -

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF LOS ANGELES

Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2022
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Airports Harbor Power Water
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash, Pooled and Other Investments
Unrestricted $ 1,423,350 $ 1,144,153 $ 1,574,470 $ 570,654
Restricted 483,262 11,488 602,311 227,937
Investments Held by Escrow and Fiscal Agents
Unrestricted 2,341 - - -
Restricted 1,974,742 - - -
Loans and Notes Receivable - - 74,425 -
Accounts Receivable
Accounts Receivable
(Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles of $391,355) 22,020 37,404 567,487 114,709
Accrued Unbilled Revenue 2,099 - - -
Investment Income Receivable 6,964 6,417 3,168 110
Intergovernmental Receivable 25,329 2,851 4,743 2,657
Leases Receivable 54,691 36,008 -- --
Restricted Passenger/Customer Facility Charges Receivable 21,133 - - -
Due from Other Funds -- -- 53,751 --
Inventories 1,568 2,820 242,125 37,939
Prepaid ltems and Other Assets 9,085 471 720,557 248,251
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 4,026,584 1,241,612 3,843,037 1,202,257
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Restricted Assets
Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents, and Other Investments -- 10,399 899,648 84,864
Investments Held by Escrow and Fiscal Agents -- 37,452 655,384 53,174
Total Restricted Assets -- 47,851 1,555,032 138,038
Long-term Investment
Investment in Joint Ventures -- 5,546 -- --
Capital Assets
Land 1,272,794 1,106,805 241,103 203,653
Construction in Progress 3,562,349 304,167 931,642 2,139,016
Buildings, Facilities and Equipment 14,441,597 5,072,464 22,299,174 11,431,336
Natural Gas Field -- -- 128,695 --
Nuclear Fuel - - 40,291 -
Right-to-use Lease Assets 78,538 2,219 20,642 10,404
Intangible Assets 111,306 25,360 250,929 -
Accumulated Depreciation/Amortization (4,502,318) (2,820,344) (9,824,828) (3,656,298)
Total Capital Assets, Net 14,964,266 3,690,671 14,087,648 10,128,111
Other Noncurrent Assets
Loans and Notes Receivable -- -- 1,361 --
Derivative Instruments - LT - - 100,746 -
Advances to Other Funds -- -- -- --
Regulatory Assets -- -- 1,002,634 217,019
Net Pension Asset -- 9,885 1,120,640 538,006
Net OPEB Asset 30,574 11,791 172,652 82,888
Leases Receivable, Net of Current Portion 187,331 272,849 25,335 3,470
Prepaid ltems and Other Assets 4,697 -~ 64,933 -~
Total Other Noncurrent Assets 222,602 294,525 2,488,301 841,383
TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS 15,186,868 4,038,593 18,130,981 11,107,532
TOTAL ASSETS 19,213,452 5,280,205 21,974,018 12,309,789
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Debt Refunding 41,885 9,343 11,347 3,191
Asset Retirement Obligation - - 29,219 -
Pensions 160,532 69,159 261,071 134,593
OPEB 28,524 11,959 141,825 72,377
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 230,941 90,461 443,462 210,161
Continued...
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CITY OF LOS ANGELES

Statement of Net Position - (Continued)
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2022
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Nonmajor
Convention
Sewer Center Total
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash, Pooled and Other Investments
Unrestricted $ 356,306 $ 17,720 $ 5,086,653
Restricted 128,022 -- 1,453,020
Investments Held by Escrow and Fiscal Agents
Unrestricted - - 2,341
Restricted - - 1,974,742
Loans and Notes Receivable - - 74,425
Accounts Receivable
Accounts Receivable
(Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles of $391,355) 155,583 3,351 900,554
Accrued Unbilled Revenue 48,826 - 50,925
Investment Income Receivable 423 - 17,082
Intergovernmental Receivable -- -- 35,580
Leases Receivable -- -- 90,699
Restricted Passenger/Customer Facility Charges Receivable - - 21,133
Due from Other Funds 34,907 - 88,658
Inventories 20,326 - 304,778
Prepaid ltems and Other Assets -- 357 978,721
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 744,393 21,428 11,079,311
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Restricted Assets
Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents, and Other Investments 101,658 -- 1,096,569
Investments Held by Escrow and Fiscal Agents 5,590 -- 751,600
Total Restricted Assets 107,248 -- 1,848,169
Long-term Investment
Investment in Joint Ventures -- -- 5,546
Capital Assets
Land 40,859 139,592 3,004,806
Construction in Progress 534,501 - 7,471,675
Buildings, Facilities and Equipment 8,859,181 597,239 62,700,991
Natural Gas Field -- -- 128,695
Nuclear Fuel - - 40,291
Right-to-use Lease Assets 18,170 -- 129,973
Intangible Assets - - 387,595
Accumulated Depreciation/Amortization (4,648,749) (353,621) (25,806,158)
Total Capital Assets, Net 4,803,962 383,210 48,057,868
Other Noncurrent Assets
Loans and Notes Receivable -- -- 1,361
Derivative Instruments - LT - - 100,746
Advances to Other Funds 10,532 - 10,532
Regulatory Assets -- -- 1,219,653
Net Pension Asset -- -- 1,668,531
Net OPEB Asset -- -- 297,905
Leases Receivable, Net of Current Portion - - 488,985
Prepaid ltems and Other Assets -~ -~ 69,630
Total Other Noncurrent Assets 10,532 -- 3,857,343
TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS 4,921,742 383,210 53,768,926
TOTAL ASSETS 5,666,135 404,638 64,848,237
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Debt Refunding 34,938 -- 100,704
Asset Retirement Obligation - - 29,219
Pensions - - 625,355
OPEB -- -- 254,685
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 34,938 -- 1,009,963
Continued...
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CITY OF LOS ANGELES

Statement of Net Position - (Continued)

Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2022
(amounts expressed in thousands)

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts, Contracts and Retainage Payable
Obligations Under Securities Lending Transactions
Accrued Salaries and Overtime Payable
Accrued Compensated Absences Payable
Due to Other Funds
Deposits and Advances
Accrued Interest Payable
Bonds and Notes Payable - Current Portion
Lease Liabilities
Other Current Liabilities

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Bonds and Notes Payable - Noncurrent Portion
(Net of Unamortized Premiums and Discounts of $3,933,788)
Net Pension Liability
Asset Retirement Obligation
Lease Liabilities, Net of Current Portion
Other Long-term Liabilities

TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Business Activities
Derivative Instruments
Debt Refunding
Pensions
OPEB
Leases

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for:
Debt Service
Passenger/Customer Facility Charges
Other Purposes
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Airports Harbor Power Water
$ 253,054 $ 46,417 $ 587,290 $ 184,671
27,512 15,996 36,925 11,220
14,087 7,193 62,027 29,307
6,587 10,282 109,400 55,890
- - - 53,751
- - - 242,521
65,292 11,735 237,859 109,933
297,281 40,210 269,485 168,244
7,568 - 4,631 2,335
42,524 59,402 -- 16,666
713,905 191,235 1,307,617 874,538
11,545,992 591,516 12,057,939 6,706,501
545,697 168,089 - -
- - 224,277 -
46,684 506 12,779 6,449
142,860 112,102 305,300 115,833
12,281,233 872,213 12,600,295 6,828,783
12,995,138 1,063,448 13,907,912 7,703,321
- - 187,190 -
- - 100,746 -
53,326 - 58,802 75,208
339,974 107,660 1,266,441 605,215
108,200 37,179 446,763 215,760
229,347 296,225 24,759 3,209
730,847 441,064 2,084,701 899,392
5,029,385 3,065,012 2,122,139 3,213,602
- 37,452 749,956 113,555
267,664 - - -
226,048 - 253,830 48,216
195,311 763,690 3,298,942 541,864
$ 5,718,408 $ 3,866,154 $ 6,424,867 $ 3,917,237
Continued..
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CITY OF LOS ANGELES

Statement of Net Position - (Continued)
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2022

(amounts expressed in thousands)

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts, Contracts and Retainage Payable
Obligations Under Securities Lending Transactions
Accrued Salaries and Overtime Payable
Accrued Compensated Absences Payable
Due to Other Funds
Deposits and Advances
Accrued Interest Payable
Bonds and Notes Payable - Current Portion
Lease Liabilities
Other Current Liabilities

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Bonds and Notes Payable - Noncurrent Portion
(Net of Unamortized Premiums and Discounts of $3,933,788)
Net Pension Liability
Asset Retirement Obligation
Lease Liabilities, Net of Current Portion
Other Long-term Liabilities

TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Business Activities
Derivative Instruments
Debt Refunding
Pensions
OPEB
Leases

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for:
Debt Service
Passenger/Customer Facility Charges
Other Purposes
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Nonmajor
Convention
Sewer Center Total

$ 40,777 $ 2,415 1,114,624
-- -- 91,653
-- 577 113,191
-- 301 182,460
19 -- 53,770
-- 2,700 245,221
11,276 -- 436,095
195,785 -- 971,005
-- -- 14,534
2,134 -- 120,726
249,991 5,993 3,343,279
2,685,956 -- 33,587,904
-- -- 713,786
- - 224277
16,732 -- 83,150
39,021 -- 715,116
2,741,709 -- 35,324,233
2,991,700 5,993 38,667,512
-- -- 187,190
-- -- 100,746
18,447 -- 205,783
-- -- 2,319,290
-- -- 807,902
-- -- 553,540
18,447 -- 4,174,451
2,061,389 383,209 15,874,736
19,219 -- 920,182
- - 267,664
71,046 -- 599,140
539,272 15,436 5,354,515
$ 2,690,926 $ 398,645 23,016,237




CITY OF LOS ANGELES

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position
Proprietary Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Airports Harbor Power Water

OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for Services $ 250,171 $ 485,842 $ 4,593,760 $ 1,606,678

Rents, Concessions and Royalties 1,140,158 86,837 -- --

Other Operating Revenues 17,609 55,163 -~ -~
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 1,407,938 627,842 4,593,760 1,606,678
OPERATING EXPENSES

Fuel for Generation - - 327,813 -

Purchased Power/Water - - 1,309,505 346,568

Maintenance and Repairs -- -- 409,175 411,609

Operating and Administrative 744,900 254,632 1,021,818 223,366

Depreciation and Amortization 628,246 147,272 724,461 218,599
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 1,373,146 401,904 3,792,772 1,200,142
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 34,792 225,938 800,988 406,536
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Investment Income (Loss) (78,736) (46,231) (118,115) (34,325)

Interest Expense (360,842) (18,962) (371,045) (206,965)

Interest Income from Leases 7,961 10,234 -- --

Other Income (Expenses), Net 188,115 (15,359) 119,597 26,201
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) (243,502) (70,318) (369,563) (215,089)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND

TRANSFERS (208,710) 155,620 431,425 191,447

Capital Contributions 45,638 11,906 100,865 41,137

Transfers Out -- -- (225,015) --
CHANGE IN NET POSITION (163,072) 167,526 307,275 232,584
NET POSITION, JULY 1, AS PREVIOUSLY REPORTED 5,874,994 3,690,683 6,117,592 3,684,653
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle, GASB 87
Implementation 6,486 7,945 -- --
NET POSITION, JULY 1 RESTATED 5,881,480 3,698,628 6,117,592 3,684,653
NET POSITION, JUNE 30 $ 5,718,408 $ 3,866,154 $ 6,424,867 $ 3,917,237

Continued...
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CITY OF LOS ANGELES

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position - (Continued)
Proprietary Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

(amounts expressed in thousands)

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services
Rents, Concessions and Royalties
Other Operating Revenues

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES
Fuel for Generation
Purchased Power/Water
Maintenance and Repairs
Operating and Administrative
Depreciation and Amortization

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment Income (Loss)
Interest Expense
Interest Income from Leases
Other Income (Expenses), Net

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS
Capital Contributions
Transfers Out

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION, JULY 1, AS PREVIOUSLY REPORTED

Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle, GASB 87 Implementation

NET POSITION, JULY 1 RESTATED

NET POSITION, JUNE 30

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Nonmajor
Convention

Sewer Center Total
$ 728,010 $ 2,592 $ 7,667,053
-- 16,149 1,243,144
11,656 14,865 99,293
739,666 33,606 9,009,490
-- -- 327,813
- - 1,656,073
- 1,497 822,281
369,274 29,470 2,643,460
177,633 12,370 1,908,581
546,907 43,337 7,358,208
192,759 (9,731) 1,651,282
(3,834) 17 (281,224)
(122,155) -- (1,079,969)
- - 18,195
102,405 -- 420,959
(23,584) 17 (922,039)
169,175 (9,714) 729,243
11,723 -- 211,269
- - (225,015)
180,898 (9,714) 715,497
2,510,028 408,359 22,286,309
-- -- 14,431
2,510,028 408,359 22,300,740
$ 2,690,926 $ 398,645 $ 23,016,237




CITY OF LOS ANGELES

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Airports Harbor Power Water
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Customers and Users $ 1,423,504 $ 626,878 $ 4,626,373 $ 1,563,392
Receipts for Interfund Services -- -- 760,946 630,743
Payments to Suppliers (282,644) (81,425) (2,351,603) (437,084)
Payments to Employees (429,348) (143,331) (865,306) (391,409)
Payments for Interfund Services (128,719) (45,531) (929,717) (803,511)
Cash Received from Nonoperating Revenues -~ -~ -~ -~
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 582,793 356,591 1,240,693 562,131
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers Out - - (225,015) -
Cash Received from Noncapital Grants 10,386 1,981 202,788 73,985
Payments for Grant Expenses - - (18,284) -
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 10,386 1,981 (40,511) 73,985
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets (1,402,536) (97,708) (1,231,704) (849,132)
Proceeds from Sales of Capital Assets - 228 - -
Receipts from Passenger/Customer Facility Charges 188,462 -- -- --
Proceeds from Sale of Bonds, Notes and Loans 2,588,291 - 1,298,327 341,177
Payments on Bonds, Notes and Loans - Interest (447,451) (30,413) (497,096) (264,695)
Payments on Bonds, Notes and Loans - Principal (354,772) (88,335) (187,683) (105,081)
Payments on Leases (15,103) 253 -- --
Interest Received on Leases 7,988 10,234 - -
Payments of Bonds and Notes Expenses (2,518) -- -- --
Capital Contributions/Grants Received 29,676 11,454 100,926 53,353
Federal Bond Subsidies -- -- 25,475 14,641
Proceeds from Insurance Recovery for Damage of Capital Assets -- 5,345 -- --
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 592,037 (188,942) (491,755) (809,737)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment (Loss) Income (79,458) (44,605) (106,179) (33,466)
Cash Collateral Receipts Under Securities Lending Transactions 11,733 8,722 - -
Purchase of Investment Securities (19,465) (7,229) (1,022) (330)
Proceeds from Notes Receivable -- -- 68,365 --
Receipts from Bond Reserve Fund -- 4,982 -- --
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) INVESTING
ACTIVITIES (87,190) (38,130) (38,836) (33,796)
Continued...
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CITY OF LOS ANGELES

Statement of Cash Flows - (Continued)
Proprietary Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022
(amounts expressed in thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Customers and Users
Receipts for Interfund Services
Payments to Suppliers
Payments to Employees
Payments for Interfund Services
Cash Received from Nonoperating Revenues
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers Out
Cash Received from Noncapital Grants
Payments for Grant Expenses
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets

Proceeds from Sales of Capital Assets

Receipts from Passenger/Customer Facility Charges

Proceeds from Sale of Bonds, Notes and Loans

Payments on Bonds, Notes and Loans - Interest

Payments on Bonds, Notes and Loans - Principal

Payments on Leases

Interest Received on Leases

Payments of Bonds and Notes Expenses

Capital Contributions/Grants Received

Federal Bond Subsidies

Proceeds from Insurance Recovery for Damage of Capital Assets
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment (Loss) Income
Cash Collateral Receipts Under Securities Lending Transactions
Purchase of Investment Securities
Proceeds from Notes Receivable
Receipts from Bond Reserve Fund
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
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Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Nonmajor
Convention
Sewer Center Total

771,930 $ 30,775 $ 9,042,852
-- -- 1,391,689
(55,724) (17,864) (3,226,344)
-- (9,032) (1,838,426)
(280,383) (2,836) (2,190,697)

46,670 -- 46,670

482,493 1,043 3,225,744
-- -- (225,015)
59,795 -- 348,935
-- -- (18,284)

59,795 -- 105,636
(237,218) (69) (3,818,367)
-- -- 228

-- -- 188,462

483,919 -- 4,711,714
(53,315) -- (1,292,970)
(556,250) -- (1,292,121)
-- -- (14,850)

-- -- 18,222
(4,222) -- (6,740)

15,261 -- 210,670

-- -- 40,116

-- -- 5,345
(351,825) (69) (1,250,291)
(4,003) 17 (267,694)

-- -- 20,455
-- -- (28,046)

-- -- 68,365

-- -- 4,982
(4,003) 17 (201,938)
Continued...



CITY OF LOS ANGELES

Statement of Cash Flows - (Continued)

Proprietary Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

(amounts expressed in thousands)

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JULY 1

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JUNE 30

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS COMPONENTS
Unrestricted Cash, Pooled and Other Investments
Restricted Cash, Pooled and Other Investments
Unrestricted Investments, Held by Escrow and Fiscal Agents
Restricted Investments Held by Escrow and Fiscal Agents

TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JUNE 30

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating Income (Loss)

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to
Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities:

Depreciation and Amortization

Depletion

Amortization of Nuclear Fuel

Bad Debts Provision

Other Nonoperating (Expenses) Revenues

Changes in Assets, Liabilities, and Deferred Outflows
and Inflows of Resources:
Accounts Receivable
Accrued Unbilled Revenue
Lease receivable
Prepaid Items and Other Assets
Due from Other Funds
Inventories
Other Assets
Accounts, Contracts and Retainage Payable
Accrued Salaries and Overtime Payable
Accrued Compensated Absences Payable
Overrecovered Costs-Pension
Due to Other Funds
Deposits and Advances
Net Pension and OPEB Assets, Liabilities and

Related Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources
Deferred Inflows Related to Leases
Other Liabilities
TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

NONCASH CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net Proceeds of Refunding Bonds Deposited with an Irrevocable
Trust Account

Defeased Debt and Costs Paid Through Escrow with Revenue
Bonds

Acquisition of Capital Assets Included in Accounts and Contracts
Payable

Changes in Contributions in Relation to Capital Assets

Write-Off (Loss) on Discontinued Construction Project

Amortization of Deferred Charges on Refunding

Sewage Disposal Contracts Capital Contributions

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Airports Harbor Power Water
$ 1,098,026 $ 131,500 $ 669,591 $ (207,417)
2,785,669 1,024,141 2,406,838 1,090,872
$ 3,883,695 $ 1,155,641 $ 3,076,429 $ 883,455
$ 1,423,350 $ 1,144,153 $ 1,574,470 $ 570,654
483,262 11,488 1,501,959 312,801
2,341 - - -
1,974,742 -- -- --
$ 3,883,695 $ 1,155,641 $ 3,076,429 $ 883,455
$ 34,792 § 225,938 $ 800,988 $ 406,536
628,246 147,272 724,461 218,599
- - 10,810 -
- - 10,810 -
272 852 112,606 18,949
336 - - -
(12,475) 5,107 (296,885) (48,312)
34,029 - - -
35,210 5,646 (25,335) (3,470)
(4,002) (55) 549,910 (3,907)
- - (33,620) -
- 51 (35,109) (3,024)
- - (59,199) 86,864
(32,631) 12,235 108,172 (1,626)
5,110 (373) 973 6,079
(927) - 10,801 -
- - 174,607 89,955
- - - 33,620
- - - 569
(61,677) (20,548) (818,308) (262,374)
(40,750) (12,568) 24,759 3,209
(2,740) (6,966) (7,429) 20,464
548,001 130,653 439,705 155,595
$ 582,793 $ 356,591 $ 1,240,693 $ 562,131
$ 435,936 $ - $ 438,600 $ 686,100
(435,936) - (438,500) (682,100)
102,548 4,817 92,500 60,105
(15,962) - - -
- 22,503 - -
Continued..
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CITY OF LOS ANGELES

Statement of Cash Flows - (Continued)

Proprietary Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022
(amounts expressed in thousands)

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JULY 1

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JUNE 30

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS COMPONENTS
Unrestricted Cash, Pooled and Other Investments
Restricted Cash, Pooled and Other Investments
Unrestricted Investments, Held by Escrow and Fiscal Agents
Restricted Investments Held by Escrow and Fiscal Agents

TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JUNE 30

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating Income (Loss)

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to
Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities:

Depreciation and Amortization

Depletion

Amortization of Nuclear Fuel

Bad Debts Provision

Other Nonoperating (Expenses) Revenues

Changes in Assets, Liabilities, and Deferred Outflows
and Inflows of Resources:
Accounts Receivable
Accrued Unbilled Revenue
Lease receivable
Prepaid Items and Other Assets
Due from Other Funds
Inventories
Other Assets
Accounts, Contracts and Retainage Payable
Accrued Salaries and Overtime Payable
Accrued Compensated Absences Payable
Overrecovered Costs-Pension
Due to Other Funds
Deposits and Advances
Net Pension and OPEB Assets, Liabilities and

Related Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources
Deferred Inflows Related to Leases
Other Liabilities
TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

NONCASH CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net Proceeds of Refunding Bonds Deposited with an Irrevocable
Trust Account

Defeased Debt and Costs Paid Through Escrow with Revenue
Bonds

Acquisition of Capital Assets Included in Accounts and Contracts
Payable

Changes in Contributions in Relation to Capital Assets

Write-Off (Loss) on Discontinued Construction Project

Amortization of Deferred Charges on Refunding

Sewage Disposal Contracts Capital Contributions

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Nonmajor
Convention
Sewer Center Total
$ 186,460 991 $ 1,879,151
399,526 16,729 7,723,775
$ 585,986 17,720 $ 9,602,926
$ 356,306 17,720 $ 5,086,653
229,680 -- 2,539,190
-- -- 2,341
-- -- 1,974,742
$ 585,986 17,720 $ 9,602,926
$ 192,759 (9,731) $ 1,651,282
177,633 12,370 1,908,581
-- -- 10,810
-- -- 10,810
(404) -- 132,275
46,670 -- 47,006
32,668 (2,831) (322,728)
-- -- 34,029
-- -- 12,051
-- (161) 541,785
-- -- (33,620)
724 -- (37,358)
-- -- 27,665
(14,984) 869 72,035
-- 59 11,848
-- 22 9,896
-- -- 264,562
47,427 -- 81,047
-- 446 1,015
-- -- (1,162,907)
-- -- (25,350)
-- -- 3,329
289,734 10,774 1,574,462
$ 482,493 1,043 $ 3,225,744
$ -- - $ 1,560,636
-- -- (1,556,536)
27,651 -- 287,621
-- -- (15,962)
468 -- 22,971
38,589 -- 38,589
1,646 -- 1,646



CITY OF LOS ANGELES

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2022
(amounts expressed in thousands)

ASSETS
Cash and Pooled Investments
Accounts Receivable
Special Assessments Receivable
Investment Income Receivable
Advance to Other Entities
Investments
Short-term Investments
U.S. and Other Government Obligations
Domestic Stocks and Bonds
International Stocks and Bonds
Real Estate
Alternative Investments
Securities Lending Collateral
Fixed Income and Other Investments
Prepaid Expense
Prepaid Health Subsidy
Capital Assets (Net of Accumulated Depreciation/Amortization of $15,671)

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
Benefits in Process of Payment
Due to Brokers
Fiduciary Liabilities
Obligations Under Securities Lending Transactions
Due to Other Entities
Mortgage Loan Payable - Current Portion
Mortgage Loan Payable - Noncurrent Portion
Deposits and Advances

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Leases

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

NET POSITION
Restricted for:
Pension Plans
Disability Plan
Death Benefit Plan
Postemployment Healthcare Plans
Individuals, Organizations and Other Governments

TOTAL NET POSITION

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Pension and
Other
Postemployment
Benefits
Trust Funds

Custodial
Funds

$ 96,448 $
83,674

218,460
798,915

2,014,618
7,349,902
23,041,780
14,231,796
4,932,308
13,141,914
2,778,778
2,274,681
21

12,550
76,393

71,052,238

230,219
46,180
988,850

2,778,778
554
211,946
38

4,256,565

571

571

57,878,793
44,850
40,525

8,830,934

$ 66,795,102 $




CITY OF LOS ANGELES

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022
(amounts expressed in thousands)

ADDITIONS
Contributions
Employer
Plan Member
Total Contributions

Self-Funded Insurance Premium

Health Insurance Premium Reserve

Tax Collections from Community Facilities Districts
Collections for Clean Fuel Rewards Program

Investment Income
Net Depreciation in Fair Value of Investments
Interest Income
Income from Alternative Investments
Dividend Income
Securities Lending Income
Other Investment Income
Income from Real Estate Investments
Investment Income
Investment Expense
Securities Lending Expense

Net Investment Loss

Other Income

TOTAL ADDITIONS

DEDUCTIONS

Benefits Payments

Refunds of Member Contributions

Administrative Expenses

Payments for Clean Fuel Rewards Program

Debt Service Payments for Community Facilities Districts
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

Pension Plans

Disability Plan

Death Benefit Plan

Postemployment Healthcare Plans

Individuals, Organizations and Other Governments
TOTAL CHANGE IN NET POSITION
NET POSITION, JULY 1 RESTATED

NET POSITION, JUNE 30

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Pension and
Other
Postemployment
Benefits
Trust Funds

Custodial
Funds

$ 1,881,287 $

527,128

2,408,415

13,280
1,180

(6,279,069)
427,674
56,725
734,151
14,859
71,326
120,582

(4,853,752)
(344,757)
(3,726)

(5,202,235)

444

(2,778,916)

3,566,005
28,227
65,224

489,034
7,962

3,659,456

496,996

(5,674,650)
(6,364)
(213)
(757,145)

(151,366)

(6,438,372)
73,233,474

(151,366)
169,331

$ 66,795,102 $

17,965




NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Notes) include disclosures considered necessary for a better understanding of the accompanying
basic financial statements. An index to the Notes follows:
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Annual Comprehensive Financial Report

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A. General

The City of Los Angeles (City) was incorporated in 1850 under the provisions of a city charter. The
current Charter was approved by the electorate on June 8, 1999 and became operative on July 1, 2000.

The City operates under a mayor-council form of government. As Executive Officer, the Mayor supervises
the administrative process of the City and works with the Council in matters relating to legislation, budget,
and finance. As governing body of the City, the 15-member full-time Council enacts ordinances, levies
taxes, approves utility rates, authorizes contracts and public improvements, adopts zoning and other land
use controls, and provides the necessary resources for the budgetary departments and offices of the City.
Council action is subject to the approval or veto of the Mayor, and Council may override a mayoral veto
by a two-thirds vote. The Charter provides for an independently elected City Attorney and independently
elected City Controller.

Public services provided by the City include: police; fire and emergency medical services; residential
refuse collection and disposal, wastewater collection and treatment, street maintenance, and other public
works functions; enforcement of ordinances and statutes relating to building safety; public libraries;
recreation and parks; community and economic development; housing and aging services; land use
planning; airports; harbor; power and water services; sewer, and the convention center.

B. Reporting Entity

In evaluating how to define the City for financial reporting purposes, management has considered all
potential component units. The primary criteria for including a potential component unit within the
reporting entity are the governing body’s financial accountability and a financial benefit or burden
relationship. A primary government is financially accountable and shares a financial benefit or burden
relationship if it appoints a voting majority of an organization’s governing body and is able to impose its
will on the organization, or if there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits
to, or impose specific financial burdens, on the primary government. A primary government may also be
financially accountable if an organization is fiscally dependent on the primary government regardless of
whether the organization has a separately elected governing board, a governing board appointed by a
higher level of government, or a jointly appointed board, and there is a potential for the organization to
provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the primary government.

1. Blended Component Unit

Although the following is legally separate from the City, it has been “blended” as though it is part of the
City because there is a financial benefit or burden relationship between the City and the component
unit; management of the City has operational responsibilities for the component unit; and the
component unit provides services entirely to the City.

Municipal Improvement Corporation of Los Angeles

The Municipal Improvement Corporation of Los Angeles (MICLA) is a non-profit corporation formed in
1984 for the sole purpose of providing financial assistance to the City for the acquisition of property
and equipment, and the construction of buildings and other improvements, for the benefit of the public,
through the issuance of lease revenue bonds and commercial paper notes. MICLA’s Board of
Directors (Board) consists of five members. Appointments to fill vacancies are made by the Board,
subject to City Council approval. Board members do not receive compensation. The City indemnifies
Board members for any liabilities occurring in connection with the performance of their duties. The City
elects to report MICLA as major special revenue and debt service funds.

2. Investment in Joint Ventures
The following entities are joint ventures of the Department of Harbor:

Intermodal Container Transfer Facility Joint Powers Authority (ICTF)
Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority (ACTA)
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

3. Excluded Organizations

Jointly Governed Organizations

The Los Angeles Memorial Coliseum Commission (Commission) was created by a joint powers
agreement between the City, the County of Los Angeles (County), and the California Museum of
Science and Industry. Its purpose is to provide for the operation and maintenance of the Coliseum.
The Commission is not a City function and operates independent of City oversight and financial
accountability. City appointees comprise 33% of the Commission.

The Los Angeles Homeless Services Authority (LAHSA) was created by a joint exercise of powers
agreement with the County to provide homeless services to residents. It is governed by a ten-member
commission. Five members are appointed by the City and five by the County Board of Supervisors.
LAHSA operates independently of City oversight and financial accountability.

Related Organization

The Housing Authority of the City of Los Angeles (HACLA) is an organization for which the City has
appointed the voting majority of the members of the governing body but for which the City is not
financially accountable.

The City retains and exercises its authority over the entity only as provided by the Municipal Code and
Federal laws. The entity is fiscally independent from the City. The City is unable to impose its will on
the daily operations of the entity. The City's accountability to this entity is limited to removal of a
commissioner by the Mayor or the entire board by the City Council for cause and under due process.

4. Separately Audited Financial Statements

City Departments and Component Unit

Separately audited financial statements may be obtained through the Office of the City Controller, 200
North Main Street, Room 300, Los Angeles, California 90012, for the following:

Department of Airports (Airports)

Department of Harbor (Harbor)

Department of Water and Power (DWP)

Sewer Construction and Maintenance Fund (Sewer)

Los Angeles City Employees' Retirement System (LACERS)

Fire and Police Pension System (Pensions)

Water and Power Employees' Retirement, Disability and Death Benefit Insurance Plans (DWP Plans)
Municipal Improvement Corporation of Los Angeles (MICLA)

Jointly Governed and Related Organizations

Coliseum Commission: 500 West Temple Street, Los Angeles, CA 90012
LAHSA: 707 Wilshire Blvd., 10t Floor, Los Angeles, CA 90017
HACLA: 2600 Wilshire Blvd., Los Angeles, CA 90057
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

C. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its
component units. As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the
government-wide financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the City’s
business-type activities and certain other governmental functions. Elimination of these charges would
distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are
reported separately from business-type activities, which rely, to a significant extent, on fees and charges
for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
program are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or program. Included in the direct expenses are indirect costs, such as fringe benefits,
administrative overhead, and liability claims, which are allocated to the specific function or program.
Charges for workers’ compensation, telephone and information technology services, postage, and fleet
services are not allocated and are included as part of the general government functional activity. Amounts
reported as program revenues include charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or
privileges provided; and operating and capital grants and contributions, including special assessments,
that are restricted to meeting operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment.
Revenues that do not meet the criteria to be reported as program revenues are reported as general
revenues. All taxes, even those levied for a specific purpose, are reported as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major
individual governmental funds and individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the
fund financial statements.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use
restricted resources first and then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the Proprietary Funds and Fiduciary Funds financial
statements. Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as
they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For
this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of
the current fiscal year. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual
accounting. However, debt service expenditures are recorded only when payment is due, while
expenditures related to compensated absences, claims and judgments, and landfill closure and
postclosure care costs are recognized to the extent that they are normally expected to be liquidated with
expendable available resources and are due and payable at year-end.

Revenues susceptible to accrual are property taxes, business taxes, sales taxes, utility users’ taxes,
transient occupancy tax, charges for services, special assessments, franchise income, licenses and
permits, investment income, and Federal and State grants and subventions. On an accrual basis,
revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenues
from Federal and State grants and subventions are recognized when applicable eligibility requirements,
including time requirements, are met and the resources are available.
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Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with a proprietary fund’s
principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the City’s enterprise funds are charges
to customers for sales and services while operating expenses include cost of sales and services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation/amortization on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all financial
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in other funds.

The MICLA Special Revenue and Debt Service Funds account for the activity of the City’s public
financing entity component unit, which finances the acquisition of real property and equipment, the
construction of buildings, and other improvements for the benefit of the public. The assets acquired or
constructed by MICLA are leased to the City under long-term lease agreements and become property
of the City at the termination of the lease. MICLA derives its operating revenues primarily from rental
income (interest portion) paid by the City. The effects of the lease arrangements have been eliminated
from the basic financial statements.

The City reports the following major enterprise funds:

The Airports Fund accounts for the operation, maintenance and development of City airports: Los
Angeles International Airport and Van Nuys Airport.

The Harbor Fund accounts for the operations of the Harbor formed for purposes of maritime commerce,
navigation, fisheries and water-dependent activities for the benefit of the State of California.

The Power and Water Funds account for the operations of DWP in supplying the City and its
inhabitants with water and electric power by constructing, operating, and maintaining facilities located
throughout the City, and Inyo and Mono Counties.

The Sewer Fund accounts for the construction, operations, and maintenance of the City’s wastewater
collection and treatment system.

The City reports the Convention Center Fund as a nonmajor enterprise fund. The Convention Center
Fund accounts for the operation of the Los Angeles Convention Center and Exhibition Hall and other
related facilities.

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

The Pension and Other Postemployment Benefits Trust Funds account for the activities of the City’s
three single-employer defined benefit pension plans, namely: Fire and Police Pension Plan; Los
Angeles City Employees’ Retirement Plan; and Water and Power Employees’ Retirement and Disability
Benefit Plans; and defined benefit postemployment plans provided through the defined benefit pension
plans, namely: Fire and Police Health Subsidy Plan, Los Angeles City Employees’ Postemployment
Healthcare Plan, and Water and Power Employees’ Retirees Health and Death Benefit Plans,
respectively.

The Custodial Funds account for activities carried out exclusively for the benefit of that outside of the
City but not administered through other fiduciary trusts or equivalent arrangements such as Clean Fuel
Rewards Program, assessments for payments of certain conduit debt and monies seized by the law
enforcement pending judgment.
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E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position

1.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, all governmental and proprietary fund cash and pooled
investments with the City Treasurer, cash deposits and other short-term investments that are both
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and have maturities of three months or less at the time
of purchase, are considered to be cash and cash equivalents.

Receivables

The City’s receivables are comprised mainly of notes, loans, lease, accounts, and taxes. Accounts
receivable and taxes receivable are reported net of an allowance for uncollectible amounts.

Loans Receivable

The City uses funds generated from the former Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA), State and
Federal funding sources to offer financial assistance and below-market interest rates to qualified
developers, individuals and families primarily for housing development, rehabilitation, economic
development, and voter approved debt. Repayment terms on these loans can be classified in the
following categories: 1) Deferred loans which are due and payable only upon sale or transfer of title to
the property; 2) Amortizing loans which have a set monthly payment, which may be interest bearing or
principal only; 3) Service payback loans which by their terms result in no money being paid to the City;
4) Forgivable loans which may convert to grants depending on the terms of the loan agreements; 5)
Residual receipts loans which require repayments only when the properties have positive cash flows
pursuant to a formula set forth in the loan agreement; 6) Renewal deferred loans which have no
scheduled debt service other than renewable maturity dates and may be routinely extended; 7) Term
loans which are essentially balloon payment loans; and 8) Equity share loans which have a 30-year
term with the original principal amount plus a percentage share of the home appreciation paid upon
sale, transfer or other repayment event.

In the financial statements, loans receivable are reported net of the allowance for uncollectibles. In
estimating the allowance, the following were considered: a) composition of the loan portfolio; b) past
write-off experience, c) past market valuation; and d) average year-end allowance balance as a
percentage of the total portfolio. The allowance estimate is continually evaluated and adjusted to
reflect what management believes to be the net realizable value of the total loan portfolio. The net
loans receivable balance of $2.2 billion includes net interest receivable of $608.2 million at June 30,
2022.

Inventories

Inventories for materials and supplies, valued on an average cost basis for the governmental activities
and governmental funds, consist of expendable supplies held for consumption and are recorded as
expenditures when purchased in the fund financial statements, but are recorded as expenses when
consumed in the government-wide statement of activities.

For the business-type activities and proprietary funds, inventories for materials and supplies are stated
at the lower of average cost or fair value except for Airports, which uses cost on a first-in, first-out
basis. Fuel is recorded at the lower of cost or fair value on an average cost basis.

Restricted Assets

For governmental activities and governmental funds, assets of $10.6 million are classified as restricted
because their use is limited to activities related to low and moderate income housing projects, public
works projects, and systematic code enforcement.

Business-type activities’ and proprietary funds’ restricted assets of $5.3 billion include amounts
restricted for accumulated resources for debt service payments, nuclear decommissioning funds,
natural gas fund, hazardous waste treatment storage and disposal fund, bond security funds,
construction funds, restricted passenger/customer facility charges, customer security deposits, China
Shipping and Community Mitigation Fund, Narcotics/Customs Enforcement Forfeiture Fund, Clean
Truck Program and Fee Fund, Batiquitos Environmental Fund and Harbor Restoration Fund.
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5. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, intangible assets, and infrastructure assets
(e.g. streets and bridges) are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities
columns in the government-wide statement of net position and in the proprietary funds statement of
net position. Generally, assets with an individual cost of at least $5,000 and an estimated useful life of
more than one year are capitalized. Purchased or constructed capital assets and intangible assets are
valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available. Assets
acquired by donation are recorded at estimated acquisition value on the date received.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend assets' lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are
capitalized as projects are constructed.

Depreciation, which includes amortization of assets under leases, is computed using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful or service lives of the related assets, except as noted below. Lease
assets are amortized over the lease term or the life of the asset, whichever is less. See Note 4M for
details regarding the City’s lease assets.

Power’s nuclear fuel is amortized and charged to fuel for generation on the basis of actual thermal
energy produced relative to total thermal energy expected to be produced over the life of the fuel.

Power uses the successful efforts method of accounting for its investment in gas producing properties.
Costs to acquire the mineral interest in gas producing properties, to drill and equip exploratory wells
that find proven reserves, and to drill and equip development wells are capitalized. Costs to drill
exploratory wells that do not find proven reserves are expensed. Capitalized costs of gas producing
properties are depleted by the unit-of-production method based on the estimated future production of
the proven wells. Depletion expense related to the gas field is recorded as a component of fuel for
generation expense. During fiscal year 2022, Power recorded $10.8 million of depletion expense.

The estimated useful lives of the City's capital assets are as follows:

Governmental  Business-type

Category Activities Activities

Infrastructure 10 - 138 years -
Buildings and facilities 20 - 40 years 10 - 75 years
Equipment and vehicles 3 - 20 years 3 - 20 years
Wastewater collection system -- 80 years
Landplane ports - 10 - 35 years
Power distribution, hydraulic and steam

production, transmission plants - 4 - 75 years
Treatment and pumping plants - 5 - 50 years
Wharves and sheds -- 15 - 30 years
Intangible assets 5-22 years 20 years

The City’s collection of artwork, certain scientific equipment, and zoo animals are not capitalized or
depreciated. These capital assets are maintained for public exhibition, education, or research, and are
being preserved for future generations. The proceeds from sales of any pieces of the collection are
used to purchase other items for the collection.
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The City’s infrastructure assets and the methods the City uses to report them are as follows:

Infrastructure Reporting Method

Bridges Modified

Stormwater system Depreciation
Streets Depreciation
Traffic signals Depreciation
Automated traffic surveillance and control Depreciation
Bikepaths Depreciation
Fiber optic telecommunication system Depreciation
Street lighting system Depreciation
Street pavement markings Depreciation
Traffic signs Depreciation

The modified approach is used in reporting the City’s bridges infrastructure system. A comprehensive
bridge database system, the Bridges and Tunnels System, enables the City to track the entire bridge
inventory, the structural condition of various bridge elements, and bridge sufficiency ratings. Condition
assessments of these structures are completed in a three-year cycle. The latest assessment report
was as of December 31, 2022. A system of letter grades identifies the condition of each structure.
Letter grades “A” through “D” represent the condition of the structure as Very Good, Good to Fair, Fair
to Poor, and Very Poor. “F” rating symbolizes a failed condition where replacement of the structure is
necessary. These letter grades are based on sufficiency ratings, or the overall condition of the
structure based on the last inspection. It is the City’s policy that at least 70% of the bridges are rated
“B” or better and that no bridge shall be rated worse than “D”.

The City performs regular inspection and maintenance of the various structural elements for any
defects. Funds for annual estimated inspection, maintenance and repair costs are provided in the
City’s budget. Bridges are excluded in the determination of depreciation provisions for capital assets,
while preservation and maintenance costs are charged to expense. Additional information on the
condition ratings of City bridges, sufficiency ratings, estimated and actual maintenance, and
preservation costs are found in the Required Supplementary Information.

6. Compensated Absences

Accrued Vacation and Sick Leave

Eligible civilian employees accumulate vacation leave up to a maximum of 600 hours, depending on
the length of service. Fire sworn employees accumulate vacation leave up to 900 hours, while Police
sworn employees have a maximum of 600 hours, depending on the length of service and duty
assignment. All employees are paid their accumulated leave upon termination or retirement.

All vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary funds
financial statements. For the governmental funds, earned vacation is recorded as expenditures to the
extent that they are normally expected to be liquidated with expendable available resources and are
due and payable at year-end. For governmental activities, earned vacation is generally liquidated by
the General Fund.

City employees (except those of the DWP) are entitled to 96 hours of sick leave at full pay and 40
hours at 75% of full pay for each calendar year of employment. Police sworn employees are entitled
also to 40 hours at 50% of full pay. Fire sworn employees are entitled up to 60 hours at 50% of full pay
depending on the duty assignment. Civilian employees may accumulate sick leave up to 800 hours at
full pay and 800 hours at 75% of full pay. Fire Department sworn employees under Memoranda of
Understanding (MOU) 22 and 23 may accumulate up to 1,632 hours at full pay and 1,080 hours at
75% of full pay depending on the duty assignment.

For eligible civilian employees, the City pays 50% of the excess over the maximum accumulated 800
hours at full pay in the subsequent calendar year. Upon retirement, the City pays 50% of the
accumulated sick time at full pay. There is no provision for the payment of the accumulated sick time
at 75% of full pay. For Fire sworn employees, the City pays 50% of the excess over the maximum
accumulated 800 hours at full pay in the subsequent calendar year. For Police sworn employees, the
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City pays 100% of the accumulated sick time at full pay in the subsequent calendar year. For both Fire
and Police sworn employees, the City pays 100% of the accumulated sick time at full pay upon
retirement.

DWP employees accumulate 40 hours of sick leave per year to a maximum of 80 hours. Any excess
over the maximum is paid to the employee at 100% of their current salary rate. The employee goes on
disability after taking ten consecutive days of sick leave.

Vacation and sick leave are accrued as determined by the agreement between the City and the
respective employees’ collective bargaining group. For governmental funds, compensated absence
obligations are recorded in the appropriate governmental funds when due. The portion not currently
due is recorded in the government-wide financial statements. For proprietary funds, compensated
absences are expensed when earned by employees. At year-end, the accrued but unpaid
compensated absence obligations are recorded as current and noncurrent liabilities in the appropriate
proprietary funds.

Accumulated Compensated Time-Off

Accumulated compensated time-off is reported in the government-wide financial statements. For
governmental funds, expenditures are recognized to the extent that they are normally expected to be
liquidated with expendable available resources and are due and payable at year-end. Also, for
governmental activities, accumulated compensated time-off is generally liquidated by the General
Fund.

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities

Regulatory assets and liabilities were created by Power and Water by deferring certain expenses and
revenues that are recoverable or payable by future rate charges in accordance with current rate
ordinances, so as to evenly match the recognition of revenue and expenses with the electric and
water rates charged to retail customers.

Other Assets

Other assets of Power totaling $5.7 million as of June 30, 2022 represent future receivables from
customers related to costs incurred for renewable energy projects and the investments made in power
reliability. The 2012 and 2016 Electric Rate Ordinances allowed these costs to be recovered through
current rates. The costs are amortized over a ten-year period and are expected to be fully recovered
by the end of calendar year 2022.

Risk Management

The City is self-administered and self-funded for workers’ compensation, most property damage, and
the majority of tort liability exposures. Commercial insurance is used where it is legally required,
contractually required, or judged to be the most effective way to finance risk. Indemnity and insurance
protection is also required from all City contractors, vendors, lessees and permit holders. Insurance
coverage has exceeded claims settlements in each of the past three years.

Claims and judgments are recorded when it is probable that an asset has been impaired or a liability
has been incurred and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated. The recorded estimated
liability for claims and judgments includes a provision for incurred but not reported (IBNR) liabilities for
workers’ compensation, tort cases and liabilities for allocated expenses. For the governmental funds,
only that portion of the liability is recognized that is normally expected to be liquidated with expendable
available resources and is due and payable at year-end. For governmental activities, liability for claims
and judgments is generally liquidated by the General Fund.

Long-term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position.
Bond premiums and discounts are amortized over the life of the bonds. Bonds payable are reported
net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Gains or losses from refunding of debt are reported
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as deferred inflows or outflows of resources and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded
debt or refunding debt. Amortization of these balances is recorded as a component of interest
expense.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as
well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of the debt issued is reported
as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing
sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs,
whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service
expenditures. More detailed information on the City’s long-term obligations can be found in Note 4l of
the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.

Leases

Leases are defined by the general government as the right to use an underlying asset. As a lessee,
the City recognizes a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use (RTU) lease asset at the beginning
of a lease unless the lease is considered a short-term lease or transfers ownership of the underlying
asset. RTU lease assets are measured based on the net present value of the future lease payments
at inception, using the City’s incremental borrowing rate, plus lease payments made at or before the
commencement of the lease term, less any lease incentives received from the lessor at or before the
commencement of the lease, plus initial direct costs that are ancillary to place the asset into service.
Remeasurement of a lease liability occurs when there is a change in the lease term and/or other
changes that are likely to impact the lease liability significantly.

The City calculates the amortization of the discount on the lease liability and reports that amount as
outflows of resources. Incremental borrowing rates (IBR) are used for leases that do not have implicit
interest rates. IBRs are estimated rates the City would be charged for borrowing the lease payment
amounts during the lease term. Payments are allocated first to accrued interest liability and then to the
lease liability. Variable lease payments based on the usage of the underlying assets are not included
in the lease liability calculations but are recognized as outflows of resources in the period in which the
obligation was incurred.

As a lessor, the City recognizes a lease receivable. The lease receivable is measured using the net
present value of future lease payments to be received for the lease term and the deferred inflow of
resources at the beginning of the lease term. Periodic amortization of the discount on the receivable is
reported as interest revenue for that period. Deferred inflows of resources are recognized as inflows
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

This recognition does not apply to short-term leases, contracts that transfer ownership, leases of
assets that are investments, or certain regulated leases. Any initial direct costs are reported as an
outflow of resources for that period. Re-measurement of lease receivables occurs when there are
modifications, including but not limited to changes in the contract price, lease term, and adding or
removing an underlying asset to the lease agreements. In the case of a partial or full lease
termination, the carrying value of the lease receivable and the related deferred inflow of resources will
be reduced and will include a gain or loss for the difference.

City reports the major governmental and enterprise funds, including MICLA Special Revenue and
Debt Service Funds, Airports Fund, Harbor Fund, Power and Water Funds, and Sewer Fund, under
one primary government reporting legal entity. The lease transactions among City departments,
Airports, Harbor, DWP, Sewer, and MICLA are excluded from GASB Statement No. 87 because the
control is not conveyed to another legal entity; therefore, the lease agreements should not be reported
as leases in the City's basic financial statements.

Property Taxes

Secured property taxes are levied on or before the first business day of September of each year. They
become a lien on real property on January 1 preceding the fiscal year for which taxes are levied.
These tax payments can be made in two equal installments; the first is due November 1 and
delinquent with penalties after December 10; the second is due February 1 and delinquent with
penalties after April 10.
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Secured property taxes that are delinquent and unpaid as of June 30 are declared to be tax defaulted
and are subject to redemption penalties, costs, and interest when paid. If the delinquent taxes are not
paid at the end of five years, the property can be sold at public auction. The proceeds are used to pay
the delinquent amounts due, and any excess is remitted, if claimed, to the taxpayer. Additional tax
liens are created when there is a change in ownership of property or upon completion of new
construction. Tax bills for these new tax liens are issued throughout the fiscal year and contain various
payments and delinquent dates but are generally due within one year. Unsecured personal property
taxes are not a lien against real property. These taxes are due on January 1 and become delinquent,
if unpaid, on August 31. The County assesses, bills, and collects property taxes for all jurisdictions
within its borders and remits the applicable portion less an administrative fee to the City throughout
the year. Payments are normally remitted on the 20t day of the month.

Interfund Transactions

Interfund transactions are reflected as loans, services provided, reimbursements, or transfers. Loans
are reported as receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination in the
government-wide financial statements. Services provided are treated as revenues and
expenditures/expenses. Reimbursements are when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate
benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are
treated as transfers. Transfers between governmental or proprietary funds are netted as part of the
reconciliation to the government-wide presentation. More detailed information on the City’s interfund
transactions can be found in Note 4G of the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.

Fund Equity

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report fund balances based on the extent to
which the City is bound to observe constraints on the use of the governmental funds’ resources. Fund
balances are classified as follows:

e Nonspendable - includes amounts that are either 1) not in spendable form, or 2) legally or
contractually required to be maintained intact. Inventories, prepaid items, and certain advances to
other funds are classified as nonspendable fund balances.

e Restricted - includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes due to constraints
imposed by external resource providers or by enabling legislation. Restrictions may be changed or
lifted only with the consent of resource providers.

o Committed - includes amounts that can be used for specific purposes pursuant to an ordinance
passed by the Council and approved by the Mayor. Commitments may be changed or lifted only by
the City taking the same formal action that imposed the constraint originally.

e Assigned - includes amounts that are not classified as nonspendable, restricted or committed, but
are intended to be used by the City for specific purposes. Intent is expressed by action of the
Council to assign amounts to be used for specific purposes. The Council may authorize executive
officers to assign fund balances for specific purposes through Council files.

e Unassigned - includes amounts that are not assigned to other funds and do not meet the criteria
for being classified as restricted, committed, or assigned in the General Fund, which is the only
fund that reports a positive unassigned fund balance amount. Fund balances that can be utilized
for economic stabilization, emergencies and contingencies that do not qualify as restricted or
committed are reported as unassigned. In other governmental funds, the unassigned classification
is used only if expenditures incurred for specific purposes exceed the amounts restricted,
committed, or assigned to those purposes.

In circumstances when an expenditure is made for a purpose for which amounts are available in
multiple fund balance categories, fund balance is depleted in the order of restricted, committed,
assigned and unassigned.
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Fund balances for all the major and nonmajor governmental funds as of June 30, 2022, were
distributed as follows (in thousands):

MICLA
Nonmajor
Special Debt Governmental
General Revenue Service Funds Total
NONSPENDABLE
Advances to Other Funds $ 26,859 $ -9 -3 - $ 26,859
Inventories 39,228 - - 13,037 52,265
Prepaid ltems and Other Assets 408 - - 8,864 9,272
66,495 -- -- 21,901 88,396
RESTRICTED
Affordable Housing, Community Development and
Services - - - 2,054,884 2,054,884
Debt Service - - 127,427 147,649 275,076
Fee Supported Programs -- -- -- 5,294 5,294
Fire and Crime Prevention and Emergency Services - - - 29,110 29,110
Fire and Police Facilities -- -- -- 6,785 6,785
Governmental Functions and Services - - - 16,536 16,536
Library and Cultural Activities -- -- -- 103,743 103,743
Other Capital Projects and Improvements -- 18,015 -- 3,552 21,567
Recreation and Parks -- -- -- 767,361 767,361
Stormwater and Sanitation Projects and Services -- -- -- 184,779 184,779
Street Projects and Maintenance -- -- -- 25,769 25,769
Transit Projects and Services -- -- -- 598,981 598,981
-- 18,015 127,427 3,944,443 4,089,885
COMMITTED
Affordable Housing, Community Development and
Services 80,368 - - 432,987 513,355
Fee Supported Programs - - - 780,467 780,467
Fire and Crime Prevention and Emergency Services 4,326 -- -- 11,604 15,930
Street Projects and Maintenance -- -- -- 190,188 190,188
Governmental Functions and Services 384 - - 94,981 95,365
Library and Cultural Activities -- -- -- 44,432 44,432
Other Capital Projects and Improvements - - - 4,451 4,451
Recreation and Parks -- -- -- 41,676 41,676
Stormwater and Sanitation Projects and Services -- -- -- 150,813 150,813
Transit Projects and Services -- -- -- 59,005 59,005
85,078 -- -- 1,810,604 1,895,682
ASSIGNED
Affordable Housing, Community Development and
Services 1,395 - - 2,814 4,209
Fire and Crime Prevention and Emergency Services 7,604 -- -- -- 7,604
Governmental Functions and Services 534,782 -- -- -- 534,782
Library and Cultural Activities 5,337 -- -- -- 5,337
Other Capital Projects and Improvements 30,273 -- -- -- 30,273
Community and Economic Development 26,471 -- -- -- 26,471
Health and Sanitation 12,819 -- -- -- 12,819
Public Safety 54,317 - - - 54,317
Public Works and Transportation 51,280 - - - 51,280
724,278 -- -- 2,814 727,092
UNASSIGNED
Reserve, Emergency and Contingency 507,222 -- -- -- 507,222
Economic Stabilization 114,621 -- -- -- 114,621
Unassigned -- -- -- (92,822) (92,822)
621,843 -- -- (92,822) 529,021

$1497694 $§ 18,015 $ 127,427 $ 5,686,940 $ 7,330,076
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Reserve Fund

The Reserve Fund is where unrestricted cash is set aside outside the budget for unforeseen
expenditures and emergencies. The Charter and Administrative Code provide for a Reserve Fund
Policy which establishes an Emergency Reserve Account and a Contingency Reserve Account.

Funds for urgent economic necessity based on a significant economic downturn, an earthquake or
other natural disaster after the budget is completed are provided in the Emergency Reserve Account.
To utilize funds from this account, a finding by the Mayor, with confirmation by the Council is required,
as well as a determination that no other viable sources of funds are available.

The Contingency Reserve Account provides additional funding in the event that there are
unanticipated expenses or revenue shortfalls impacting programs approved in the current year
budget. Funds must be appropriated by a vote of at least a majority of the Council with mayoral
concurrence, or by a super-majority of the Council in the event of a mayoral veto.

The Reserve Fund Policy establishes a minimum level for the Reserve Fund of 5% of the budgeted
General Fund receipts, with a minimum of 2.75% in the Emergency Account, and any additional funds
allocated to the Contingency Reserve Account. As of June 30, 2022, the City's Reserve, Emergency
and Contingency fund balance was $507.2 million.

Budget Stabilization Fund

The purpose of the Budget Stabilization Fund (BSF) is to set aside savings during periods of robust
economic growth that can then be drawn upon to stabilize revenues during economic downturns. This
Fund is comprised of excess revenue from seven economy-sensitive General Fund taxes: Property
Tax, Utilities Users’ Tax, Business Tax, Sales Tax, Transient Occupancy Tax, Documentary Tax, and
Parking Users’ Tax.

Pursuant to the Los Angeles Administrative Code Section 5.120.4, when budgeted growth in the
cumulative receipts from the seven General Fund taxes exceeds the Average Annual Ongoing Growth
Threshold (the average ongoing annual growth over the prior 20 years), the budget must include a
deposit into the Fund, subject to certain exceptions. For every one-half percent that revenues exceed
the Average Annual Ongoing Growth Threshold, five percent of the value of that excess revenue must
be deposited into the BSF, not to exceed 25 percent of the excess growth. When growth of these
receipts falls short of the Average Annual Ongoing Growth Threshold, the Budget may include a
withdrawal from the BSF in the amount of five percent of the value of the lost revenue for each one
percent of growth below the Growth Threshold.

The City’s BSF does not meet the criteria for a stabilization arrangement for reporting the funds as
either restricted or committed. As such, the BSF is reported as unassigned fund balance in the
General Fund. As of June 30, 2022, the BSF’s fund balance was $114.6 million.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

A deferred outflow of resources is defined as a consumption of net assets that applies to a future
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. A
deferred inflow of resources is defined as an acquisition of net assets that applies to a future period(s)
and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.

Unamortized portions of the gain and loss on refunding debt are reported as deferred inflows and
deferred outflows of resources, respectively. Deferred outflows of resources are reported for loss on
debt refunding, changes in the value of the asset retirement obligation, and changes related to
pensions and other postemployment benefits (OPEB). Deferred inflows of resources are reported for
changes related to pensions and OPEB, gains on debt refunding, changes in the fair value of hedging
derivative instruments, leases, and regulated business activities. In addition to this, when an asset is
recorded in the governmental fund financial statements but the revenue is not available, a deferred
inflow of resources is reported until such time as the revenue becomes available.
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For purposes of measuring the net pension and OPEB assets and liabilities, deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions and OPEB, pension and OPEB
expenses, information about the fiduciary net position, and additions to/deductions from fiduciary net
position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by Pensions, LACERS, and
DWP Plans. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at
fair value. Reported results pertain to liability and asset information as of the measurement date of
June 30, 2021. Deferred inflows of resources related to leases are measured at the value of the lease
receivable in addition to any payments received at or before the commencement of the lease term that
relate to future periods that is recognized as revenue over the term of the lease.

Power reported deferred inflows of resources from regulated business activities of $187.2 million at
June 30, 2022, which pertain to revenues collected from customers where funds are deferred for
future stabilization or deferred because the earnings process is not complete, consistent with
accounting standards applicable to regulated utilities. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, Power
did not recognize any of this revenue.

Net Position

The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements utilize a net position presentation. Net
position is categorized as follows:

¢ Net investment in capital assets - This category groups all capital assets into one component of net
position. Accumulated depreciation/amortization and the outstanding balances of debt that are
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of these assets reduce the balance in
this category. Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources that are attributable
to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets or related debt are also included in
this component of net position.

o Restricted net position - This category represents either external restrictions imposed by creditors
(such as bond covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments, or
restrictions imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. At June 30,
2022, the governmental activities restricted net position totaled $4.3 billion, of which $1.1 billion is
restricted by enabling legislation. Business-type activities’ restricted net position totaled $1.8 billion,
of which $521.1 million is restricted by enabling legislation.

o Unrestricted net position - This category represents net position of the City that is not “restricted” or
“net investment in capital assets.”

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts in the
financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from the estimates.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to amounts reported in the governmental funds and
separately audited financial statements of certain proprietary funds, Pension and Other
Postemployment Benefits Trust funds, and other component units to conform to the City reporting
entity’s report format and to account for transactions between the City’s reporting entity and such
entities in accordance with GAAP.
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19. Adoption of New GASB Pronouncements
The City adopted the following GASB statements in fiscal year 2022:

GASB Statement No. 87, “Leases.” Issued in June 2017, this statement establishes a uniform
approach for lease accounting based on the principle that leases are financings of the right to use an
underlying asset. In accordance with the statement, parties to a lease agreement, the lessee and
lessor, are required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible RTU lease asset, and a lease
receivable and deferred inflow of resources, respectively. The new lease standard also requires
enhanced disclosure, which includes a general description of the leasing arrangement, the
aggregated amount of resource inflows and outflows recognized from lease contracts, and the
disclosure of the long-term effect of lease arrangements on a government’s resources. Effective July
1, 2021, the City adopted GASB’s No. 87 — Leases, using the facts and circumstances that existed at
the beginning of the period of implementation. Due to the sheer number of leases, the City considered
it impractical to apply the standards retroactively. As a result of adoption, there was no impact on the
City’s beginning net position for governmental activities. In contrast, the beginning position for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, for business-type activities has been restated by the cumulative
effect of $14.4 million shown below in Note 1E.21. The governmental activities' aggregated beginning
balances for lease assets and the lease liability for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, are
approximately $114.2 million. Additional disclosures of the City’s implementation for GASB Statement
No. 87 are included in Notes 4F Capital Assets, 41 Long-Term Liabilities, and 4M Leases.

GASB Statement No. 92, “Omnibus 2020.” Issued in January 2020, this statement was issued for
clarity and consistency by addressing practice issues identified from the implementation and
application of certain GASB statements. The City implemented this statement at the beginning of the
fiscal year 2022 without material impact.

GASB Statement No. 93, “Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates.” Issued in March 2020, this
statement is to address accounting and financial reporting implications that result from the
replacement of an interbank offered rate (IBOR) such as the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR).
It also identifies appropriate benchmark interest rates for hedging derivative instruments. The removal
of LIBOR as an appropriate benchmark interest rate is effective for reporting periods ending after
December 31, 2021. All other requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods
beginning after June 15, 2020. The City implemented the non-LIBOR portion of this statement in the
fiscal year 2021 and the LIBOR portion in the fiscal year 2022 without material impact.

GASB Statement No. 97, “Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans—an amendment of GASB
Statements No. 14 and No. 84, and a supersession of GASB Statement No. 32.” Issued in June 2020,
this statement will result in more consistent financial reporting of defined contribution pension plans,
defined contribution OPEB plans, and other employee benefit plans (e.g., certain Section 457 plans),
while mitigating the costs associated with reporting those plans. The City implemented this statement
at the beginning of the fiscal year 2022 without material impact.

GASB_Statement No. 99, “Omnibus 2022” Issued in April 2022, this statement is to enhance
comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to improve the consistency of authoritative
literature by (1) practice issues that have been identified during the implementation and application of
certain GASB Statements and (2) accounting and financial reporting for financial guarantees. The
statement addresses a variety of topics, including the extension of the use of LIBOR, accounting for
Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP) distributions, disclosures of nonmonetary
transactions, pledges of future revenues by pledging governments as well as clarification of provisions
in Statement No. 34 and terminology updates related to Statements No. 53 and 63. These
requirements are effective upon issuance and have no material impact. Other requirements under this
statement will be effective for future adoption. See Note 1E.20 below.
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20. Recent GASB Pronouncements for Future Adoption

The City is currently analyzing its accounting practices to determine the potential impact on the
financial statements of the following recent GASB statements:

GASB Statement No. 91, “Conduit Debt Obligations.” Issued in May 2019, this statement provides a
single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and eliminates diversity in practice
associated with (1) commitments extended by issuers, (2) arrangements associated with conduit debt
obligations, and (3) related note disclosures. The statement will be effective beginning fiscal year
2023.

GASB Statement No. 94, “Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment
Arrangements.” Issued in March 2020, this statement is to improve financial reporting by establishing
the definitions of public-private and public-public partnership arrangements (PPPs) and available
payment arrangements (APAs) and providing uniform guidance on accounting and financial reporting
for transactions that meet those definitions. The statement will be effective beginning fiscal year 2023.

GASB Statement No. 96, “Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements.” Issued in May
2020, this statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for subscription-
based information technology arrangements (SBITAs) for governments by (1) defining a SBITA, (2)
establishing that a SBITA results in a right-to-use subscription asset-an intangible asset-and a
corresponding subscription liability, (3) providing the capitalization criteria for outlays other than
subscription payments, including implementation costs of a SBITA, and (4) requiring note disclosures
regarding a SBITA. The statement will be effective beginning fiscal year 2023.

GASB_Statement _No. 99, “Omnibus 2022” Issued in April 2022, the statement is to enhance
comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to improve the consistency of authoritative
literature by (1) practice issues that have been identified during the implementation and application of
certain GASB Statements and (2) accounting and financial reporting for financial guarantees.

The requirements related to the extension of the use of LIBOR, accounting for Supplemental Nutrition
Assistance Program (SNAP) distributions, disclosures of nonmonetary transactions, pledges of future
revenues by pledging governments, clarification of certain provisions in Statement No. 34, as
amended, and terminology updates related to Statement No. 53 and Statement No. 63 are effective
upon issuance. The requirements related to leases, PPPs, and SBITAs will be effective beginning
fiscal year 2023. The requirements related to financial guarantees and the classification and reporting
of derivative instruments within the scope of Statement No. 53 will be effective beginning fiscal year
2024.

GASB Statement No. 100, “Accounting Changes and Error Corrections—an amendment of GASB
Statement No. 62.” Issued in June 2022, the statement provides guidance on the accounting and
financial reporting requirements for accounting changes and error corrections to provide more
understandable, reliable, relevant, consistent, and comparable information for making decisions or
assessing accountability. The statement will be effective beginning fiscal year 2024.

GASB Statement No. 101, “Compensated Absences.” Issued in June 2022, the statement provides
guidance on the recognition and measurement of compensated absences by amending and updating
certain previously required disclosures under a unified model better to meet the information needs of
financial statement users. The statement will be effective beginning fiscal year 2025.
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21. Restatements and Effects of New Pronouncements

The City adjusted the cumulative effect of applying the provision of GASB Statement No. 87 as a
restatement of the net beginning position. As a result, adjustments to the beginning net position of
$6.5 million and $7.9 million for Airports and Harbor, respectively, were recognized as summarized
below.

Beginning of Year
(amounts expressed in thousands)
Cumulative Effect

July 1, 2021 of Change in
As Previously Accounting July 1, 2021
Reported Principle As Restated
Governmental Activities
Capital assets amortized, net $ -3 114,239 § 114,239
Lease liabilities -- 114,239 114,239
Business-type Activities
Airports
Accrued interest receivable $ 4,788 $ 702 $ 5,490
Lease receivable - 277,232 277,232
Capital assets amortized, net - 64,728 64,728
Lease liabilities -- 66,079 66,079
Deferred inflows of resources related to leases - 270,097 270,097
Net position 5,874,994 6,486 5,881,480
Harbor
Accrued interest receivable $ 3,647 $ 2,317 $ 5,964
Lease receivable -- 314,435 314,435
Capital assets amortized, net - 1,149 1,149
Lease liabilities - 1,164 1,164
Deferred inflows of resources related to leases - 308,792 308,792
Net position 3,690,683 7,945 3,698,628
Power
Capital assets amortized, net $ - $ 16,781 $ 16,781
Lease liabilities - 16,781 16,781
Water
Capital assets amortized, net $ - $ 8,564 $ 8,564
Lease liabilities -- 8,564 8,564
Sewer
Capital assets amortized, net $ - $ 18,170 $ 18,170
Lease liabilities - 18,170 18,170
Fiduciary Activities
LACERS
Lease receivable $ -3 605 $ 605
Capital assets amortized, net -- 1,606 1,606
Lease liabilities - 1,633 1,633
Deferred inflows of resources related to Leases - 598 598
Net position 22,805,340 (20) 22,805,320
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NOTE 2. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet and the Government-wide Statement of Net Position

The governmental funds balance sheet includes a reconciliation between ftotal fund balances-
governmental funds and net position of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide
statement of net position. One element of that reconciliation explains that long-term liabilities, including
net pension and OPEB liabilities net of net pension and OPEB assets and bonds payable, are not due
and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds. The details of this $8.1
billion difference are as follows (in thousands):

Direct Placements $ 50,341
Bonds and Notes 2,449,996
Add: Issuance Premium/Discount (to be amortized
as interest expense) 187,846
Loans Payable to HUD 38,664
Financed Purchase Obligations 30,549
Lease Liabilities 114,405
Accrued Interest Payable 18,123
Accrued Compensated Absences 775,444
Claims and Judgments Payable 2,693,578
Landfill Liability 41,558
Estimated Pollution Remediation Liability 11,460
Net Pension Liability (net of Net Pension Asset) 958,325
Net OPEB Liability (net of Net OPEB Asset) 685,656
Net adjustments to reduce governmental fund balances to arrive at
governmental activities net position $ 8,055,945

B. Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances and the
Government-wide Statement of Activities

The governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances includes a
reconciliation between net change in fund balances-total governmental funds and change in net position
of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. One element of that
reconciliation explains that governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported
as depreciation expense. The details of this $26.0 million difference are as follows (in thousands):

Capital Outlays $ 420,068
Capital Outlays Not Capitalized (23,305)
Donated Capital Assets 3,257
Depreciation Expense (374,020)

Net adjustments to increase net change in fund balances of
governmental funds to arrive at change in net position of
governmental activities $ 26,000
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Another element of that reconciliation states that the issuance of long-term debt provides current financial
resources to the governmental funds while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the
current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net
position. The details of this $36.1 million difference are as follows (in thousands):

Debt Issued or Incurred

General Obligation Bonds $ (277,430)
Lease Revenue Bonds (154,205)
MICLA Commercial Paper Notes (80,000)
Leases (21,769)
Principal Repayments
General Obligation Bonds 165,875
Lease Revenue Bonds 149,663
Revenue Bonds 17,480
MICLA Commercial Paper Notes 195,000
Financed Purchase Obligations 12,250
Leases 21,603
HUD Loans 7,659

Net adjustments to increase net change in fund balances of
governmental funds to arrive at change in net position of
governmental activities $ 36,126

Another element of that reconciliation states that some expenses reported in the statement of activities do
not require the use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds. The details of this $100.2 million difference are as follows (in thousands):

Decrease in Accrued Compensated Absences $ (6,017)
Increase in Estimated Claims and Judgments 107,093
Decrease in Accrued Landfill Liability (257)
Decrease in Pollution Remediation Liability (588)

Net adjustments to decrease net change in fund balances of
governmental funds to arrive at change in net position of
governmental activities $ 100,231
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NOTE 3. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY
A. Budgets and Budgetary Basis of Accounting

Under the City Charter, the Mayor is required each year to submit to the Council a proposed budget by
April 20th for the forthcoming fiscal year commencing July 1st. The proposed budget is based on the
Mayor's budget priorities, the responses of the City Administrative Officer and City departments to the
Mayor's Budget Policy Letter, which is distributed early in the fiscal year, and estimates of receipts from
the City's various revenue sources. The Council's Budget and Finance Committee reviews the Mayor's
Proposed Budget and reports its recommendations to the full Council. The Council must legally adopt the
Mayor's Proposed Budget, as modified by the Council, by June 1st. The Mayor has five working days
after adoption to approve or veto any items modified by the Council. The Council then has five working
days to override by a two-thirds vote any items changed by the Mayor.

The City Council adopts an annual operating budget for 41 City departments, bureaus, and offices. The
annual budget is essentially prepared on a departmental basis, with budgeted receipts and appropriations
provided for the General Fund and certain Special Revenue, Debt Service, and Capital Projects Funds.
Budgets are generally limited to funds which, in addition to the General Fund, finance the operations of
the City departments.

Furthermore, the budgeted receipts and appropriations for the Allocations from Other Governmental
Agencies nonmajor special revenue fund (which includes Animal Sterilization Fund, ATSAC Trust Fund,
Business Improvement Trust Fund, City Attorney Consumer Protection Fund, City Planning System
Development Fund, Coastal Transportation Corridor Trust Fund, CRA Non-Housing Bond Proceeds
Fund, Deferred Compensation Plan Trust Fund, DOT Expedited Fee Trust Fund, Economic Development
Trust Fund, Federal Emergency Shelter Grant Fund, Foreclosure Registry Program Fund, Housing
Impact Trust Fund, Housing Production Revolving Fund, Innovation Fund, Lead Grant, LA Regional
Agency Trust Fund, Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund, Medical Intergovernmental Transfer
Program Fund, Off-Site Sign Periodic Inspection Fee Fund, Permit Parking Program Revenue Fund,
Pershing Square Special Trust Fund, Planning Long-Range Planning Fund, Repair and Demolition Fund,
Short-term Enforcement Trust Fund, Sidewalk and Park Vending Trust Fund, Street Banners Revenue
Trust Fund, LA County Youth Job Program Fund, Traffic Safety Education Program Fund, Transportation
Regulation and Enforcement Fund, Trust of Floor Area Ratio Public Benefits, Used Oil Collection Trust
Fund, Ventura/Cahuenga Corridor Plan Fund, Warner Center Mobility Trust Fund, Warner Center
Transportation Trust Fund, and West LA Transportation Improvement and Mitigation Fund) are not all-
inclusive because the budget provides for only the portion of fund receipts that are expended to finance
City department operations.

The City does not budget for the financial activities of all its Governmental Funds. The following
Governmental Funds are not included in the City's legally adopted annual operating budget:

General Fund
Reserve and certain other account components

Special Revenue
Major Fund:
Municipal Improvement Corporation

Nonmajor Funds:
Proposition HHH-Loans Program
Recreation and Parks
Covid-19 Federal Relief
Section 108 Loan Guarantee Program
Transportation Grants
Certain Other Nonmajor Grant Funds
Certain Other Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
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Debt Service
Major Fund:
Municipal Improvement Corporation

Nonmajor Funds:
General Obligation Bonds Refunding Series 2021-B
Solid Waste Resources
Certain Other Nonmajor Debt Service Funds

Capital Projects
Nonmajor Funds:

General Obligation Bonds Series 2003-A

General Obligation Bonds Series 2004-A

General Obligation Bonds Series 2005-A

General Obligation Bonds Series 2006-A

General Obligation Bonds Series 2008-A

General Obligation Bonds Series 2009

General Obligation Bonds Series 2011-A

General Obligation Bonds Proposition HHH-
Facilities Program

Recreation and Parks Grant

Parks Assessment

Certain Other Nonmajor Capital Project Funds

For the majority of the funds listed above, expenditure authority is approved by Council action during the
fiscal year.

The City's original budget is subject to revision to reflect changes in revenue projections and to make
necessary adjustments to appropriations. Transfers of appropriations are approved by the Mayor subject
to certain limitations and conditions. Funds appropriated in the general City budget or thereafter by the
Council may be transferred to the Reserve Fund or Unappropriated Balance of the General Fund, or
appropriated for the same or other purposes amending the budget and other spending authority, upon
approval of the Mayor. The City permits intra-departmental transfer between department accounts in an
amount not to exceed the limit of $59,296 or 1% of the budget for the account receiving the transfer,
whichever is greater. Approval of the Mayor is required for transfers between departments and/or funds in
an amount not to exceed $50,000. Transfers above these limits require Council approval.

During the fiscal year, capital related appropriations of $169.3 million that were reappropriated from prior
budget years were included in the current annual operating budget.

Unused and unencumbered appropriations lapse at year-end, with the exception of non-capital related
continuing appropriations for certain Special Revenue and Capital Projects Funds that are carried forward
to the next budget year. Capital related appropriations that are unused and unencumbered at year-end
are reappropriated in the subsequent budget year.

The legal level of budgetary control (the level at which expenditures may not legally exceed
appropriations) is as follows: The General Fund is by line item within each object by department, except
for capital improvement program expenditures, which are controlled by projects. Object levels of
expenditures are salaries, expense, equipment, special, capital outlay, and transfers. For the Special
Revenue Funds, Debt Service Funds and Capital Projects Funds, the line items consist of departments,
projects, debt service, equipment and programs. Because of the large volume of detail, the budget and
actual schedules on a budgetary basis have been aggregated by fund and function in the combining and
individual fund budgetary schedules.

The City's annual budget is prepared on a modified cash basis of accounting, which is different from
GAAP. Revenues are recognized when cash is received, and expenditures include both cash
disbursements and current year encumbered appropriations that have not been paid at the end of the
budget year. Where no appropriation is adopted, payments of interfund borrowings (or payment of loans
to other funds), though recorded as a component of other financing uses, are not treated as budgetary
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transactions and are excluded in the separate budget and actual statements.

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the
expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is
used in the Governmental Funds, except for certain Special Revenue and Capital Projects Funds whose
assets are managed by a third-party trustee. Encumbrance balances will be included within restricted,
committed or assigned fund balance based on the source of the constraints as described in Note 1E.14
and 5C. These commitments will be honored in the subsequent year carryforward appropriations.

B. Reconciliation of Operations on Budgetary Basis to the GAAP Basis

The actual results of operations on a budgetary basis compared to the appropriations adopted by the City
Council for budgeted major governmental funds are included in the fund financial statements. The
comparisons of actual results with the budget for nonmajor funds are presented as supplemental
information in the combining schedules.

Because accounting principles applied for purposes of developing data on a budgetary basis differ from
those used to present financial information in accordance with GAAP, a reconciliation of the resultant
basis and perspective differences on operations for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 is presented in
the following pages for the City’s budgeted major fund. The dollar amounts are expressed in thousands.

General Fund

Excess of Revenues and Other Financing Sources Over Expenditures and
Other Financing Uses - Budgetary Basis $ 468,274

Basis Differences

Adjustment for net changes to accrued assets and liabilities. The GAAP

basis operating statement recognizes revenues as soon as they are both

measurable and available, and expenditures generally are recorded when

liability is incurred and is due and payable; whereas, the budgetary basis

operating statement reflects revenue when received and expenditures

when paid. (24,153)

Interfund borrowings are recorded in the debtor fund as an other

financing source "Loans from Other Funds" and in the creditor fund as an

other financing use "Loans to Other Funds" (Budgetary) as opposed to

"Due to Other Funds" in the debtor fund and "Due from Other Funds" in

the creditor fund (GAAP). 24,458

Encumbrances, which represent commitments to acquire goods and
services, are recorded as the equivalent of expenditures in the budget
year incurred (budgetary), as opposed to a reservation of fund balance

(GAAP).
Encumbrances reported as budgetary expenditures 509,434
Prior year encumbrances expended in current year (327,864)

Perspective Difference

For purposes of the budget, the General Fund is a legal entity that is
separate and distinct from the Reserve Fund and other accounts that are
classified to have General Fund activity for GAAP purposes. (385,645)

Additional Budgeted Funds included as General category but Reported in
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

Department of Neighborhood Empowerment 91
City Ethics Commission 118
Accessible Housing Fund 9,004
Net Change in Fund Balance - GAAP Basis $ 273,717
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C. Deficit Fund Balance

The Workforce Innovation Opportunity Act Fund (WIOA) reported a deficit fund balance of $2.4 million
mainly from timing differences in the receipt of grant funds and front funding by the City of expenditures
for various grant related projects. The WIOA deficit will be paid by future grant receipts from
reimbursements of eligible government expenditures that have been incurred or transfer from other
special revenue funds.
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NOTE 4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

A. Cash, Deposits and Investments

1.

Summary of Cash and Investments

At June 30, 2022, the summary of cash, pooled, and other investments for governmental activities,
business-type activities, and fiduciary funds is as follows (in thousands):

Fiduciary Funds
Pension and Other

Governmental Business-Type Postemployment
Activities Activities Benefits Trust Custodial Funds Total
Cash and Pooled Investments $ 6,692,032 $ 5,086,653 $ 96,448 $ 25077 $ 11,900,210
Other investments with Escrow and
Fiscal Agents 727 103,087 - - 103,814
Restricted Assets
Cash and Pooled Investments 10,572 2,549,589 - - 2,560,161
Cash and Investments with Escrow
and Fiscal Agents - 2,726,342 - 2,726,342
Investments of Retirement Systems - - 69,765,777 - 69,765,777
Total Deposits and Investments $ 6,703,331 $ 10,465,671 $ 69,862,225 $ 25077 $ 87,056,304
Cash on hand $ 289
Deposits 33,860
Investments
Pooled 14,365,389
Other 72,656,766
Total Deposits and Investments $ 87,056,304

Cash and Pooled Investments Held by the City Treasurer. The City maintains a cash and
investment pool governed by the City’s investment policy (the Policy) and established pursuant to the
California Government Code. Each fund’'s portion of this pool is displayed on the accompanying
governmental fund balance sheets, proprietary fund and fiduciary fund statements of net position as
“Cash and Pooled Investments” and “Restricted Assets”.

Other Investments. The City has investments outside the City Treasurer that are invested pursuant
to various governing bond covenants and California Government Code provisions.

Other investments consist primarily of deposits and investments with trustees related to the issuance
of bonds, contractor agreements and to certain loan programs operated by the City. These
investments are pledged for the payment or security of the bonds, and in lieu of retention upon
pending satisfactory completion of a contract.

Restricted Assets. Assets that is set aside for a particular purpose, primarily to satisfy regulatory or
contractual requirements.

Investments of Retirement Systems. LACERS, Pensions and DWP Plans (Retirement Systems)
funds are invested pursuant to the Los Angeles City Charter and the Retirement Systems’ investment
policies established by the Retirement Systems’ Boards as required by Article XI Section 1106(d) of
the City Charter. The Retirement Systems’ Boards adopted asset allocation policies on the types of
investments to ensure a diversified portfolio. The objective of each investment policy is to maximize
the expected return of the funds at an agreed upon level of risk.

Investment Risk. The investments are subject to certain types of risk:

Interest Rate Risk. The risk that changes in interest rate will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment.

Credit Risk. The risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations.

Concentration of Credit Risk. The risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government's investment
in a single issuer.

-77 -



Annual Comprehensive Financial Report

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

Custodial Credit Risk. For deposits, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a
depository financial institution, the City will not be able to recover deposits or collateral securities from
an outside party. For investments, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty to a transaction, the City will not be able to recover the value of investment or collateral
securities from an outside party.

Foreign Currency Risk. The risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of
an investment or a deposit.

These risks are addressed separately for the investments related to governmental and business-type
activities and those related to the Retirement Systems.

2. Deposits

At June 30, 2022, the book balance of the City's deposits was $33.9 million and the balance per
various financial institutions was $33.8 million. The difference of $0.1 million represents primarily
deposits in transit and other reconciling items. Of the bank balance, $11.5 million was covered by
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) and $22.3 million was uninsured. The uninsured
deposits of $22.3 million are held by financial institutions that are legally required by the California
Government Code Section 53630 to collateralize the City’'s deposits by pledging certain eligible
securities with a fair value of at least 110% of the City’s deposits. The collateral is held by a third-party
agent of the bank separate from the depository institution.

The City has a daylight overdraft facility with a bank that maintains the City’s operating account, which
may be used to facilitate intra-day transfers between City accounts. Any overdraft in the City’s
account, including any charges, must be repaid immediately without demand, except when the City
and the bank agree otherwise or when the bank advises otherwise in writing.

3. Pooled Investments

The cash balances of substantially all funds on deposit in the City Treasury are pooled and invested
by the City Treasurer for the purpose of maximizing interest earnings through pooled investment
activities, but safety and liquidity still take precedence over return. Investments in special investment
pools will be managed in accordance with the respective pool's policy, if no policy exists, investments
must comply with the California State Government Code Sections 53600-53635 et seq. Special pool
participants include the City, Airports, Power, Water, Harbor, Sewer, and MICLA. Interest earned on
pooled investments is allocated to and recorded in certain participating funds, as authorized by the
Council and permitted by the City Charter and the California Government Code, based on each fund's
average daily deposit balance. Unless allocation provisions are specifically stipulated in City
ordinance, Council action, or funding source, interest earned on certain funds are allocated to and
recorded in the General Fund. The City measures and categorizes its investments using fair value
measurement guidelines established by generally accepted accounting principles.

Pursuant to California Government Code Section 53607 (State Code) and the Council File No. 94-
2160, the City Treasury shall render to the Council a statement of investment policy (the Policy)
annually. Council File No. 11-1740 was adopted on December 2, 2020, as the City’s investment
policy. This Policy shall remain in effect until the Council and the Mayor approve a subsequent
revision-as of June 30, 2022, Council File No. 21-1494 (the subsequent revision) was still pending in
Committee. The Policy governs the City’s pooled investment practices. The Policy addresses
soundness of financial institutions in which the City Treasurer will deposit funds and types of
investment instruments permitted by California Government Code Sections 53600-53638, 16340 and
16429.1. The City Treasury further reports that the current policy allows for the purchase of
investments with maturities up to thirty (30) years.
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At June 30, 2022, the investments held in the City Treasury's General and Special Investment Pool
Programs and their maturities are as follows (in thousands):

Investment Maturities

1to 30 31 to 60 61 to 365 366 Days Over
Type of Investments Amount Days Days Days to 5 Years 5 Years
U.S. Treasury Bills $ 14,999 $ 14,999 $ -$ -$ -3 -
U.S. Treasury Notes 8,540,010 - 120,034 1,337,215 4,793,230 2,289,531
U.S. Agencies Securities 940,704 233,144 - 243,534 343,285 120,741
Medium-Term Notes 1,449,096 - 29,988 186,249 1,232,859 -
Commercial Paper 2,375,926 980,498 389,077 1,006,351 - -
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 42,000 - - 42,000 - -
Asset-Backed Securities 257,187 - - - 257,187 -
Supranational Obligations 277,748 48,006 33,243 19,987 176,512 -
Short-Term Investment Funds 277,041 277,041 - - - -
Securities Lending Short-Term
Repurchase Agreements 190,678 190,678

Total General and Special Pools $ 14,365,389 $§ 1,744,366 $ 572,342 $ 2,835,336 $§ 6,803,073 $ 2,410,272

4. Fair Value Measurements

The City measures and categorizes its investments using fair value measurement guidelines
established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation
inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset or liability. The levels of valuation inputs are as
follows:

Level 1 - Quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in an active market
Level 2 - Observable inputs other than quoted market prices

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs

At June 30, 2022, the fair value hierarchy of the City's General and Special Pool investments are as
follows (in thousands):

Fair Value Measurements Using
Quoted Prices in Active Significant Other

Markets for Identical Observable Inputs
Investments Amount Assets (Level 1) (Level 2)
Investments Subject to Fair Value Hierarchy
U.S. Treasury Notes $ 8,540,010 $ 100,547 $ 8,439,463
U.S. Agencies Securities 513,998 - 513,998
Medium-Term Notes 1,449,096 - 1,449,096
Asset-Backed Securities 257,187 - 257,187
Supranational Obligations 196,498 - 196,498
Total Investments Subject to Fair Value
Hierarchy $ 10,956,789 $ 100,547 $ 10,856,242
Investments Not Subject to Fair Value Hierarchy
Short-Term Investment Funds * $ 277,041
U.S. Treasury Bills * 14,999
U.S. Agencies Securities * 426,706
Commercial Paper * 2,375,926
Supranational Obligations* 81,250
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit* 42,000
Securities Lending Short-Term
Repurchase Agreement ** 190,678
Total Investments not Subject to Fair Value
Hierarchy 3,408,600
Total Investments $ 14,365,389

* These investments are recorded at amortized cost and have remaining maturities of one year or less at the time of purchase.
** These investments are recorded based on the cash collateral received and reinvested in repurchase agreements.
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Investments classified in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy, valued at $100.5 million, are valued using
observable unadjusted quoted prices in an active market.

Investments classified in Level 2, totaling $10.9 billion, are valued using matrix pricing obtained from
various pricing sources by our custodian bank. At the time of purchase, securities are automatically
assigned a primary pricing source, that are used in the portfolio valuation report which are evaluated
based on market inputs such as benchmark yields, reported trades, broker/dealer quotes, issuer
spreads, two-sided markets, benchmark securities, bids, offers, and reference data.

Interest Rate Risk. The Policy limits the maturity of its investments to thirty years for the U.S. Treasury
and U.S. Agency obligations; five years for medium-term notes, CD placement service, negotiable
certificates of deposit, collateralized bank deposits, mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities,
and supranational obligations; one year for repurchase agreements; 270 days for commercial paper;
92 days for reverse repurchase and securities lending agreements; and no maturity for mutual funds.
The Policy also allows City funds with longer-term investments horizons, to be invested in securities
that at the time of the investment have a term remaining to maturity in excess of five years, but with a
maximum final maturity of thirty years.

Credit Risk. The Policy establishes minimum credit rating requirements for investments. There are no
credit quality requirements for Local Agency Bonds, U.S. Treasury Obligations, State of California
Obligations, California Local Agency Obligations, and U.S. Agency (U.S. government sponsored
enterprises) Obligations. The City’s $940.7 million investments in U.S. government sponsored
enterprises consist of securities issued by the Federal Home Loan Bank - $456.5 million, Federal
National Mortgage Association (Fannie Mae) - $303.8 million, Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation (Freddie Mac) - $14.4 million, Federal Farm Credit Bank - $148.1 million, and Tennessee
Valley Authority - $17.9 million. Of the City’s $940.7 million investments in U.S. Agencies securities,
$514.0 million were rated AA+ by S&P and Aaa by Moody’s while the remaining $426.7 million from
discount notes were rated A-1+ by S&P and P-1 by Moody’s .

Medium-term notes must have at least an A rating at the time of purchase. The City’s investment in
medium-term notes of $1.4 billion were rated A3 or better by Moody’s. Of this amount, $1.3 billion
were A or better with only $0.1 billion rated at BBB+ by S&P as of June 30, 2022.

Commercial paper must be issued by corporations organized and operating within the U.S., have
assets in excess of $500 million, and debt other than commercial paper must be in a rating category of
A or its equivalent or higher by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization (NRSRO), or the
issuing corporation must be organized within the United States as a special purpose corporation, trust,
or LLC, have program wide credit enhancements, and have commercial paper that is rated A-1 or
higher, or the equivalent, by a NRSRO. The City’s investments in commercial paper of $2.4 billion
were rated P-1 by Moody’s of which $1.9 billion were rated A-1+/A-1 by S&P and $0.5 billion were not
rated .

Mutual funds must receive the highest ranking by not less than two NRSROs. The City did not have
any investments in mutual funds as of June 30, 2022.

Municipal bonds have no minimum rating requirement. The City did not have any investments in
Municipal bonds as of June 30, 2022.

Supranational obligations must have a minimum of AA rating or better. The City’s $196.5 million
investments in supranational obligations were rated AAA by S&P and Aaa by Moody’s. The City also
had investments in supranational obligation discount notes rated at A-1+ by S&P and P-1 by
Moody's.

Investments in asset-backed securities of $41.8 million were rated AAA by S&P and Aaa by Moody’s,
$142.8 million were rated AAA by S&P not rated by Moody's, and the remaining $72.6 million were not
rated by S&P but were rated Aaa by Moody's.

Concentration of Credit Risk. The Policy does not allow more than 40% of its investment portfolio be

invested in commercial paper, 30% in negotiable certificates of deposit, medium-term notes and

supranational obligations, 20% in money market mutual funds, mortgage-backed and asset-backed
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securities, reverse repurchase and securities lending agreements. The Policy further provides for a
maximum concentration limit of 10% in any one issuer including its related entities. There is no
percentage limitation on the amounts that can be invested in U.S. Treasury and U.S. Agency
obligations. The City’s pooled investments comply with these requirements. GAAP requires disclosure
of certain investments in any one issuer that represent 5% or more of total investments. Of the City’s
total pooled investments as of June 30, 2022, there were no investments in any one issuer exceeding
the 5% threshold.

The following table identifies the investment types that are authorized by the Policy as of June 30,

2022:
Maximum Maximum Specified Minimum Credit Quality

Investment Type Maturity % of Portfolio Requirements
Local Agency Bonds 5 Years None None
U.S. Treasury Obligations 30 Years None None
State Obligations 5 Years None None
CA Local Agency Obligations 5 Years None None
U.S. Agency Obligations 30 Years None None
Commercial Paper 270-Days 40% A Al/P1®
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 Years 30%¢° None
Placement Service Deposits 5 Years 30%P None
Placement Service Certificates of Deposit 5 Years 30%P None
Repurchase Agreements 1 Year None None
Reverse Repo/Securities Lending Agreements 92-Days 20% NoneE
Medium-Term Notes 5 Years 30% A>F
Money Market and Mutual Funds N/A 20%¢ Multiple™ !
Collateralized Bank Deposits’ 5 Years or less None None
Mortgage Pass-through and Asset-Backed Securities 5 Years or less 20% A>
Voluntary Investment Program Fundk N/A None None
Supranational Obligations- 5 Years or less 30% AA>
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A None None

Other restrictions on investments are summarized as follows:

A

No more than 40 percent of the Local Agency’s money may be invested in eligible commercial
paper. Notwithstanding section 53601, the City of Los Angeles shall be subject to the concentration
limits of this section for counties and for cities and counties in eligible commercial paper.

Issuing corporation must be organized and operating within the United States, have assets in
excess of $500 million, and debt other than commercial paper must be in a rating category of A or
its equivalent or higher by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization, or the issuing
corporation must be organized within the United States as a special purpose corporation, trust, or
LLC, have program wide credit enhancements, and have commercial paper that is rated A-1 or
higher, or the equivalent, by a nationally recognized statistical rating agency.

No more 30 percent of the agency's money may be in negotiable certificates of deposit that are
authorized under Section 53601(i).

No more than 30 percent of the agency’s money may be invested in deposits, including certificates
of deposit, through a placement service (excludes negotiable certificates of deposit authorized
under Section 53601(i)).

Reverse repurchase agreements must be made with primary dealers of the Federal Reserve Bank
of New York or with a nationally or state chartered bank that has a significant relationship with the
local agency. The local agency must have held the securities used for the agreements for at least
30 days.

Medium-term notes are defined in Section 53601 as “all corporate and depository institution debt
securities with a maximum remaining maturity of five years or less, issued by corporations
organized and operating within the United States or by depository institutions licensed by the
United States or any state and operating within the United States.”
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G No more than 10 percent invested in any one mutual fund. This limitation does not apply to money
market mutual funds.

H A mutual fund must receive the highest ranking by not less than two nationally recognized rating
agencies or the fund must retain an investment advisor who is registered with the SEC (or exempt
from registration), has assets under management in excess of $500 million, and has at least five
years’ experience investing in instruments authorized by Section 53601 and 53635.

A money market mutual fund must receive the highest ranking recognized statistical rating
organizations or retain an investment advisor registered with the SEC or exempt from registration
and who has not less than five years' experience investing in money market instruments with
assets under management in excess of $500 million.

J Investments in notes, bonds, or other obligation under Section 53601(n) require that collateral be
placed into the custody of a trust company or the trust department of a bank that is not affiliated
with the issuer of the secured obligation, among other specific collateral requirements.

K Local entities can deposit between $200 million and $10 billion into the Voluntary Investment
Program Fund, upon approval by their governing bodies. Deposits in the fund will be invested in
the Pooled Money Investment Account.

L Only those obligations issued or unconditionally guaranteed by the International Bank for
Reconstruction and Development (IBRD), International Finance Corporation (IFC), and Inter-
American Development Bank (IADB), with a maximum remaining maturity of five years or less.

General Investment Pool Securities Lending Program. Securities lending is permitted and limited
under provisions of California Government Code Section 53601. The Council approved the Securities
Lending Program (the SLP) on October 22, 1991 under Council File No. 91-1860, which complies with
the California Government Code. The objectives of the SLP in priority order are safety of loaned
securities and prudent investment of cash collateral to enhance revenue from the investment program.
The SLP is governed by a separate policy and guidelines.

The City’s custodial bank acts as the securities lending agent. In the event a counterparty defaults by
reason of an act of insolvency, the bank shall take all actions, which it deems necessary or
appropriate to liquidate permitted investment and collateral in connection with such transaction, and
shall make a reasonable effort for two business days (Replacement Period) to apply the proceeds
thereof to the purchase of securities identical to the loaned securities not returned. If during the
Replacement Period the collateral liquidation proceeds are insufficient to replace any of the loaned
securities not returned, the bank shall, subject to payment by the City of the amount of any losses on
any permitted investments, pay such additional amounts as necessary to make such replacement.

Under the provisions of the SLP, and in accordance with the California Government Code, no more
than 20% of the fair value of the General Investment Pool (the Pool) is available for lending. The City
loans out U.S. Treasury Notes, U.S. Agencies Securities, and Medium-Term Notes. The City receives
cash as collateral on the loaned securities, which is reinvested in securities permitted under the
Policy. In addition, the City receives securities as collateral on loaned securities, which the City has
no ability to pledge or sell without borrower default. In accordance with the California Government
Code, the securities lending agent marks to market the value of both the collateral and the
reinvestments daily. Except for open loans where either party can terminate a lending contract on
demand, term loans have a maximum life of 92 days. Earnings from securities lending accrue to the
Pool and are allocated on a pro-rata basis to all Pool participants.

During fiscal year 2022, collateralizations on all loaned securities were compliant with the required
102% of the fair value. The City can sell collateral securities only in the event of borrower default. The
lending agent provides indemnification for borrower default. There were no violations of legal or
contractual provisions and no borrower or lending agent default losses during the fiscal year. There
was no credit risk exposure to the City because the amounts owed to the borrowers exceeded the
amounts borrowed. Loaned securities are held by the City’s agents in the City’s name and are not
subject to custodial credit risk.
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The following table provides information on securities lent and collateral received as of June 30, 2022
(in thousands):

Type of Investments Lent

For Cash Collateral

U.S. Treasury Notes $ 110,981
U.S. Agencies Securities 19,583
Medium-Term Notes 56,531
Total Cash Collateral 187,095

For Non-Cash Collateral
U.S. Treasury Notes 933,246
U.S. Agencies Securities 12,027
Medium-Term Notes 7,496
Total Non-Cash Collateral 952,769
Total Fair Value of Securities Lent $ 1,139,864

Type of Collateral Received
Cash Collateral * $ 190,677

Non-Cash Collateral **

For Lent U.S. Treasury Notes, U.S. Agencies Securities and Medium-Term Notes 971,366
Total Collateral Received $ 1,162,043

* Amount represents cash collateral received and reinvested in repurchase agreements that have the mark-to-market value of

the cash collateral pool at 102% for the liquidity of the portfolio and 100% for the duration portfolio for fiscal year 2022.

** The City has no ability to pledge or sell collateral securities without borrower default.

5. Other Investments

Other deposits and investments maintained outside the City Treasury are invested pursuant to policies
adopted by the boards of commissioners of the City’s pension systems and Water and Power,
governing bond covenants or California Government Code provisions. Investments made under these
provisions are reported as follows:

Investments are stated at fair value.

Pensions and other postemployment benefits investments are reported in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles.

Real estate investments are recorded in the financial statements under the equity method, and are
carried at fair value as determined by real estate fund managers based on a periodic appraisals,
and reports of investment advisors.

The fair value of real estate investments was determined using a practical expedient based on the
investments' net asset values per share or its equivalent.

Investments denominated in foreign currencies are translated to the U.S. dollar at the rate of
exchange in effect at the statement of fiduciary net position date, with resulting gains and losses
recorded in the statement of changes in fiduciary net position.

The fair value of alternative investments is estimated based on audited financial statements
provided by the individual fund managers, which are based on the net asset value.

Mortgages are valued on the basis of future principal and interest payments, and are discounted
at prevailing interest rates for similar investments.
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The City’s other investments as of June 30, 2022 are as follows (in thousands):

DWP $ 809,304
Pensions 29,436,522
LACERS 21,000,984
DWP Plans 19,328,271
Others 2,081,685
Total $ 72,656,766

Department of Water and Power (DWP)

The City Charter grants the Board of Water and Power Commissioners control over the investments of
all financial assets of DWP.

At June 30, 2022, the investments of DWP outside of the City’s investment pool programs and their
maturities are as follows (in thousands):

Investment Maturities
6110365 366 Days to5

Type of Investments Amount* 1to 30 Days 31 to 60 Days Days Years Qver 5 Years
U.S. Government Securities $ 58,033 $ -$ 1,000 $ 19,992 $ 27,978 $ 9,063
U.S. Agencies Securities 201,717 11,154 - 49,125 126,705 14,733
Supranationals 43,945 - - 21,921 22,024 -
Medium-Term Notes 129,150 4 6,451 43,573 79,122 -
Commercial Paper 22,303 8,496 998 12,809 - -
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 47,949 6,174 - 41,775 - -
California Local Agency Bonds 111,254 5,200 21,036 14,877 70,141 -
California State Bonds 12,544 - - 9,061 3,483 -
Other State Bonds 52,357 7,150 495 18,145 26,567 -
Money Market Funds 29,306 29,306 - - - -
Total $ 708,558 $ 67,484 $ 29,980 $ 231,278 $ 356,020 $ 23,796

*Excluded investment derivative instruments of $100.7 million.

DWP holds investment derivative instruments that are measured at fair value in the amount of $100.7
million on a recurring basis. Because investing is not a core part of the DWP’s mission, DWP
determines that the disclosures related to these investments only need to be disaggregated by major
type. DWP categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles. More detailed information on the Power Derivative
Instruments can be found in Note 4N of the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.
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At June 30, 2022, DWP’s summary of the fair value hierarchy of investments are as follows (in
thousands):
Fair Value Measurements Using
Quoted Prices in
Active Markets  Significant Other Significant

for Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
Amount* (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Not Classified
Investments by Fair Value Level
Debt Securities
U.S. Government Securities  $ 58,033 $ 58,033 $ - $ - $ -
U.S. Agencies Securities 201,717 - 201,717 - -
Supranationals 43,945 - 43,945 - -
Medium-Term Notes 129,150 - 129,150 - -
California Local Agency
Bonds 111,254 - 111,254 - -

California State Bonds 12,544 - 12,544 - -
Other State Bonds 52,357 - 52,357 - -

Total Debt Securities 609,000 58,033 550,967 - -

Other
Commercial Paper 22,303 - 22,303 - -
Negotiable Certificates of
Deposit 47,949 - 47,949 - -

Money Market Funds 29,306 - - - 29,306

Total Other 99,558 - 70,252 - 29,306

Total Investments by Fair

Value Level $ 708,558 $ 58,033 $ 621,219 $ -$ 29,306

*Excluded investment derivative instruments of $100.7 million.

Debt and other securities classified in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using prices
quoted in active markets for those securities. Debt securities classified in Level 2 of the fair value
hierarchy are valued using a multidimensional relationship model or matrix pricing model utilizing
market data including, but not limited to, benchmark yields, reported trades, and broker-dealer quotes.
Money market funds with maturity dates of one year or less from the statement of net position and
thus are recorded at amortized cost and not required to be classified.

Interest Rate Risk. DWP’s investment policy limits the maturity of its investments to a maximum of 30
years for U.S. Government and U.S. Agencies securities; 5 years for supranational securities,
medium-term corporate notes, municipal bonds, California local agency obligations, California State
obligations, and other state obligations; 270 days for commercial paper; 397 days for certificates of
deposit; and 180 days for bankers acceptances.

Credit Risk. Under its investment policy and the California Government Code, DWP is subject to the
prudent investor standard of care in managing all aspects of its portfolios. The prudent investor
standard requires that DWP “shall act with care, skill, prudence, and diligence under the
circumstances then prevailing, including, but not limited to, the general economic conditions and the
anticipated needs of the agency, that a prudent person acting in a like capacity and in familiarity with
those matters would use in the conduct of funds of a like character and with like aims, to safeguard
the principal and maintain the liquidity needs of the agency.”

The U.S. government securities in the portfolio consist of securities issued by or explicitly guaranteed
by the U.S. government. All of the U.S. government securities in the portfolio, $58.0 million as of June
30, 2022 carried the highest or second highest credit ratings of the Nationally Recognized Statistical
Rating Organizations (NRSROs) that rated them.

The U.S. Agencies securities in the portfolio consist of securities issued by government-sponsored
enterprises, which are not explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government. As of June 30, 2022, $191.4
million (94.9%) was rated with AAA or AA credit ratings by the NRSROs that rated them and $10.3
million (5.1%) was not rated.
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DWP’s investment policy specifies that supranational notes must be rated AA or its equivalent or
better by an NRSRO upon purchase. As of June 30, 2022, all of the DWP’s investments in
supranational notes were rated with the highest possible credit ratings by each of the NRSROs.

DWP’s investment policy specifies that medium-term corporate notes must be rated in a rating
category of A or its equivalent or better by a NRSRO upon purchase. Of DWP’s investments in
corporate notes as of June 30, 2022, $13.7 million (10.7%) was rated in the category of AAA, $31.2
million (24.1%) was rated in the category of AA, $84.2 million (65.2%) was rated in the category of A
by at least one NRSRO.

DWP’s investment policy specifies that commercial paper must be of the highest ranking or of the
highest letter and number rating as provided for by at least two NRSROs. As of June 30, 2022, all of
the DWP’s investments in commercial paper were rated with at least the highest letter and number
rating as provided by at least two NRSROs.

DWP'’s investment policy provides that negotiable certificates of deposit must be of the highest ranking
or letter and number rating as provided for by at least two NRSROs and that for non-negotiable
certificates of deposit, the full amount of principal and interest is insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or National Credit Union Administration. As of June 30, 2022, DWP’s
investments in certificates of deposits included $47.9 million of negotiable certificates of deposit with
at least the highest letter and number rating as provided by at least two NRSROs.

DWP'’s investment policy specifies that bankers acceptances must be of the highest ranking or letter
and number rating as provided for by at least two NRSROs. As of June 30, 2022, there were no
investments in bankers acceptances. all of DWP’s investments in bankers acceptances were rated
with at least the highest letter and number rating as provided by at least two NRSROs.

DWP’s investment policy specifies that California Local Agency bonds, which include municipal
commercial paper, must be rated in a rating category of A or its equivalent or better by a NRSRO. Of
DWP’s investments in California Local Agency bonds as of June 30, 2022, $14.2 million (12.7%) was
rated in the category of AAA; $92.1 million (82.8%) was rated in the category of AA and $5.0 million
(4.5%) was rated in the category of A or the equivalent or better rating by at least one NRSRO.

DWP'’s investment policy specifies that California State bonds must be rated in a rating category of A
or its equivalent or better by a NRSRO. Of DWP’s investments in California State bonds as of June
30, 2022, $2.9 million (23.0%) was rated in the category of AAA, $8.1 million (64.9%) was rated in the
category of AA, $1.5 million (12.1%) was rated in the category of A or the equivalent or better short-
term rating by at least one NRSRO.

DWP’s investment policy specifies that obligations of other states in addition to California must be
rated in a rating category of A or its equivalent or better by a NRSRO. Of DWP’s investments in other
state obligations as of June 30, 2022, $15.2 million (29.0%) was rated in the category of AAA, $28.4
million (54.2%) was rated in the category of AA, $8.8 million (16.8%) was rated in the category of A or
the equivalent or better short-term rating by at least one NRSRO.

DWP'’s investment policy specifies that money market funds may be purchased as allowed under the
California Government Code, which requires that the fund must have either (1) attained the highest
ranking or highest letter and numerical rating provided by not less than two NRSROs or (2) retained
an investment advisor registered or exempt from registration with the Securities and Exchange
Commission with not less than five years’ experience in managing money market mutual funds with
assets under management in excess of $500.0 million. As of June 30, 2022, each of the money
market funds in the portfolio had the highest possible ratings by at least two NRSROs.

Concentration of Credit Risk: DWP’s investment policy specifies that there is no percentage limitation
on the amount that can be invested in U.S. government agencies securities, except that a maximum of
30% of the cost value of the portfolio may be invested in the securities of any single U.S. government
agency issuer. Included within DWP’s total investments as of June 30, 2022, $57.5 million (8.1%) was
invested in securities issued by the Federal Farm Credit Bank, $45.0 million (6.4%) was invested in
securities issued by the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, $63.2 million (8.9%) was invested
in securities issued by the Federal Home Loan Bank, $25.6 (3.6%) million was invested in securities
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issued by the Federal National Mortgage Association, and $10.4 million (3.6%) was invested in
securities issued by the Federal Agricultural Mortgage Corporation.

Fire and Police Pension and Health Subsidy Plans (Pensions)

At June 30, 2022, the Pensions’ investments are as follows (in thousands):

Health Subsidy

Investment Type Pensions Plan Plan Total
Short-Term Investments $ 822,596 $ 88,160 $ 910,756
U.S. Government Obligations 2,774,048 297,301 3,071,349
Domestic Corporate Bonds 2,181,686 233,817 2,415,503
International Bonds 48,347 5,181 53,528
Domestic Stocks 8,729,791 935,592 9,665,383
International Stocks 4,343,927 465,549 4,809,476
Real Estate 1,945,509 208,505 2,154,014
Alternative Investments 4,517,483 484,150 5,001,633
Security Lending Collateral 1,223,730 131,150 1,354,880
Total $ 26,587,117 $ 2,849,405 $§ 29,436,522

At June 30, 2022, Pensions has the following recurring fair value measurements (in thousands):

Fair Value Measurements Using
Quoted Prices for
Identical Assets or Observable Inputs

Liabilities in an Other than
Active Market Quoted Market Unobservable
Amount (Level 1) Prices (Level 2)  Inputs (Level 3)

Investments by Fair Value Level
Debt Securities

U.S. Treasuries $ 2,453,839 $ -$ 2,453,839 $ -

U.S. Agencies 530,433 - 530,433 -

Municipal/Provincial Bonds 14,157 - 14,157 -

Collateralized Debt Obligations 444,046 - 442,249 1,797

Commercial Paper 36,919 - 36,919 -

Corporate Bonds 2,012,315 - 2,012,315 -

Total Debt Securities 5,491,709 - 5,489,912 1,797
Equity Securities

Common Stock 14,372,403 14,354,604 2,125 15,674

Preferred Stock 102,228 98,711 - 3,517

Other 228 25 - 203

Total Equity Securities 14,474,859 14,453,340 2,125 19,394
Real Estate 794,699 191,939 - 602,760
Derivatives (18,387) 415 (18,802) -

Total Investments by Fair Value Level $ 20,742,880 $ 14,645,694 $ 5,473,235 $ 623,951
Investments Measured at the Net Asset Value

(NAV)

Private Equity Partnerships $ 4,944,864

Real Estate 1,359,315

Hedge Funds 75,156

Corporate Debt Securities 48,671

Total Investments Measured at NAV $ 6,428,006

Equity securities classified in Level 1 are valued using prices quoted in active markets for those
securities. Debt and equity securities such as U.S. Treasuries, U.S. Agencies, municipal bonds,
collateralized debt obligations, commercial paper, corporate bonds and other equity securities are
classified in Level 2. They are valued using quoted prices for identical securities in markets that are
not active. The value prices observed used market-based inputs.
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Debt securities, namely collateralized debt obligations and corporate bonds, classified in Level 3 are
valued using unobservable inputs which can be extrapolated data, proprietary models or indicative
quotes. Other equity securities classified in Level 3 are valued using uncorroborated indicative quotes.

Real estate corporate accounts investments are valued based on an independent appraisal or other
methods using various techniques including models. Real estate corporate accounts are scheduled
for independent appraisal on a rolling 3-year period.

Pensions’ investments such as private equity partnerships, commingled real estate funds, hedge
funds, asset/mortgage-backed security funds and commercial mortgages are valued using the net
asset value (NAV). Real estate pooled investments are valued based on an independent appraisal or
other methods using various techniques including models. Hedge funds generally do not have readily
obtainable fair values and take the form of limited partnerships. Valuation is either based on the
partnerships audited financial statements or from the most recently available internal valuation.

Investments measured at the NAV are as follows (in thousands):

Redemption
Frequency
Unfunded (if currently Redemption
Investment Strategy Fair Value Commitments eligible) Notice Period
Private Equity Funds and Partnerships $ 4,944,864 $ 2,450,100 N/A -
Real Estate(!) 1,359,315 725,552 Quarterly 90-179 days
Hedge Funds 75,156 -- Quarterly 90 days
Corporate Debt Securities 48,671 -~ Anytime --

Total Investments Measured at NAV ~ § 6,428,006 $ 3,175,652

M This type of investment includes $697.9 million of commingled real estate committed and funded that can be
redeemed quarterly with 90 to 179 days redemption notice period.

Interest Rate Risk. Pensions manages its exposure to interest rate risk by requiring a fixed income
investment manager to maintain the effective duration of their portfolio within a specified range of (1)
the Bloomberg Barclays US Aggregate Bond Index for core fixed income investments, (2) the
Bloomberg Barclays US Government/Credit Long-Term Bond Index for long duration investments, and
(3) the B of A ML High Yield Master Il Index for high yield investments. The longer the duration, the
greater the sensitivity to interest rate changes. Information about the sensitivity of Pensions’
investments to interest rate fluctuations is provided in the following table that shows the weighted
average effective duration of Pensions’ fixed income investments by investment type:

Amount Weighted Average
Investment Type (in thousands) Maturity (in years)
Asset-Backed Securities $ 241,432 10.86
Bank Loans 36,919 4.88
Commercial Mortgage-Backed 173,293 21.13
Corporate Bonds 1,863,157 10.27
Corporate Convertible Bonds 8,154 10.90
Government Agencies Bonds 61,151 7.02
Government Bonds 1,298,560 9.92
Government Mortgage-Backed Securities 497,879 23.48
Government Issued Commercial Mortgage-Backed 3,077 2.93
Index Linked Government Bonds 1,243,780 8.23
Municipal/Provincial Bonds 15,122 33.63
Non-Government Backed Collateralized Mortgage Obligations 50,266 21.94
Sukuk 993 4.94
Asset/Mortgage-Backed Securities/Other Fixed Income Funds 46,597 N/A
Total 3 5,540,380
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Investments that are highly sensitive to interest rate risk at June 30, 2022 are as follows (in

thousands):
Investment Type Amount
Asset-Backed Securities $ 241,432
Commercial Mortgage-Backed 173,293
Government Agencies Bonds 61,151
Government Mortgage-Backed Securities 497,879
Index Linked Government Bonds 1,243,780
Non-Government Backed Collateralized Mortgage Obligations 50,266
Total $ 2,267,801

Credit Risk. Pensions seeks to maintain a diversified portfolio of fixed income securities in order to
obtain the highest total return at an acceptable level of risk within this asset class. As of June 30,
2022, the quality ratings of Pensions’ fixed income investments are as follows:

Amount
Credit Rating (in thousands) Percentage

AAA $ 2,566,540 51.75 %
AA 75,176 1.52

A 506,417 10.21
BBB 703,673 14.19
BB 372,461 7.51

B 252,745 5.10
CcccC 44,268 0.89
CcC 618 0.01

C 582 0.01
Not Rated 436,862 8.81
Subtotal 4,959,342 100.00 %
U.S. Government Issued or Guaranteed Securities 581,038

Total Fixed Income Investments $ 5,540,380

Concentration of Credit Risk. As of June 30, 2022, Pensions’ investment portfolio has no
concentration of investments of 5% or more of the total investment portfolio in any one entity except
those issued or guaranteed by the U.S. Government.

Custodial Credit Risk. For deposits, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure,
the Pensions’ deposits and collateral securities in the possession of an outside party would not be
recoverable. Deposits are exposed if they are not insured or are not collateralized. As of June 30,
2022, Pensions’ exposure to custodial credit risk comprised of foreign currencies held outside the
custodial bank amounted to $15.9 million.

For investment securities, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, Pensions will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities
that are in the possession of an outside party. Investment securities are exposed to custodial credit
risk if they are not insured, or are not registered in Pensions’ name, and held by the counterparty. As
of June 30, 2022, Pensions' investments in publicly traded stocks and bonds were not exposed to
custodial risk since they are all held by the custodian and are registered in Pensions’ name. As of
June 30, 2022, Pensions’ sole hedge fund investment of $75.2 million, private equity of $4.9 billion
and commingled real estate funds of $1.4 billion were exposed to custodial credit risk.
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Foreign Currency Risk. The Pensions’ asset allocation policy sets a target of 21% of the total portfolio
for non-U.S. equity investments. The majority of Pensions’ currency exposure comes from its holdings
of foreign stocks. Pensions’ foreign investment holdings, including foreign currencies in temporary
investments at June 30, 2022, are as follows (in thousands):

Foreign Currency Fair Value
Australian Dollar $ 150,072
Brazilian Real 146,379
British Pound Sterling 537,497
Canadian Dollar 115,816
Chilean Peso 2,865
Chinese Yuan Renminbi 65
Colombian Peso 1,230
Czech Koruna 4,662
Danish Krone 83,102
Euro 1,234,022
HK Offshore Chinese Yuan Renminbi 75,770
Hong Kong Dollar 520,903
Hungarian Forint 1,407
Indian Rupee 178,707
Indonesian Rupiah 30,934
Japanese Yen 704,017
Kenyan Shilling 3,810
Malaysian Ringgit 11,832
Mexican Peso 80,621
New Israeli Shekel 9,230
New Taiwan Dollar 207,827
New Zealand Dollar 3,283
Norwegian Krone 21,691
Philippine Peso 6,371
Polish Zloty 8,888
Qatari Riyal 10,126
Singapore Dollar 37,688
South African Rand 52,195
South Korean Won 196,834
Swedish Krona 96,557
Swiss Franc 331,868
Thai Baht 24,989
Turkish Lira 4,604
United Arab Emirates Dirham 10,880
Total $ 4,906,742

The foreign currency total comprises foreign stocks, foreign bonds, and currency holdings.

Money-Weighted Rate of Return. The money-weighted rate of return expresses investment
performance, gross of investment expense, adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested. The
annual money-weighted rate of return on Pensions’ investments, gross of Pensions’ investment
expense, for the year ended June 30, 2022 was (7.23)% The source for the rate of return was the
June 30, 2022 Monthly Returns Analysis provided by the custodian bank, Northern Trust.

Securities Lending Transactions. Pensions has entered into various short-term arrangements with
its custodian, whereby investments are loaned to various brokers, as selected by the custodian. The
lending arrangements are collateralized by cash, letters of credit, and marketable securities held on
the Pensions’ behalf by the custodian. These agreements provide for the return of the investments
and for a payment of: a) a fee when the collateral is marketable securities or letters of credit, or b)
interest earned when the collateral is cash on deposit.
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Upon direction of the Board, the custodian may loan securities to brokers or dealers or other
borrowers upon such terms and conditions as it deems advisable. Collateral for the securities on loan
will be maintained at a level of at least 102% of their fair value plus any accrued interest for U.S.
securities lending and 105% of the fair value plus any accrued interest for non-U.S. securities lending.
At year-end, Pensions has no credit risk exposure to borrowers because the amounts Pensions owes
the borrowers exceed the amounts the borrowers owe Pensions.

The borrower has all incidents of ownership with respect to the borrowed securities and collateral
including the right to vote and transfer or loan borrowed securities to others. Pensions is entitled to
receive all distributions, which are made by the issuer of the borrowed securities, directly from the
borrower. Under the agreement, the custodian will indemnify Pensions as a result of the custodian’s
failure to: (1) make a reasonable determination of the creditworthiness of a potential borrower before
lending and, during the term of the loan or loans, the borrower files a petition of bankruptcy or similar
action, (2) demand adequate collateral, or (3) otherwise maintain the securities lending program in
compliance with the Federal Financial Institutions Examinations Council Supervisory Policy on
Securities Lending.

These agreements provide the return of the securities and revenue determined by the type of
collateral received (from which the custodian’s fee is deducted). The securities on loan to brokers are
shown at their fair value on Pensions' statement of fiduciary net position.

Cash received as collateral on securities lending transactions is reported as an asset, and the
liabilities from these transactions are reported in the statement of fiduciary net position. Pensions
cannot pledge or sell non-cash collateral unless the borrower defaults.

As of June 30, 2022, the fair value of securities on loan was $1.6 billion and the fair value of collateral
received was $1.7 billion. Of the $1.7 billion collateral received as of June 30, 2022, $1,354.9 million
was cash collateral and $305.6 million represented the fair value of non-cash collateral. Non-cash
collateral, which Pensions does not have the ability to pledge or sell unless the borrower defaults, is
not reported in the statement of fiduciary net position.

The following represents the balances relating to the security lending transactions (in thousands):

Fair value of collateral received for loaned securities as of June 30, 2022:

Total Collateral

Securities Lent Cash Non-Cash Securities
U.S. Government and Agency Securities $ 341,950 $ 20,605 $ 362,555
Domestic Corporate Fixed Income Securities 333,799 42,407 376,206
Domestic Equities 584,665 153,147 737,812
International Fixed Income Securities 8,039 - 8,039
International Equities 86,427 89,399 175,826

$ 1,354,880 % 305,558 $ 1,660,438

Fair value of loaned securities as of June 30, 2022:

Total Loaned

Securities Lent Cash Non-Cash Securities
U.S. Government and Agency Securities $ 334,637 $ 20,083 $ 354,720
Domestic Corporate Fixed Income Securities 324,739 41,135 365,874
Domestic Equities 564,703 149,053 713,756
International Fixed Income Securities 7,566 - 7,566
International Equities 77,270 80,364 157,634

$ 1,308,915 § 290,635 $§ 1,599,550

For fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, securities lending income amounted to $4.7 million, while
securities lending expenses amounted to $0.7 million.
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Derivative Instruments. Pensions, through its outside investment managers, holds investments in
swaps, options, rights, and warrants and enters into futures and forward foreign currency contracts to
manage portfolio risk or use them as substitutes for owning securities. Forward contracts are subject
to credit risk if the counterparties to the contracts are unable to meet the terms of the contract. Futures
contracts have little credit risk, as organized exchanges are the guarantors. Due to the level of risk
associated with derivative investments, it is reasonably possible that changes in the values of these
investments will occur in the near term and that such changes could materially affect the amount
reported in the financial statements.

The fair values of the futures that are traded on various exchanges are determined by the price on that
exchange. Fair values for the currency forward contracts are determined by the exchange rate of the
reference currency on the last day of the reporting period. For options, swaps, rights, and warrants
pricing would come from the exchange they are traded on if they are exchange traded securities.

They can also trade as over the counter securities and the fair values would then be determined by
the value of a reference security or value that would typically be publicly priced. For assets traded
over the counter and held at the custodian bank, an independent pricing service is involved in
calculating the price of the derivative security using the value of the reference security or reference
value.

The fair value balances and notional amounts of derivative instruments outstanding at June 30, 2022,
classified by type, and the changes in fair value of such derivative instruments are as follows (in

thousands):
Changes in Fair Value Fair Value at June 30, 2022 Notional
Type Classification Amount Classification Amount Amount
Investment Derivatives:
Futures - Shorts N/A $ - Investment $ -9 (280,769)
Futures - Longs Investment Loss (5,811) Investment - 130,114
Forwards Investment Revenue 3,488 Investment 5,778 --
Options Investment Loss (244) Investment 334 -
Rights/Warrants Investment Loss (115) Investment 230 --
Swaps Investment Loss (50,860) Investment (18,721) -
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Los Angeles City Employees' Retirement and Postemployment Health Care Plans (LACERS)

At June 30, 2022, LACERS’ investments are as follows (in thousands):

Postemployment

Retirement Health Care
Investment Type Plan Plan Total
Short-Term Investments $ 354,767 $ 69,429 $ 424,196
U.S. Government Obligations 1,563,416 305,966 1,869,382
Municipal Bonds 12,465 2,439 14,904
Domestic Corporate Bonds 767,102 150,125 917,227
International Bonds 805,609 157,661 963,270
Other Fixed Income 667,572 130,646 798,218
Bank Loans 73,571 14,398 87,969
Opportunistic Debts 298,448 58,408 356,856
Domestic Stocks 4,360,654 853,396 5,214,050
International Stocks 3,586,266 701,845 4,288,111
Mortgage-Backed Securities 483,043 94,533 577,576
Government Agencies 9,461 1,852 11,313
Derivative Instruments (1,047) (205) (1,252)
Real Estate 971,126 190,053 1,161,179
Alternative Investments 3,179,716 622,281 3,801,997
Security Lending Collateral 431,535 84,453 515,988
Total $ 17,563,704 $ 3,437,280 $ 21,000,984

Equity securities classified in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using prices quoted in
active markets for those securities. Debt and equity securities classified in Level 2 or 3 of the fair value
hierarchy are valued using a matrix pricing technique based on the availability of the market price, the
pricing source and type, and the country of incorporation of the securities. The hierarchy levels are
determined based on the level of corroborative information obtained from other market sources to
assert that the prices provided represent observable data.

The exchange traded Future Contracts classified in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using
a daily settlement when available or as a daily mark to market. The Foreign Exchange Contracts
(liabilities) classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using independent pricing
services including London Close mid-evaluation, WM/Reuters Company, Bloomberg, and Thomson
Reuters.

Real estate funds classified in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy are valued based on periodic
appraisals in accordance with industry practice, or other valuation methods and techniques including
models.

LACERS’s remaining investments not categorized under the fair value hierarchy, such as private
equity partnerships, real estate commingled funds and other investments which do not have a readily
determinable fair value have been valued at the Net Asset Value (NAV). NAV is calculated and used
as a practical expedient to estimate fair value of LACERS’ interest, unless it is probable that all or a
portion of the investments will be sold for an amount different from the NAV. As of June 30, 2022,
LACERS had no specific plans to sell investments at amounts different from NAV. These investments
are disclosed in the Investments Measured at the NAV.
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LACERS has the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2022 (in thousands):

Fair Value Measurements Using
Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for Significant Other Significant Other
Identical Assets Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs

Amount (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Investments by Fair Value
Debt Securities
Government Bonds $ 2,436,382 $ -$ 2,436,167 $ 215
Government Agencies 55,642 - 55,642 -
Municipal/Provincial Bonds 16,078 - 16,078 -
Corporate Bonds 1,267,995 - 1,261,678 6,317
Bank Loans 87,969 - 87,969 -
Mortgage-Backed Securities 577,576 - 577,576 -
Opportunistic Debts 62,264 - - 62,264
Funds - Fixed Income ETF 1,858 1,858 - -
Total Debt Securities 4,505,764 1,858 4,435,110 68,796
Equity Securities
Common Stock
Basic Industries 1,178,770 1,178,725 29 16
Capital Good Industries 451,754 451,483 4 267
Consumer and Services 2,093,401 2,092,008 112 1,281
Energy 674,879 674,604 - 275
Financial Services 1,348,108 1,347,891 39 178
Health Care 984,124 984,124 - -
Information Technology 1,435,686 1,435,436 - 250
Real Estate 717,838 717,490 - 348
Other Funds - Common Stock 562,541 - 562,541 -
Miscellaneous 18,186 15,463 68 2,655
Total Common Stock 9,465,287 8,897,224 562,793 5,270
Preferred Stock 27,031 24,254 2,777 -
Stapled Securities 9,503 9,503 - -
Convertible Equity 340 340 - N
Total Equity Securities 9,502,161 8,931,321 565,570 5,270
Real Estate Funds 228,900 - - 228,900
Total Investments by Fair Value Level 14,236,825 $ 8,933,179 $ 5,000,680 $ 302,966

Investments Measured at the Net Asset Value (NAV)

Common Fund Assets 796,359
Private Equity Funds 3,801,997
Real Estate Funds 932,279
Opportunistic Debts 294,592
Total Investments Measured at
NAV 5,825,227
Total Investments Measured at
Fair Value (1) $ 20,062,052
Investment Derivative Instruments
Future Contracts (Liabilities) $ (273) $ (273)$ -3 -
Foreign Exchange Contracts
(Liabilities) (858) - (858) -
Rights/Warrants/Options/Swaps (121) (110) (19) 8
Total Investment Derivative
Instruments $ (1,252) $ (383)% 877) $ 8

() Excluded $(1.3) million of investment derivative instruments and $516.0 million of securities lending collateral.

Investments Measured at NAV (in thousands):

Unfunded Redemption Redemption Notice
Fair Value Commitments Frequency Period
Common Fund Assets (1) $ 796,359 $ - Daily 2 days
Private Equity Funds (2) 3,801,997 1,765,448 N/A N/A
Real Estate Funds (3) 932,279 50,837  Daily, Quarterly 1-90 days
Opportunistic Debts (4) 294,592 - Monthly 30 days
Total Investments Measured at NAV ~ $ 5,825,227 $ 1,816,285
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(1) Common fund assets - This investment type includes one fund that primarily invests in U.S. bonds.
The fair value of the investment has been determined using a practical expedient based on the
investment's NAV per share (or its equivalent). This investment can be redeemed daily, with a two-day
advance redemption notice period.

(2) Private equity funds - This investment type includes 314 closed-end commingled private equity
funds that invest primarily in securities of privately held U.S. and non-U.S. companies. The fair values
of these investments have been determined using a practical expedient based on the investments’
NAV per share (or its equivalent). These investments are not redeemable. It is expected that these
investments will be held for the entire lives of the funds and will not be sold in the secondary market.
Distributions from each fund will be received as the underlying assets are liquidated by the fund
managers. It is expected that the underlying assets of these funds will be liquidated over the next one
to 13 years, depending on the vintage year of each fund.

(3) Real estate funds - This investment type includes 22 commingled real estate funds that invest
primarily in U.S. commercial real estate. The fair values of these investments have been determined
using a practical expedient based on the investments’ NAV per share (or its equivalent). Seven
investments, representing approximately 83.6% of the value of this investment type, are in open-end
funds, which may be redeemed according to terms specific to each fund. Redemptions generally are
subject to the funds’ available cash and redemption queues. Fifteen investments, representing
approximately 16.4% of the value of this investment type, are in closed-end funds and are not
redeemabile. It is expected that these investments will be held for the entire lives of the funds and will
not be sold in the secondary market. Distributions from each fund will be received as underlying
assets are liquidated by the fund managers. It is expected that the underlying assets of these funds
will be liquidated over the next one to 12 years, depending on the vintage year of each fund.

(4) Opportunistic debts - This investment type includes two commingled funds: one that invests
primarily in senior loans of non-investment grade companies (senior loan fund) and another one
invests primarily in the securities and obligations of companies experiencing operational or financial
distress (distressed investment fund). The fair values of these investments have been determined
using a practical expedient based on the investments’ NAV per share (or its equivalent). The senior
loan fund, representing approximately 94% of the value of this investment type, can be redeemed
monthly. The distressed investment fund, representing approximately 6% of the value of this
investment type, is being dissolved and is no longer making new underlying investments. Distributions
from this fund will be received as underlying investments are liquidated by the fund manager. The fund
is being liquidated.

Interest Rate Risk. One of the ways LACERS manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by requiring
the fixed income investment managers to maintain their portfolio effective duration within a specified
range of the BC U.S. High Yield 2% Capped Index, the BC Intermediate Government Credit Index, the
BC Aggregate Bond Index, or the J.P. Morgan EMBI Global Diversified Index, depending on the
LACERS’ Board’s mandates. The effective duration is a measure, in years, of interest-rate sensitivity
in debt investments. The longer the effective duration, the greater the sensitivity to interest rate
changes.
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Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of LACERS investments to market interest rate
fluctuations as of June 30, 2022 is provided by the following table that shows the weighted average
effective duration of LACERS fixed income securities by investment type:

Fair Value Weighted Average

Investment Type (in thousands) Duration (in years)
Asset-Backed Securities $ 74,558 3.09
Bank Loans 87,969 (0.04)
Corporate Bonds 1,164,983 5.92
Government Agencies 55,642 7.48
Government Bonds 1,366,280 7.52
Government Mortgage-Backed Securities 577,576 6.98
Index Linked Government Bonds 1,070,101 4.63
Municipal/Provincial Bonds 16,078 5.91
Non-Government Backed Collateralized Mortgage Obligations

(C.M.O.s) 28,455 4.94

Opportunistic Debts 356,856 0.30
Other Fixed Income (Funds) 798,217 6.43
Derivative Instruments (36) 0.00
Total $ 5,596,679

Credit Risk. LACERS seeks to maintain a diversified portfolio of fixed income instruments in order to
obtain the highest total return for the fund at an acceptable level of risk within this asset class. The
credit quality ratings of investments in fixed income securities by S&P Global Ratings (S&P), a
nationally-recognized statistical rating organization, as of June 30, 2022, are as follows:

Fair Value
S&P Ratings (in thousands) Percentage
AAA $ 48,364 1.50 %
AA+ 3,747 0.12
AA 817,732 25.33
AA- 32,764 1.01
A+ 38,285 1.19
A 51,504 1.60
A- 176,409 5.47
BBB+ 234,557 7.27
BBB 213,410 6.61
BBB- 161,562 5.01
BB+ 76,921 2.38
BB 77,844 2.41
BB- 150,785 4.67
B+ 52,807 1.64
B 285,612 8.85
B- 75,205 2.33
CCC+ 88,473 2.74
CCC 73,745 2.28
CCcC- 41 --
CcC 1,903 0.06
C 30 --
D 4,566 0.14
Not Rated 561,381 17.39
3,227,647 100.00 %

U.S. Government Guaranteed Securities * 2,369,070

Total Fixed Income Investments $ 5,596,717

* Consists of U.S. Government Bonds and GNMA Mortgage-Backed Securities which had the AA+ rating.
Concentration of Credit Risk. The investment portfolio as of June 30, 2022, contained no

concentration of investments in any one entity that represented 5% or more of the total investment
portfolio.
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Custodial Credit Risk. Deposits are exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not insured or not
collateralized. As of June 30, 2022, LACERS has exposure to such risk in the amount of $30.3 million,
or 0.5% of the fair value of total international investments. The amount represents non-invested cash
denominated in foreign currencies, managed by 17 different investment managers, and held outside of
LACERS custodial bank. LACERS’ policy requires each individual publicly traded equities investment
manager to hold no more than 10% of their portfolios in the form of cash. LACERS is in compliance
with the policy.

Investment securities are exposed to custodial credit risk if the securities are not insured, are not
registered in LACERS’ name, and are held by the counterparty, or the counterparty’s trust department
or agent but not in LACERS name. As of June 30, 2022, LACERS’ investments were not exposed to
custodial credit risk because all securities were registered in the name of LACERS.

Foreign Currency Risk. LACERS’ Asset Allocation policy sets a target of 23% of the total portfolio for
non-U.S. investments in equities. In addition, fixed income, real estate, and private equity managers
may hold non-U.S. investments depending on their individual mandates. Forward currency contracts
are permitted primarily to reduce the foreign currency risk.

LACERS’ non-U.S. currency investment holdings as of June 30, 2022, which represent 22.95% of the
fair value of total investments, are as follows (in thousands):

Foreign Currency Fair Value
Australian Dollar $ 149,583
Brazilian Real 97,565

British Pound Sterling 514,681
Canadian Dollar 310,653
Chilean Peso 10,737
Chinese Yuan Renminbi 88,197
Colombian Peso 23,181
Czech Koruna 25,517
Danish Krone 72,248
Egyptian Pound 5,002
Euro 1,279,353
Hong Kong Dollar 291,980
Hungarian Forint 13,918
Indian Rupee 160,068
Indonesian Rupiah 65,197
Israeli New Shekel 8,246
Japanese Yen 566,676
Malaysian Ringgit 54,044
Mexican Peso 99,080
New Romanian Leu 12,517
New Taiwan Dollar 125,016
New Zealand Dollar 2,772
Norwegian Krone 29,673
Peruvian Nuevo Sol 19,078
Philippine Peso 21,103
Polish Zloty 48,382
Qatari Riyal 3,555
Russian Ruble 5,592
Singapore Dollar 62,135
South African Rand 71,077
South Korean Won 81,116
Swedish Krona 108,092
Swiss Franc 246,099
Thai Baht 34,524
Turkish Lira 3,520
United Arab Emirates Dirham 11,216
Total $ 4,721,393
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Highly Sensitive Investments. Highly-sensitive investments are certain debt investments whose terms
may cause their fair value to be highly-sensitive to market interest rate changes. Terms include
embedded options, coupon multipliers, benchmark indexes, and reset dates. LACERS’ asset-backed
investments have embedded prepayment options that will typically cause prepayments by the
obligees of the underlying investments when interest rates fall. Prepayments eliminate the stream of
future interest payments and, therefore, diminish the fair value of the asset-backed investment.

The following table shows the fair value of LACERS’ asset-backed investments by investment type (in
thousands):

Investment Type Fair Value
Asset-Backed Securities $ 74,558
Government Agencies 55,642
Government Mortgage-Backed Securities 577,576
Non-Government Backed C.M.O.s 28,455
Total $ 736,231

Money-Weighted Rate of Return. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the aggregate annual
money-weighted rate of return on LACERS investments, net of investment expenses was -8.34%. The
money-weighted rate of return is a measure of the performance of an investment calculated by finding
the rate of return that will set the present values of all cash flows equal to the value of the initial
investment. It expresses investment performance, net of investment expense, adjusted for the
changing amounts actually invested.

Derivative Instruments. LACERS enters into derivative contracts for investment purposes and to
manage risks associated with its investment portfolio. For financial reporting purposes, all of LACERS
derivatives are classified as investment derivatives.

The notional amount and the fair value of derivative instruments as of June 30, 2022, are as follows
(in thousands):

Derivative Type Notional Amount Fair Value Change in Fair Value
Future Contracts:
Equity Index $ 17,077 $ (237) $ (150)
Interest Rate (14,668) (36) 301
Currency Forward
Contracts 665,164 (858) (4,002)
Currency Options N/A (19) 119
Right / Warrants N/A 46 (23)
Swaps-Interest Rate N/A (2,615) (1,865)
Swaps-Credit Contracts N/A 2,467 1,427
Total Value $ (1,252) $ (4,193)

Credit Risk. Derivatives are subject to credit risk that the counterparty to a contract will default.
LACERS is exposed to credit risk on reported assets of the investment derivatives that are traded over
the counter. The credit risk of exchange traded derivatives for future contracts is considered minimal
because the exchange clearing house is the counterparty and guarantees the performance.

LACERS permits investment managers, under the terms of individual guidelines, to use derivative
instruments as set forth in each manager’s investment guidelines to control portfolio risk. It is the
responsibility of these investment managers to actively monitor counterparties on their financial safety
and ensure compliance with the investment restrictions. LACERS has no general investment policy
with respect to netting arrangements or collateral requirements. However, these individual investment
managers have set up the arrangements with the counterparties to net off the positive and negative
contracts with the same counterparty in case of the counterparty’s default.

As of June 30, 2022, without respect to netting arrangements, LACERS maximum income on
derivative instruments subject to credit risk, namely currency forward contracts, is $6.3 million. All
counterparties of these investment derivatives had the credit rating of “A” or “AA” assigned by S&P.
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Securities Lending Transactions. Under authority granted by the City Charter, LACERS has entered
into various short-term arrangements with its custodian to lend securities to various brokers. There are
no restrictions on the number of securities that may be lent, and the custodian determines which
lenders’ accounts to lend securities from by using an impartial sequential system that matches loan
requests with various lenders’ accounts. All lenders are deemed to have relatively equal opportunity to
profit from the lending of securities. Therefore, should a collateral deficiency occur beyond the
custodian’s responsibilities, the deficiency is allocated pro rata among all lenders.

Minimum collateralization is 102% of the fair value of the borrowed U.S. securities and 107% for
international securities. Collateral consists of cash, government and corporate securities, and
commercial bank obligations. Cash collateral is invested in a separate account comprised of money
market or high quality short-term investments.

LACERS cannot pledge or sell non-cash collateral unless the borrower defaults. The cash collateral
value of securities on loan is reported in the statement of fiduciary net position. As of June 30, 2022,
LACERS had no losses on securities lending transactions resulting from default of a borrower or
lending agent. All securities loans can be terminated on demand by either LACERS or the borrower.
Because of this nature, their duration did not generally match the duration of the investment made with
the cash collateral.

The following table represents the fair value of securities on loan, corresponding cash collateral
received and cash reinvestment value as of June 30, 2022 (in thousands):

Fair Value of Cash Collateral
Securities on Loan Securities on Loan Received

U.S. Government and Agency Securities $ 91,082 $ 92,954
Domestic Corporate Fixed Income Securities 197,477 203,288
International Fixed Income Securities 24,024 25,719
Domestic Stocks 166,547 172,516
International Stocks 19,135 21,511

$ 498,265 $ 515,988

Water and Power Employees' Retirement, Disability Benefit, Retirees Health Benefit and Death
Benefit Plans (DWP Plans)

At June 30, 2022, DWP Plans’ investments are as follows (in thousands):

Retirement and

Retirees Health and

Investment Type Disability Benefit Plans Death Benefit Plans Total
Domestic Stocks $ 3,182,555 $ 578,234 $ 3,760,789
International Stocks 2,914,291 529,493 3,443,784
Mortgage-Backed Securities 249,310 45,297 294,607
Domestic Corporate Bonds 904,492 164,336 1,068,828
International Bonds 570,055 103,572 673,627
Private Credit 117,944 21,429 139,373
Alternative Investments 3,678,522 659,762 4,338,284
Real Estate 1,373,139 243,976 1,617,115
U.S. Treasuries 1,055,641 191,798 1,247,439
U.S. Agency Notes 973,538 176,881 1,150,419
Municipal Bonds 5,441 989 6,430
Short-Term Investments 575,165 104,501 679,666
Security Lending Collateral 717,900 190,010 907,910
Total $ 16,317,993 $ 3,010,278 $ 19,328,271
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DWP Plans has the following recurring fair value measurement as of June 30, 2022 (in thousands):

Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted Prices in Significant Other
Active Markets for  Significant Other Unobservable
Identical Assets  Observable Inputs Inputs
Investments by Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Equity Securities
Domestic Equities $ 3,760,789 $ -$ -3 3,760,789
International Equities 3,443,784 - - 3,443,784
Preferred Securities 33,637 - - 33,637
Fixed Income Securities
U.S. Treasuries - 1,247,439 - 1,247,439
U.S. Agencies - 1,150,419 - 1,150,419
Mortgage and Asset-Backed Securities - 294,607 - 294,607
Corporate Debt - Domestic - 1,035,191 - 1,035,191
Corporate Debt - International - 450,579 - 450,579
Government Debt - International - 223,048 - 223,048
Municipal / Provincial Bonds - 6,430 - 6,430
Real Estate 71,670 - - 71,670
Total Investments by Fair Value $ 7,309,880 $ 4,407,713 $ - $ 11,717,593

* Mutual funds of $679.7 million and Security Lending Short-Term Investments of $907.9 million are not included in fair value
hierarchy. Investments measured at NAV are also not included within the fair value hierarchy.

Equity securities, preferred securities, and certain real estate funds classified in level 1 of the fair
value hierarchy are valued using prices quoted in active markets for those securities and real estate
funds. Debt securities classified in level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are valued based on evaluated
quotes provided by independent pricing services and matrix pricing technique. Matrix pricing is used to
value securities based on the securities’ relationship to benchmark quoted prices. Mortgage and
asset-backed securities classified in level 2 are valued on the basis of discounted future principal and
interest payments.

Fair Value of Investments Measured at the Net Asset Value (NAV). Below is a summary of the
DWP Plans’ investments at June 30, 2022 for which fair value is measured based on the NAV (in

thousands):
Unfunded Redemption Frequency = Redemption Notice
Investments Measured at NAV Fair Value Commitments (if Currently Eligible) Period

Private Equity

Direct Partnership $ 1,793,389 $ 728,930 Not Eligible Not Eligible

Fund of Funds 510,953 274,755 Not Eligible Not Eligible
Private Credit

Open Ended 113,185 86,666 Annually* 90 days

Close Ended 26,188 49,137 Not Eligible Not Eligible
Real Estate

Open Ended 887,910 75,000 Quarterly 45-90 days

Close Ended 657,535 634,402 Not Eligible Not Eligible
Real Return

Commodities 322,329 - Daily 2 days

Timberland 37,835 - Not Eligible Not Eligible

Short Duration TIPS 651,648 - Daily 3 days
Hedge Fund

Fund of Funds 1,022,130 - Daily 60 days

Total Investments Measured at NAV $ 6,023,102 $ 1,848,890

* Certain investment has a three-year lock before eligible for redemption.

DWP Plans’ private equity portfolio consists of venture capital, leveraged buyouts, distressed debt,
and other special equity funds. DWP Plans’ participation is either through direct partnership or fund of
funds. Both structures are not eligible for redemption. Instead, distributions are received as underlying
investments within the partnerships and funds are liquidated, which on average can occur over the
span of 10 to 15 years.
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The real estate portfolio consists of investments in domestic and international commercial and
industrial real property. DWP Plans is invested in both open ended and close ended
funds/partnerships. Open ended funds/partnerships can be redeemed subject to the redemption
schedule as listed above. Close ended funds/partnerships are not eligible for redemption. Instead,
distributions are received as underlying investments within the funds/partnerships are liquidated,
which on average can occur over the span of 10 to 15 years.

Real return investments include a commingled commodities fund, a commingled short duration
treasury inflation protected securities fund, and two timberland direct partnerships. The timberland
partnerships are not eligible for redemption. The estimated duration of these partnerships ranges from
10 to 15 years.

One hedge fund investment is executed through fund of funds. The underlying third-party hedge fund
managers’ strategies could include, but are not limited to, convertible arbitrage, distressed securities,
fixed income arbitrage, merger arbitrage, long/short credit, long/short equity, etc.

Credit Risk. DWP Plans’ investment policy is to apply the “prudent person” standards. Investments are
made with care, skill, prudence, and diligence under the circumstances then prevailing that a prudent
person acting in a like capacity and familiar with such matters would use in the conduct of an
enterprise of a like character and with like aims. DWP Plans’ investment policy has been designed to
produce the most favorable long-term total portfolio return consistent with reasonable levels of risks.
Prudent risk-taking is warranted within the context of overall portfolio diversification.

DWP Plans can invest in both investment grade and high yield fixed income securities. Investment
grade fixed income securities that are rated by Moody’s, S&P, and Fitch, should have a minimum
rating of BBB- or Baa3 by two or more rating agencies. Investment managers for investment grade
fixed income securities will notify the DWP Plans’ management of subsequent decline in ratings and
will develop an investment strategy for investments rated below Baa3 or BBB-.

Active high yield fixed income investment is composed primarily of non-investment grade securities as
rated by Moody’s, S&P or Fitch. If a bond is rated by all three rating agencies, then it must be graded
BB+ or Ba1 or below by two or more rating agencies. If a bond is rated by two rating agencies, it must
be rated below investment grade by at least one rating agency.

The credit ratings of DWP Plans’ investments at June 30, 2022 are as follows:

Amount
Credit Rating (in thousands) Percentage

AAA $ 196,715 6.87 %
A or Better 181,679 6.35

B or Better 1,313,692 45.89

C or Better 189,987 6.65
Not Rated 980,458 34.25
Subtotal 2,862,531 100.00 %
U.S. Government Issued or Guaranteed Securities 2,397,858

Total Fixed Income Investments $ 5,260,389

Custodial Credit Risk. As of June 30, 2022, DWP Plans’ cash balances consist primarily of cash
deposits in the City Treasury.

Concentration of Credit Risk. According to DWP Plans’ investment policy, no more than 5% of
investments shall be invested in any one issue, except for investment in the fixed income asset class
where no more than 10% of investments shall be invested in any one issue. United States Treasury or
United States Agency issues are exempted from this limitation. As of June 30, 2022, there were no
investment holdings of more than 5% in any one issue of each fund's net position or in DWP Plans’
aggregate net position, except investments issued or guaranteed by the U.S. Government and
investments in commingled funds.
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Interest Rate Risk. As of June 30, 2022, DWP Plans’ exposure to interest rate risk is as follows:

Weighted
Amount Average Maturity
Investment Type (in thousands) (Years)
U.S. Treasuries $ 1,247,439 4.95
U.S. Agency Notes 1,150,419 22.97
Preferred Securities 33,637 -
Mortgage and Asset-Backed Securities 294,607 17.02
Corporate Debt - Domestic 1,035,191 8.93
Corporate Debt - International 450,579 8.73
Government Debt - International 223,048 11.05
Municipal / Provincial Bonds 6,430 17.10
Mutual Funds 679,666 --
Total* $ 5,121,016 10.15

* Not included are private credit investments of $139.4 million with average redemption periods ranging 5 to 8 years.

DWP Plans has a long-term investment horizon and it utilizes an asset allocation that encompasses a
long-run perspective of capital markets. DWP Plans maintains an interest rate risk consistent with its

long-term investment horizon.

Foreign Currency Risk. DWP Plans’ investment policy permits the investment in foreign currency of up
to 21.8% of total investments in non-U.S. investments. As of June 30, 2022, DWP Plans’ exposure to
foreign currency risk is 13.3% of the fair value of total investments, as follows (in thousands):

Foreign Currency

Fair Value

Australian Dollar
Brazilian Real

British Pound Sterling
Canadian Dollar
Chinese Yuan Renminbi
HK Offshore Chinese Yuan
Chilean Peso
Colombian Peso
Czech Koruna
Danish Krone

Euro Currency Unit
Hong Kong Dollar
Hungarian Forint
Indonesian Rupiah
Indian Rupee
Japanese Yen
Kazakhstani Tenge
Malaysian Ringgit
Mexican New Peso
New Taiwan Dollar
New Zealand Dollar
Norwegian Krone
Peruvian Nuevo Sol
Philippine Peso
Polish Zloty
Singapore Dollar
South African Rand
South Korea Won
Swedish Krona
Swiss Franc
Thailand Baht
Turkish Lira
Ukrainian Hryvnia
United Arab Emirates Dirham
Total
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66,837
41,405
299,201
157,447
6,923
21,007
4,487
11,367
5
31,012
859,924
150,909
267
17,192
881
382,948
69,382
15,370
23,505
79,506
4,868
6,446
2,530
4,182
5,390
15,442
30,654
46
53,871
180,035
18,229
3,735
441
12,936

$

2,578,380
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Money-Weighted Rate of Return. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the annual money-
weighted rate of return on DWP Plans’ investments, net of investment expense, was -5.4%. The
money-weighted rate of return expresses investment performance, net of investment expense,
adjusted for changing amounts actually invested.

Derivative Instruments. The fair value balances and notional amounts of derivative instruments
outstanding at June 30, 2022, classified by type, and the changes in fair values of such derivative
instruments are as follows (in thousands):

Changes in Fair Value Fair Value Notional
Type Classification Amount Classification Amount Amount
Forward Contracts Investment Income $ 4,302 Investment $ 6,649 $ 609,633

At June 30, 2022, DWP Plans had direct commitments to purchase and/or sell foreign currency in the
forms of forward contracts as part of the strategy of hedging its currency risk. The fair values of
forward contracts were based on the market price.

Securities Lending Transactions. DWP Plans is authorized by the City Charter and the DWP Plans
Board’'s investment policy to lend its investment securities to various brokers, without limit. The
lending is managed by the DWP Plans’ custodial bank. DWP Plans or the borrowers can terminate the
contract with advance notice. The lending arrangements are collateralized by cash and marketable
securities (guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the U.S. Government) at (i) 102% with respect to
U.S. Securities; (ii) 105% with respect to foreign securities; or (iii) a percentage mutually agreed of the
underlying securities’ fair value. Equities received are required to be collateralized at 110% with
respect to loaned securities’ value. The custodial bank will assume the equity risk and indemnify DWP
Plans 100% for any shortfall if a loan position is not returned, and proceeds from the sale of equity
collateral were insufficient to replace the loan position.

These arrangements provide for the return of the investments and a share of the interest earned on
the collateral. The securities on loan to brokers remain the property of the DWP Plans and continue to
be included in their respective accounts on the statement of fiduciary net position. DWP Plans does
not have the ability to pledge or sell collateral assets unless the borrower is in default of its obligation.
As of June 30, 2022, DWP Plans has no credit risk exposure because the value of the collateral
received exceeded the value of the securities on loan.

DWP Plans’ custodian is the authorized agent to handle DWP Plans’ securities lending activity. DWP
Plans’ custodian may invest the cash collateral received in connection with securities on loan in
investments permitted by DWP Plans. DWP Plans bears sole risk of all losses of the invested
collateral, including losses incurred in the event of liquidation of the permitted investments. The
custodian bank is responsible for the return of loaned securities from borrowers. In lending domestic
securities, cash collateral is invested in the lending agent’s short-term investment pool, which has an
average maturity of 99 days as of June 30, 2022.

The fair values of the underlying securities on loan, collateralized by cash and securities as of June
30, 2022 are (in thousands):

Securities on Loan Amount
Global Agencies $ 2,859
Global Equities 282,335
Global Corporate Fixed 48,206
Global Government Fixed 314,647
U.S. Agency Notes 4,211
U.S. Corporate Fixed 241,507
U.S. Equities 268,155
U.S. Government Fixed 435,291
Total $ 1,597,211
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Others

Other investments are generally those required to be deposited in accounts established under various
bond indentures and will be held, invested and reinvested by the trustees/fiscal agents in permitted
investments as defined in the indentures. Investment maturities are scheduled to coincide with bond
retirement and interest payments. At June 30, 2022, other investments are as follows (in thousands):

Investment Maturities

366 Days

Investment Type Amount 1 to 30 Days 311060 Days 61 to 365 Days to 5 Years
U.S. Government Securities $ 31,963 $ 7,166 $ 14,630 $ -3 10,167
U.S. Agencies Securities 12,683 - - 12,683 -
Common Stock 646 646 - - -
State of California LAIF 131,939 - - 131,939 -
Short-Term Investments 1,904,454 62,706 1,841,748 - -
Total $ 2,081,685 $ 70,518 $ 1,856,378 $ 144,622 $ 10,167

Credit Risk. At June 30, 2022, $3.3 million of U.S. Agency Securities were rated AA+ by S&P and Aaa
by Moody's, the remaining $9.4 million were not rated individually by S&P or Moody's. The $1.8 billion
of short-term investments were rated AAAm by S&P and Aaa by Moody’s, and the remaining balance
was not rated by either S&P or Moody's.

As of June 30, 2022, investments in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) held by fiscal agents
totaled $131.9 million. The total amount invested by all public agencies in LAIF was $35.8 billion. The
LAIF is part of the State’s Pooled Money Investment Account (PMIA). As of June 30, 2022, the
investments in the PMIA totaled $231.9 billion, of which 98.1% is invested in non-derivative financial
products and 1.9% in structured notes and asset-backed securities. The weighted average maturity of
LAIF investments was 311 days as of June 30, 2022. LAIF is not rated.

Concentration of Credit Risk. According to the City’s Investment Policy, no more than 10% of the
portfolio, except U.S. Treasuries and Agencies, may be invested in securities of a single issuer
including its related entities. There is no specific requirement in the agreements with fiscal agents that
limits the amount fiscal agents may invest in any one issuer. At June 30, 2022, the City had no
investment holdings of more than 10% in any one issuer.

At June 30, 2022, the fair value hierarchy of the City's Other Investments are as follows (in

thousands):
Fair Value Measurements Using
Quoted Prices in Active Significant Other
Markets for Identical Observable Inputs
Investments Amount Assets (Level 1) (Level 2)
Investments Subject to Fair Value Hierarchy
U.S. Government Securities $ 31,963 $ 31,963 $ -
U.S. Agencies Securities 12,683 - 12,683
Common Stock 646 646 -
Total Investments Subject to Fair Value
Hierarchy $ 45292 $ 32,609 $ 12,683
Investments Not Subject to Fair Value Hierarchy
State of California LAIF $ 131,939
Short-Term Investments 1,904,454
Total Investments not Subject to Fair Value
Hierarchy $ 2,036,393
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B. Receivables

1. Primary Government

The primary government's net receivables at June 30, 2022 are as follows (in thousands):

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities
Gross Receivables
Taxes $ 1,168,965 $ --
Accounts 748,767 1,342,834
Special Assessments 16,395 -
Investment Income 22,870 17,082
Intergovernmental 572,997 35,580
Leases 16,934 579,684
Loans and Notes 3,532,177 75,786
Total 6,079,105 2,050,966
Allowance for Uncollectibles
Taxes (33,227) --
Accounts (481,813) (391,355)
Loans and Notes (1,313,558) -
Total (1,828,598) (391,355)
Net Receivables $ 4,250,507 $ 1,659,611

Net Receivables not Scheduled for Collection
During the Subsequent Year:
Loans, Notes, Leases, and Intergovernmental $ 2,413,622 $ 490,346

The majority of the governmental activities loans consist of grant funded loans provided as follows:

e Loans to property owners for the upgrading and rehabilitation of residential or rental properties to
eliminate the spread of slums and blight and repair earthquake damage;

e Loans to businesses to carry out economic development projects; and

¢ Loans to community-based organizations to acquire, construct or improve existing public facilities.
Interest rates ranged from 0.0% to 14.0% for outstanding interest bearing loans.

The principal and interest are paid either monthly, quarterly, annually (amortizing loans), or when
residual receipts are generated in accordance with the loan agreements (residual receipts loans), or
deferred until maturity, transfer of title or sale of property occurs (deferred loans). The net loans
receivable balance of $2.2 billion includes net interest receivable of $608.2 million at June 30, 2022.

The business-type activities loans solely include Power’s long-term notes from Intermountain Power
Agency (refer to Note 5C).

C. Restricted Assets

The primary government’s restricted assets consisted of the following at June 30, 2022 (in thousands):

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities

Cash and Investments

Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents, and Other Investments $ 10,572 $ 2,549,589

Investments Held by Escrow and Fiscal Agents -- 2,726,342

Subtotal 10,572 5,275,931
Other Restricted Assets

Restricted Passenger/Customer Facility Charge Receivable -- 21,133
Total (Refer to Note 1E.4) $ 10,572 $ 5,297,064
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D. Regulatory Assets and Liabilities

Regulatory assets and liabilities are created by the actions of the Board of Water and Power
Commissioners by deferring certain expenses and revenues that are recoverable or payable by future
rate charges in accordance with the current rate ordinances, so as to more evenly match the recognition
of revenues and expenses with the electric rates charged to retail customers.

1. Power Enterprise Fund

Below is a summary of Power’s regulatory assets and liabilities at June 30, 2022 (in thousands):

Balance Balance
Description June 30, 2021 Additions Deductions  June 30, 2022
Assets

Underrecovered Costs - Long-Term $ 35,712 $ - $ (29,978) $ 5,734
Regulatory Assets - Legal Settlements 48,000 - (16,000) 32,000
Regulatory Assets - Solar Incentive Program 177,958 -- (14,038) 163,920
Regulatory Assets- Energy Efficiency Program 633,459 123,546 (105,052) 651,953
Regulatory Assets - Customer Care and Billing System 25,515 -- (3,040) 22,475
Regulatory Assets - Other 884,932 123,546 (138,130) 870,348
Regulatory Assets - Pension 233,406 -- (233,406) --
Regulatory Assets - OPEB 274,667 - (142,381) 132,286
Total Regulatory Assets - noncurrent 1,428,717 123,546 (543,895) 1,008,368
Underrecovered Costs - current 129,767 217,973 (129,767) 217,973
Total Regulatory Assets $ 1,558,484 $ 341,519 $ (673,662) $ 1,226,341

Deferred Inflows
Deferred Inflows from Regulated Business Activities 186,473 717 -~ 187,190

Total Regulatory Liabilities $ 186,473 $ 717 $ -3 187,190

Regulatory assets for legal settlements pertain to payments to governmental organizations as a result
of an agreement reached from the courts related to the inclusion of capital components in the rates
charged. Beginning July 2014, customers' bills include a charge for this legal settlement to be
collected over a 10-year period.

Starting April 2011, customers’ bills include a charge for Power’s solar incentive programs, a multiyear
program to provide customers with solar incentives for installing solar panels and necessary
equipment to generate energy, which will be collected over a 15-year period. Effective July 2011,
customers’ bills include a charge, for energy efficiency programs to be collected over a 5 to 15 year
period, aimed at reducing energy consumption and improving the environment. At June 30, 2022,
Power has 26 energy efficiency programs.

Beginning January 2014, customers’ bills include a charge related to training for customer care and
billing system, to be collected over a 10-year period. During fiscal year 2019, Power determined
certain costs originally capitalized as a regulatory asset were not expected to move forward for
regulatory asset rate recovery. Remaining costs in customer care and billing system regulatory assets
relate to training costs on the system and will be recovered through future rates.

The pension regulatory asset was established in relation with the implementation of GASB Statement
No. 68 and is expected to be amortized over a period not to exceed 15 years. The OPEB regulatory
asset was established in relation with the implementation of GASB Statement No. 75 and is expected
to be amortized over a period not to exceed 15 years.

As provided in the Electric Rate Ordinance, Power is required to maintain balancing accounts to
record the differences between specific costs incurred and amounts billed through rates to recover
those costs. The net amount of these balancing accounts is presented on the statement of net position
as a current asset when costs are underbilled (current portion of underrecovered costs) or as a
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current liability when costs are overbilled (overrecovered costs). All of these balancing accounts are
expected to be settled within a 12-month period through the adjustment of pass-through rates during
the billing process and are reported as a component of underrecovered costs in the accompanying
statement of net position.

Deferred inflows from business activities represent revenue collected from customers where funds are
deferred for future stabilization or deferred because the earnings process is not complete. For the year
ended June 30, 2022, Power did not recognize any of this revenue.

Underrecovered costs of $5.7 million were shown as other noncurrent assets in the statement of net
position at June 30, 2022.
2. Water Enterprise Fund

Below is the summary of Water’s regulatory assets at June 30, 2022 (in thousands):

Balance Balance
Description June 30, 2021 Additions Deductions  June 30, 2022
Assets

Regulatory Assets - Water Conservation Rebates $ 107,458 $ 4,019 $ (11,929) $ 99,548
Regulatory Assets - Stormwater Capture Program 48,500 97 (1,566) 47,031
Regulatory Assets - Customer Care and Billing System 11,311 1 (1,367) 9,945
Regulatory Assets - Other 167,269 4,117 (14,862) 156,524
Regulatory Assets - Pension 105,055 -- (105,055) --
Regulatory Assets - OPEB 127,859 - (67,364) 60,495
Underrecovered Costs 9,378 89,979 (9,378) 89,979
Total $ 409,561 $ 94,096 $ (196,659) $ 306,998

Water conservation is an integral part of the water resources management efforts and is a key
element of maintaining a sustainable supply of water for the City. Water provides customers with 26
water conservation programs that are designed to reduce indoor and outdoor water usage. Initially the
programs included low-flow showerheads and incentives to customers who purchase the high-
efficiency toilets and high-efficiency clothes washing machines in an effort to reduce water use. In
2015, the program was expanded to include outdoor water savings through a turf reduction program to
encourage replacing water-guzzling grass with low-water use shrubs and permeable walkways.
Beginning June 2011, water bills include a charge, related to water conservation program payments to
be collected over a period of 5 to 20 years.

The goal of Water's Stormwater Capture Program is to capture stormwater for recharging the basin
with water that would otherwise runoff to the ocean, and thus be lost as a usable source to customers.
Regulatory assets related to the Watershed Management Programs include investing in dams,
reservoirs, and spreading grounds owned by other agencies, but the water collected benefits Water
customers. Beginning August 2013, customers’ bills include a related charge to be collected over a
period of at least 30 years.

In 2013, Water implemented the customer care and billing system (CC&B). The implementation of the
system required significant investment in training of the Water's employees. Beginning January 2014,
customers’ bills include a charge related to training for the CC&B to be collected over a 10-year
period. As rates are established at a level sufficient to recover all such costs, the Water System
recorded a regulatory asset. During fiscal year 2019, the Water's management determined that certain
costs originally capitalized as a regulatory asset were not expected to move forward for regulatory
asset rate recovery. Remaining costs in CC&B regulatory asset relate to training costs on the system
and will be recovered through future rates.

The pension and OPEB regulatory asset was established in connection with the implementation of
GASB Statement No. 68 and No. 75, respectively, is expected to be amortized over a period not to
exceed 15 years.
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As provided in the Water System Rate Ordinance, Water is required to maintain balancing accounts to
record differences between specific costs incurred and amounts billed through rates to recover those
costs. At June 30, 2022, underrecovered costs of $90.0 million was included in the prepaid items and
other assets in the statement of net position.

E. Joint Ventures

1.

2,

Intermodal Container Transfer Facility Joint Powers Authority

Harbor and the Port of Long Beach (POLB) entered into a joint powers agreement to form the
Intermodal Container Transfer Facility Joint Powers Authority (ICTF) for the purpose of financing and
constructing a facility to transfer cargo containers between trucks and railroad cars. Harbor
contributed $2.5 million to the ICTF as part of the agreement. The facility, which began operations in
December 1986, was developed and operated by Southern Pacific Transportation Company (SPTC)
under a long-term lease agreement. SPTC was subsequently merged and continues operations as
Union Pacific Corporation (UPC). Harbor appoints two members of the ICTF’s five-member governing
board and accounts for its investment using the equity method. Both Harbor and POLB share income
and equity distributions equally.

ICTF has issued bonds in prior years. At June 30, 2022, there were no outstanding bonds.

The ICTF’s operations are financed from lease revenues by ICTF activities. The ICTF is empowered
to perform those actions necessary for the development of the facility, including acquiring,
constructing, leasing, and selling any of its property. Harbor’s share of the ICTF’s net position at June
30, 2022 was $5.5 million.

Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority

In August 1989, the Alameda Corridor Transportation Authority (ACTA) was established through a
Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement between the Cities of Los Angeles and Long Beach, California.
The purpose of ACTA is to acquire, construct, finance, and operate a 20-mile-long consolidated
transportation corridor; including an improved railroad expressway between the Harbor, the Port of
Long Beach, and downtown Los Angeles.

Harbor has no share of the ACTA’s net position and income at June 30, 2022, and accordingly, they
have not been recorded in Harbor’s financial statements. If in the future, ACTA is entitled to distribute
income or make equity distributions, Harbor and POLB shall share such income and equity
distributions equally.
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F. Capital Assets

1.

Governmental Activities

Capital asset activity for governmental activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 is as follows
(in thousands):

Balance
June 30, 2021 Additions / Deductions / Balance
Restated* Transfers Transfers June 30, 2022
Capital Assets not Depreciated / Amortized
Land $ 900,604 $ 39 $ - $ 900,643
Infrastructure 459,170 1,418 (8,539) 452,049
Construction in Progress 1,189,903 251,997 (163,462) 1,278,438
Intangible Assets 50,989 3,819 (1,650) 53,158
Total Capital Assets not Depreciated / Amortized 2,600,666 257,273 (173,651) 2,684,288
Capital Assets Depreciated / Amortized
Buildings and Improvements 5,483,601 91,820 - 5,575,421
Intangible RTU Buildings, Facilities, and
Improvements 111,992 21,769 - 133,761
Machinery, Furniture and Equipment 1,895,369 64,573 (26,537) 1,933,405
Intangible RTU Machinery, Furniture and Equipment 2,246 -- -- 2,246
Infrastructure 3,938,187 118,483 (762) 4,055,908
Intangible Assets 190,758 19,753 (277) 210,234
Total Capital Assets Depreciated / Amortized 11,622,153 316,398 (27,576) 11,910,975
Less: Accumulated Depreciation / Amortization
Buildings and Improvements (2,308,782) (134,068) -- (2,442,850)
Intangible RTU Buildings, Facilities, and
Improvements - (22,911) - (22,911)
Machinery, Furniture and Equipment (1,391,300) (120,895) 26,537 (1,485,658)
Intangible RTU Machinery, Furniture and Equipment -- (1,034) -- (1,034)
Infrastructure (1,756,233) (80,784) 762 (1,836,255)
Intangible Assets (128,019) (14,328) 277 (142,070)
Total Accumulated Depreciation / Amortization (5,584,334) (374,020) 27,576 (5,930,778)
Total Capital Assets Depreciated / Amortized, Net 6,037,819 (57,622) -- 5,980,197
Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net $ 8,638,485 $ 199,651 $ (173,651) $ 8,664,485

*The beginning balance of $114.2 million has been restated for the adoption of GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. Detailed information can be found in Note 1E.21. New
asset categories, including Intangible RTU Buildings, Facilities, and Improvements and Intangible RTU Machinery, Furniture and Equipment for the City's leased assets,
and the related accumulated amortization, have been added due to the implementation of the pronouncement.

Depreciation/amortization expense was charged to functions/programs of the governmental activities
as follows (in thousands):

Function/Program Amount

General Government $ 43,398
Protection of Persons and Property 80,899
Public Works 58,613
Health and Sanitation 53,385
Transportation 65,431
Cultural and Recreational Services 59,328
Community Development 12,966
Total Depreciation/Amortization Expense - Governmental

Activities $ 374,020
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Lease related right-to-use assets by major class of underlying assets consist of the following (amounts
in thousands):

Balances Accumulated Net Balances

RTU Asset June 30, 2022 Amortization June 30, 2022

Land $ 5,200 $ (529) $ 4,671
Building and Facilities 128,561 (22,382) 106,179
Machinery, Furniture and Equipment 2,246 (1,034) 1,212
Total lease related assets $ 136,007 $ (23,945) $ 112,062

In accordance with GASB No. 87, as lessee, the City recognized $23.9 million of amortization
expense as of June 30, 2022.

2. Business-type Activities

Capital asset activity for business-type activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 is as follows
(in thousands):

Balance
June 30, 2021 Additions / Deductions / Balance
Restated* Transfers Transfers June 30, 2022
Capital Assets not Depreciated / Amortized
Land $ 3,001,333 $ 3473 $ - $ 3,004,806
Construction in Progress 8,156,313 2,273,890 (2,958,528) 7,471,675
Intangible Assets 60,144 -- -- 60,144
Nuclear Fuel 39,316 11,785 (10,810) 40,291
Natural Gas Field 139,416 89 (10,810) 128,695
Total Capital Assets not Depreciated / Amortized 11,396,522 2,289,237 (2,980,148) 10,705,611
Capital Assets Depreciated / Amortized
Buildings, Facilities and Equipment 58,637,293 4,136,041 (72,343) 62,700,991
Intangible RTU Buildings, Structures, and
Improvements 99,319 2,296 - 101,615
Intangible RTU Machinery, Furniture and Equipment 23,443 4,915 -- 28,358
Intangible Assets 305,601 21,850 - 327,451
Total Capital Assets Depreciated / Amortized 59,065,656 4,165,102 (72,343) 63,158,415
Less: Accumulated Depreciation / Amortization
Buildings, Facilities and Equipment (24,055,392) (1,718,772) 65,376 (25,708,788)
Intangible RTU Buildings, Structures, and
Improvements (4,760) (10,516) - (15,276)
Intangible RTU Machinery, Furniture and Equipment (8,610) (11,435) - (20,045)
Intangible Assets (52,771) (9,278) -- (62,049)
Total Accumulated Depreciation / Amortization (24,121,533) (1,750,001) 65,376 (25,806,158)
Total Capital Assets Depreciated / Amortized, Net 34,944,123 2,415,101 (6,967) 37,352,257
Business-type Activities Capital Assets, Net $ 46,340,645 $ 4,704,338 § (2,987,115) $§ 48,057,868

*The beginning balance of $109.4 million has been restated (see Note 1E.21) for the adoption of GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. New asset categories Intangible RTU
Buildings, Structures and Improvements, and RTU Machinery, Furniture and Equipment for the City's leased assets, and the related accumulated amortization, have

been added due to the implementation of the pronouncement.
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Additions to accumulated depreciation/amortization are accounted for as follows (in thousands):

Depreciation and Amortization Expense Charged to

Functions of Business-type Activities: Amount
Airport $ 628,246
Harbor 147,272
Power 724,461
Water 218,599
Sewer 177,633
Convention Center 12,370
Total $ 1,908,581

For Water and Power, depreciation and amortization expense on the statement of revenues,
expenses and changes in net position, and cash flows include amortization expense on software and
regulatory assets, which is not included in the additions to accumulated depreciation above.

Lease related right-to-use assets by major class of underlying assets consist of the following (in

thousands):
RTU Asset Airports Harbor Power Water Sewer
Land $ 45911 $ - $ 1,251 $ 645 $ -
Building and Facilities 8,688 1,446 16,948 8,556 18,170
Machinery, Furniture and Equipment 23,939 773 2,443 1,203 -
Total Right-to-Use 78,538 2,219 20,642 10,404 18,170
Accumulated Amortization (26,229) (1,727) (3,688) (1,853) (1,824)
Total $ 52,309 $ 492 $ 16,954 $ 8,551 $ 16,346

Power has undivided direct interests in several electric generating stations and transmission systems
that are jointly owned with other utilities. Power will incur certain minimal operating costs related to the
jointly owned facilities regardless of the amount or its ability to take delivery of its share of energy
generated. Power’s proportionate share of the operating costs of the joint plants is included in the
corresponding categories of operating expenses. The following schedule shows the ownership
interest in each jointly owned utility plant as included in capital assets in the statement of net position
at June 30, 2022:

Share of Utility Plant in Service (in thousands)

Ownership Capacity Accumulated

Interest (megawatts) Cost Depreciation
Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station 5.7 % 224 $ 634,717 $ 443,377
Mojave Generating Station 30.0 - 3,409 229
Pacific Intertie DC Transmission Line 40.0 1,240 339,766 104,143
Other Transmission Systems -- Various 128,846 76,291
Total $ 1,106,738 $ 624,040

3. Fiduciary Funds

LACERS’ office furniture, equipment and software includes costs for developing the LACERS’ new
Pension Administration System (PAS). The total capitalized cost of $9.4 million is being amortized
over 15 years using the straight-line method. Office furniture and equipment acquisitions of at least
$5,000 are capitalized and depreciated over five years.
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On October 9, 2019, LACERS approved the purchase of a commercial office building and
underground parking structure located at 977 N. Broadway in Los Angeles, California to serve as
LACERS future headquarters building. The purchase was settled at $33.7 million on October 23,
2019. The purchase price was allocated to Land valued at $4.0 million and Building valued at $29.7
million, based on the assessment performed on the fair value of acquired assets. In addition, LACERS
incurred $0.2 million in acquisition costs and subsequent building improvements costing $10.6 million,
of which $9.8 million were incurred during the fiscal year, which were capitalized as part of the building
cost. As of the end of the fiscal year, major capital improvements are still in progress to prepare the
building for occupancy. The project has been impacted by the ongoing supply chain delays for
construction materials and supplies. Once the building is put to use, LACERS will begin to record
depreciation expense of the headquarters.

G. Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers
The following tables are summaries of the City’s interfund balances at June 30, 2022 (in thousands):

1. Due From/To Other Funds

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General MICLA Special Revenue $ 2,165
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 109,805
111,970
Nonmajor Governmental Funds General 67,686
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 16,244
Sewer 19
83,949
Power Water 53,751
Sewer General 34,805
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 102
34,907
Total $ 284,577

The receivable balances of the General Fund are mainly from the various governmental funds, which
represent short-term loans to cover tardy receipts of revenues, while the payable balance is
composed primarily of encumbered and unexpended budgetary transfers for certain costs allocated to
the various Nonmajor Governmental funds. Power’s receivable from Water is related to outstanding
costs of certain services provided by the fund. The receivable balance of Sewer pertains to
reconciliation of related cost reimbursements as of June 30, 2022.

2. Advances To/From Other Funds

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

General Nonmajor Governmental Funds $ 26,859
MICLA Debt Service Nonmajor Governmental Funds 99,142
Nonmajor Governmental Funds General 50,038
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 26,456

76,494

Sewer General 6,092
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 4,440

10,532

Total $ 213,027
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The above balances represent interfund borrowings payable beyond one year. Advances from the
General Fund represent borrowings to cover temporary revenue shortfalls required to be maintained
intact. The $99.1 million MICLA Debt Service advances to other funds represent loans for redeeming
Special Parking Revenue Fund bonds, Sixth Street Viaduct Improvement Fund; Staples Center Trust
Fund, and Bridge Improvement Program Fund. The $6.1 million Sewer advances to the General Fund
pertain to expenditures incurred for the repair of various wastewater facilities damaged during the

Northridge earthquake.

3. Interfund Transfers

Transfer In Transfer Out Amount

General Nonmajor Governmental Funds $ 685,637
Power 225,015

910,652

MICLA Debt Service General 221,965
Nonmajor Governmental Funds General 838,114
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 108,155

946,269

Total $ 2,078,886

Transfers are used to 1) move receipts restricted to debt service from the funds collecting the receipts
to the debt service fund as debt service payments become due; 2) use unrestricted revenues collected
in the General Fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with
budgetary authorizations; and 3) move unrestricted revenues collected in certain enterprise funds to
partially finance various programs in the General Fund in accordance with budgetary authorizations.

In fiscal year 2022, significant transfers include the following: 1) $225.0 million from Power to the
General Fund; 2) $222.0 million from General Fund and MICLA Special Revenue Fund for the
purpose of debt requirement obligations; and 3) $838.1 million budget allocation from the General
Fund to finance various departmental programs including $362.7 million to the Recreation and Parks,
$218.0 million for Library Department, and $22.9 million for payments of sidewalk and curb repairs.

H. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

The primary government’s accounts payable and accrued expenses at June 30, 2022 are broken down

as follows (in thousands):

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities
Accounts, Contracts and Retainage Payable $ 545,051 $ 1,114,624
Accrued Salaries and Overtime Payable 198,298 113,191
Intergovernmental Payable 4,985 -

Total $ 748,334 $ 1,227,815
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. Long-Term Liabilities
1. Governmental Activities

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

The changes in the governmental activities long-term liabilities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022
are as follows (in thousands):

Balance
June 30, 2021 Balance Due Within
Restated” Additions Deductions June 30, 2022 One Year

General Obligation Bonds $ 627,460 $ 277,430 $ (165,875) $ 739,015 $ 88,770
Lease Revenue Bonds 1,329,696 154,205 (135,535) 1,348,366 115,095
Direct Placements 64,469 - (14,128) 50,341 10,208
Commercial Paper Notes 330,600 80,000 (195,000) 215,600 --
Revenue Bonds 164,495 -- (17,480) 147,015 18,560
Subtotal Bonds and Notes 2,516,720 511,635 (528,018) 2,500,337 232,633
Add: Unamortized Premium and

Discount 171,645 48,127 (31,926) 187,846 -
Total Bonds and Notes 2,688,365 559,762 (559,944) 2,688,183 232,633
Claims and Judgments 2,623,998 424,979 (313,041) 2,735,936 351,988
Loans Payable to HUD 46,323 -- (7,659) 38,664 4,522
Financed Purchase Obligations 42,799 - (12,250) 30,549 12,432
Lease Liabilities 114,239 21,769 (21,603) 114,405 22,634
Compensated Absences 792,992 390,345 (402,508) 780,829 208,367
Landfill Liability 41,815 84 (341) 41,558 -
Estimated Pollution Remediation

Liability 12,048 17,716 (18,304) 11,460 9,147
Total Other Liabilities 3,674,214 854,893 (775,706) 3,753,401 609,090
Net Pension Liability 8,856,477 -- (5,206,614) 3,649,863 -
Net OPEB Liability 2,094,474 -- (1,187,730) 906,744 -
Governmental Activities

Long-term Liabilities $ 17,313,530 $§ 1,414,655 $§  (7,729,994) $ 10,998,191 $ 841,723

*The beginning balance of $114.2 million has been restated (see Note 1E.21) for the adoption of GASB Statement No. 87, Leases.

General Obligation Bonds (GO Bonds)

The following summarizes the various voter authorizations for GO Bonds that were outstanding as of
June 30, 2022 (in thousands):

Amount Amount
Amount Issued as of Authorized
Election Date Project Authorized June 30, 2022 But Unissued

November 1998 Zoo Facilities $ 47,600 $ 47,600 $ --

Fire, Paramedic, Helicopter and
November 2000 Animal Shelter Projects 532,648 532,648 -

Emergency Operations, Fire Dispatch
March 2002 and Police Facilities 600,000 600,000 -
November 2004 Stormwater Projects 500,000 439,500 60,500
November 2016 Homelessness Reduction and

Prevention and Housing Projects 1,200,000 574,550 625,450
Total $ 2,880,248 $ 2,194,298 $ 685,950
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The bonds are general obligations of the City payable as to principal and interest from proceeds of ad
valorem taxes that may be levied, without limitation as to rate or amount, upon property subject to
taxation by the City. Principal and interest payments are enforceable through a writ of mandamus, a
legal process by which a court can compel specific performance of the City. In the event of a default,
bondholders may take the City to court to compel a tax levy given the City's ad valorem taxing power.

In the case of defeasance, all obligations of the City with respect to the outstanding bonds or such
portion thereof shall cease and terminate, except (i) the obligation of the City to pay the bond owners
all sums due thereon, (ii) the obligation of the City to make deposits to and payments from the Excess
Earnings Fund for the specific bond series, and (iii) the obligation of the City to pay the Paying Agent,
if other than the Treasurer or any other officer of the City, the amounts owing to the Paying Agent. The
source of funds for the obligations described above is proceeds based on the City's ad valorem taxing

power.

The GO Bonds outstanding as of June 30, 2022 and the original amounts issued are as follows (in

thousands):

Original Outstanding
Final Maturity Interest Rates Amount Balance

Series 2016-A, Refunding 9/1/31 1.050% - 3.150% $ 143,815 $ 87,590
Series 2017-A 9/1/37 1.470% - 3.500% 86,370 69,090
Series 2017-B, Refunding 9/1/27 5.000% 81,895 25,010
Series 2018-A 9/1/38 2.900% - 4.000% 276,240 234,795
Series 2018-B, Refunding 9/1/29 5.000% 34,665 34,665
Series 2018-C, Refunding 9/1/29 3.300% - 4.000% 10,435 10,435
Series 2021-A 9/1/41 1.500% - 3.000% 211,940 211,940
Series 2021-B, Refunding 9/1/25 4.000% - 5.000% 65,490 65,490
Total $ 910,850 $ 739,015

On November 10, 2021, the City issued the following General Obligation Bonds (GOB): Series 2021-A
for $211.9 million to finance certain projects for providing safe, clean affordable housing for the
homeless and for those in danger of becoming homeless, and provide facilities to increase access to
mental health care, drug and alcohol treatment, and other services and Series 2021-B for $65.5
million which was used to refund GOB Series 2011-B and 2012-A.

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the GO bonds are as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 88,770 $ 25973 $§ 114,743
2024 71,595 20,372 91,967
2025 54,370 18,094 72,464
2026 47,315 16,272 63,587
2027 46,545 14,577 61,122
2028 - 2032 201,910 51,288 253,198
2033 - 2037 143,600 24,844 168,444
2038 - 2042 84,910 4,683 89,593
Subtotal 739,015 176,103 915,118
Unamortized Premium and Discount 12,682 12,682

Total $ 751697 $ 176,103 $ 927,800
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Lease Revenue Bonds

In 1984, the Mayor and the City Council directed that a lease-purchase program for the acquisition
and improvement of real property and capital equipment be established. A 501(c)(4) nonprofit
corporation, MICLA, was created to serve as the lessor. The City and MICLA have entered into a
number of lease-purchase agreements funded through the sale of certificates of participation, direct
placements, and lease revenue bonds.

The aggregate outstanding balance at June 30, 2022 and the aggregate original amount issued for
MICLA’s lease revenue bonds and direct placements are as follows (in thousands):

Original Outstanding

MICLA Projects Final Maturity Interest Rates Amount Balance
Project 2010-C 11/1/40 1.647%-7.842% $ 18,170 $ 15,225
Project 2015-A 11/1/22 1.260% - 3.592% 292,415 16,290
Project 2016-A 11/1/26 2.000% - 5.000% 125,235 69,695
Project 2016-B 11/1/39 2.000% - 5.000% 685,270 555,845
Project 2018-A 1111127 5.000% 54,430 36,265
Project 2018-B 11/1/37 5.000% 31,270 27,555
Project 2018-C 11/1/27 2.020% - 3.417% 25,630 16,425
Project 2020-A 11/1/30 5.000% 84,725 78,030
Project 2020-B 11/1/40 5.000% 80,850 66,870
Project 2020-C 11/1/41 0.415% - 2.863% 102,265 79,075
Project 2021-A 11/1/38 0.269% - 2.924% 177,470 172,405
Project 2021-B 11/1/38 5.000% 60,481 60,481
Project 2021-C 11/1/41 5.000% 154,205 154,205

Subtotal Lease Revenue Bonds 1,892,416 1,348,366
Project 2016 Streetlights 4/1/24 1.890% - 2.100% 26,369 6,977
Project 2017 Streetlights 6/1/27 2.460% 39,298 20,909
Project 2019 Streetlights 6/1/29 2.010% 17,845 14,153
Project 2020 Streetlights 6/1/31 1.470% 9,088 8,302

Subtotal Direct Placements 92,600 50,341
Total $ 1,985,016 $ 1,398,707

The City has pledged, as security for bonds issued by MICLA, revenues consisting of basic lease
payments pursuant to the equipment lease and real property agreements and earnings from
investment of money held. The City includes all necessary MICLA lease payments in its annual
budget appropriations. Principal and interest paid on MICLA bonds and commercial paper notes for
fiscal year 2022 totaled $401.1 million, while revenue from leases received (reported as transfers in
from other funds in the MICLA Debt Service Fund) and investment earnings totaled $222.0 million.

The lease revenue bonds of $1.3 billion in 2022 are secured with collateral of various facilities and
capital equipment subleased and leased by MICLA to the City, respectively. In the event of default and
termination, MICLA may repossess and re-lease the property and apply the proceeds to the lease
payments of the bonds then outstanding.

MICLA’s outstanding direct placements of $50.3 million in 2022 are secured with collateral of various
facilities and capital equipment of the City. For the MICLA 2016 Streetlights Financing, MICLA 2017
Streetlights Financing, MICLA 2019 Streetlights Financing, and MICLA 2020 Streetlights Financing, in
the event of default, the City shall transfer all remaining funds in the Construction Fund to MICLA, in
which the amounts shall be applied to the rental payments.
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Annual debt service requirements to maturity for MICLA lease revenue bonds and direct placements
are as follows (in thousands):

Lease
Revenue Bonds Direct Placements
Fiscal Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Total

2023 $ 115,095 $ 54,030 $ 10,208 $ 1,015 § 180,348
2024 102,315 50,198 10,423 801 163,737
2025 101,045 46,497 7,055 581 155,178
2026 103,593 42,662 7,211 424 153,890
2027 107,483 38,422 7,371 264 153,540
2028 - 2032 390,014 135,053 8,073 235 533,375
2033 - 2037 321,607 59,276 - - 380,883
2038 - 2042 107,214 8,900 - - 116,114
Subtotal 1,348,366 435,038 50,341 3,320 1,837,065
Unamortized Premium

and Discount 163,175 -- -- -- 163,175
Total $ 1,511,541 § 435,038 $ 50,341 $ 3,320 $ 2,000,240

On December 15, 2021, MICLA issued Lease Revenue Bonds Series 2021-C for $154.2 million, with
interest rate of 5.000% maturing on November 1, 2041. These bonds were issued for retiring certain
maturities of commercial paper notes, used to finance and refinance the acquisition of capital
equipment and acquisition and improvement of certain real properties of the City.

MICLA’s bond payments are secured primarily by revenues from base rental payments, revenues
earned by the facility when available, and revenues collected pursuant to the Gap Funding Agreement
relative to the Staples Arena Development.

Commercial Paper Notes

The City has created two commercial paper (CP) programs secured by lease agreements payable
from the General Fund.

In 2004, the City established a commercial paper program authorizing MICLA to issue up to $200.0
million in lease revenue CP notes to finance and refinance capital equipment, the acquisition and
improvement of real property, and other financing needs of the City (the General MICLA CP). The
General MICLA CP program increased from time to time and is currently authorized for up to $425.0
million. This program allows MICLA to access financial markets quickly; to obtain flexible, short-term
maturities; to borrow only those amounts needed as invoices are received; and to borrow at more
favorable rates. The notes issued mature at a specific time between one and 270 days of issuance.
Upon maturity, they are either re-sold in the open market or refinanced with longer-term bonds. As a
security to the notes, the City and MICLA entered into an asset-transfer lease agreement on certain
capital assets with a carrying net book value as of June 30, 2022 of $90.7 million and estimated fair
value of $497.2 million.

The City has created a second CP program to issue up to $100.0 million in lease revenue CP notes to
finance and refinance capital improvements to the Los Angeles Convention Center facility (the LACC
CP), which also represents a lease obligation of the General Fund.

In connection with each of these CP programs, the City arranged for the issuance of one or more
irrevocable direct-pay letters of credit (LOCs), and entered into a reimbursement agreement with each
of the credit banks. If CP is outstanding and the related letter of credit is stated to expire, and the City
is unable to secure an extension or replacement letter of credit, then the related letter of credit would
be drawn upon prior to its expiration to pay interest and principal due on the CP. Under the
reimbursement agreement, the City is generally required to reimburse the credit banks over a period
of time, but at no more than the stipulated fair rental value of the leased properties. The
reimbursement agreements contain a number of covenants and agreements on the part of the City,
and specify events of default, and remedies.
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In the event of default, the obligations shall bear interest at the default rate, the banks may stop the
issuance of additional commercial paper notes, and reduce the stated amount of the letter of credit. In
the event of termination, the City agrees to pay the bank a termination fee in an amount equal to the
applicable LOC fee rate, the original stated amount, and a prorated amount payable on the date the
LOC is terminated.

The table below summarizes the direct pay letters of credit that currently support the payment of
principal and interest on the General MICLA CP and the LACC CP programs, respectively (in

thousands):
Authorized Outstanding
Amount Amount LOC Fee Rate Expiration Date
Convention Center $ 100,000 $ 20,700 0.280 % 06/30/2025
Series A-1/B-1 150,000 68,100 0.290 % 06/30/2025
Series A-2/B-2 100,000 61,800 0.290 % 06/30/2025
Series A-3/B-3 175,000 65,000 0.290 % 06/30/2025

$ 525,000 $ 215,600

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, MICLA paid $1.2 million of the LOC fees for the general
commercial paper and the Los Angeles Convention Center commercial paper programs. During the
year, MICLA issued $80.0 million of commercial paper notes for the acquisition of capital assets. At
June 30, 2022, outstanding commercial paper notes amounted to $215.6 million with interest rates
ranging from 1.00% to 1.65%.

Build America and Qualified Energy Conservation Bonds

MICLA has designated Series 2010-C as “Recovery Zone Economic Development Bonds” under the
provisions of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009. MICLA expects to receive a
direct subsidy of 45% and 70% of the interest due to bondholders from the United States Treasury for
"Recovery Zone Economic Development Bonds" and "Qualified Energy Conservation Bonds",
respectively. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, MICLA recorded $0.6 million of the interest
subsidy as revenues on the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances. Due
to the actions by Congress relative to sequestration, the subsidy amount of the interest due to
bondholders was reduced by 5.7% for federal fiscal year 2022 (October 1 - September 30).

Revenue Bonds

The revenue bonds outstanding at June 30, 2022 and the original amounts issued are as follows (in

thousands):
Final Original Outstanding
Maturity Interest Rates Amount Balance
Solid Waste Resources
Revenue Bonds

2013-A Series 2/01/27 2.000% - 5.000% $ 73,665 $ 40,590
2013-B Series, Refunding 2/01/29 2.000% - 5.000% 78,780 6,560
2015 Series, Refunding 2/01/24 2.000% - 5.500% 76,670 9,390
2018-A Series 2/01/33 3.000% - 5.000% 110,530 90,475

Total $ 339,645 $ 147,015

The Solid Waste Resources revenue bonds were issued to finance the acquisition of certain
equipment and construction of certain facilities for the refuse collection and disposal system of the
City. The bonds are payable from and secured by a pledge of revenues, which include the solid waste
collection, transfer, recycling, recovery of waste resources and disposal fees, received by the Solid
Waste Resources Revenue Fund.
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Principal and interest paid for the current year and total solid waste resources revenue were $24.0
million and $285.1 million, respectively.

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the Solid Waste Resources revenue bonds are as
follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 18,560 $ 5,599 §$ 24,159
2024 19,260 4,899 24,159
2025 16,945 4,313 21,258
2026 17,315 3,739 21,054
2027 17,710 3,146 20,856
2028 - 2032 46,940 8,091 55,031
2033 10,285 309 10,594
Subtotal 147,015 30,096 177,111
Unamortized Premium 11,989 - 11,989
Total $ 159,004 $ 30,096 $ 189,100

Loans Payable to HUD

The Loans Payable to HUD consist of $18.9 million fixed-rate loans and $19.8 million interim financing
loans. The loans will be repaid from program income generated by Home Partnership Act Grant
(HOME), Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) entitlements and Section 108 Loan Program
Funds. The debt service requirements to maturity are as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 4522 $ 844 $ 5,366
2024 4,456 709 5,165
2025 5,406 564 5,970
2026 1,961 468 2,429
2027 2,022 425 2,447
2028 - 2032 18,642 1,108 19,750
2033 1,655 7 1,662
Total $ 38,664 $ 4,125 $ 42,789

The interest rates on the fixed-rate loans of $18.9 million range from 2.620% to 7.210% and have
maturity dates through 2033. The interim financing loans of $19.8 million bear interest payable
quarterly at 35 basis points (0.350%) above the applicable 3-month T-Bill rate. The loans mature on
various dates through 2033. The interest rate in effect (3-month T-Bill rate of 1.060% + 0.350%) as of
June 30, 2022 of 1.410% was used in the debt service requirement schedule.

Financed Purchase Obligations

The City entered into Equipment Lease-Purchase agreements with JPMorgan Chase Bank
(JPMorgan), and Motorola Solutions, Inc. (Motorola) with the discount rates 1.732% and 1.370% for
the total lease payment amounts of $22.0 million and $64.5 million to finance the acquisition of
vehicles and radios, respectively. The lease payments to maturity are as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 12,432 § 370 $ 12,802
2024 8,997 217 9,214
2025 9,120 94 9,214

Total $ 30,549 § 681 $ 31,230
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The City grants to JPMorgan and Motorola, respectively, a first priority security interest in any and all
of the equipment as collateral security for the secured obligations. If the City fails to pay the rental
payment to JPMorgan within ten days from the due date, the City shall pay JP Morgan on demand as
a late charge five percent (5%) of such overdue amount. If the City fails to pay the lease payment to
Motorola within 60 days from the due date, the lease payment will bear interest at a rate of 6% per
annum from such lease payment due date until paid.

Further, JPMorgan and Motorola may require the City to promptly return all equipment or may enter
the premises where any equipment is located and repossess any equipment without demand or
notice, without any court order or other process of law and without liability for any damage occasioned
by such repossession. JPMorgan and Motorola may terminate the equipment lease. In the event of
such default and any equipment repossession or termination of the lease, the City shall continue to
remain liable for the payment of the lease payments and damages for breach of the equipment lease.

In the event of termination of the lease by JPMorgan or Motorola due to default by the City, the City
agrees to pay JPMorgan or Motorola all proper and reasonable out-of-pocket costs and expenses
incurred by JPMorgan related to the repossession, safekeeping, storage, repair, reconditioning, re-
leasing, sale or other disposition of equipment, including reasonable attorney fees.

-120 -



Annual Comprehensive Financial Report

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
2. Business-type Activities

Changes in Long-term Liabilities

The changes in the business-type activities long-term liabilities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022
are as follows (in thousands):

Balance
June 30, 2021 Balance Due Within
Restated* Additions Deductions June 30, 2022 One Year
Airports Revenue Bonds and Notes  $ 8,322,826 $ 2,679,357 $ (753,422)$ 10,248,761 $ 297,281

Harbor Revenue Bonds 665,670 - (88,335) 577,335 40,210
Power System Revenue Bonds and

Revenue Certificates 10,148,613 1,536,070 (744,703) 10,939,980 269,485
Water System Revenue Bonds and

Loans 6,135,104 856,568 (787,210) 6,204,462 168,244
Wastewater System Revenue

Bonds, Notes, and Loans 2,726,914 664,895 (737,226) 2,654,583 195,785
Subtotal Revenue Bonds, Notes,

and Loans 27,999,127 5,736,890 (3,110,896) 30,625,121 971,005
Add (Less):

Net Unamortized Premiums and

Discounts 3,451,955 925,277 (443,444) 3,933,788 --

Net Revenue Bonds, Notes, and

Loans 31,451,082 6,662,167  (3,554,340) 34,558,909 971,005
Compensated Absences 266,547 59,949 (46,917) 279,579 182,460
Claims and Judgments 206,474 28,228 (24,799) 209,903 30,445
Lease Liabilities 110,758 6,651 (19,725) 97,684 14,534
Estimated Pollution Remediation

Liability 168,787 6,371 (10,968) 164,190 18,557
Other Liabilities 26,762 268,907 (2,763) 292,906 --
Subtotal 32,230,410 7,032,273  (3,659,512) 35,603,171 1,217,001
Net Pension Liability 2,422,735 - (1,708,949) 713,786 --
Net OPEB Liability 390,128 -- (390,128) -- --
Asset Retirement Obligation 236,596 6,107 (18,426) 224,277 -
Total $ 35,279,869 $ 7,038,380 $ (5,777,015)$ 36,541,234 $ 1,217,001

*The beginning balance of $110.8 million has been restated (see Note 1E.21) for the adoption of GASB Statement No. 87, Leases.

Airports Revenue Bonds and Notes

Revenue bonds, revenue refunding bonds, and commercial paper notes outstanding at June 30, 2022,
and the original amounts issued are as follows (in thousands):

Final Original Outstanding

Maturity Interest Rates Amount Balance
Fixed Rate Revenue Bonds 2051 0.264% -7.053% $ 10,776,000 $ 10,094,845
Commercial Paper Notes -- 153,916 153,916
Subtotal $ 10,929,916 10,248,761
Net Unamortized Bond Premiums and Discounts 1,594,512
Net Revenue Bonds and Notes $ 11,843,273

On October 6, 2021, Airports issued $753.2 million of LAX subordinate revenue bonds Series 2021D
with a premium of $178.4 million and $125.8 million of LAX subordinate refunding revenue bonds
Series 2021E. The series 2021D bonds were issued to fund certain capital projects at LAX, refund a
portion of the outstanding commercial paper notes and refund and defease a portion of the
subordinate revenue bonds Series 2016A and a portion of the senior refunding revenue bonds Series
2016C in the amount of $217.7 million and $13.4 million, respectively.
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The Series 2021E bonds were issued to pay a portion of the interest due on November 15, 2021 of
certain existing bonds and refund and defease a portion of the refunded Series 2016A and 2016C.
These transactions resulted in cash flow savings of $18.9 million, an economic gain of $18.8 million;
and a net loss for accounting purposes of $13.2 million, which is included in the deferred outflows of
resources and is being amortized over the life of the bonds.

On January 20, 2022, Airports issued $347.4 million of LAX subordinate revenue bonds Series 2022A
with a premium of $77.4 million and $157.6 million of LAX subordinate revenue bonds Series 2022B
with a premium of $39.4 million. The bonds were issued to fund certain capital projects at LAX and
refund a portion of the outstanding commercial paper notes.

On February 15, 2022, Airports issued $307.1 million of LAX subordinate revenue and refunding
revenue bonds Series 2022C with a premium of $42.2 million, $101.5 million subordinate refunding
bonds Series 2022D with a premium of $23.2 million, $20.2 million subordinate refunding revenue
bonds Series 2022E with a premium of $4.1 million and $41.0 million of LAX subordinate revenue
bonds Series 2022F. The bonds were issued to fund certain capital projects at LAX, refund a portion
of the senior revenue bonds Series 2012A and Series 2012B in the amount of $50.7 million and
$116.9 million, respectively. This transaction resulted in cash flow savings of $40.9 million, an
economic gain of $30.0 million; and a net gain for accounting purposes of $15.5 million, which is
included in deferred inflows of resources and is being amortized over the life of the bonds.

On March 16, 2022, Airports issued $546.0 million of LAX CFC revenue bonds Series 2022A. The
bonds were issued to pay and reimburse a portion of the Consolidated Rental Car Facility (ConRAC)
project, fund the bond interest expense through June 30, 2023, fund deposits to the Senior Reserve
Fund, the Rolling Coverage Fund and the Common Transportation System (CTS) Payment Account,
and refund a portion of commercial paper notes which were previously used to finance a portion of
ConRAC project.

The bonds are subject to optional and mandatory sinking fund redemption prior to maturity. Airports
has agreed to certain covenants with respect to bonded indebtedness. Significant covenants include
the requirement that Airports’ pledged revenues, as defined in the master senior and subordinate
indentures, shall be the security and source of payment for the bonds which will remain in place until
the bonds are no longer outstanding.

Airports has received approval from the FAA to collect and use passenger facility charges (PFCs) to
pay for debt service on bonds issued to finance the Tom Bradley International Terminal (TBIT)
Renovations, Bradley West projects and Terminal 6 improvements. The Board of Airport
Commissioners authorized the amount of $97.5 million for debt service in fiscal year 2022. In fiscal
year 2022, Airports Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations Act (CRRSAA)
grants in the amount of $8.5 million was used to apply against LAX maintenance and operation
expenses.

The total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the bonds is $17.1 billion as of June 30, 2022.
Principal and interest paid in fiscal year 2022 and the net pledged revenues, after application of the
$97.5 million PFCs funds and $8.5 million CRRSAA grants were $567.3 million and $644.5 million,
respectively.

Airports’ net pledged revenues include substantially the total operating revenue with the Build America
Bonds (BABs) subsidy, nonoperating Transportation Security Administration (TSA) revenue, interest
income net of Passenger Facility Charges (PFC), Customer Facility Charges (CFC) and construction
funds, but do not include PFC revenues, CFC revenues, and certain other nonoperating revenues.
Airports’ pledged revenue coverage is found in the Statistical Section-Pledged Revenue Coverage.
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Scheduled annual principal maturities and interest are as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 297,281 $ 479,214 $ 776,495
2024 206,255 472,422 678,677
2025 244,670 462,087 706,757
2026 292,405 450,149 742,554
2027 306,585 435,994 742,579
2028-2032 1,865,035 1,941,302 3,806,337
2033-2037 2,286,025 1,446,085 3,732,110
2038-2042 2,358,300 864,063 3,222,363
2043-2047 1,781,045 372,559 2,153,604
2048-2052 611,160 46,210 657,370
Subtotal 10,248,761 6,970,085 17,218,846
Net Unamortized Bond Premiums and Discounts 1,594,512 - 1,594,512

Total $ 11,843,273 $§ 6,970,085 $§ 18,813,358

As of June 30, 2022, Airports had outstanding commercial paper (CP) notes of $153.9 million. The
average interest rate in effect as of June 30, 2022 is 1.06%. The CP notes mature no more than 270
days from the date of issuance. The CP notes were issued as a means of interim financing for certain
capital expenditures and redemption of certain bond issues.

As of June 30, 2022, Airports had letters of credit (LOC) and reimbursement agreements with the
following institutions to provide liquidity and credit support for the CP program: Barclays Bank PLC
(Barclays) for $228.9 million to expire on September 8, 2023; Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation
(Sumitomo); acting through its New York Branch for $218.0 million to expire on September 9, 2022;
and Bank of America, N.A. for $98.1 million to expire on September 6, 2024.

As of June 30, 2022, Airports had undrawn LOC balances of $228.9 million from Barclays and $176.4
million from Sumitomo.

On August 25, 2022, Airports entered into reimbursement agreements with the following institutions to
provide support for the CP program: Barclays for $327.0 million, to expire on August 24, 2026 (a
replacement for the prior Barclays LOC); Bank of America for $109.0 million, to expire on August 24,
2026 (a replacement for the prior Bank of America LOC); and PNC Bank, N.A. for $109.0 million, to
expire on August 24, 2027 (a substitution for the prior Sumitomo LOC).

In fiscal year 2022, Airports paid the LOC banks an annual commitment fee ranging from 0.39% and
0.85% on the stated amount of the LOC. LOC fees of $4.3 million were paid for fiscal year 2022.

Airports had the following CP activities during fiscal year 2022 (in thousands):

Balance Balance
June 30, 2021 Additions Deductions June 30, 2022
Series A $ 52,175 $ 44,337 $ (16,636) $ 79,876
Series B 18,125 34,714 (1,912) 50,927
Series C 28,041 200,416 (205,344) 23,113
$ 98,341 § 279,467 $ (223,892) $ 153,916

Build America Bonds

LAX Subordinate Revenue Bonds 2009 Series C and 2010 Series C with par amounts of $307.4
million and $59.4 million, respectively, were issued as federally taxable Build America Bonds (BABs)
under the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009. Airports receives a direct federal
subsidy payment in the amount equal to 35% of the interest expense on the BABs. The automatic cuts
in spending (referred to as “sequestration”) for the federal fiscal year ended September 30, 2022
reduced the subsidy. The interest subsidy on the BABs was $7.1 million in fiscal year 2022. The BABs
sequestration rate was 5.7% for fiscal year 2022. The subsidy is recorded as a non-capital grant, a
component of other nonoperating revenue.
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Other Significant Obligations

Aside from Airports' debt obligations incurred under the Master Senior and Subordinate Indentures,
Airports' other significant obligations include:

Automated People Mover (APM) Agreement

The APM Agreement contains (1) a provision that if LAX terminates the agreement for any of the
allowable reasons under the agreement, LAX will owe the APM Developer various amounts, as
applicable, including amounts associated with equity and debt contributions made or arranged by the
APM Developer and various other breakage costs, with such amounts being payable by LAX within
120 days of the termination date of the agreement, and (2) a provision that if the APM Developer
terminates the agreement for any of the allowable reasons under the agreement, LAX will owe the
APM Developer various amounts, as applicable, including amounts associated with equity and debt
contributions made or arranged by the APM Developer and various other breakage costs, with such
amounts being payable by LAX within 120 days of the termination date of the agreement.

Consolidated Rental Car Facility (ConRAC) Agreement

The ConRAC Agreement contains (1) a provision that if LAX terminates the agreement for any of the
allowable reasons under the agreement, LAX will owe the ConRAC Developer various amounts, as
applicable, including amounts associated with equity and debt contributions made or arranged by the
ConRAC Developer and various other breakage costs, with such amounts being payable by LAX
within 120 days of the termination date of the agreement, and (2) a provision that if the ConRAC
Developer terminates the agreement for any of the allowable reasons under the agreement, LAX will
owe the ConRAC Developer various amounts, as applicable, including amounts associated with equity
and debt contributions made or arranged by the ConRAC Developer and various other breakage
costs, with such amounts being payable by LAX within 120 days of the termination date of the
agreement.

Harbor Revenue Bonds and Loans

Bonds issued by the Harbor are payable solely from the Harbor's revenues pledged under indentures
and are not general obligations of the City. Harbor has agreed to certain covenants with respect to
bonded indebtedness. Significant covenants include the requirement that the Harbor's revenues, as
defined under indentures, will be sufficient to pay future bond interest and principal maturities. In
compliance with the bond indenture Article VII, Sections 7.01 and 7.02 in the event of default by the
Harbor in the due and punctual payment of parity obligations, the trustee may and shall at the
direction of the bond certificate owners of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the
bonds at the time outstanding, upon notice in writing to the Harbor, shall declare the principal of all of
the bonds then outstanding, and the interest accrued thereon, to be due and payable immediately.
Proceeds from sales of bonds are used to finance capital projects around the Harbor or refund prior
issuances to generate debt service savings.

Revenue bonds and revenue refunding bonds outstanding at June 30, 2022, and the original amounts
issued are as follows (in thousands):

Final Original Outstanding

Maturity  Interest Rates Amount Balance
Revenue Bonds 2045 2.000% - 5.000% $ 738,965 $ 577,335
Net Unamortized Bond Premiums and Discounts 54,391
Net Revenue Bonds $ 631,726
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Revenue bonds and refunding bonds are collateralized by the future revenues of the Harbor
Enterprise Fund. Principal and interest paid for the current year and net pledged revenue were $119.0
million and $411.2 million, respectively. Harbor's net pledged revenue is the difference between
operating revenue, pledged pooled investment or interest income and noncapital grant revenues, and
operating expenses excluding depreciation and amortization, interest and other nonoperating
expenses. Information on Harbor's pledged revenue coverage is found in the Statistical Section-
Pledged Revenue Coverage.

On September 21, 2021, Harbor redeemed an aggregate par amount of $41.1 million of its
outstanding bonds comprised of 2011 Series A bonds for $8.3 million and 2011 Series B bonds for
total of $32.8 million. Accrued interest of $0.3 million from August 1, 2021 to the redemption date was
added to the final redemption amount for a grand total of $41.4 million. A portion of the Common
Reserve allocated to 2011 Series A and B bonds totaling $4.3 million was released toward the
redemption on the settlement date by the Trustee, therefore reducing Harbor's outflow of cash toward
this redemption to $37.1 million.

Harbor has established a Commercial Paper program (Program) supported by bank credit lines to
issue commercial paper notes (Notes) to provide interim financing primarily for the construction,
maintenance, and replacement of Harbor’s structures, facilities, and equipment needs.

Pursuant to an Indenture of Trust dated as of June 1, 2019 by and between Harbor and U.S.Bank,
National Association and the credit agreement dated as of June 1, 2019 by and between Harbor and
PNC Bank, National Association, Harbor is authorized to issue and to have outstanding up to $150.0
million aggregate principal amount of the Harbor Department of the City of Los Angeles Revenue
Revolving Obligations (Revolving Obligations) which constitute parity obligations. The credit
agreement expired on June 10, 2022.

There were no outstanding revolving obligations as of June 30, 2022.

Scheduled annual principal maturities and interest are as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 40,210 $ 27,167 $ 67,377
2024 43,355 25,092 68,447
2025 43,415 22,933 66,348
2026 47,955 20,654 68,609
2027 49,480 18,218 67,698
2028 - 2032 79,095 76,205 155,300
2033 - 2037 127,065 50,399 177,464
2038 - 2042 98,525 22,619 121,144
2043 - 2045 48,235 3,698 51,933
Subtotal 577,335 266,985 844,320
Net Unamortized Bond Premiums and Discounts 54,391 - 54,391
Total $ 631,726 $ 266,985 $ 898,711

There were no new bond issuances in fiscal year 2022.
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Power Revenue Bonds and Direct Placements

Revenue bonds and revenue refunding bonds due serially in varying annual amounts are as follows
(in thousands):

Final Original Outstanding
Maturity Interest Rates Amount Balance

Fixed Rate Revenue Bonds 2053 1.146% -4.441% $ 12,173,489 $ 9,948,280
Variable Rate Revenue Bonds 2052 Various 1,259,100 791,700
Direct Placements 2039 Various 200,000 200,000
Subtotal $ 13,632,589 10,939,980

Net Unamortized Bond Premiums and Discounts 1,387,444
Net Revenue Bonds and Notes $ 12,327,424

Revenue bonds generally are callable 10 years after issuance. Power has agreed to certain covenants
with respect to bonded indebtedness. Significant covenants include the requirement that the Power’s
net income, as defined, will be sufficient to pay certain amounts of future annual bond interest and of
future annual aggregate bond interest and principal maturities. Revenue bonds and refunding bonds
are collateralized by the future revenues of Power.

In December 2021, Power issued $401.7 million of Power System Revenue Bonds, 2021 Series C.
The net proceeds of $507.0 million, including a $105.3 million issue premium net of underwriter’s
discount, were used to pay for capital improvements and refund a portion of the outstanding Power
System Revenue Bonds, 2018 Series B, amounting to $118.5 million. The transaction resulted in a net
gain for accounting purposes of $0.3 million, which was capitalized as deferred inflows on debt
refunding and is being amortized over the life of the refunded bonds.

In February 2022, Power issued $375.0 million of Power System Revenue Bonds, 2022 Series A. The
net proceeds of $481.1 million, including a $106.1 million issue premium net of underwriter's discount,
were used to pay for capital improvements.

In April 2022, Power issued $360.0 million of Power System Revenue Bonds, 2022 Series B. The net
proceeds of $426.4 million, including a $66.4 million issue premium net of underwriter’s discount, were
used to pay for capital improvements.

In June 2022, Power issued $399.4 million of Power System Revenue Bonds, 2022 Series C. The net
proceeds of $438.6 million, including a $39.2 million issue premium net of underwriter’s discount, were
used to refund a portion of the outstanding Power System Revenue Bonds, 2012 Series A, amounting
to $88.5 million, and all of the outstanding Power System Revenue Bonds, 2012 Series B, amounting
to $350.0 million. The transaction resulted in a net present value savings of $44.8 million and a net
gain for accounting purposes of $37.0 million, which was capitalized as deferred inflows on debt
refunding and is being amortized over the life of the refunded bonds.

As of June 30, 2022, Power had variable rate bonds outstanding in the amount of $991.7 million. Of
these variable rate bonds, $200.0 million is in direct placement bonds. In January 2021, the Power
issued $250.0 million of Power System Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, 2021 Series A, to pay
costs of capital improvements of the Power. The variable rate bonds currently bear interest at weekly
and daily rates ranging from 0.27% to 0.90% as of June 30, 2022. Power can elect to change the
interest rate period of the bonds with certain limitations. The bondholders have the right to tender the
bonds to the tender agent on any business day with seven days’ prior notice. Power has entered into
standby and line of credit agreements with a syndicate of commercial banks to provide liquidity for the
variable rate bonds in the amount of $323.0 million, $219.0 million and $250.0 million as of June 30,
2022. The extended standby agreements expire in January 2023 for the $323.0 million, May 2024 for
the $219.0 million, and in July 2023 for the $250.0 million.
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Under the agreements, $514.0 million variable rate bonds will bear interest that is payable monthly at
the greatest of (a) the prime rate plus 1.00%; (b) the federal funds rate plus 2.00%; and (c) 7.50%,
$59.0 million variable rate bonds will bear interest that is payable at the greatest of (a) the prime rate;
and (b) the federal funds rate plus 0.5%, $219.0 million variable rate bonds will bear interest that is
payable monthly at the greatest of (a) the prime rate plus 1.00%; (b) the federal funds rate plus 2.00%;
and (c) 7.00%. The unpaid principal of each liquidity advance made by the liquidity provider is payable
in 10 equal semiannual installments 90 days immediately following the related liquidity advance. At its
discretion, Power has the ability to convert the outstanding bonds to fixed-rate obligations, which
cannot be tendered by the bondholders.

The variable rate bonds have been classified as long-term in the statement of net position as the
liquidity facilities give Power the ability to refinance on a long-term basis and Power intends to either
renew the facility or exercise its right to tender the debt as a long-term financing. The portion that
would be due in the next fiscal year in the event that the outstanding variable rate bonds were
tendered and purchased by the commercial banks under the standby agreements, has been included
in the current portion of long-term debt at $79.2 million as of June 30, 2022.

Principal and interest paid for the current year and net pledged revenue were $667.2 million and $1.6
billion, respectively. Power’s net pledged revenue is the difference between operating revenue, net
nonoperating revenue, AFUDC and capital contributions and operating expenses excluding
depreciation and amortization expense. Information on Power’s pledged revenue coverage is found in
the Statistical Section-Pledged Revenue Coverage.

Under GASB Statement No. 88, "Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowings and
Direct Placements", Power has the following direct placement debt and unused line of credit:

In May 2020, Power entered into a Continuing Covenant Agreement (CCA) with Bank of America, N.A
(Bank of America) for the placement of the $200.0 million Power System Revenue Bonds, 2014 Series
A (Power 2014A Bonds) under a direct purchase structure. In May 2014, the Power System initially
sold $200.0 million of Power 2014A Bonds in an index-floating rate mode under a direct purchase
structure with Wells Fargo Municipal Capital Strategies, LLC (Wells Fargo) through a continuing
covenant agreement that expired on May 5, 2017. The continuing covenant agreement with Wells
Fargo was amended in May 2017 to extend for another three years and expired on May 4, 2020. The
CCA with Bank of America will expire on May 2, 2025. Under the CCA with Bank of America, the
Power 2014A Bonds will pay interest at a fixed spread of 27 basis points (0.27%) above the Securities
Industry and Financial Markets Association (SIFMA) Index for the five-year term. At the end of the five-
year term, Power would have the option to either renegotiate and renew a new index floating rate term
with Bank of America or another bank or convert the bonds to another mode, such as a fixed-rate
mode or a traditional variable-rate mode, which utilizes a standby agreement. Certain default
provisions under the CCA include, but are not limited to, failure to pay amounts due under the CCA
and certain other obligations of Power, failure to perform certain covenants under the CCA, actions
taken in connection with a debt restructuring or similar of the Department, significant rating
downgrades of obligations payable from the Power Revenue Fund, and significant nonappealable
judgments against the Department. Such defaults may result in a mandatory redemption of the Power
2014A Bonds or other remedial actions taken by Bank of America. Power does not have any assets
pledged as collateral for direct placement debt, termination events with finance-related consequences,
or subjective acceleration clauses as of June 30, 2022.

On December 14, 2018, Power entered into an Amended and Restated Revolving Credit Agreement
(Amended RCA) and the related Amended and Restated Fee and Interest Rate Agreement with Wells
Fargo Bank, National Association with a $300.0 million commitment and the option to request
additional commitment, as needed, up to a total commitment of $500.0 million. Power can request
loans for Water System improvements, Power System improvements, and/or such other lawful
purposes of the Department. The interest charge for tax-exempt loans is based on SIFMA plus a
spread of 0.50% or 75% of one-month LIBOR plus a spread of 0.45%. The interest charge for taxable
loans is based on one-month LIBOR plus a spread of 0.45%. The Amended RCA expires in
December 2023. As of June 30, 2022, Power has no outstanding commercial paper notes.
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Scheduled annual principal maturities and interest are as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total

2023 $ 190,315 $ 391,616 $ 581,931
2024 263,873 384,915 648,788
2025 245,536 377,230 622,766
2026 301,536 369,119 670,655
2027 356,296 358,535 714,831
2028 - 2032 2,007,407 1,569,964 3,577,371
2033 - 2037 2,151,681 1,236,590 3,388,271
2038 - 2042 2,114,535 840,053 2,954,588
2043 - 2047 2,094,950 345,649 2,440,599
2048 - 2052 1,126,100 56,461 1,182,561
2053 17,050 -- 17,050
Subtotal 10,869,279 5,930,132 16,799,411
Net Unamortized Bond Premiums and

Discounts 1,387,444 -- 1,387,444
Total $ 12,256,723 $ 5,930,132 $ 18,186,855

Interest and amortization are net of $1.4 billion of unamortized discount/premium and gain/loss due to
issuances of new and refunding bonds.

This schedule is presented assuming that the tender options on the variable rate bonds will not be
exercised and should the bondholders exercise the tender options, Power would be required to
redeem the $991.7 million in variable rate bonds and direct placement over the next six years, as
follows: $79.2 million in fiscal year 2023, $158.3 million in each of the fiscal years 2024 through 2025,
$198.3 million in fiscal year 2026 through 2027, and $119.2 million in fiscal year 2028, and $40.0
million in each of the fiscal years 2029 through 2030. Accordingly, the statement of net position
recognizes the possibility of the exercise of the tender options and reflect the $79.2 million that could
be due in fiscal year 2023 as a current portion of long-term debt payable. Interest and amortization
include interest requirements for variable rate bonds over the regularly scheduled maturity period.
Variable debt interest rate in effect at June 30, 2022 averages 0.69%. Should the tender options be
exercised, the interest would be payable at the rate in effect at the time the standby agreements are
activated.

Water Revenue Bonds and Loans

Revenue bonds, revenue refunding bonds due serially in varying annual amounts, and other long-term
debt are as follows (in thousands):

Final Original Outstanding
Maturity  Interest Rates Amount Balance
Fixed Rate Revenue Bonds 2053 0.624%-4.374%$ 5,325270 $§ 4,877,085
Variable Rate Revenue Bonds 2052 Various 754,765 582,300
Loans Payable to California SWRCB and DWR 2052  0.000% - 2.085% 884,537 745,077
Subtotal $ 6,964,572 6,204,462
Net Unamortized Bond Premiums and Discounts 670,283
Net Revenue Bonds and Notes $ 6,874,745

Revenue bonds generally are callable 10 years after issuance. Water has agreed to certain covenants
with respect to bonded indebtedness. Significant covenants include the requirement that Water’s net
income, as defined, will be sufficient to pay certain amounts of future annual bond interest and of
future annual aggregate bond interest and principal maturities. Revenue bonds and refunding bonds
are collateralized by the future revenue of Water.
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Water entered into one new loan agreement with the SWRCB and none with the DWR during fiscal
year 2022. No funding for the new SWRCB loan was received during fiscal year 2022. Existing
SWRCB loans received $35.0 million to fund water quality capital improvements and made principal
payments of $30.0 million.

In April 2022, the Water System issued $494.7 million of Water System Revenue Bonds, 2022 Series
B. The net proceeds of $604.4 million, including $109.7 million issue premium net of underwriter's
discount, were used to pay for budgeted capital improvements to the Water System, refund a portion
of the outstanding Water System Revenue Bonds 2012 Series A, amounting to $138.4 million, refund
a portion of the outstanding Water System Revenue Bonds 2012 Series B, amounting to $161.0
million and refund a portion of the outstanding Water System Revenue Bonds 2012 Series C,
amounting to $41.7 million. The transaction resulted in a net present value savings of $81.4 million
and a net gain for accounting purposes of $23.6 million, which was capitalized as deferred inflows on
debt refunding and is being amortized over the life of the refunded bonds.

In June 2022, the Water System issued $326.9 million of Water System Revenue Bonds, 2022 Series
C. The net proceeds of $382.1 million, including a $55.2 million issue premium net of underwriter's
discount, were used to pay for budgeted capital improvements to the Water System, refund all of the
remaining $138.4 million outstanding Water System Revenue Bonds 2012 Series A, refund all of the
remaining $161.0 million outstanding Water System Revenue Bonds 2012 Series B, and refund a
portion of the outstanding Water System Revenue Bonds 2012 Series C, amounting to $41.7 million.
The transaction resulted in a net present value savings of $60.6 million and a net gain for accounting
purposes of $27.0 million, which was capitalized as deferred inflows on debt refunding and is being
amortized over the life of the refunded bonds.

As of June 30, 2022, Water had $582.3 million in variable rate bonds. The variable rate bonds
currently bear interest at daily and weekly rates ranging from 0.27% to 0.90% as of June 30, 2022.
Water can elect to change the interest rate period of the bonds, with certain limitations. The
bondholders have the right to tender the bonds to the tender agent on any business day with seven
days’ prior notice. Water has entered into standby agreements with a syndicate of commercial banks
to provide liquidity for the variable rate bonds in the amount of $126.2 million (2001B, Subseries B-1 to
B-3), $56.1 million (2001B, Subseries B-4), $130.0 million (2019A, Subseries A-1), $70.0 million
(2019A, Subseries A-2), and $200.0 million (2021A, Subseries A-1 to A-2) as of June 30, 2022. The
extended standby agreements expire in January 2023 for $200.0 million, January 2024 for $126.2
million, and January 2026 for $256.1 million.

Under the agreements, $382.3 million of variable rate bonds will bear interest that is payable monthly
at the greatest of (i) Prime Rate plus 1.00%; (ii) the Federal Funds Rate plus 2.00%; and (iii) 7.50%
and $200.0 million variable rate bonds will bear interest that is payable monthly at the greatest of (i)
Prime Rate plus 1.50%, (ii) the Federal Funds Rate plus 2.00%, and (iii) 7.00%. The unpaid principal
of each liquidity advance made by the liquidity provider is payable in 10 equal semiannual installments
90 days immediately following the related liquidity advance. At its discretion, the Water System has
the ability to convert the outstanding bonds to fixed rate obligations, which cannot be tendered by the
bondholders.

The variable rate bonds have been classified as long-term on the statement of net position as the
liquidity facilities give the Water System the ability to refinance on a long-term basis, and the Water
System intends to either renew the facilities or exercise its right to tender the debt as a long-term
financing. That portion, which would be due in the next fiscal year in the event that the outstanding
variable rate bonds were tendered and purchased by the commercial banks under the standby
agreements, has been included in the current portion of long-term debt at $58.2 million as of June 30,
2022.

Principal and interest paid for the current year and net pledged revenue were $356.8 million and
$658.1 million, respectively. Water's net pledged revenue is the difference between operating
revenue, net nonoperating revenue, AFUDC and capital contributions and operating expenses
excluding depreciation and amortization expense. Information on Water's pledged revenue coverage
is found in the Statistical Section-Pledged Revenue Coverage.
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Under GASB Statement No. 88, "Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowings and
Direct Placements", the Water System has the following direct placement debt and unused line of
credit:

The Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF), administered by the State of California’s State
Water Resources Control Board, assists public water systems in financing the cost of drinking water
infrastructure projects needed to achieve or maintain compliance with Safe Drinking Water Act
(SDWA) requirements. The DWSRF utilizes a prioritized project ranking system to ensure that
program resources are applied to projects addressing public health risk problems, projects needed to
comply with the SDWA, and projects assisting public water systems most in need on a per household-
affordability basis. Water has applied for and received funding from the DWSRF for critical Water
System capital projects required for compliance with federal drinking water regulations, specifically the
Long-Term 2 Enhanced Surface Water Treatment Rule and the Stage 2 Disinfection by Products
Rule. This funding has been made available to Water in the form of low or 0% interest loans with a
repayment period of up to 30 years.

The CalConserve Water Use Efficiency Loan Program, administered by the State of California
Department of Water Resources (DWR), established a loan program to local agencies for specific
types of water conservation and water use efficiency projects and programs to achieve urban water
use targets. Water has applied for and received funding from the DWR that will be used to implement
an Institutional Water Use Efficiency Loan Program. This funding has been made available to Water
as a 0% interest loan with a repayment period of 20 years.

The direct borrowings from the DWSRF and DWR contain specified terms relating to certain default
provisions as defined by each respective funding agreement. Certain default provisions under the
funding agreements include, but are not limited to, material breach of the funding agreement,
cessation of operations or bankruptcy, failure to pay amounts due, making false representations with
respect to the funding agreements, and failure to meet compliance requirements. Some agreements
may be terminated at the option of the lender upon material violation and failure to become compliant.
Such termination may result in the immediate repayment of disbursed funds. The Water System does
not have any assets pledged as collateral for direct borrowings or subjective acceleration clauses.

Water and Power entered into an Amended RCA and the related Amended and Restated Fee and
Interest Rate Agreement with Wells Fargo Bank, National Association with a $300.0 million
commitment and the option to request additional commitment, as needed, up to a total commitment of
$500.0 million. The detailed information is described above on page 127. As of June 30, 2022, Water
has no obligations outstanding under the Amended RCA.

Scheduled annual principal maturities and interest are as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 110,014 $ 202,549 $ 312,563
2024 136,642 198,039 334,681
2025 143,228 193,131 336,359
2026 149,658 187,908 337,566
2027 152,558 183,344 335,902
2028 - 2032 948,938 831,364 1,780,302
2033 - 2037 1,115,740 671,235 1,786,975
2038 - 2042 1,272,872 470,003 1,742,875
2043 - 2047 1,271,622 243,161 1,514,783
2048 - 2052 873,150 51,314 924,464
2053 30,040 -- 30,040
Subtotal 6,204,462 3,232,048 9,436,510
Net Unamortized Bond Premiums and Discounts 670,283 - 670,283
Total $ 6,874,745 $ 3,232,048 $ 10,106,793

The interest and amortization is net of $742.3 million of unamortized discount/premium and gain/loss
due to issuances of new and refunding bonds.

-130 -



Annual Comprehensive Financial Report

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

The maturity schedule presented above reflects the scheduled debt service requirements for all of the
Water System’s long-term debt. The schedule is presented assuming that the tender options on the
variable rate bonds will not be exercised. Should the bondholders exercise the tender options, Water
could be required to redeem the $582.3 million in variable rate bonds outstanding over the next six
fiscal years as follows: $58.2 million in fiscal year 2023, $116.5 million in each of the fiscal years 2024
through 2027, and $58.2 million in fiscal year 2028. Accordingly, the statements of net position
recognize the possibility of the exercise of the tender options and reflect the $58.2 million that could
be due in fiscal year 2023, as a current portion of long-term debt payable.

Interest and amortization presented in the above schedule include interest requirements for the
variable rate debt over the regularly scheduled maturity period. Variable debt interest rate in effect at
June 30, 2022 averages 0.52%. Should the tender options be exercised, the interest would be
payable at the rate in effect at the time the standby agreements are activated.

Wastewater System Revenue Bonds, Notes, and Loans

Revenue bonds, commercial paper notes, and loans outstanding at June 30, 2022, and the original
amounts issued are as follows (in thousands):

Final Original Outstanding
Maturity  Interest Rates Amount Balance
Revenue Bonds 2052 1.000% -5.813% $ 3,142,310 $ 2,536,220
Loans Payable to California SWRCB 2024 1.800% 219,081 39,339
Commercial paper notes -- Variable -- 79,024
Subtotal $ 3,361,391 2,654,583
Net Unamortized Bond Premiums and Discounts 227,158
Net Revenue Bonds, Notes and Loans $ 2,881,741

Wastewater revenue bonds are issued under Senior Lien and Subordinate Lien General Resolutions
dated November 10, 1987 and March 26, 1991, respectively, with a total authorization of $3.5 billion.
The voters of the City subsequently approved a new Charter which became effective July 1, 2000.
Under the new Charter, revenue bonds and notes of the City may be issued in accordance with the
Procedural Ordinance and without any further authorization by the voters of the City. Proceeds of
wastewater revenue bonds and notes are restricted for the funding of the costs of construction,
replacement and improvement of the wastewater system of the City.

Under the terms of the General Resolutions, the City has pledged the Sewer’s revenues (as defined)
to secure the payment of all bonds issued under the General Resolutions. Certain bond agreements
provide for the early redemption of the revenue bonds at the City’s option at various dates with
redemption prices at 100% of the principal amount of the bonds called for redemption. Upon and
during the continuance of an event of default, the principal of and interest accrued on all bonds may
be declared to be due and payable immediately.

On April 19, 2022, Sewer issued Wastewater System Subordinate Revenue Bonds, Series 2022-A
and 2022-B, in the amounts of $99.0 million and $70.3 million, respectively, with 5.0% and various
interest rates, respectively. The proceeds of the Series 2022-A and 2022-B were used to pay a portion
of the outstanding Wastewater System Commercial Paper Notes, and pay certain costs of issuing the
Series 2022- A and B Subordinate Bonds.

On April 1, 2022, Sewer issued Wastewater System Subordinate Revenue Bonds, Refunding Series
2022-C in the amount of $380.6 million plus $61.0 million premium with 5.0% interest rate. The
proceeds of the Series 2022-C Bonds were used to pay a total of $444.6 million of all or a portion of
the outstanding City of Los Angeles Wastewater System Subordinate Revenue Bonds, Series 2010-A,
Refunding Series 2012-B and C, Refunding Series 2018-C1 and C2, the outstanding City of Los
Angeles Wastewater System Revenue Bonds, Refunding Series 2012-A, and pay certain costs of
issuing the Series 2022-C bonds. The total economic gains for the refunding transactions Subordinate
Series 2022-C were $31.5 million. The total cash flow savings for the refunding transactions Series
2022-C were $42.4 million.
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The differences between the net carrying amount of the old debt and the amount required to retire the
debt in the amount of $18.8 million is deferred and amortized over the original remaining life of the old
debt or life of the new debt, whichever is shorter.

Build America and Recovery Zone Economic Development Bonds

The City has designated the Senior Lien Bonds Series 2010-A and 2010-B as Build America Bonds
and Recovery Zone Economic Development Bonds, respectively, under the provisions of the
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009. The City expects to receive a direct subsidy of
35% and 45% of the interest due to bondholders from the United States Treasury for the Series 2010-
A and 2010-B, respectively, less any scheduled Federal sequestration amounts. Sewer recorded no
interest subsidies for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.

State Revolving Fund Loan

In 2003, the City Council adopted a resolution, approved by the Mayor, authorizing a State Revolving
Fund Loan (Loan) from the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) in the amount of $262.9
million to assist in financing the construction of the North Outfall Sewer-East Central Interceptor
Project (Project). The Project fulfills certain requirements of the Cease and Desist Order issued by the
Regional Water Quality Control Board. The costs of the Project were shared by the contract agencies.

As of June 30, 2022, the Loan balance amounted to $39.3 million. The Loan matures in fiscal year
2025 and annual repayment commenced in August 2005 based on a standard fully amortized loan
calculation at an effective interest rate of 1.8%. The Loan is paid from Sewer’s revenues subordinate
to the Wastewater System senior and subordinate revenue bonds and commercial paper notes. The
contract agencies were billed beginning August 2005 for their proportionate share of the debt service
costs. Payments received from the contract agencies are recorded as capital contributions, which
represent their proportionate share of the costs of the Project.

The City has pledged Sewer’s net revenues as collateral for the Loan. In the case of termination of the
Loan due to the City’s failure to comply with any of the material provisions of the agreement, at the
option of the SWRCB, the City would have to repay the loan amount, including accrued interest at the
highest legal rate from the date that the notice of termination is mailed to the City.

Principal and interest paid for the current year and net pledged revenue were $218.7 million and
$366.6 million, respectively. Sewer's net pledged revenue is the difference between operating
revenues and investment income and operating expenses (excluding depreciation and amortization).
Information on Sewer's pledged revenue coverage is found in the Statistical Section-Pledged
Revenue Coverage.

Scheduled annual principal maturities and interest are as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 195,785 $ 126,944 $ 322,729
2024 119,522 120,795 240,317
2025 124,516 115,332 239,848
2026 117,970 109,621 227,591
2027 124,830 103,830 228,660
2028 - 2032 599,845 431,411 1,031,256
2033 - 2037 500,620 291,207 791,827
2038 - 2042 466,925 165,342 632,267
2043 - 2047 341,215 56,146 397,361
2048 - 2052 63,355 6,669 70,024
Subtotal 2,654,583 1,527,297 4,181,880
Net Unamortized Bond Premiums and Discounts 227,158 - 227,158
Total $ 2,881,741 $ 1527297 $ 4,409,038

The maturity schedule presented above reflects the scheduled debt service requirements for all of
Sewer’s long-term debt.

-132 -



Annual Comprehensive Financial Report

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

Water Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (WIFIA) Loan

Sewer was approved for a WIFIA Loan in the original principal amount of up to $223.9 million from the
United States Environmental Protection Agency under WIFIA for the Advanced Water Purification
Facility which includes three component projects at Donald C. Tillman Water Reclamation Plant. The
project is scheduled to be completed in September 2027 and will provide high quality recycled water
for groundwater recharge. The WIFIA Loan is expected to be disbursed at substantial completion of
the project. The WIFIA Loan is secured on parity with the Subordinate Bonds, and the WIFIA Loan
agreement provides that terms of proposed amendments to the Senior General Resolution and
Subordinate General Resolution will become effective with respect to the WIFIA Loan upon the
approval of such amendments by the requisite percentage of owners of the Senior Lien Bonds or the
Subordinate Bonds, as applicable. Sewer has not drawn against the loan principal as of June 30,
2022.

The City issues commercial paper (Notes) at prevailing interest rates for the maturities not to exceed
270 days under the commercial paper program on behalf of Sewer. The Notes are secured by Letters
of Credit (LOCs) from Barclays Bank PLC and Toronto-Dominion Bank that each expire on October
30, 2024. The aggregate maximum principal amount of the LOCs is $400.0 million, which consist of
$280.0 million in principal for Toronto-Dominion Bank and $120.0 million in principal for Barclays Bank
PLC. Sewer is responsible for the payment of a non-refundable letter of credit fee for each of the
LOCs. The reimbursement agreements with Barclays Bank PLC and Toronto-Dominion Bank contain
a number of covenants and agreements on the part of the City, and specify events of default, and
remedies. In the event of default, the obligations shall bear interest at the default rate, and the banks
may stop the issuance of additional commercial paper notes, and reduce the stated amount of the
letter of credit. There were $79.0 million outstanding Notes as of June 30, 2022 with $1.3 million in
interest expense.

3. Fiduciary Funds

Following is a summary of notes payable activity of Pensions for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022
(in thousands):

Balance Balance Due Within
June 30, 2021 Additions Deductions  June 30, 2022 One Year
Notes Payable $ 217,434 $ 4271 $ (538) $ 221,167 $ 554

The notes payable of the Pensions are secured by real estate. Interest rates range from 1.81% to
4.30% per annum. The debt service payments to maturity for these notes are as follows (in

thousands):
Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 554 § 6,756 $ 7,310
2024 37,593 5,986 43,579
2025 29,050 4,753 33,803
2026 - 4,537 4,537
2027 25,000 4,197 29,197
2028 - 2032 109,810 10,149 119,959
2033 19,160 163 19,323
Total 221,167 § 36,541 $ 257,708
Add: Appreciation/(Depreciation) of
Mortgage Payable (8,667)
$ 212,500
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Debt refunding activities occurred during the fiscal year that resulted in the redemption or defeasance of
certain outstanding obligations. The proceeds from refunding issues and amounts available from the debt
service funds of the refunded bonds were deposited into irrevocable trusts with escrow agents. Following
are the refunding activities that represent in-substance defeasance such that the refunded debts were
removed from the accompanying financial statements (in thousands):

Refunding Debt

Cash Flow Economic
Refunded Debt Savings Gain

Governmental Activities
General Obligation Bonds
Series 2021-B
$65,490
4.000% - 5.000%

Business-type Activities
Airport Subordinate Revenue Bonds

2021 Series D (Private Activity, AMT)
2021 Series E (Federally Taxable)
$753,195/ $125,815

3.000% - 5.000% / 0.264% - 2.811%

Airport Subordinate Revenue and Refunding Bonds
2022 Series C (Private Activity, AMT) $307,070
3.250% - 5.000%

Airport Subordinate Revenue Bonds
2022 Series D (Private Activity, Non-AMT) $101,545
4.000% - 5.000%

Power System Revenue Bonds
2021 Series C

$401,705

3.000% - 5.000%

Power System Revenue Bonds
2022 Series C

$399,365

5.000%

Water System Revenue Bonds
2022 Series B

$494,670

4.000% - 5.000%

Water System Revenue Bonds
2022 Series C

$326,905

Variable
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General Obligation Bonds $ 2,591 $ 4,282
Series 2011-B, Series 2012-A

$15,285 / $53,430

5.000%, 3.000% - 5.000%

Airport Subordinate Revenue Bonds 18,862 18,759
2016 Series A (partial)

$217,680

4.000% - 5.000%

Airports Senior Revenue Bonds
2016 Series C (partial)

$13,365

2.624%

Airports Senior Revenue Bonds 7,401 6,530
2012 Series A (partial) $50,700
5.000%

Airports Senior Revenue Bonds 33,471 23,228
2012 Series B (Non-AMT) $116,905
4.000% - 5.000%

Power System Revenue Bonds - -
2018 Series B

$118,505

4.000% - 5.000%

Power System Revenue Bonds 63,610 42,494
2012 Series A

$88,515

3.000% - 5.000%

Power System Revenue Bonds

2012 Series B

$350,000

5.000%

Water System Revenue Bonds 103,740 72,759
2012 Series A

$138,385

5.000%

Water System Revenue Bonds
2012 Series B

$161,000

5.000%

Water System Revenue Bonds
2012 Series C

$41,680

5.000%

Water System Revenue Bonds 83,176 56,315
2012 Series A

$138,380

5.000%



Annual Comprehensive Financial Report

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

Cash Flow Economic

Refunding Debt Refunded Debt Savings Gain

Water System Revenue Bonds

2012 Series B

$161,000

5.000%

Water System Revenue Bonds

2012 Series C

$41,685
5.000%
Wastewater System Subordinate Wastewater System Revenue Bonds 42,433 31,462
Revenue Bonds Senior & Subordinate
2022 Series C 2010 Series A, 2012 Series A, B, C
$380,570 and 2018 Series C
5.000% $444,550

3.250% - 5.000%; Variable for 2018-C

K. Prior Years Defeasance of Debt

In prior years, the City defeased certain bonds by placing the proceeds of the new bonds in irrevocable
trusts to provide for all future debt service payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust account
assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the City's financial statements.

At June 30, 2022, the following bonds are considered defeased (in thousands):

Governmental Activities

General Obligation Bonds $ 9,915

MICLA Lease Revenue Bonds 140,630

Total $ 150,545
Business-type Activities

Power Revenue Bonds $ 447,540

Water Revenue Bonds 748,170

Total $ 1,195,710

L. Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes

On July 1, 2021, in anticipation of receiving taxes and other revenues, the City issued tax and revenue
anticipation notes (TRAN) with a true interest cost of 0.149% and total premium of $70.3 million,
depositing the proceeds in a General Fund account. The notes were issued to pay the City’s annual
contributions to Pensions and LACERS at the beginning of the fiscal year and to provide effective cash
flow management of the General Fund. The additional interest earned by the pension funds from these
early payments was used to discount the required City contribution without reducing the pension funds’
annual receipts.

Short—term debt activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 was as follows (in thousands):

Beginning Ending
Balance Issued Redeemed Balance

Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes $ - $ 1,854,090 $ (1,854,090) $ --
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M. Leases

A lease is defined as a contractual agreement that conveys control of the right-to-use (RTU) another
entity's nonfinancial asset, for a minimum contractual period of greater than one year, in an exchange or
exchange-like transaction. Whether the City is the lessee or the lessor, nonfinancial assets involved in
these lease contracts are land, buildings, building improvements, vehicles, machinery and equipment,
etc.

The City adopted GASB Statement No. 87, “Leases,” for its basic financial statements at the beginning of
the fiscal year 2022. The City recognized RTU lease assets with related accumulated amortization, lease
liabilities, lease expense, amortization expense, and accrued interest payable as a lessee while
recognized lease receivable, accrued interest receivable, deferred inflows of resources related to leases,
lease revenues, and interest received from leases as a lessor.

The City has a variety of variable payment clauses within its lease arrangements. Components of variable
payments that are fixed in substance are included in the measurement of the lease liability, while variable
payments based on the usage of the underlying asset are excluded from this liability.

Contracts with maximum terms of twelve months or less, those with termination clauses by either party
without notice periods or leases that transfer ownership of the underlying assets are excluded from GASB
Statement No. 87. Due to being under one primary government reporting legal entity, the leases among
City departments, Airports, Harbor, Water and Power, and Sewer are excluded from GASB Statement
No. 87 because the control is not conveyed to another legal entity. Leases with MICLA are also excluded
as MICLA is a blended component unit and the intra-entity leases with the City are eliminated in the City's
basic financial statements.

As of June 30, 2022, the total City’s lease related RTU assets are $266.0 million with accumulated
amortization of $59.3 million, and lease liability is $212.1 million along with $596.6 million lease
receivable and $569.9 million lease related deferred inflow of resources.

1. Governmental Activities

City as Lessee

The City as a lessee, entered into various lease agreements with third parties having terms expiring
between 2023 and 2062, including periods covered by the options to extend, which the City is
reasonably certain to exercise. The terms and conditions for these leases and the materiality threshold
applied to vary by the type of underlying assets, including lands, buildings, facilities, improvements,
vehicles, machinery and equipment. All these agreements have fixed, periodic payments over the
lease term, considering periodic payment escalations based on the Consumer Price Index rates if
stipulated explicitly in the lease contract.

As a lessee, the City recognizes an intangible RTU asset and corresponding lease liability at the
adoption date for pre-existing lease contracts or lease commencement date for new leases in the
fiscal year 2022. RTU asset and lease liability was calculated as the present value of all future lease
payments expected to be paid by the City during the lease term. Unless explicitly stated in the lease
agreement or City can determine the rate implicit within the lease, the discount rate used in the
present value calculation is the City’s incremental borrowing rate (IBR), ranging from 0.354% to
5.340%, applying the appropriate IBR to each contract based on the lease maturity year.
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At June 30, 2022, the City’s lease related RTU assets by major class of underlying assets consist of

the following (in thousands):

Balance

RTU Assets June 30, 2022
Land 5,200
Buildings, Facilities, and Improvements 128,561
Machinery, Furniture and Equipment 2,246
Total RTU Assets 136,007
Accumulated Amortization (23,945)
Net Lease Related RTU Assets 112,062

As of June 30, 2022, the City's principal and interest requirements to maturity for the lease liability are
as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 22,634 $ 2,199 $ 24,833
2024 18,209 1,886 20,095
2025 10,134 1,651 11,785
2026 9,977 1,427 11,404
2027 10,034 1,199 11,233
2028 - 2032 36,635 2,708 39,343
2033 - 2037 2,162 883 3,045
2038 - 2042 669 71 1,380
2043 - 2047 789 591 1,380
2048 - 2052 931 449 1,380
2053 - 2057 1,098 282 1,380
2058 - 2062 1,133 86 1,219
Total $ 114,405 $ 14,072 $ 128,477

As of June 30, 2022, City’s lease related RTU assets is $136.0 million with accumulated amortization
of $23.9 million and lease liability is $114.4 million.

City as Lessor

The City also leases to the third parties various facilities, office, and retail spaces located in buildings
owned by the City with contract terms expiring between 2025 and 2053, including options to extend
that the City is reasonably certain to exercise. The underlying assets leased out to third parties are not
derecognized by the City but remain part of the capital assets with corresponding accumulated
depreciation in its basic financial statements.

As a lessor, the City recognizes a lease receivable and corresponding deferred inflow of resources at
the adoption date of GASB 87 for pre-existing lease contracts or lease commencement date for new
leases in fiscal year 2022 measured as the present value of all future lease revenue to be received
from tenants during the lease term. The City also recognizes interest on lease receivable earned
during the current fiscal year as interest revenue. Unless expressly provided for in the lease contract,
discount rates used for calculating the present value of the lease receivable is the City’s IBR, ranging
from 1.156% to 3.307%, based on the lease maturity year of the eligible lease contracts.
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As of June 30, 2022, the City's principal and interest requirements to maturity for the lease receivables
are as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 1,555 $ 399 $ 1,954
2024 1,521 365 1,886
2025 1,571 330 1,901
2026 1,522 294 1,816
2027 1,564 257 1,821
2028 - 2032 7,209 721 7,930
2033 - 2037 1,192 201 1,393
2038 - 2042 354 93 447
2043 - 2047 183 59 242
2048 - 2052 215 26 241
2053 48 1 49
Total $ 16,934 $ 2,746 $ 19,680

As of June 30, 2022, City has $16.9 million lease receivable and $16.3 million lease related deferred
inflow of resources.

Municipal Improvement Corporation of Los Angeles (MICLA)

The MICLA was formed to finance certain capital improvement projects of the City and enter into long-
term lease agreements with the City. Under the lease agreements, title transfers to the City at the end
of the lease term. If the City defaults under the Lease and Trust Agreements, the Trustee may
terminate the lease and re-let the properties, except for the Streetlights Financing Series. Since
MICLA is included in the City's reporting entity, the lease payments by the City are accounted for in
the fund financial statements as transfers from the General Fund and certain special revenue funds to
the MICLA Debt Service Fund. The leases have been eliminated in the government-wide financial
statements.

2. Business-type Activities

Airports

Airports as a lessee has entered into various agreements for land, buildings, equipment and vehicles
with lease terms expiring between 2022 and 2042, with some leases containing options to renew. The
terms and conditions for these leases vary by the type of underlying asset. Airports recognizes a lease
liability and an intangible RTU asset at the commencement of the lease. RTU lease asset and lease
liability are measured based on the net present value of all future payments using the weighted
average cost of capital which approximates Airports’ incremental borrowing rate. Unless the rate is
explicitly stated in the lease agreement, the IBR was 3.35% as of June 30, 2021, and was the
discount rate utilized as the initial rate to establish the beginning balance of lease liabilities. The IBR
was 3.22% as of June 30, 2022, and was the discount rate utilized for applicable leases beginning in
fiscal year 2022.

At June 30, 2022, the Airports' lease related RTU assets by major class of underlying assets consist
of the following (in thousands):

Balance

RTU Assets June 30, 2022

Land $ 45,911
Buildings, Facilities, and Improvements 8,688
Machinery, Furniture and Equipment 23,939
Total RTU Assets 78,538
Accumulated Amortization (26,229)
Total $ 52,309
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As of June 30, 2022, the Airports’ principal and interest requirements to maturity for the lease liability
are as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 7,568 $ 1,682 $ 9,250
2024 4,990 1,482 6,472
2025 3,782 1,340 5,122
2026 3,223 1,215 4,438
2027 2,595 1,123 3,718
2028-2032 14,457 4,204 18,661
2033-2037 6,898 2,422 9,320
2038-2042 9,765 1,040 10,805
2043 974 8 982
Total $ 54,252 $ 14,516 $ 68,768

As of June 30, 2022, Airports’ lease related RTU assets is $78.5 million with accumulated amortization
of $26.2 million and lease liability is $54.3 million.

Airports as a lessor, leases terminal space (except for regulated leases), aircraft maintenance and
overhaul facilities, cargo facilities, hangars, other building facilities and ancillary land facilities at LAX
to air carriers and other tenants under various agreements, majority of which are non-cancelable and
terminate no later than fiscal year 2050.

As a lessor, Airports recognizes a lease receivable, measured as the present value of the lease
payments expected to be received during the lease term using the weighted average cost of capital
which approximates the discount rate being charged to the tenants or lessee. The deferred inflow of
resources is measured as the value of the lease receivable in addition to any payments received at or
before the commencement of the lease that relate to future periods. Periodic amortization of the
discount on the receivable is reported as interest revenue for that period. Deferred inflows of
resources are recognized as inflows on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Building and Land Leases

Airports leases terminal space, aircraft maintenance and overhaul facilities, cargo facilities, hangars,
and other building facilities and ancillary land facilities at LAX to air carriers and other tenants under
various agreements. The terms of these long-term leases range from more than one to forty years and
generally expire between fiscal years 2023 and 2050. Airports also leases office spaces in Skyview
Center to air carriers and other tenants under various agreements. The terms of these long-term
leases range from two to ten years and generally expire between fiscal years 2023 and 2030.

Concessions Leases

Airports operates a comprehensive concessions program at LAX that includes advertising and
sponsorship, duty free merchandise, food and beverage, retail, and services operators in the terminal
facilities. Contractually, concessionaires pay rent to LAX in an amount equal to the greater of a
percentage of gross sales or a Minimum Annual Guarantee (MAG). The decline in passenger traffic
due to COVID-19 significantly reduced concession sales and prompted the Board of Airport
Commissioners (Board) to temporarily authorize revised payment terms to suspend MAGs through
June 30, 2022, and require concessionaires to pay rent based on percentage of gross sales if the
concession units are open and operational. Due to the variable nature of the above revenues from
year-to-year, expected future minimum payments are indeterminable. Accordingly, these concession
agreements with MAG waiver are not recognized as agreements under GASB Statement No. 87 in
fiscal year 2022.
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As of June 30, 2022, the Airports’ principal and interest requirements to maturity for the lease
receivables are as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 54,691 $ 7,243 $ 61,934
2024 39,766 5,626 45,392
2025 22,640 4,571 27,211
2026 21,285 3,853 25,138
2027 18,255 3,170 21,425
2028-2032 65,782 8,283 74,065
2033-2037 14,799 1,546 16,345
2038-2042 3,743 374 4,117
2043-2047 657 126 783
2048-2050 404 18 422
Total $ 242,022 $ 34,810 $ 276,832

As of June 30, 2022, Airports have $242.0 million lease receivable and $229.3 million lease related
deferred inflow of resources.

Regulated Leases

Airports entered into various Rate Agreements with airlines for usage of LAX facilities for the purpose
of conducting business as air transportation businesses. The 2021 Rate Agreement Amendment was
executed with a term that extends through December 2032. Under the terms of these agreements,
airlines pay LAX monthly fees based on an approved methodology of calculating rates and charges for
airlines and airline consortia.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 87, Airports does not recognize a lease receivable and a
deferred inflow of resources for regulated leases. Regulated leases are certain leases that are subject
to external laws, regulations, or legal rulings, e.g. the U.S. Department of Transportation and the
Federal Aviation Administration, regulated aviation leases between airports and air carriers and other
aeronautical users.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, Airports recognized the following balances related to
regulated leases (in thousands):

RTU Assets Fixed Payments Variable Payments Total
Building Rentals $ 378,980 $ -3 378,980
Land Rentals 35,789 - 35,789

Expected future minimum lease payments from regulated leases at June 30, 2022 based on the
assumption that current agreements are carried to contractual termination, without considering the
potential effect of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, and without considering future expansion and
changes in operations by Airports or the signatory airlines, are as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Total
2023 $ 440,196
2024 420,391
2025 370,111
2026 312,985
2027 270,964
2028-2032 1,330,256
2033-2037 203,194
2038-2042 33,504
2043-2047 9,836
Total $ 3,391,437

- 140 -



Annual Comprehensive Financial Report

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

Under the agreements with the airlines, they may have preferential and exclusive use of certain space
and facilities of the terminal and gates in LAX as summarized below:

Non-exclusively Exclusively Airlines using the
Total Terminal Area Used Terminal Used Terminal Terminal Area
Terminal (SQFT) Area (SQFT) Area (SQFT) Exclusively
T1&T1.5 197,490 28,179 169,311 Southwest Airlines
T2 152,877 3,078 149,799 Delta Air Lines
T3 328,849 1,589 327,260 Delta Air Lines
T4 302,156 1,490 300,666 American Airlines
T5 470,131 33,673 436,458 American Airlines
T6 133,970 30,632 103,338 Alaska Airlines
T7 335,087 4,081 331,006 United Airlines
T8 17,278 583 16,695 United Airlines
TBIT/MSC 207,280 207,280 --
Total 2,145,118 310,585 1,834,533
Note: The information above is based on June 2022 billing.
Common Use Preferential Use Airlines using the
Terminal Total no. of Gates Gates Gates Gates Preferentially
T1&T1.5 13 -- 13 Southwest Airlines
T2 12 2 10 Delta Air Lines
T3 14 - 14 Delta Air Lines
T4 15 -- 15 American Airlines
T5 13 -- 6 American Airlines
T5 -- - 4 Jetblue Airlines
T5 -- -- 3 Spirit Airlines
T6 13 3 8 Alaska Airlines
T6 -- -- 2 Air Canada
T7 15 -- 15 United Airlines
T8 8 -- 8 United Airlines
TBIT 37 36 1 Delta Air Lines
MSC 9 -- 9 Various airlines
Commuter 9 9 --
Total 158 50 108

Note: According to the lease agreements, the above airlines are entitled to use the gates on a preferential basis in accordance with
the scheduling protocols. Airports has the rights to schedule aircraft operations of other airlines on the preferential-use gates if such
scheduling will not interfere with the above airlines' operation.

Harbor

Harbor as a lessee, has obtained right-to-use (RTU) lease assets such as office space, equipment,
radio tower space, and vanpool vehicles through long-term leases. At June 30, 2022, RTU lease
assets and related accumulated amortization are as follows:

Balance
RTU Assets June 30, 2022
Buildings, Facilities, and Improvements $ 1,446
Machinery, Furniture and Equipment 773
Total RTU Assets 2,219
Accumulated Amortization (1,727)
Total $ 492
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Harbor's future annual payments under these leases as of June 30, 2022 are as follows (in

thousands):
Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 277 % 9% 286
2024 120 4 124
2025 75 2 77
2026 34 -- 34
Total $ 506 $ 15 § 521

As of June 30, 2022, Harbor's lease related RTU assets is $2.2 million with accumulated amortization
of $1.7 million and lease liability is $0.5 million.

Harbor as a lessor, leases a portion of lands and facilities to tenants for purposes of supporting port
operations and serve the surrounding communities. These leases generated 13.8% of the Harbor’s
operating revenues in fiscal year 2022. These tenants operate restaurants, yacht clubs, ferry service,
boat repair and maintenance shops, freight and logistics services, as well as oil and gas exploration.
The terms of these leases are long-term in nature ranging from 1 to 66 years and are subject to
periodic review and reset of base amounts. Certain provisions of these leases provide for fixed and
variable rental payments.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, lease payments are as follows (in thousands):

RTU Assets Fixed Variable Total
Land rentals $ 45415 $ 930 $ 46,345

Harbor's future annual receipts for these leases as of June 30, 2022 are as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 36,008 $ 9,647 $ 45,655
2024 25,232 8,786 34,018
2025 10,541 8,309 18,850
2026 9,643 8,011 17,654
2027 9,036 7,729 16,765
2028 - 2032 218,397 93,288 311,685
Total $ 308,857 $ 135,770 $ 444,627

As of June 30, 2022, Harbor has $308.9 million lease receivable and $296.2 million lease related
deferred inflow of resources.

Regulated Leases

The majority of the Harbor’s leases contain nonexclusive right-to-use of the premises and provide
retention of ownership by Harbor under the State tidelands and Federal maritime regulations. These
leases are considered regulated leases.

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2022, the minimum rental income from such lease agreements
was approximately $439.0 million, and was reported under shipping services revenue. Certain
agreements relate to shipping services and certain concessions provide for the additional payment
beyond the fixed portion, based upon tenant usage, revenues, or volumes.
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Assuming that current agreements are carried to contractual termination, minimum tenant
commitments due to the Harbor over the next five years are as follows (in thousands):

Minimum Rental

Fiscal Year Income
2023 $ 392,927
2024 407,543
2025 413,459
2026 418,774
2027 422,783
2028-2032 781,274
2033-2037 724,930
2038-2042 438,307
2043-2047 62,930
Total $ 4,062,927

Power

The Power System adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 87 on July 1, 2021 and the
Power’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 reflect the implementation of this
statement.

The Power System is a lessee for various noncancelable leases of buildings, vehicles and land. At
lease commencement, the Water System initially measures the lease liability at the present value of
payments expected to be made during the lease term. If the present value of payments expected to be
made is below the $100.0 thousand materiality threshold, then expenses will be recognized as short-
term leases. Subsequently, for all other leases, the lease liability is reduced by the principal portion of
lease payments made at or before the lease commencement date.

The Power System generally uses its estimated incremental borrowing rate as the discount for leases
unless the rate that the lessor/vendor charges is known. The Power System's incremental borrowing
rate is based on the long-term average Weighted Average Cost of Capital (WACC) for AA-rated
utilities as the discount rate for leases unless the rate that the lessor charges is known.

The Power System's incremental borrowing rate for leases is based on the rate of interest it would
need to pay if it issued general obligation bonds to borrow an amount equal to the lease under similar
terms at the commencement or remeasurement date.

The Power System monitors changes in circumstances that may require the remeasurement of a
lease. When certain changes occur that are expected to significantly affect the amount of the lease
liability, the liability is remeasured and a corresponding adjustment is made to the lease asset. There
was no remeasurement of leases during fiscal year 2022.

At June 30, 2022, the Power’s lease related RTU assets by major class of underlying assets consist of
the following (in thousands):

Balance

RTU Assets June 30, 2022

Land $ 1,251
Buildings, Facilities, and Improvements 16,948
Machinery, Furniture and Equipment 2,443
Total RTU Assets 20,642
Accumulated Amortization (3,688)
Total $ 16,954

- 143 -



Annual Comprehensive Financial Report

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

As of June 30, 2022, the Power’s annual principal and interest for the lease liability are as follows (in

thousands):
Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 4,633 $ 609 $ 5,242
2024 1,191 564 1,755
2025 1,266 512 1,778
2026 1,038 462 1,500
2027 1,087 418 1,505
2028-2032 6,243 1,192 7,435
2033-2037 565 382 947
2038-2042 835 245 1,080
2043-2047 475 97 572
2048-2052 77 6 83
Total $ 17,410 $ 4,487 $ 21,897

As of June 30, 2022, Power's lease related RTU assets are $20.6 million with accumulated
amortization of $3.7 million, and lease liability is $17.4 million.

The Power System is a lessor for various noncancelable leases covering land and improvements. As
a lessor, the Power System’s long-term land leases cover periods of 30-55 years. A 30-year land
lease has an escalation factor of 5% every five years which commenced on April 15, 2011. This land
lease also contains an Interconnection agreement for an oil terminal and tank farm for storage,
handling and distribution of crude petroleum and petroleum related products, which can be terminated
after ten years from the effective date or termination of lease agreement.

A 55-year secondary land lease was commenced on February 1, 1997. This lease follows the
standard conditions for secondary land use of transmission line right-of-way for nursery, landscape,
greenbelt and agricultural purposes which includes a 30-day written revocation clause by lessor,
Power System. There is an escalation rate based on CPI (All Urban Consumers for Los Angeles,
Anaheim and Riverside) every five years.

At lease commencement, the Power System initially measures the lease receivable at the present
value of payments expected to be received during the lease term, reduced by any provision of
estimated uncollectible amounts, if any. If the present value of payments expected to be received is
below the $100.0 thousand materiality threshold, then revenues will be recognized as short-term
leases. Subsequently, for all other leases, the lease receivable is reduced by the principal portion of
lease payments received.

The Power System used the long-term average WACC for AA-rated utilities as the discount rate for
leases which approximates the Power System's incremental borrowing rate.

Lease receivables are reported with long-term receivables under noncurrent assets and the
corresponding deferred inflows are reported with other deferred inflows in the statement of net
position. As of June 30, 2022, Power has a $25.3 million lease receivable and $24.8 million lease
related deferred inflow of resources.
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Water

The Water System adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 87 on July 1, 2021 and the Water’s
financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 reflect the implementation of this
statement.

The Water System is a lessee for various noncancelable leases of buildings, vehicles and land. At
lease commencement, the Water System initially measures the lease liability at the present value of
payments expected to be made during the lease term. If the present value of payments expected to be
made is below the $100.0 thousand materiality threshold, then expenses will be recognized as short-
term leases. Subsequently, for all other leases, the lease liability is reduced by the principal portion of
lease payments made at or before the lease commencement date.

The Water System generally uses its estimated incremental borrowing rate as the discount for leases
unless the rate that the lessor/vendor charges is known. The Water System's incremental borrowing
rate is based on the long-term average WACC for AA-rated utilities as the discount rate for leases
unless the rate that the lessor charges is known.

The Water System's incremental borrowing rate for leases is based on the rate of interest it would
need to pay if it issued general obligation bonds to borrow an amount equal to the lease under similar
terms at the commencement or remeasurement date.

The Water System monitors changes in circumstances that may require remeasurement of a lease.
When certain changes occur that are expected to significantly affect the amount of the lease liability,
the liability is remeasured and a corresponding adjustment is made to the lease asset. There was no
remeasurement of leases during fiscal year 2022.

At June 30, 2022, the Water’s lease related RTU assets by major class of underlying assets consist of
the following (in thousands):

Balance

RTU Assets June 30, 2022

Land $ 645
Buildings, Facilities, and Improvements 8,556
Machinery, Furniture and Equipment 1,203
Total RTU Assets 10,404
Accumulated Amortization (1,853)
Total $ 8,551

As of June 30, 2022, the Water's annual principal and interest for the lease liability are as follows (in

thousands):
Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 2,336 $ 308 $ 2,644
2024 589 285 874
2025 627 260 887
2026 530 235 765
2027 557 212 769
2028-2032 3,200 598 3,798
2033-2037 266 185 451
2038-2042 395 121 516
2043-2047 245 50 295
2048-2052 39 3 42
Total $ 8,784 $ 2,257 $ 11,041
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As of June 30, 2022, Water’s lease related RTU assets is $10.4 million with accumulated amortization
of $1.9 million and lease liability is $8.8 million.

The Water System is a lessor for various noncancelable leases covering land and improvements. As a
lessor, the Water System’s long-term Ranch Leases (land) cover a period of 5 years. The lease terms
for these leases are determined each year and are based on three valuation components including 1)
utility of land, 2) operating structures and 3) rental adjustments based on priced indexes specified in
each lease.

At lease commencement, the Water System initially measures the lease receivable at the present
value of payments expected to be received during the lease term, reduced by any provision of
estimated uncollectible amounts, if any. If the present value of payments expected to be received is
below the $100.0 thousand materiality threshold, then revenues will be recognized as short-term
leases. Subsequently, for all other leases, the lease receivable is reduced by the principal portion of
lease payments received.

The Water System used the long-term average WACC for AA-rated utilities as the discount rate for
leases which approximates the Water System's incremental borrowing rate.

Lease receivables are reported with long-term receivables under noncurrent assets and the
corresponding deferred inflows are reported with other deferred inflows in the statement of net
position.

As of June 30, 2022, Water has $3.5 million lease receivable and $3.2 million lease related deferred
inflow of resources.

Sewer

As of June 30, 2022, Sewer, as a lessee, has lease related RTU assets of $18.2 million with
accumulated amortization of $1.8 million, and lease liability is $16.7 million. The implementation of
GASB 87 was immaterial to the Sewer thus required disclosures for GASB 87 have been omitted.
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3. Fiduciary Funds
LACERS

LACERS, as a lessee, leases building facilities under a non-cancelable operating lease that expires in
March 2023 and recognizes intangible RTU lease assets using the implicit rates in the lease
agreements to calculate the present value of lease payments. LACERS made $75.0 thousand of
variable payments, which were excluded from the lease liability during the fiscal year ended June 30,
2022.

As of June 30, 2022, LACERS’ RTU lease asset is $2.5 million with accumulated amortization of $1.8
million, and lease liability is $0.7 million.

LACERS, as a lessor, entered into a cell tower/antenna placement agreement. As of June 30, 2022,
LACERS has a $585.4 thousand lease receivable and $571.4 thousand lease related deferred inflow
of resources.

LACERS restated the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 financial statements, resulting in a total of
$20.0 thousand decrease in the balance of the Fiduciary Net Position due to two affected lease
transactions.

LAFPP

LAFPP has evaluated its applicable lease agreements and deemed them immaterial for accounting
and reporting requirements under the new lease standard.
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N. Risk Management - Estimated Claims and Judgments Payable

1.

Governmental Activities

Because of its size and financial capacity, the City has long followed the practice of directly assuming
virtually all insurable risks without procuring commercial insurance policies, except for specific
exposures where legally required, contractually required or when judged to be the most cost effective
method of risk financing. The extent and variety of City exposure is such that the cost of the premiums
would outweigh the benefits of such coverage. The City administers, adjusts, settles, defends and
pays claims from budgeted resources. Funds are budgeted annually to provide for claims and other
liabilities based both on the City’s historical record of payments and an evaluation of known or
anticipated claims.

As discussed in the summary of significant accounting policies (Note 1E.9), the City recognizes a
liability for claims and judgments when it is probable that an asset has been impaired or a liability has
been incurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Included in the account are
amounts for tort liability and workers’ compensation, which include IBNR liabilities, and provision for
allocated expenses.

As of June 30, 2022, a number of lawsuits and claims were pending against the City that arose in the
normal course of the City's general governmental operations. The City estimates the amount of tort
and non-tort liabilities to be probable of occurring as of June 30, 2022 at approximately $708.9 million.
Of this amount, $136.1 million is estimated to be payable in the next fiscal year. The City Attorney also
estimates that certain pending lawsuits and claims have a reasonable possibility of resulting in
additional liability totaling $63.0 million. However, no amount has been accrued in the accompanying
financial statements because it is not probable that a loss has been incurred as of June 30, 2022.

The City’s liability for tort cases was actuarially estimated. The total of the present value of the
estimated outstanding losses and loss adjustment expenses was used to record the City’s liability for
tort cases. The present value of the estimated outstanding losses and loss adjustment expenses was
calculated based on a 3.0% yield on investments.

The liability for workers’ compensation was recorded using the present value of the actuarially
estimated outstanding losses, which were based on an analysis of the City’s historical loss and
allocated loss adjustment expenses. The present value of the estimated outstanding losses was
calculated based on a 3.0% vyield on investments. At June 30, 2022, the City estimates its workers’
compensation liability at $2.0 billion. Of this amount, $215.9 million is estimated to be payable in the
next fiscal year.

Business-type Activities

Airports Enterprise Fund

The Risk Management Division administers Airports’ risk and claims management program by
implementing a comprehensive risk identification, assessment, regulation and insurance program. The
program addresses key risks that may adversely affect Airports’ ability to meet its business goals and
objectives and effectively insures against losses, transfers risk or otherwise mitigates risk losses.

Airports maintains insurance coverage of $1.3 billion for general aviation liability perils and $1.0 billion
for war and allied perils (Terrorism). Additional insurance coverage is carried for general all risk
property insurance for $2.5 billion, that includes $250.0 million sub-limits for boiler and machinery, and
$25.0 million for earthquake perils. Deductibles for these policies are $10,000 per claim for bodily
injury and property damage, with no aggregate for general liability losses, and $100,000 per
occurrence and no aggregate for general property casualty. Historically, no liability or property claims
have reached or exceeded the stated policy limits stated above.

Airports carries employment practices liability insurance coverage of $10.0 million for protection
against employment-related losses, including coverage for defense costs and damages. Airports is
self-insured for up to $2.5 million for employment practices liability losses. Airports carries cyber
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liability insurance with coverage limits of $15.0 million for protection against cyber liability risks and
technology errors and omissions. Airports maintains a self-insurance retention of $250,000 for cyber
liability coverage.

Additionally, Airports maintains catastrophic loss fund for claims or losses that may exceed insurance
policy limits or where insurance is not available or viable. Commercial insurance is used where it is
legally required, contractually required, or judged to be the most effective way to finance risk. Airports
also monitors contractual transfer of risk by and through insurance review and requirements of
contractors, tenants, airlines. For fiscal year 2022, no claims were in excess of Airports’ insurance
coverage or approached a substantial portion of the overall coverage capacities.

A number of claims/lawsuits were pending against Airports that arose in the normal course of its
operations. Airports recognizes a liability for claims and judgments when it is probable that an asset
has been impaired or a liability has been incurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably
estimated. The probability weighted liability for litigation and other claims for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2022 was $10.1 million.

Airports is self-insured as part of the City’'s program for workers’ compensation. All workers’
compensation cases are processed by the City. Liability and risk are retained by Airports. The
actuarially determined accrued liability for workers’ compensation includes provision for incurred but
not reported claims and loss adjustment expenses. The present value of the estimated outstanding
losses was calculated based on a 3.0% yield on investments. Airports’ accrued workers’
compensation liabilities at June 30, 2022 was $89.7 million.

Harbor Enterprise Fund

Harbor purchases insurance for a variety of exposures associated with general liability property,
automobiles, vessels, employment practices, crime, aircraft, travel, police, pilotage, special events,
cyber and terrorism. The City is self-insured for workers’ compensation, and Harbor participates in the
City’s self-insurance program. Automobile liability exposures are self-insured by Harbor for $1.0
million and multiple layers of excess liability up to $149.0 million is maintained over the self-insured
retention. The excess liability policies also supplement Harbor’'s general and vessel liability policies.
There have been no settlements in the past three years that have exceeded Harbor's insurance
coverage. The actuarially determined accrued liability for workers’ compensation includes provision for
incurred but not reported claims and loss adjustment expenses. Harbor's accrued workers’
compensation liability at June 30, 2022 was $10.3 million.

A number of lawsuits were pending against Harbor that arose in the normal course of operations.
Harbor recognizes a liability for claims and when it is probable that a loss has been incurred and the
amount of that loss, including those incurred but not reported, can be reasonably estimated. The City
Attorney provides estimates for the amount of liabilities to be probable of occurring from lawsuits.
Harbor’s liability for litigation and other claims at June 30, 2022 was $17.0 million.

Power and Water Enterprise Funds

DWP is subject to certain business risks common to the utility industry. The majority of these risks are
mitigated by external insurance coverage obtained by DWP. For other significant business risks,
however, DWP has elected to self-insure. DWP believes that exposure to loss arising out of self-
insured business risks will not materially impact the Power's and Water’s financial position, results of
operations, or cash flows as of June 30, 2022.

Liabilities for unpaid workers’ compensation claims are recorded at their net present value when they
are probable of occurrence and the amount can be reasonably estimated. The liability is actuarially
determined based on an estimate of the present value of the claims outstanding and an amount for
claim events incurred but not reported based upon the DWP’s loss experience, less the amount of
claims and settlements paid to date. The discount rate used to calculate this liability at its present
value was 2.0% at June 30, 2022. The Department has third-party insurance coverage for workers’
compensation claims over $1.0 million.
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Overall indicated reserves for workers’ compensation claims, for both the Power and Water,
undiscounted, have been estimated at $84.0 million as of June 30,2022. Workers’ compensation
claims typically take longer than one year to settle and close out.

Power Enterprise Fund

Derivative Instruments. Power enters into natural gas hedging contracts in order to stabilize the cost
of gas needed to produce electricity to serve its customers. It is designed to cap gas prices over a
portion of the forecasted gas requirements. DWP does not speculate when entering into financial
transactions. Financial hedges are variable to fixed-rate swaps and hedge transactions are layered in
to achieve dollar cost averaging.

As of June 30, 2022, Power financial natural gas hedges by fiscal year are the following (fair value in

thousands):
Notional amount Contract Last
(total contract Price Range First Effective ~ Termination
guantities*) Dollar per Unit Date Date Fair Value
2023 21,340,000 $1.840-4.610  07/01/22 06/30/23 $ 55,520
2024 16,020,000 1.880-4.390 07/01/23 06/30/24 26,324
2025 8,990,000 2.200-3.400 07/01/24 06/30/25 12,268
2026 7,915,000 2.230-4.250 07/01/25 06/30/26 6,342
2027 3,055,000 3.490-4.300 07/01/26 06/30/27 292
Total 57,320,000 $ 100,746

* Contract quantities in MMBtu - Million British Thermal Units

The fair value of the natural gas hedges increased by $59.3 million during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2022 due to an increase during the year in natural gas prices and is reported as a noncurrent
asset and is offset by a deferred inflow on the statement of net position. All fair values were estimated
using Platt’s forward curves, based on published settlement prices and supplemented by Platt’s
proprietary models wherever there is less liquid market activity.

Credit Risk. Power is exposed to credit risk related to nonperformance by its wholesale counterparties
under the terms of contractual agreements. In order to limit the risk of counterparty default, DWP has
implemented a Counterparty Evaluation Credit Policy (Credit Policy). The Credit Policy has been
amended from time to time, and the latest board approval was on November 28, 2017. The Credit
Policy's current scope includes physical power, transmission, physical natural gas, financial natural
gas, and environmental products. Also, the credit limit structures are categorized into short-term and
long-term structures where the short-term structure is applicable to transactions with terms of up to
18 months and the long-term structure covers transactions beyond 18 months.

The Policy includes provisions to limit risk, including the assignment of internal credit ratings to all of
the Power System’s counterparties based on counterparty and/or debt ratings; the use of expected
default frequency equivalent credit rating for short-term transactions; the requirement for credit
enhancements (including advance payments, irrevocable letters of credit, escrow trust accounts, and
parent company guarantees) for counterparties that do not meet an acceptable level of risk; and the
use of standardized agreements, which allow for the netting of positive and negative exposures
associated with a single counterparty.

As of June 30,2022, the five financial natural gas hedge counterparties were rated by Moody’s as
follows: one at Aa1, one at A1, and three at A2. The counterparties were rated by S&P as follows: one
at AA-, one at A+, two at A-, and one at BBB+.

Based on the International Swap Dealers Association agreements, Power or the counterparty may be
required to post collateral to support the financial natural gas hedges subject to credit risk in the form
of cash, negotiable debt instruments (other than interest-only and principal-only securities), or eligible
letters of credit. As of June 30, 2022, the fair values of the financial natural gas hedges were above
the credit limits of two counterparties; cash and securities collateral were posted totaling to
approximately $46.2 million.
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Basis Risk. Power is exposed to minimal to no basis risk between the financial natural gas hedges
and the equivalent physical gas deliveries as both are settled using the first of the month NW Rocky
Mountains Index, while the physical gas deliveries are received at Kern River Opal, where the
Department negotiated firm transmission rights. Both locations are in the same region and are highly
correlated.

Termination Risk. Power or its counterparties may terminate the contractual agreements if the other
party fails to perform under the terms of the contract. No termination events have occurred and there
are no out-of-the-ordinary termination events contained in contractual documents.

Sewer Enterprise Fund

Sewer has commercial insurance for risks of physical damage to real and personal properties and for
business interruption expenses. Claims settlements have not exceeded commercial insurance
coverage during the last three fiscal years.

Claim Changes

The Enterprise Funds' estimated claims and judgments payable of $209.9 million consisted of $33.8
million litigation-type claims and $176.1 million workers’ compensation liability. The amount estimated
to be payable in the next fiscal year is approximately $30.4 million.

The changes in the City's total governmental and business-type estimated claims and judgments
liability are as follows (in thousands):

FY 2022 FY 2021
Unpaid Claims, July 1 $ 2830472 $ 2,595,770
Provisions for Current Year's Events and Changes
in Provision for Prior Years' Events 453,207 622,512
Claims Payments (337,840) (387,810)
Unpaid Claims, June 30 $ 2945839 $§ 2,830,472

0. Accrued Landfill Liability

Until July 1996, the City operated the Lopez Canyon Sanitary Landfill under a Conditional Use Permit
(CUP), which expired on July 1, 1996. State and Federal laws required the City to close the landfill upon
cessation of disposal activities and expiration of the CUP, and to monitor and maintain the site for thirty
years after closure. The City systematically recognized a portion of the estimated closure and post-
closure care costs based on landfill capacity used.

The City completed the final closure of the landfill on March 30, 2012. In fiscal year 2013, all three
regulatory agencies, the State of California Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery
(CalRecycle), Regional Water Quality Control Board, and the City of Los Angeles Local Enforcement
Agency, approved the final Closure Certification. As of June 30, 2022, the City’s liability of $41.6 million is
comprised of $39.5 million post-closure care costs of the landfill and $2.1 million corrective action costs
for foreseeable release. Pursuant to Section 22211 of Title 27 of the California Code of Regulations, the
post-closure care cost of $39.5 million represents post-closure duration of 20 years. The estimated costs
of post-closure care are subject to changes due to inflation, changes in laws and regulations, or changes
in technology. As of June 30, 2022, there was no liability due within one year.

As required by Title 27 of the California Code of Regulations, the City established and contributed to a
trust fund to finance closure construction. Since the landfill was closed and certified by the applicable
regulatory agencies, the closure trust fund was no longer necessary and therefore closed. The City is not
currently required to advance fund post-closure care costs.

The City owns and maintains other landfills that were already closed before the State and Federal
requirements became enforceable. Therefore, no liability was included in the financial statements for
these landfills (Toyon Canyon, Gaffey, Bishops Canyon and Sheldon-Arleta). The Landfill Maintenance
Special Trust Fund and Landfill Closure and Post-Closure Maintenance Trust Fund, reported as
nonmajor other special revenue funds, were set up to defray the closure and post-closure maintenance
costs of City landfills.
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The pollution remediation obligations for governmental activities for the fiscal year ended June 30,

2022 are as follows (in thousands):

Balance Balance
June 30, 2021 Additions Deductions June 30, 2022
Obligating Event
Violation of Pollution Prevention-Related Permit
or License $ 12,048 $ 596 $ (1,191) $ 11,453
Voluntary Commencement -- 17,120 (17,113) 7
Total $ 12,048 $ 17,716 $ (18,304) $ 11,460
Pollution Type
Soil and/or Groundwater Remediation $ 11,993 § 16,506 $ (17,094) $ 11,405
Lead Paint Removal - 395 (395) -
Methane Protection 55 - - 55
Asbestos Removal -- 666 (666) --
Mold - 149 (149) -
Total $ 12,048 $ 17,716 § (18,304) $ 11,460

The $11.5 million liabilities for governmental activities, net of $15.7 million recoveries, is mainly for
violation of pollution prevention-related permits or licenses. These obligations were determined based
on construction contract amount, contract change orders, related direct costs and allocated indirect
project costs. As of June 30, 2022, the total liability of $11.5 million included $8.2 million cost of
removal of heavy metals, soil grasses and aerially deposited lead for the Sixth Street viaduct from
Mateo Street to Highway 101, and $3.3 million for removal of solvents in the groundwater caused by a
leaking underground storage tank and remediation costs for various public work projects. For fiscal
year 2022, no remediation outlays were capitalized. Estimated expenditures for fiscal year 2023 and
beyond are $9.2 million and $2.3 million, respectively. These estimates recognized potential changes
due to additional work that may be required to remediate existing pollution projects, unanticipated site
conditions that may necessitate modifications in project work plans, possible adoption or application of
improved technologies that may require changes in estimates, and provision for additional unexpected
pollution projects. Consequently, changes in estimates will be processed through change orders.
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2. Business-type Activities

The pollution remediation obligations for business-type activities for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2022 are as follows (in thousands):

Balance Balance
June 30, 2021 Additions Deductions June 30, 2022

Obligating Event
Violation of Pollution Prevention-Related Permit

or License $ 909 $ - $ (14) $ 895
Named by a Regulator as a Potential Party to

Remediation 67,936 1,655 (3,507) 66,084
Named in Lawsuit and Compelled to Participate

in Remediation 11,950 4,716 -- 16,666
Voluntary Commencement 87,992 - (7,447) 80,545
Total $ 168,787 $ 6,371 $ (10,968) $ 164,190

Pollution Type

Soil and/or Groundwater Remediation $ 168,787 $ 6,371 $ (10,968) $ 164,190

Airports bear full responsibility for the cleanup of environmental contamination on property it owns.
However, if the contamination originated based on contractual arrangements, the tenants are held
responsible even if they declare bankruptcy. As property owner, Airports assumes the ultimate
responsibility for cleanup in the event the tenant is unable to make restitution. Under certain applicable
laws, Airports may become liable for cleaning up soil and groundwater contamination on a property in
the event that the previous owner does not perform its remediation obligations. Airports accrues
pollution remediation liabilities when costs are incurred or amounts can be reasonably estimated
based on expected outlays.

Harbor’s estimated pollution remediation liability as of June 30, 2022 was $67.1 million, of which $1.9
million is due within one year. These costs relate mostly to soil and ground water contamination on
sites within Harbor premises. As certain sites were formerly used for a variety of industrial purposes,
legacy contamination or environmental impairments exist. Harbor uses a combination of in-house
specialists as well as outside consultants to perform estimates of potential liability and accrues
pollution remediation liability when costs are incurred or amounts can be reasonably estimated based
on expected outlays. Certain remediation contracts are included in site development plans as final
uses for the sites have been identified.

Power's environmental liabilities are primarily related to generating and service stations they own that
have had release of hazardous materials or waste they are obligated by a regulator to clean up. The
estimated time frame for clean-up and monitoring of these sites is 5-25 years. Power had identified
sites that require remediation work and the estimated liability for these sites for fiscal year 2022 was
approximately $80.0 million.

Water has identified underground storage tanks that require remediation work and is working with the
Los Angeles Regional Water Quality Control Board, and the Lahontan Regional Quality Control Board,
which have jurisdiction over these sites. Water’s estimated liability for these sites was approximately
$16.7 million, due within one year, and includes remediation and ongoing operation and maintenance
costs where estimable.
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Q. Economic Development Incentives and Tax Abatement

The City has economic development incentives programs which are agreements whereby the City
provides financial assistance to development projects to be funded by net new tax revenues generated by
the projects. The City also has a tax abatement program in which contracts are entered with property
owners of qualified historical properties for their preservation, maintenance, and rehabilitation in return for
property tax reduction.

The threshold for reporting economic development incentives agreements is $1.0 million, though
agreements with no payments in the reporting year are reported if they are anticipated to exceed the
threshold in future years.

1.

Development Incentive Agreements

As of June 30, 2022, the City had entered into nine development incentive agreements. Each of these
agreements is for a term of up to 25 years. The projects are projected to provide new General Fund
tax revenues to the City, including but not limited to property taxes, sales taxes, utility users taxes,
gross receipts taxes, parking occupancy taxes, transient occupancy taxes, and construction-related
tax revenues. Certain portions of the projected new General Fund tax revenues are used by the City in
providing project financing to the developers. City policy maintains that the financial assistance
payments to the developers must be no more than 50% of the net new revenues generated by the
project during the term of the agreement. These agreements require the approval of the Mayor and
the City Council, and the Office of the City Administrative Officer administers incentive payments.

Convention Center Headquarters Hotel Project

In fiscal year 2007, this agreement was entered by the City and Anschutz Entertainment Group
(Developer) for the development of a hotel within the LA Live/convention center complex at 900 W.
Olympic Blvd., as a combination of an 878-room J.W. Marriott Hotel and a 123-room Ritz Carlton
hotel. Annual incentive payments paid to the Developer are equal to the total transient occupancy tax
remitted in the year, up to the total incentive amount of $270 million over 25 years, or $62.0 million as
net present value (NPV). In fiscal year 2022, the City paid $9.9 million in financial assistance to the
Developer. A total of $121.9 million has been paid to the Developer since payments began in fiscal
year 2010.

901 Olympic North Hotel Project

In fiscal year 2012, this agreement was entered by the City and 901 West Olympic Blvd. L.P.
(Developer) for the development of two hotels, both 3-star rated Marriott properties, in one building
with a total of 393 rooms. Annual incentive payments paid to the Developer are equal to the total
transient occupancy tax remitted in the year, up to the total incentive amount of $67.3 million over 25
years, or $21.9 million as NPV. In fiscal year 2022, the City paid $1.6 million in financial assistance to
the Developer. A total of $25.6 million has been paid to the Developer since payments began in fiscal
year 2014.

Metropolis Hotel Project

In fiscal year 2015, this agreement was entered by the City and Greenland LA Metropolis Hotel
Development, LLC (Developer) for the development of the Metropolis Hotel Project. The project
includes a 350 room 18-story hotel, including residential parking, open space, 1,692 square feet of
retail space and business center. Annual incentive payments paid to the Developer are equal to the
total transient occupancy tax remitted in the year, up to the total incentive amount of $18.7 million over
25 years, or $13.5 million NPV. In fiscal year 2022, the City paid $3.2 million in financial assistance to
the Developer. A total of $14.4 million has been paid to the Developer since payments began in fiscal
year 2017.
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Village at Westfield Topanga Project

In fiscal year 2014, this agreement was entered by the City and 21919 Erwin LLC, and West Valley
Owner LLC for the development of the Village at Westfield Topanga (Developers). The project is
comprised of the construction of a new 500,000 square foot, first class mixed-use development
including upscale retail, boutique specialty shops, personal services, restaurants and community
center. Annual incentive payments paid to the Developers are based on the total property taxes
remitted, subject to an annual true-up, up to the total incentive amount of $47.7 million over 25 years,
or $25.0 million NPV. In fiscal year 2022, the City paid $1.4 million in financial assistance to the
Developers. A total of $7.9 million has been paid to the Developers since payments began in fiscal
year 2017.

Wilshire Grand Hotel Project

In fiscal year 2011, the agreement was entered by the City and Hanijin International Corporation
(Developer) for the development of a hotel and mixed-use project totaling approximately 2.5 million
square feet. The project includes 560 hotel rooms and/or hotel-condo units, 100 residential units and
1.5 million square feet of office space. Annual incentive payments paid to the Developer are equal to
the total transient occupancy tax remitted in the year, up to the total incentive amount of $94.0 million
over 9 years, or $60.8 million NPV. In fiscal year 2022, the City paid $8.2 million in financial assistance
to the Developer. A total of $33.0 million has been paid to the Developer since payments began in
fiscal year 2018.

Grand Avenue Hotel Project

In fiscal year 2017, the agreement was entered by the City and Grand Avenue L.A., LLC, and Grand
Avenue M Housing Partners, LLC, (Developers) for the revitalization of Grand Avenue and downtown
Los Angeles. The project includes development of hotel, residential, commercial, retail and
entertainment components. Annual incentive payments paid to the Developers are equal to the total of
transient occupancy taxes and parking occupancy taxes remitted in the year. The total incentive
amount for transient occupancy taxes is up to $189.1 million over 25 years, or $59.3 million NPV. The
total incentive amount for parking occupancy taxes is up to $12.7 million over 10 years, or $7.6 million
NPV. The total combined transient occupancy and parking occupancy incentive amount is $201.8
million, or $67.0 million NPV. No payment was made in fiscal year 2022.

Cambria Hotel Project

In fiscal year 2018, the agreement was entered by the City and 926 James M. Wood Boulevard, LLC
(Developer) for the development of Cambria Hotel Project. The project includes a 247-room three
diamond rated hotel. The hotel will include all facilities associated with a select service hotel, including
parking, meeting rooms, ground-level retail and restaurant, a rooftop bar, and a pool and fitness
center. Annual incentive payments paid to the Developer are equal to the total transient occupancy tax
remitted in the year, up to the total incentive amount of $48.4 million over 25 years, or $15.7 million
NPV. No payment was made in fiscal year 2022.

Fig plus Pico Conference Center Hotels Project

In fiscal year 2019, the agreement was entered by the City and Lightstone DTLA, LLC (Developer) for
the development of Fig plus Pico Conference Center Hotel Project. The project includes a 1,153-room
and 13,145 square feet of ground-floor retail/restaurant uses within two hotel towers, totaling up to
505,335 square feet of floor area on approximately 1.22-acre site, with Hotel A/B Tower including up
to 775 hotel guest rooms, 11,000 square feet of ground-floor retail/restaurant uses, and podium
parking for all three hotels within a 38-story, 465-foot tower, and Hotel C Tower including up to 378
guest rooms and 2,145 square feet of ground-floor retail/restaurant uses in a 27-story, 350-foot tower.
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Annual incentive payments paid to the Developer are equal to the total transient occupancy tax
remitted in the year, up to the total incentive amount of $103.3 million over 25 years, or $67.4 million
NPV. No payment was made in fiscal year 2022.

AECOM Hotel Project

This agreement was entered by the City and AECOM Capital (Developer) for the development of the
AECOM Hotel Project. The project includes a 16-story, 258-room 3-star select-service hotel, including
restaurant and retail space, meeting space, a rooftop deck with a pool and fitness center, and a 36-
space underground parking garage totaling 16,422 square feet on the hotel project site. Annual
incentive payments paid to the Developer are equal to the total transient occupancy tax remitted in the
year, up to the total incentive amount of $28.5 million over 25 years, or $17.3 million NPV. No
payment was made in fiscal year 2022.

2. Mills Act Historical Property Agreements

The Mills Act Historical Property Contracts program is the State of California’s leading financial
incentive for historic preservation projects and is implemented under the provisions of Ordinance No.
172,857 implementing State Government Code Sections 50280 et seq., commonly known as the “Mills
Act”. The Mills Act allows the City to enter into contracts with owners of qualified historical properties
for their preservation, maintenance and rehabilitation. The program is designed to assist under-utilized
and under-valued properties. The property is assessed on an income basis rather than fair value. The
result is property tax abatement. As of June 30, 2022, there are 950 existing Mills Act contracts in the
City. The City paused new Mills Act applications in fiscal year 2022. Existing contracts are renewed
annually for a minimum term of ten years.

For fiscal year 2022, the property tax abated from the Mills Act agreements was $2.3 million. The City
Council has imposed a cap on total property tax abatement of $2.3 million.
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NOTE 5. OTHER INFORMATION

A. Pension Plans
1. Plan Descriptions

The City of Los Angeles contributes to three single-employer defined benefit pension plans: Los
Angeles Fire and Police Pension System (Pensions), Los Angeles City Employees’ Retirement
System (LACERS), and Water and Power Employees’ Retirement Plan (DWP Plans). Pensions and
LACERS provide retirement benefits to sworn and civilian (other than DWP) employees, respectively.
The DWP Plans provide retirement, disability, and death benefits to DWP employees. The City also
provides three single-employer substantive Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) plans through the
aforementioned defined benefit plans: Fire and Police Health Subsidy Plan (Pensions OPEB), Los
Angeles City Employees’ Postemployment Health Care Plan (LACERS OPEB), and Water and Power
Employees’ Retiree Health Benefits Plan (DWP OPEB). Each plan issues a publicly available financial
report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for that plan. Those
reports may be obtained online or by writing or calling the plans.

Los Angeles Fire and Police Pension System
701 E. Third Street, Suite 200

Los Angeles, CA 90013

(213) 279-3000
https://lwww.lafpp.com/financial-reports

Los Angeles City Employees’ Retirement System
P.O. Box 512218

Los Angeles, CA 90051-0218

(800) 779-8328
http://www.lacers.org/aboutlacers/reports/index.html

Water and Power Employees' Retirement Plan

111 N. Hope Street, Room 357

Los Angeles, CA 90012

(213) 367-1692
https://retirement.ladwp.com/webcenter/portal/rp/home/page121/page171

2. Description of the Plans, Membership and Benefits

General Information About the Plans

Pensions

Pensions operates under the City of Los Angeles (City) Charter (Volume II, Article XI) and
Administrative Code provisions (Division 4). It operates in accordance with the State Constitution
Article XVI, Section 17(a). Pension benefits are administered by the Pensions Board that has
exclusive responsibility to administer the system, providing benefits to Pensions participants and their
beneficiaries and to ensure prompt delivery of those benefits. The City Charter and Administrative
Code provide that the funding requirements of Pensions will be satisfied by the City. The funding
requirements of Pensions are determined by the result of annual actuarial valuations. Pensions is a
defined benefit single-employer pension plan covering all full-time active sworn firefighters, police
officers, and certain Harbor Port Police and Airport police officers of the City of Los Angeles.

Pensions also covers those certified paramedics and civilian ambulance employees who transferred
from LACERS during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1983 or have since been hired. Pensions is
composed of six tiers. Effective July 1, 2011, a new pension tier, Tier 6, was added. Benefits are
based on the member’s pension tier, pension salary base, and years of service. In addition, Pensions
provides for disability benefits under certain conditions and benefits to eligible survivors.
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LACERS

LACERS is under the exclusive management and control of its Board of Administration (Board),
whose authority is granted by statute in Article XVI, Section 17 of the California State Constitution, and
Article XI of the Los Angeles City Charter. LACERS operates a single-employer defined benefit plan
(Retirement Plan) and a single-employer Postemployment Health Care Plan established by ordinance
and approved by the City Council and the Mayor. Members who entered the System prior to February
21, 2016 are Tier 1 Members of LACERS. On or after February 21, 2016, new Members become
Members of LACERS Tier 3.

DWP Plans

DWP Plans is a single-employer public employee retirement system whose main function is to provide
pension, death and disability benefits, to eligible employees of DWP. The authority for providing
benefits is granted by the City Charter. Authority for changing DWP Plans benefits is adopted through
resolution by the DWP Plan Board of Administration and the DWP Board of Commissioners. The DWP
Plans have four separate funds — Retirement Fund, Disability Fund, Death Benefit Fund, and Retiree
Health Benefits Fund (RHBF). Each fund is considered a separate plan and an independent trust fund
of DWP. The Retirement Fund is a single-employer defined benefit pension plan. The Death Benefit
Fund and Retiree Health Benefit Fund are single-employer defined benefit other postemployment
benefits (OPEB) plans. The Disability Fund is for the payment of temporary disability and permanent
total disability of DWP employees, and is not considered a pension plan nor an OPEB plan. On
December 11, 2013, the DWP Retirement Board adopted an amendment to create a new tier, Tier 2
for DWP’s new hires on or after January 1, 2014.

Membership

Pensions

The components of the Pensions’ membership at June 30, 2022 were as follows:

Active Nonvested

Tier 4 6
Tier 5 4,062
Tier 6 4,402
Subtotal 8,470
Active Vested
Tier 2 4
Tier 3 472
Tier 4 168
Tier 5 3,653
Tier 6 4
Subtotal 4,301
Pensioners and Beneficiaries
Tier 1 190
Tier 2 6,334
Tier 3 910
Tier 4 389
Tier 5 5,995
Tier 6 3
Subtotal 13,821
Vested Terminated
Tier 3 33
Tier 5 257
Tier 6 433
Subtotal 723
Total 27,315
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Pensions’ Tier 1 includes members hired on or before January 28, 1967. Tier 2 includes members
hired from January 29, 1967 through December 7, 1980, and those Tier 1 members who transferred to
Tier 2 during the enrollment period of January 29, 1967 to January 29, 1968. Tier 3 includes members
hired from December 8, 1980 through June 30, 1997, and those Tier 4 members hired during the
period of July 1, 1997 through December 31, 1997 who elected to transfer to Tier 3 by the enroliment
deadline of August 6, 1999. Tier 4 includes members hired from July 1, 1997 through December 31,
2001, and those Tier 3 members who elected to transfer to Tier 4 by the enroliment deadline of June
30, 1998. Tier 5 includes members hired from January 1, 2002 through June 30, 2011, and those
Active members of Tiers 2, 3, and 4 who elected to transfer to Tier 5 during the enrollment period of
January 2, 2002 through December 31, 2002. Tier 5 was the tier for all Harbor Port police officers
hired on or after January 8, 2006 through June 30, 2011. Harbor Port police officers hired before
January 8, 2006, who were members of LACERS, were allowed to transfer to Tier 5 during the
enrollment period of January 8, 2006 to January 5, 2007.

Tier 6 was established for all firefighters, police and Harbor Port police officers hired on or after July 1,
2011. Tier 6 includes sworn officers from the Department of General Services who transferred to Los
Angeles Police Department (LAPD) classifications and elected to opt out of LACERS by the
December 12, 2014 deadline. Effective January 7, 2018, Tier 6 also includes all new Airport police
officers, as well as any Airport police officers hired prior to January 7, 2018 who elected to transfer to
Tier 6 from LACERS at their own expense.

LACERS

The components of LACERS’ membership at June 30, 2022 were as follows:

Active Vested and Nonvested

Tier 1 16,762
Tier 3 8,155
Subtotal 24,917
Inactive Nonvested and Terminated Entitled to
Benefits
Tier 1 7,836
Tier 3 2,543
Subtotal 10,379
Inactive
Retired Tier 1 17,397
Retired Tier 3 2
Disabled Tier 1 819
Beneficiaries Tier 1 4,181
Subtotal 22,399
Total 57,695
DWP Plans

As of June 30, 2022, DWP Plans’ membership consisted of 9,716 retirees and beneficiaries; 1,735
terminated vested members and 10,799 active members.
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Benefits
Benefits Provided by Pensions

Tier 1 members hired prior to January 17, 1927, with 20 years of service are entitled to annual
pension benefits equal to 50%, increasing for each year of service over 20 years, to a maximum of 66-
2/3% of the average monthly rate of salary assigned to the ranks or positions held by the member
during the three years immediately preceding the date of retirement. Tier 1 members hired on or after
January 17, 1927, with 20 or more years of service are entitled to annual pension benefits equal to
40%, increasing for each year of service over 20 years, to a maximum of 66-2/3% of the average
monthly rate of salary assigned to the ranks or positions held by the member during the three years
immediately preceding the date of retirement. Tier 1 has no minimum age requirement and provides
for unlimited postemployment cost-of-living adjustments (COLA) based on the Consumer Price Index
(CPI). Tier 1 members who were active as of July 1, 1982, and who terminated their employment after
July 1, 1982, were entitled to a refund of contributions plus Board-approved interest if they did not
qualify for a pension or if they waived their pension entitlements.

Tier 2 members with 20 or more years of service are entitled to annual pension benefits equal to 40%
of their final compensation, increasing for each year of service over 20 years, to a maximum of 70%
for 30 years. Tier 2 has no minimum age requirement and provides for unlimited postemployment
COLAs based on the CPI. Tier 2 members who were active as of July 1, 1982, and who terminate
their employment after July 1, 1982, are entitled to a refund of contributions plus Board-approved
interest if they do not qualify for a pension or if they waive their pension entitlements.

Tier 3 members must be at least age 50 with 10 or more years of service to be entitled to a service
pension. Annual pension benefits are equal to 20% of the monthly average of a member’s salary
during any 12 consecutive months of service as a Plan member (one-year average compensation),
increasing for each year of service over 10 years, to a maximum of 70% for 30 years. Tier 3 provides
for postemployment COLAs based on the CPI to a maximum of 3% per year. The Los Angeles City
Council (City Council) may grant an ad-hoc COLA no more than every three years, subject to certain
conditions. Members who terminate their employment are entitled to a refund of contributions plus
Board-approved interest if they do not qualify for a pension or if they waive their pension entitlements.

Tier 4 members must have at least 20 years of service to be entitled to a service pension. There is no
minimum age requirement. Annual pension benefits are equal to 40% of their one-year average
compensation, increasing for each year of service over 20 years, to a maximum of 70% for 30 years.
Tier 4 provides for postemployment COLAs based on the CPI to a maximum of 3% per year. The City
Council may grant an ad-hoc COLA no more than every three years, subject to certain conditions.
Members who terminate their employment before they are eligible for pension benefits do not receive
a refund of contributions.

Tier 5 members must be at least age 50, with 20 or more years of service, to be entitled to a service
pension. Annual pension benefits are equal to 50% of their one-year average compensation,
increasing for each year of service over 20 years, to a maximum of 90% for 33 years. Tier 5 provides
for postemployment COLAs based on the CPI to a maximum of 3% per year. However, any increase
in the CPI greater than 3% per year is placed into a COLA bank for use in years in which the increase
in CPl is less than 3%. The City Council may also grant a discretionary ad-hoc COLA no more than
every three years, subject to certain conditions. Members who terminate their employment are entitled
to a refund of their contributions plus Board-approved interest if they do not qualify for a pension or if
they waive their pension entitlements.

Tier 6 members must be at least age 50, with 20 or more years of service, to be entitled to a service
pension. Annual pension benefits are equal to 40% of their two-year average compensation,
increasing for each year of service over 20 years, to a maximum of 90% for 33 years. Tier 6 provides
for postemployment COLAs based on the CPI to a maximum of 3% per year. However, any increase
in the CPI greater than 3% per year is placed into a COLA bank for use in years in which the increase
in CPl is less than 3%. The City Council may also grant a discretionary ad-hoc COLA no more than
every three years, subject to certain conditions. Members who terminate their employment are entitled
to a refund of their contributions plus Board-approved interest if they do not qualify for a pension or if
they waive their pension entitlements.
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Benefits Provided by LACERS

Members of LACERS have a vested right to their own contributions and accumulated interest posted
to their accounts. Generally, after five years of employment, members are eligible for future retirement
benefits, which increase with length of service. If a member who has five or more years of continuous
City service terminates employment, the member has the option of receiving retirement benefits when
eligible or having his or her contributions and accumulated interest refunded. Benefits are based upon
age, length of service, and compensation.

LACERS Tier 1 members are eligible to retire with unreduced benefits if they have 10 or more years of
continuous City service at age 60, or at least 30 years of City service at age 55, or with any years of
City service at age 70 or older. Members also are eligible to retire with age-based reduced benefits
after reaching age 55 with 10 or more years of continuous City service, or at any age with 30 or more
years of City service. Full (unreduced) retirement benefits are determined as 2.16% of the member’s
average monthly pensionable salary during the member’s last 12 months of service, or during any
other 12 consecutive months of service designated by the member, multiplied by the member’s years
of service credit. Members with five years of continuous service are eligible for disability retirement,
and the benefits are determined as 1/70 of the member’s final average monthly salary for each year of
service or 1/3 of the member’s final average monthly salary, if greater. Upon an active member’s
death, a refund of the member’s contributions and, depending on the member’s years of service, a
limited pension benefit equal to 50% of monthly salary may be paid up to 12 months. Or, if such
member was eligible to retire, survivor benefits may be paid to an eligible spouse or qualified domestic
partner. Upon a retired member’s death, a $2,500 funeral allowance is paid, and a modified or
unmodified allowance is continued to an eligible spouse or qualified domestic partner.

Airport Peace Officers (APO) members, hired on or before March 28, 2017, who elect to remain in
LACERS and paid the mandatory additional contribution of $5,700 before January 8, 2019 or prior to
the member's retirement date, whichever is earlier would be Tier 1 members, and be eligible for
enhanced benefits including more favorable disability benefits, death benefits, and a higher retirement
factor of 2.30% (versus 2.16% for all other Tier 1 Members).

LACERS Tier 3 members are eligible to retire with unreduced benefits if they have at least 10 or more
years of City service at age 60 or at least 30 years of City service at age 55, provided that five years of
service must be continuous. Full unreduced retirement benefits at age 60 with 10 years of City service
are determined with a 1.5% retirement factor. Members also are eligible to retire with an age-based
reduced benefit before reaching age 60 with 30 or more years of City service with a retirement factor
of 2.0%. If the member is age 55 or older with 30 years of service at the time of retirement, his or her
retirement allowance will not be subject to reduction on account of age. However, if the member is
younger than age 55 with 30 years of service at the time of retirement, his or her retirement allowance
will be reduced by the applicable early retirement reduction factor. In addition, LACERS also provides
Tier 3 members enhanced retirement benefits with a 2.0% retirement factor if the member retires at
age 63 with at least 10 years of service, or a retirement factor of 2.1% if the m